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Strategic Report

Principal activities
Lloyds Bank plc {the Bank} and its subsidiary undertakungs (the Group} provide a wide range of banking and financial services through branches and offices In
the UK and overseas

The Group's revenue s earned through interest and fees on a broad range of financial services products including current and savings accourts, personal loans,
credit cards and mortgages within the retail market, leans and capital market preducts to commercial, corporate and asset finance customers, Iife, pensions and
nvestrment products, general insurance, and prvate banking and asset management

Business review

Duning the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a profit before tax of £2,289 million compared with a profit before tax in 2013 of £834 million
The result in 2814 included provisions in respect of redress to customers relating to past sales of Payment Peotection Insurance and other issues of £3,125 mullion
compared to a charge of £3,455 millien in the year ended 31 December 2013, and 2014 also includes a past service pension credit of £822 million, compared
to a charge of £104 milbon in 2013 Excluding these rtems from both years, profit before tax was £139 rmllion, or 3 per cent, higher at £4,592 muthon in the
year ended 31 December 2014 compared to £4,453 mullion in the previous year

Total income decreased by £8,055 mullion, or 21 per cent, to £30,162 muition in 2014 compared with £38,217 million in 2013, compnsing an £11,279 mulion
decrease In other income partly offset by an increase of £3,224 million in net interest iIncome

Net interest income was £10,214 million 10 2014, an increase of £3,224 million, or 46 per cent compared to £6,990 mithon 1n 2013 There was a positive
impact of £2,489 million in 2014 from a decrease in the amounts payable to umt holders in those Open-Ended Investment Companies {QEICs) included in the
consolidated results of the Group After adjusting for this, net interest income was £735 mullion, or 7 per cent, higher at £10,816 million in 2014 compared to
£10,081 millton in 2013 reflecting the continued improvement in margins and loan growth in targeted customer segments, partly offset by the effect of disposals
and the reduced portfolio of assets which are cutside of the Group's nisk appetite Net interest margin benefited from improved deposit pricing and lower funding
costs, partly offset by continued pressure on asset prices

Other income was £11,279 milhon, or 36 per cent, lower at £19,948 million in 2014 compared to £31,227 millon in 2013 Fee and commission income
was £453 million, or 11 per cent, lower at £3,666 milion compared to £4,119 milhon in 2013 Fee and comenission expense increased by £19 million, or
1 per cent, to £1,402 mullion compared with £1,383 million in 2013 The decrease in net fee and commission income lazgely reflects the impact of business
disposals Net trading income decreased by £7,531 mullion, ¢r 44 per cent, to £3,508 million in 2014 compared to £17,039 million 1n 2013, this decrease
reflected a reduction of £7,384 millon in gains on palicyholder investments held within the insurance business as a result of movements in financial markets,
offset by a simiar decrease in the related claims expense [nsurance premium income was £1,072 million, or 13 per cent, lower at £7,125 million in 2014
compared with £8,197 million in 2013, there was a decrease of £945 muilion in fife insurance premiums offset by a £127 milhion decrease in general insurance
prermiums Other operating income was £2,204 million lower at £1,051 melion in 2014 compared to £3,255 million in 2013 Other operating income includes
gains and losses on disposal of avallable-for-sale financial assets which were £498 millon, or 79 per cent, lower at £131 million in 2014 compared to
£629 million in 2013 foliowing the completion of the repositioning of the Group's government bond portfolio in early 2013 Excluding gains and losses on sale
of avallable-for-sale financial assets, other operating income was £1,706 mullion lower at £920 million n 2014 compared to £2,626 milion in 2013, this
income 1A 2013 included the gains of £540 milhon from the sales of shares in St James's Place and £538 million following the sale of the Group's portfolio of
US Residential Mortgage-Backed Securnties

Insurance claims expense was £6,014 milhion, or 31 per cent, lower at £13,493 million in 2014 compared to £19,507 million in 2013 The insurance clarms
expense In respect of life and pensions business was £5,988 million, or 31 per cent, lower at £13,163 milkon in 2014 compared to £19,151 million in 2013,
this decrease in claims was matched by a similar dechine in net trading income, reflecting the relative performance of policyholder investments insurance clarms
in respect of general insurance business were £26 mullion, or 7 per cent, lower at £330 mithon in 2014 compared to £356 mullion in 2013

Operating expenses decreased hy £1,447 multion, or 10 per cent to £13,628 million in 2014 compared with £15,075 million in 2013, the main reasans for
the decrease being the £330 million reduction in charges for regulatory provisions from £3,455 million in 2013 to £3,125 million in 2014 and, a net past
service pansien credit of £822 million compared to a charge of £104 milhon in 2013 Excluding these tems from both years, operating expenses were
£191 mullion, or 2 per cent, lower at £11,325 mthon in 2014 compared 10 £11,516 million in 2013 On this basis staff costs were £170 million, or 3 per cent,
lower at £5,567 millicn in 2014 compared with £5,737 milbon in 2013, annual pay nses being more than offset by the impact of headcount reductions
resulting from business disposafs and the Group's rationalisation programmes Premises and equipment costs were £79 million, or 8 per cent, lower at
£891 millzon in 2014 compared with £970 million in 2013 Other expenses excluding the charges in respect of payment protection insurance and other
regulatory provisions of £3,125 milion from 2014 and £3,455 mullion from 2013 were £63 mullion, or 2 per cent, higher at £2,932 million in 2014 compared
with £2,869 million in 2013 Depreciation and amortisation costs were £5 million lower at £1,935 million in 2014 compared to £1,940 mullion in 2013

Impairment losses decreased by £1,989 million, or 73 per cent, to £752 mullion in 2014 compared with £2,741 milhon in 2013 Impairment losses in respect
cof loans and advances to customers were £1,990 miflion, or 73 per cent, lower at £735 million in 2014 compared with £2,725 mithon in 2013 The averall
performance of the portfolio reflects a significant reduction 1n lending which 1s cutside of the Group's risk appetite and rmprovements n alt divisions The
improvemnents reflect lower levels of new smpairment as a result of effective nsk management, improving economic cenditions and the continued low interest
rate environment The net charge has also benefited from significant provision releases but at lower levels than seen in 2013 The impairment charge in respect
of debt secunties classified as loans and receivables was a charge of £2 million in 2014 compared to a charge of £1 million 1n 2013 and the impairment charge
in respect of available-for-sale financ:al assets was £10 mflon lower at £5 mullion in 2014 compared to £15 midlion in 2013

in 2014, the Group recorded a tax charge of £422 million compared to a tax charge of £1,260 million in 2013 The tax charge in 2014 was £70 million lower
than the charge that would anse at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 21 5 per cent, principally as a result of tax exempt gains on sales of businesses and
a lower deferred tax lability (n respect of the value of in-force assets for the Iife business parhially offset by the effect of non-deductible expenses The tax charge
of £1,260 milion n 2013 arose on a piofit before tax of £894 million, this tax charge reflected a £602 million charge ansing from the reduction in the
corporation tax rate, 3 £348 million wnte-off of deferred tax assets following the sale of the Group’s Australlan operations and a £251 milion policyholder
tax charge

On the balance sheet, total assets were £9,094 million, or 1 per cent, higher at £866,448 million at 31 December 2014 compared to £857,354 million at
31 December 2013 Loans and advances to customers were £10,248 mutlion, of 2 per cent, lower at £482,704 milhon at 31 December 2014 compared to
£492,952 milhion at 31 December 2013 as the impact of focussed ground in mortgages, unsecured personal lending and the small to medium-sized businesses
sector has been more than offset by the continuing reduction in the portfolio of assets which are outside of the Group’s credit nsk appetite, including the disposal
of tranches of lending 11 Ireland  Available-for-sate financial assets were £12,517 million, or 28 per cent, igher at £56,493 million at 31 December 2014
compared to £43,976 million at 31 December 2013 as the Group continues t¢ build up its holding of high quality government and other securities for hquidity
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purposes Deposits by banks were £3,095 muthon, or 22 per cent, lower at £10,887 milion at 31 December 2014 compared to £13,982 mullion at
31 December 2013 and debt securities in 1ssue were £10,894 milion, or 13 per cent, lower at £75,672 million at 31 December 2014 compared t0
£86,566 millon at 31 December 2013, however customer deposits was £7,600 million, or 2 per cent, higher at £447,067 milion at 31 December 2014
compared to £439,467 million at 31 December 2013 followtng growth in relationship deposits  Total equity was £5,904 mulhon, or 13 per cent, higher at
£49,990 million at 31 December 2014 compared 1o £44,086 milion at 31 December 2013, thus reflected retained profit and positive movements n cash flow
hedging and available-for-sale reserves

The Group continued to strengthen 115 capital position, with a common equity ter 1 (CET1) ratio of 15 1 per cent, driven by a combination of retained profit,
further dmwidends from the Insurance business, changes to and improved valuatons of the Group's defined benefit pension arrangements, and a reduction in
nsk-werghted assets, partly offset by the dwvidend of £540 million recommended by the Board

Risk-weighted assets reduced in the year, to £241,046 million, pnmanly due to asset reductions in the portfolio of assets which are outside of the Group's nisk
appette, active portfolio management in Commercial Banking and improvements in economic conditions

Future developments
Information about the future developments 1s provided with the Principal nsks and uncertainttes section below
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Capital position at 31 December 2014
The Group's capital position applying CRD IV transihional rules as at 31 December 2014 1s set out in the following section

Table 11 Capital resources {audited)

2014 2013t
Capital resources £m £m
Common equity/core fier 1
Shareholders' equity = ) L B .. - L R = Y -
Adyustment to retained earnings for foreseeable dividends T o (540) -
Deconsolidation of Insurance entities (824) -
Regulatory #ilters ) o . . o B . o )
_Adjustment for own credit _ o __ 158 185
_ Cash flow hedging reserve (1,357) 827
Other adjustmenis 364 1,757
o 46,578 46,508
Less deductions from common e_quEy/cure_t!er 1 _ . _ o B -
Goodwill and other intangible assets o - (1,875) (3815)
Excess of expected losses over impairment provisions and value adjustments (565) (373)
Removal of defined benefit pension surplus (909) (78)
Secuntisation deductions (211) 71
Significant investments (2,021) -
Deferred tax assets (4,533) -
Commen equity/core tier 1 capital 36,464 42,171
Additional tier 1
Addihonal ter Lunstruments e . 5442 5467
Less deductions from tier 1
Signficant investments (859) (3 859
Total trer 1 capital 41,047 44 779
Tier 2
Tier 2 Instruments M_ o L 16,156 20,965
Unrealised gains on avallable-for-sale equity investments T ) T - 135
Ehgible provisions . _ 333 _ 359
Less deductions from tier 2 Y .
E)lcess of expected losses gver impairment provisions and value adjustments _ -7 Téﬁ?:)
Secunitisation deductions - (71}
Significant investments (1,288) (3,859)
Total tier 2 capital 15,201 17,156
Supervisory deductions
Connected lending of a capital nature - (3,275)
Total supervisory deductions - (3,275)
Total capital resources 56,248 58,660
Table 1 2 Risk-Weighted Assets and Capital Ratios (unaudited}
2014 2013
£m £m
Risk-weighted assets o i o _ o 241,046 263,8?9
Can{mobfq‘yﬂyulgore}_@}:gp&aI ratio ) h o 7 o ___7 © 15 1_?&“ o ‘16 0%
Teer 1 capial ratio 17 0% 17 0%
Total capial ratio 23 3% 222%

1Calculated in [ine with the rules prevailing at 31 December 2013 and not restated for the implementation of CRD v on 1 January 2014

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's common equity tier 1 capital ratic had reduced to 15 1 per cent from a core tier 1 capital ratio of 16 O per cent at
31 December 2013, reflecting the impact of the application of transitional CRD [V rules from 1 January 2014 The tier 1 capital ratio remained at 17 O per cent
and the total captal ratio increased to 23 3 per cent compared with 22 2 per cent at 31 December 2013 Risk-weighted assets reduced by £22 9 billion to
£241 0 hillion at 31 December 2014 compared with £263 9 tillion at 31 December 2013, reflecting asset reductions 1n the run-off portfolio, active poartfalio
management and improvements in economic conditions
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Principal nsks and uncertainties
The most significant nsks faced by the Group which could snpact the success of delivening against the Group's long-term strategic objectives topether with key
mitigating actions are outlined below

Credit risk

Principal nsks

Any adverse changes in the econormic and market environment we operate 1n, or the credit quality and/or behawiour of our borrowers and counterparties would
reduce the value of our assets and potentially increase our wite-downs and allowances for impairment losses, adversely impacting profitability

Mitigating actions

- Credit policy incorporating prudent lending cnteria aligned with the Lioyds Barking Group Board approved nsk appetite 10 effectively manage credit nisk

~ Clearly defined levels of authonty ensure we lend appropriately and responsibly with separation of ongination and sanctioning activities

— Robust credit processes and controls including well established governance to ensure distressed and imparred loans are identified easly, considered and
controlled with independent credit nisk assurance

Conduct risk

Principal risks

We face significant potential conduct risk, including selling products to customers which do not meet their needs, failing to deal with customers’ complaints
effectively, not meeting customers expectations, and exmitiiing behaviours which do not meet masket or regulalory standaids

Mitigating actions

- Customer focused conduct strategy implemented to ensure customers are at the heart of everything we do
— Product approval, review processes and outcome testing supported by conduct management information
- Clear customer accountabiliies for colleagues, with rewards driven off customer-centric metnes

- Learning from past mistakes, including root-Cause analysss

Market risk

Principal nsks

Key market nsks include interest sate nsk across the Banking and Insurance businesses However, our most significant market sk 15 from the Defined Benefit
Pension Schemes where asset and liability movemnents impact on our capital position

Miligating actions

- A structural hedge programme has been implemented to manage hability margins and margin compression

— Lloyds Banking Group Board approved pensions 1isk appetite covenng interest rate, credit spreads and equity nsks Credit assets are being purchased and
equity holdings have reduced in the pension schemes

- Stress and scenario testing of nsk exposures

Operational nisk

Principal risks

We face significant operational nsks which may result in financial loss, disruption or damage to our reputation These include the availabibity, resilience and
secunty of ur core |T systems and the potential for failings 1n our cusiomer processes

Mitigating actions

- Continually review IT system architecture 10 ensure that our systems are resilient, and the confidentiality, integrity and availability of our cntical systems and
information assels are protected aganst cyber attacks

- Continue to implement the actions from the 2013 independent Lioyds Banking Group IT Resilience Review to enhance the resihience of systems supporting
the processes most crtical to our customers

Funding and liquidity

Principal risks

Our funding and liguiddy position 1s supported by a sigificant and stable customer deposit base A detenoration in either our or the UK's credit raing, or a
sudden and significant withdrawal of customer deposits could adversely impact our funding and hguidity position

Mitigating actions

— Hold a large pool of unencumbered pnimary iquid assets and maintam a further large pool of secondary assets that can be used to access Central Bank
liguidity facilities

— Daly monitoning against a number of market and Lloyds Banking Group speciic early warning indicators and regular stress tests

- Contingency funding plan to denufy emerging hquidity concerns earlier

Capital nsk

Principal risks

Our future capital position 15 potentially at nsk from a worsening macroeconormic environment This could lead to adverse financial performance which could
deplete capital resources and/or increase capiial requirements due to a detenoration i customers’ creditworthiness

Mitigating actions

— Close monttoning of capital and leverage ratios to ensure we meet our current and future regulatory requirements

— Comprehensive stress testing analysis 10 evidence sufficient levels of capital adequacy under varous adverse scenaros
- 1n addibon to accumulating retained profits, we can raise additional capital in a variety of ways

Regulatory nsk

Principal rsks

we are subject 1o industry wide investigations and reviews info a perceived lack of competitton 1n UK banking and financial serwces The outcomes of the UK
General Election in May 2015 and the investigations by the CMA and FCA are presently unclear and their impact therefore remains uncertain Gther iniiatives
under review include the nng-fencing proposals in the Banking Reform Act 2013,the new FCA Consumer Credit iegame and CRD IV

Mitigaling actions

— The Lloyds Banking Group Legal, Regulatory and Mandatory Change Committee ensures we develop plans for regulatory changes and tracks thetr progiess
— Continued nvestment in our people, processes and IT systems 15 enabling us to meet our regulatory commitments

- Continued engagement with govemment and regulatory authonues on forthc%mmg regulatory changes and market investigations and reviews
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People nisk

Principal risks

Key people nsks include the nsk that we fal to lead responsibly in an increasingly competitive marketplace, particularly with the introduction of the Senior
Managers' Regime and Certification Regime which will come into force in 2015 This may dissuade capable individuals from taking up senior positions withine
Lloyds Banking Group

Mitigating actions

- Work collaboratively with Regulators to implement the new Individual Accountability Regime in 2015, ensunng burden of proof and attestation requirements
are effecttvely implemented

— Maintain competitive working practices to attract, retain and engage high quahty people

— Create a work environment which listens and acts on colleague feedback

Financiat risk management objectives and policies
Information regarding the financial nsk management objectives and policies of the Group, In relation to the use of financial Instruments, 1s given 1IN note 50 on
page 107 Adaitional information can be found in the annual report of Lloyds Banking Group ple, the Bank's uliimate parent, which does not form part of this report

The 2014 Strategic Report has been approved by the Board of Directors
On behalf of the Board

Lord Blackwell

Lloyds Bank plc
11 March 2015 ~ j ; ij ! \J\/‘/k
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Results
The consolidated income statement on page 13 shows a statutory profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2014 of £2,289 mullien

Dividends
The Directors recommend 1o shareholders a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of £540 million {2013 nil) to be paid on 12 March 2015

Post balance sheet events
There have been no matenal post balance sheet events

Going concern

The going concern of the Bank and the Group is dependent on successfully funding their respective balance sheets and maintaining adequate levels of capital

In order to satisfy themselves that the Bank and the Group have adequale resources to coniinue to operate for the foreseeable future, the Directors have
considered a number of key dependencies including the continued functioning of the money and capital markets, the reduction in wholesale funding requirements
resuiting from Llgyds Banking Group's strategy to right-s1ze the balance sheet and the absence of sigmficant and sudden withdrawals of customer deposits The
Directors have also considesed projections for Lloyds Banking Group's capital and funding posiion Having consulted these, the Directors conclude that itis
appropnate to continue to adopt the gaing concern basis in prepanng the accounts

Directors

The names of the cusrent Directors are shown on page 9 Changes to the composition of the Board since 1 January 2014 up to the date of this report are shown
in the table below

Joined the Board Retired from the Board
Dying John 1 January 2014
Sir Winfried Bischoff 7 3 Ap_n_l ?01—4
David Roberts ) 14 May 2014
Nick Pretiejohn 23 lune 2014
Simon Henry 7 2;3 June 2014 T
Alan Dickinson B September 2014

Lord Blackwell, who has served on the Board since 1 June 2012, was appointed Chairman in place of Sir Winfried Bischoff on 3 Apnl 2014

Appointment and retirement of Directors
The appointment of Directors 1s governed by the Bank's articles of association and the Companies Act 2006 The Bank's articles of association may only be
amended by a special resolution of the shareholders 1n a general meeting

Directors® indemnihes

The Directars of the Bank, including the former Directors who ietired duning the year, have entered nto indvidual deeds of indemnity with Lioyds Banking Group
plc which constituted “gualfying thud party indemmty prowisions’ for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006 The deeds indemmnify the Direciors to the
maximum extent permitted by law and remain in force for the duration of a Director’s perod of office The deeds were i force duning the whole of the financial
year or from the date of appointment in respect of the Directors appointed in 2014 Deeds for existing Directors are available for inspection at the Bank's
registered office In addiion Lloyds Banking Group had appropriate Directors and Officers Liability Insurance cover in place throughout 2014

Lloyds Banking Group plc has also granted a deed of indemnity through deed poll which constituted ‘qualifying third party indemnity provisions’ 10 the Directors
of the Bank's subsichary compames, including to former Directors who retired duning the year and since the year end Qualifymg pension scheme indemmnities
were also granted to the Trustees of the Lioyds Banking Group's Pension Schemes

Directors' interests

The Directors are also Directors of Lloyds Banking Group plc and their interests in shares in Lloyds Banking Group plc are shown in the repart and accounts of
that company

Conflicts of interest

All Directors of the Bank and its subsidianes must avoid any situatron which might give nse {o 2 conflict between therr persenal interests and those of the Group
Prior 1o appasntment, potential conflicts of interest are disclosed and assessed to ensure that there are no matters which would prevent that person from taking
on the iole

Directors are responsible for notifytng the Chairman and Company Secretary as soon as they become aware of actual or potential conflict situations {n addition,
conflicts are monitored as follows

— the Duectors are required to complete a conflicts questionnaire on appointment and annually thereafter,
~ changes to the commitments of all Directors are reported to the Nomination & Governance Committee and the Board, and
- aregister of potential conflicts and bme commitments Is regularty reviewed and authanised by the Board to ensure the authonsation status remains appropnate

If any potential conflict anses, the articles of assocation permit the Board to authonse the conflict, subject to such conditions or mitations as the Board may
determine

Branches, future developments and financial fisk managernent objectves and policies

Information regarding the existence of branches, future developments and financial nsk management objectives and paolicies of the Group, n relation to the use
of financial instruments, that would otherwise be required 1o be disclosed 1n the directors’ report, and which 15 incorporated into this report by reference can be
found n the strategic report

Share capstal
Information about share capital 1s shown in notes 42 and 46 on pages 90 and 92 and is sncorporated into this report by reference

The Bank did not repurchase any of its shares duning the year {2013 none) There are no restnchons on the transfer of shares m the Bank other than set out
in the articles of association and certain restnctions which may from time to tme be imposed by law and regulations

The powers of the Directars, including 11 relation to the 1ssue or buy back of the Bank's shares, are set out in the Companies Act 2006 and the Bank's articles
of association
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Change of control
The Bank 1 not party to any significant contracts that are subject to change of control provisions in the event of a takeover bid There are no agreements bétween
the Bank and its Directors or employees providing compensation for loss of office or employment that cccurs because of a takeover bid

Research and development activities
Buring the ordinary course of business the Bank develops new products and services within the business units

Employees

The Bank, as part of Lloyds Banking Group, 1s committed to providing employment practices and policies which recognise the diversity of its workforce The
Group will not unfarrly discnminate 1in the recruitment or employment practices on the basis of any factor wiich 1s not relevant to indmaduals’ performance
including sex, race, disability, age sexual onentation or rehgious betref The Group works hard to ensure Lloyds Banking Group 1s inclusive for all colleagues

To support this aim, Lloyds Banking Group befongs to a number of major UK employment equality campaign groups, including the Business Disability Forum,
The Age and Employment Network, Stonewall and Race for Opportunity Involvement with these organisations enables the Group to identify and implement best
practice for staff The Bank, as part of Lloyds Bankmg Group, has a range of programmes to support colleagues who become disabled or acquire a long-term
health condition These include a workplace adjustment programme to provide physical equipment or changes to the way a Job 1s done The Group also runs
residential Personal and Career Development Programmes to help colleagues deal positively with the impact of a disability and the colleague disability network,
Access, provides peer support In 2014 the Group launched a work expenence programme with Remploy to support people with disabilities wanting to enter
the workplace

Employees are kep closely involved in major changes affecting them through such measures as team meetings, bnefings, internal communications and optnion
surveys There are well established procedures, including regular meetings with recogmised unions, to ensure that the views of employees are taken into account
In reaching decisions

Schemes offenng share options or the acquisition of shares are available for most staff, to encourage therr financial involverent i Lloyds Banking Group

Lioyds Banking Group 1$ commutted to providing employees with comprehensive coverage of the economic and financial issues affecting the Group The Group
has established a full suite of commumcation channels, including an extensive face-to-face bnefing programme, which allows it to update employees on
performance and any financial 1ssues throughout the year

Significant contracts
Details of related party transactions are set out in ncte 48 on pages 100 to 1303

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are respensible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with agphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law, the Directors have prepared the Group and Bank
financial statements n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law, the
Directors musi not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Bank
and of the profit or loss of the Bank and Group for that penod In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to select suitable accounting
policies and then apply them consistently, make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and state whether applicable IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have been followed

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Bank’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Bank and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Compantes Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other nregulanties

A copy of the financial statements 15 placed on the website www lloydshankinggroup com The Dhrectors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity in relation to
the Bank on that website Legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the cureent Directors, who are in office and whose names are shown on page 9 of this annual report, confirms that, 10 the best of his or her knowledge
- the financial statements, which have been prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habslities and financial position of the Bank and Group and the profit or loss of the Group, and

- the management report contained in the strategic report and the directors’ report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Bank and Group, together with a descniption of the principal nsks and uncertainties faced by the Bank and the Group

The Directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
Shareholders to assess the Bank's performance, business model and sirategy The Directors have also separately reviewed and approved the strategic report

Independent auditor and audit information

Each person who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that, so far as the Dector s aware there 1s no relevant audit information of which
the Bank's auditor 15 unaware and each Director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Bank s auditor 1s awate of that information This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provistons of the Companies Act 2006

A resolution will be proposed at the 2015 annual generat meeting to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor The Bank's Audit Commitiee 15 satisfied
that the external auditor remains independent and effective

On behalf of the Board

Malcolm Wood
Company Secretary
11 March 2015

Lioyds Bank pte
Registered in England & Wales
Company Number 2065
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This annual report contains certain forward looking statements with respect o the busness, strategy and plans of Lioyds Bank Group and its current goals and
expectations refating to its future financial condition and performance Statements that are not histoncal facts, including statements about Lioyds Bank Group or
its directors’ andfor management’s belefs and expectations, are forward looking statements Words such as ‘beligves’, ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’,
“intends’, ‘aims’, ‘potential’, ‘will', ‘would’, ‘could’, ‘considered’, fikely’, ‘esumate’ and vanations of these words and similar fuiure or conditional expressions are
intended to identify forward looking statements but are not the exclusive means of Wentidying such statements By theu nature, forward looking statements
nvolve nsk and uncertainty because they relate 1o events and depend upon circumstances that will or may occur o the future

Examples of such forward looking statements include, but are not mmited to projections or expectations of the Group's future financial position including profit
attnbutable to shareholders, provisions, economic profit, diwdends, capital structure, expendiures or any other financial ilems or ratios, statements of plans,
objectives or goals of the Group or its management including in respect of certain synergy targets, stalements about the future business and econonmic
environments in the United Kingdom (UK) and elsewhere inclucing, but not imited to, future trends in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, credit and equity
market levels and demographic developments, statements about competition, regulation, disposals and consohdation or technological developments in the
financial services mdustry, and statements of assumptions underlying such statements

Factors that could cause actual business, strategy, plans andfor results to differ matenially from the plans, objectives, expectations, estimates and intentions
expressed in such forward looking statements made by the Group of an its behalf include, but are not mited 10 general economic and business conditions in
the UK and internationally, inflation, deflation, interest rates and policies of the Bank of England, the Eurepean Central Bank and other G8 central banks,
fluctuations in exchange rates, stock markets and currencies, the ability to access sufficient funding to meet the Group's liquichty needs, changes 1o the Group’s
of Lioyds Banking Group pic’s credit ratings, the ability to denve cost savings and other benefits including, without limitation, as a result of the Lioyds Banking
Group’s Simplification Programme, changing demographic developments including mortality and changing customer behawiour including consurner spending,
saving and borrowang habits, changes in customer preferences, changes to borrower or counterparty credit quality, instabihity in the global financial markets,
including Eurozone instability and the impact of any sovereign credit rating dawngrade or other sovereign financial 1ssues, technological changes and nsks to
cyber secunty, naturat and other disasters, adverse weather and similar contingencies outside the Lioyds Banking Group's control, inadequate or failed internal
or external processes, people and systems, acts of war, other acts of hostility, terrenst acts and responses to those acts, geopohtical, pandemic or other such
events, changes in laws, regulations, taxation, accounting standards or practices including as a resuit of further Scottish devolution, changes to regulatory capital
or hquidity requirements and similar contingencies outside the Lioyds Banking Group's control, the policres and actions of governmental or regulatory authonties
in the UK, the European Umion (EL), the US or elsewhere inctuding the implementation of key legislation and regulation, the implementation of the draft EU
cnsis management framework directive and banking reform, following the recommendations made by the Independent Commission on Banking, the ability to
attract and retain semor management and other employees, requirements of limitatiens 1mposed on Lioyds Banking Group ple and the Group as a result of HM
Treasury's investment in Lloyds Banking Group plc, actions or omissions by the Groups directors, management or employees including industaal action,
changes fo the Group's post-retirement defined benefit scheme obligations, the ability to complete sausfactonly the disposal of certain assets as part of Lioyds
Banking Group plc's EU State Aid obligations, the provision of banking opesations services to TSB Banking Geoup plc, the extent of any future impairment
charges or write-downs caused by, but not imited to, depressed asset valuations, market disruptions and ilhquid markets, market related trends and developments,
exposure to regulatory or competition scrutiny, legal proceedings, regulatory or competstion investigations or complaints, changes in competition and pricing
environments, the inability to hedge certain nsks economically, the adequacy of loss reserves, the actions of competitors, inctuding non-bank financial services
and lending companies, and the success of the Group In managing the nisks of the foregoing Please refer to the latest Annual Report of Lioyds Banking Group
plc on Form 20-F filed with the US Secunhes and Exchange Comrmussicn for a discussion of certain factors, together with examples of {orward looking
statements

Lloyds Bantung Group may also make or disclose wntlen andfor oral forward looking statements tn reporis filed with or furished to the US Secunties and
Exchange Commussion, Lloyds Banking Group annual reviews, half-year announcements, proxy statements, offening circulars, prospectuses, press releases and
other written matenals and 1n oral statements made by the directors, officers or employees of Lloyds Banking Group to third parties, including financial analysts
Except as required by any applicable law or regulation, the forward looking statements contained in this annual report are made as of the date hereof, and Lloyds
Bank Group expressly disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or rewisions to any forward looking statements contained n this
annua! report 1o reflect any change in Lioyds Bank Group’s expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or ¢ircumstances on which any
such statement 1s based
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Lloyds Bank ple
Independent auditors’ report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LLOYDS BANK PLC

Report on the financial statements

COur opinien

In our opinion
- the financral statements, defined below, give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Bank’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the
Group's profit and the Group's and the Bank’s cash flows for the year then ended,
- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs™) as adopted by the
European Union,

- the Bank financial statements have been properly prepared (n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

- the financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Wha!t we have audited
The Group financial statements and Bank financial statements (the “financial statements™), which are prepared by Lloyds Bank plc, comprise

- the Balance sheets as at 31 December 2014,

- the Consolidated income statement and Statements of comprehensive iIncome for the year then ended,

- the Cash flow statements for the year then ended,

- the Statements of changes in equity for the vear then ended, and

= the notes to the accounts, which include a summary of significant acgounting policies and other explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n the preparation of the financial statements 1s applicabte law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Urnwon and as regards the Bank financial staterents, as applied in accordance with the prowvisions of the Companies Act 2006

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
eshmates i making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future events

Opinions on other matters prescnibed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Repert for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with
the financ:al statements

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of accounting records and information and expianations recewved
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, 1n our opinion

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

~ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Group or Bank, or returns adequate for our aud:t have not been received from branches not visited by
us, or

= the Groups or Bank's financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this respansibility

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we zre required to report to you If, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made
We have no exceptions te report ansing from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Cur responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsibilities set out on page 8, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements i accordance with applicable law and International Standards On Auditing (UK
& lreland) (*ISAs (UK & Ireland)”) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Thus report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Group's and Bank's members as a body 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpese We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responstbility for any other purpose or to any other
person 1o whom this report 1 shown of Into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in wnting

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audnt in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland) An audit involves obtaining ewidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This
includes an assessment of

- whether the accounting pelicies are appropriate o the Group's and the Bank's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
- the reascnableness of significant accounting estimates made by the dwectors, and
- the overall presentation of the financia?! statements

We pnimanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against ava:lable evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclesures 1n the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to prowide a reasonable basis for us to
draw conclusions We obtain audit enidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both

il




Lloyds Bank plc
Independent auditors’ report

In addition, we read all the financiat and nen-financial information in the Report & Accounts 1o identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that 1s appasently matersally incorrect based or, or matenaily inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us In the
course of perfguung the audrt If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Philip Rivett (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auchtors
London

11 March 2015

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the Lloyds Banking Group plc website 1s the responsibility of the directors, the work carned out by the auditors does not
invoive consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occcurred to the financial
statements since they were initiaily presented on the website

(b) Legslation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Lloyds Bank plc

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013

Note £ mitlion £ millon

Interest and similar income 19,411 21,367
Interest and simifar expense T o T o E.IBT) (14,377}
Net interest income 5 10,214 6,990
Fee and commission income - o T 3666] | 4110
fee and-comassfon"expense T ) T (1,402) B (1138‘3)
Net fee and commussion Income - Y 2,264 n 2,736
Nettrading ncome 7 7| es08| | 17039
Insurance prernlur}lilncome T o e 7,125 T 8.197
Other operating income 9 1,051 3,255
Other income 19,948 31,227
Total income 30,162 38,217
Insurance claims - B ) S 0 115.793) (19.567—)
Total income, net of insurance claims 16,669 18,710
Regulatory provisions (3,125) (3,455)
Other aperating expenses o o o (10,503) | 11,620
Total operating expenses - o 11 (13,628) (15,075)
Trading surpius 3,041 3,635
!_mpaumgr;t o T S 12 (752 (2.741i
Prohit before tax 2,289 894
Taxation B ) o 13 (422) (1,260)
Profit {loss} for the year 1,867 (366)
Proﬁl a}tftbutéigtgﬁ&-conlrolllnAg mterestg T T T 87 T _3_6-
Profit (ioss) attnbutable to ;qﬁny shaeholders o T T 1786 - "(402)
Profit (loss) for the year 1,867 (366)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds Bank plc
Statements of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
The Group £ million £ million
Profit (loss) for the year R ) e _ o 187  (366)
Other comprehensive Income
items that will not subsegquently be recfassified to profit or loss
Post-retirement defined benefit scheme remeasurements . } L o
Remeasurements before taxation _ _ L 674 (136)
Taxation e o ass) 28
539 (108)
lterns that may subsequently be reclasstied ta profit or Iogs N R
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale financial assets_ s _
Change In fair value 676 (680)
Income statement transfers in respect of disposals o (131) (625}
Income statement transfers in respect of impairment o e - R 18
Taxation (10) 277
o i 537 {1014
Mpverng:s; n cash flow hedgng reserve o S o L
E}fchve portion of changes in fair value taken to other comprehiensive income o _ 3,896 | (1,229)
Net income statement transfers ~ - o | _aaesy (566)
Exét:on_ T T - ) (547) 378
o o o o 2,']"39_ B {1,417)
Currency translation differences, {tax nil) 2) (19
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,258 (2,558)
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,125 {2,924)
Total comprehensive Income attnbutable to non-controlling interests ) L B 8} 36
Total comprehensive income atinbutable to equity shareholders 5,038 {2,960)
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,125 (2,924)
2014 2013
The Bank £ millicn £ million
Profit for the year o o 2,501 2,772
Other Et;mprehenswe Income
items that will not subsequently be reclassifted to profit or foss o o o
Post-retrement defined benefit scheme remeasurements . . _
Remeasurements before taxation 309 400
Taxation {62) (8O}
o T T 247 320
Items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss B o
Movements i revaluation reserve 11 respect of avatlabl%fgrgle_flngnplal assets e B
Change in fair value 364 (889)
Income statement transfers in respect of disposals i - 1} (842)
»ﬂ)rpe_staten;én't transfers in respeglkgf;@palrmem o I E_ I
Taxation (14) 366
_ L 362 (1,365)
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve 7 i 7
Effective portien of changes in fair value taken to other comprehensive income L 1,799 21
__Net income statement transfers L L (227} -
Taxation (315) (5)
1,257 16
C;JrrE17c:y7tr;n§,Iat|on differences (lax— I'Tll) o T o T 3 EG_)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,869 {1,055)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,370 1,717

The accompanying netes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds Bank pic
Balance sheets

at 31 December 2014

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Note £ milllon £ million £ millien £ malion
Assets
Cash and balances at cent;al banks 50,492 49,915 40,965 42,283
ﬁems in the course of collecuio;f;om banks. T 1,173 1,007 a 862‘ _66_3
Traaung and otr;ex financial a_s;etsial fair vafue throué_h pri)m'or loss ) i 14 152,520 1473,§07 T 66.3!23 ﬁ4a16}
Dervabve financial instrumentst T 15 35483 29502 40,150 28,071
Loans and recelvagltegi n T T T C T
"loans and advances to banks 16 26,155 25,365 4,591 | 3,095
" loans and advances to customerst 17 482,704 492,952 165,967 165,574
Debt secunties 1,213 1,355 - 150
Due from fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings 11,482 15,453 130,636 262,977
521,554 535,125 301,194 431,756
Available-for-sale financial assets 21 56,493 434976 51,412 41,348
Investment properties 22 4,492 4,864 - -
Goodwill S 23 2,016 2,016 - -
Value of in-force business o 24 4,864 5,335 - -
Other intangible assets 25 2,070 2,279 647 564
Tangitle fixed assets 26 8,052 7,570 3,089 2,627
Current tax recoverable T - . 7 157 169 918 1,646
Deferred tax assets ) 39 4,190 5.132 3596 4,165
Investment In subsidiary undertakings i 27 - T - 3gs18 40,929
Retrement benefit assets o Y i 1.14:! o8 351 -
Other assels T = 21745 27069 2451 1,857
Total assets 866,448 857,354 550,714 636,116
iSee note 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lioyds Bank plc

Balance sheets
at 31 December 2014

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
Equity and habilities Note £ million £ million £ million £ million
Lrabilities
Depostts fom banks ’ 29 10,887 13,082 8,206 10,448
Customer deposits! o 30 447,067 439467 194,699 185,555
Due to fellow Loyds Banking Group undertakngs 5,288 8797 91,882 244,025
Items in course of transmission to banks T ;TQL B 774 560 432—
?r—aaﬁg and otr;:mctgl ||_at5|lﬁlg aﬁal—rv_all_lé through
profit or loss 31 62,102 43,625 73,227 43,106
Derwative financial instruments! o T 7 33,293 m2§,8§§_ T Tl,_326 T 28.:%08
Notes n circulation - i T 1,129 1,176— o - Z
Det-Jt sec:ln_tu_es n Issue- i . ST 7ff3w2w ‘ 5’5,675 o éET,SGG T 66,062 T 63.1957
Liabilites ansing from insurance contracts and partoipating S T T
investment contracts 33 86,941 82,801 - -
Liabilities antsing from non-participating investment contracts 35 27,248 27,590 ) - -
Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses 36 320 391 - -
Other liabilities 37 28,783 40,969 ) 4,358 4,340
Retirement benefit obligations 38 453 1,096 190 413
Current tax habilities 69 111 ) 5 5
Deferred tax liabilties 7 S o7 T3 i 54 - -
Oth;! DISVISIE)HS S T T e -_40 4,200 4,488 2,795 2,“5'&')“1
Subardinated labiliies a1 31,973 33,534 21,590 22,600
Total habilities 816,458 813,268 504,894 594,978
Equ;ty o - T o T o T T
Share capttal T o T e [ 1574 “1574] | 1578 [ 1574
Share premium account 13 35533 | | 35533 | 35533| | 35533
Other reserves 44 - “6784—2 o 4,123 T 1,121 - (501)
Retained profits a5 a828| | 2500 | 7,592 4532
Shareholders’ equity 48,777 - 43,739 45,820 41,138
Non-controlling interests 1,213 347 - -
Total equity 49,990 44,086 45,820 41,138
Total equity and liabihtes 866,448 857,354 550,714 636,116
'See note 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financtal statements

The directors approved the financial statements on 11 March 2015

Lord Blackwell
Chatrman

George Culmer
Chief Financial Officer
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Lloyds Bank plc

Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to equity shareholders

Share capital Other Retained Non-controlling

and premlum reserves profits Total Interests Tota!
The Group £ million £ million £ million £ milllon £ million £ million
Balance at 1 January 2013 37,107 6,573 2,618 46,298 685 46,983
Comprehensive income
{Loss) profit for the year - - (402) (402) 36 (366}
Other comprehensive mcome i
Posl-reltr_er;ler;t defined benefit scheme - ) B
remeasurements, net of taxation - - {108} (108) - (108}
Mavements in revaiu};m‘on reserve in respect )
of availlable-for-sale financial assets, net of tax - (1,014) - (1,014) - (1,014}
Movements in céﬁﬂ?v;ﬁeggmg-reserv_e, o o D T T
net of tax - (1,417) - (1,417) (1,417}
Currency translation differences (tax nil) -~ {19) - (19 - (19
Totat other comprehensive ncome. o - (2,450} (108} (2,558 - (2,558)
Total comprehensive income - {2,450} (510} {2,960} 36 (2,924)
Transactions with owners
Dwidends o - - -1 - (25} (25)
Capital contnbution recewved - - 401 401 - 401
Change In non-cgntramg nterests - - - - E349) ) (349)
Total transactions with owners ~ - 401 401 (374) 27
Balance at 31 December 2013 37,107 4,123 2,508 43739 347 44,086
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 1,780 1,780 87 1,867
Other comprehensive income
Post-retirement defined benefit scheme
remeasurements, net of taxation - - 539 539 - 539
Movements in revaluation reserve in respect
of available-for-sale financial assets, (tax nf} - 537 - 537 - 537
Moverrients in cash flow ﬁedgl ng reserve, o
net of tax - 2,184 - 2,184 - 2,184
Currency translation differences {tax mil} - (2) - 2) - {2}
Total other comprehensive income ) - 2,719 539 3,258 - 3,258
Total comprehensive income - 2,719 2,319 5,038 87 5,125
Transactions with owners
Dividends - - - - (27) {27
Value of employee s:elwc% - - | 2 2 L 2
Capital contrlbut|0;1 received - - ) 3—57 367 - 367
Return of capital contributions -1 - (198) (198) - (198
Adjustment ¢n sale of non-controlling interest i T 7
TSB Banking Group plc (TSB) (note 56} - - (171) (171) 805 634
Cther changes in non-controlling interests - - - - 1 1
Total transactions with owners - - - - 779 779
Balance at 31 December 2014 37,107 6,842 4,828 48,777 1,213 49,990

Further detasls of movements in the Group's share capital and reserves are provided in notes 42, 43, 44 and 45

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of the financial statements
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Lloyds Bank plc
Statements of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable to equity shareholders

Share capital

and premium QOther reserves  Retained profits Total
The Bank £ mithon £ million £ million £ millien
Balance at 1 January 2013 37,107 874 1,184 38,165
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - 2,772 2772
bther cémprehéns.'ve ncome T T
Post-retrement defined benefit scheme remeasurements, net of taxation - -1 320 320
MoJen_érIs—m révaTuailon Teserve n respect_c;f:ava;lable-for sale I N R N o T
financial assets, net of tax - (1,365) - (1,365)
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of t1ax - 16 = T
Currencyﬁlagtloa dlﬁérencg(tax nil) ’ — (26) h - (26)
Total other comprehensive income ) i ) - - (1,375) 320 (1,055)
Total comprehensive income - (1,375) 3,092 1,717
Transactions with owners
E:a.pn{al contributions received - o N 256
Total transactions with owners - - 256 256
Balance at 31 December 2013 37,107 {601) 4,532 41,138
Comprehensive tncome i -
Profit for the year B o - . o 2,501 i 2.561
O!vhe;;‘coﬁ;r'e;:;nsrv;f;:gme o ‘ - o T
Pbst:rétlrerr;ent_ defined Benem scheme remeasurements, net of taxaué)n S i - 247 247
Mavements in revaluation reserve in respect of available-for sale ) i T
financial assets, net of tax - 362 - 362
Movements in cash flow hedging reserve, net of 1ax - 1,257 - 1,257
Currency translation differences ttax_ nil) I B )
Total other comprehensive income - 1,622 247 1,869
Total comprehensive iIncome - 1,622 2,748 4,370
Transactions with owners
Capital centribution recesved - - 510 510
Return of capital contnbutions - - (198) (198)
Total transactions with owners - - 312 312
Balance at 31 December 2014 37,107 1,121 7,592 45,820

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Lloyds Bank plc

Cash flow statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Note £ million £ millsen £ mllion £ million
Profit before tax 2,289 B94 2,688 2,514
Ad]ustments for - o o
Change in operatng assets' i  ssa) | 2,639 23404 89,217 (30,843
Change in c:-peratmgIlabllntnasl I o 55(b} B 8_,_369‘ - (49 000) - (_BSKZE__ 17.781
Non-cash and other tems a i s (263 11910 ~ Bas 1,028
Tax recewea‘(i)alﬁ) T T T TP, o120 7 @
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities 10,525 (12,672) 4,851 (9,528)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of financial assets {11,533} {36,953} (6,052} (30,009)
Proceeds from sale and matunty of financia! assets 4,668 21,552 1,626 16,671
Purchase of fixed assets (3,442) (2982) (1,182) (1,093
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 2,043 2,080 100 30
Additional capdal ingections to subsidianies 55(e} - - {750) (621)
Capital repayment by SUb-SIdlarleS 7 ) I . _1.950 ) T
Acquisrion of businesses, net of cash acquired 55(e) 1) (6) oo (77:3)
Disposal of businesses, net of cash disposed 55(f) | 543 696 728 7 (9}
Net cash used in investing activities {7,722) {15,609) (3,600} (15,804}
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to non- Controlllng Interests o (27} (25) - o .
Return of capltal contnbu[ron _____ i 7 S - (iSE) T _(_19_3) C o
Interest patd on subordlnated Ilabllltles T o o (2,48§) o (2354) (1332? T (7‘679—4_)
Proceeds from issue of subordmated I|abllmes T . h 1,500 - D
Repayment of subordinated habiliies S 23690 (6048  (1,380) (3,539
Sale of non-controlling nterest in TSB (note 56) . 7 - s3a o - 634 L
Other changes in non-contralling mterest;m‘ o 1 .
Net cash provided by financing activities (4,447) (5,927 (2,776) (5,233}
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (6} (53 6 (52}
Change i cash and cash equivalents (1,650} {34,261) {1,519) 30,617}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 66,797 101,058 44,491 75,108
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 55(d} 65,147 66,797 42,972 44,491

'See note 1

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of the financial statements
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Lloyds Bank plc
MNotes to the accounts

1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Lloyds Bank plk have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union {EU) as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 IFRS compnses accounting standards prefixed IFRS 1issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and those prefixed IAS i1ssued by the IASB's predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and s predecessor body The EU endorsed version of 1AS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement relaxes some cof the hedge accounting requirements, the Group has not taken advantage of this relaxation, and therefore there 1s
no difference in application to the Group between IFRS as adopted by the EU and IFRS as i1ssued by the 1ASB  The financial information has been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, trading secunties and certain
other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and all denivaiive contracts

The going concemn of the Bank and the Group 1s dependent on successfully funding thew respective balance sheets and maintaining adeguate levels of capital
In order to satisfy themselves that the Bank and the Group have adequate resources to continue to operate for Lhe foreseeable fulure, the directors have
considered a number of key dependencies which are set out In the Pnncipal risks and uncertainties section under Funding and hquidity on page 5 and
additionally have considered prejections for the Group’s capital and funding position Takeng all of these factors into account, the directors consider that i 15
appropriate to contmue 1o adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments t¢ standards and interpretations which becamne effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1 January 2014

IFRIC 21 Lewves

This interpretation clanfies that the obligating event that gives nse t0 a hability to pay a government levy 1s the activity that triggers the payment of the levy as
set out In the relevant legislation and that an entity’s expectation of operating 1n a future period, irrespective of the difficulties involved 1n exiting a market, does
not create a consiructive obligation 1o pay a levy The adoption of this interpretation has not had a matenal impact on these financiat statements

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial instruments Fresentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabihitres
The amendments to |AS 32 clanfy the reguirements for offsetting financial instruments and address inconsistencies identified 1n applying the offsetting cntena
used 1 the standard

In previous years the Group has separately reported, in the balance sheet, cash collateral balances and dervative positions with the same exchange, these cash
collateral balances are now offset The effect of this on the Group and the Bank at 31 December 2014 has been to reduce both loans and advances to customers
and denvative habilies by £2,820 mulion and both customer depasits and denvative assets by £2,294 mullion Comparative figures for the Group and the Bank
have been revised accordingly, the impact at 31 December 2013 being to reduce denvative assets by £2,321 million (31 December 2012 £923 mullion), loans
and advances to customers by £2,329 million {31 December 2012 £461 mullion), customer deposits by £1,844 million (31 December 2012 £696 million)
and dervative habities by £2,806 millon (31 December 2012 £688 million)

Details of those IFRS pronouncements which will be relevant to the Group but which were not effective at 31 December 2014 and which have not been applied
in prepaning these financial statements are given in note 57
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Lloyds Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

2 Accounting policies
The accounting policies are set out below These accounting policies have been applied consistently

a Consolidation
The assets, latuiities and results of Group undertakings (including structured entities) are included in the financial statements on the basis of accounts made up
10 the reporting date Group undertakings include subsidtanes, associates and joint ventures

{1} Subsicharies

Subsidianes are entities conirolled by the Group The Group controls an entity when it has power over the entity, 1s exposed to, or has nghts to, vanable returns
from its involvement with the entity, and has the ability to affect those returns through the exercise of its power This generally accompanies a shareholding of
more than one half of the veting rights although n certain ¢ircumstances a holding of less than one half of the voting nghts may stll result in the abihity of the
Group to exercise control The existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity The Gsoup reassesses whether or not it controls an entity If facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to any of
the above elements Subsidianes are fully consolidated fram the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group, they are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases Details of the pnncipal subsidianes are given in note 27

The Group consolidates collective investment vehicles if its beneficial ownershup interests give it substantive nights to remove the extemal fund manager over the
investment activities of the fund Where a subsidiary of the Group 15 the fund manager of a collective investment vehicle, the Group considers a number of factors
in determuning whether it acts as principal and therefore contrals the collective investment vehicle including an assessment of the scope of the Group’s decision
making authority over the investment vehicle, the nghts held by other parties including substantive removal rights without cause over the Group acting as fund
manager, the remuneration to which the Group 1s entitled 1n 1ts capacity as decision maker, and the Group's exposure to vanable returns from the beneficial
Interest 1t holds in the investment vehicle Consolidation may be appropnate in circumstances where the Group has less than a majonty beneficial interest Where
a collective investment vehicle 1s consolidated the interests of parties other than the Group are reported 1n other liabilities

Structured entities are entities that are designed so that their actvities are not governed by way of voting nghis (n assessing whether the Group has power over
such entities 1n which it has an interest, the Group considers factors such as the purpose and design of the entity, its practical ability to direct the retevant
activities of the entity, the nature of the relationship with the entity, and the size of its exposure to the vanabity of returns of the entity

The treatment of transactions with non-controlling interests depends on whether, as a result of the transaction, the Group loses control of the subsidiary Changes
in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a oss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received 15 recognised directly (n equity and attnbuted
1o the owners of the parent entity Where the group loses control of the subsidiary, at the date when control 15 lost the amount of any non-controlling interest in
that former subsidiary 1s derecognised and any mvestment retaned 1n the former subsidiary 1s remeasured to its fair value, the gain or loss that 1s recognised in
profit or Ioss on the partial disposal of the subsidiary includes the gain or loss on the remeasurement of the retained interest

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are ehmuinated

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for business combinations by the Group The consideration for the acquistion of a subsidiary 1s the fair
value of the assets transferreg, the habihities incurred and the equity interests 1ssued by the Group The consideration includes the fair value of any asset or
liabilty resuling from a cantingent censideration arrangement Acquisiion related costs are expensed as incurred except those relating 1o the issuance of debt
instruments (see 2e(5)) or share capttal (see 21(1)) Idenufiable assets acquired and habiliies assumed in a bustness combination are measured iniially at their
farr value at the acquisition date

(2} Jant ventures and associates

Joint ventures are joint arrangements over which the Group has joint control with other parties and has nghts to the net assets of the arrangements Assoclates
are entities gver which the Group has significant influence, but not control or jomt control, over the financial and operating policies  Significant influence 1s the
power 1o participate mn the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity but 15 not control or joint control of those policies and Is generally achieved
through holding between 20 per cent and 50 per cent of the voung share capital of the entity

The Group utilises the veniure capital exemption for mvestments where significant influgnce or joint control 1s present and the business unit operates as a venture
capital business These investments are designated at inibial recognitton at fair value through profit or loss Gtherwise, the Group's investments in joint ventures
and associates are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are intiatly recorded at cost and adjusted each year to seflect the Group's share of the
post-acquisition results of the joint venture or associate based on audited accounts which are coterminous with the Group or made up 10 a date which 1s not
mere than three months before the Group's reporting date  The share of any losses 15 restricted to a level that reflects an obhgation to fund such losses

b Goodwill

Goodwill anses on business combinations, including the acquisition of subsidianes, and on the acguisition of interests n joint ventures and associates, goodwill
represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, abihties and contingent habilties acquied
Where the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, habilibes and contingent liabilities of the acquired entity 1s greater than the cost of acquisiion,
the excess I1s recognised immediately 1n the income statement

Goodwill 1s recogrised as an asset at cost and IS tested at least annually for imparrment If an imparment s identfied the carrying value of the goodwaiil 1s waitten
down immediately through the income statement and Is not subsequently reversed Goodwill ansing on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures 1s included
in the Group’s investment in jotnt ventures and associates At the date of disposal of a subsidiary, the carrying value of attributable goodwill 15 included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal except where it has been wnitten off directly to reserves in the past
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c Other intangible assets

Cther intangible assets include brands, core depeosit Intangible, purchased credit card relationships, customer-related ntangibles and both ntemally and
externally generated capitalised software enhancements Intangible assets which have been determined to have a finite useful life are amortised on a straight
line basis over thewr estimated useful Iife as follows

Capntalsed software enhancements up to 7 years
Brands {which have been assessed as having finite hves) 10-15 years
Customer-refated intangibles up te 10 years
Core deposit intangible up to B years
Purchased credit card relabonships 5 years

Intangible assets with finite usefut lives are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there 1s any indication that they are impaired 1f any such indication
exists the recoverable amount of the asset 15 determined and in the event that the asset's carrying amount 1s greater than its recoverable amount, 1t 1s written
down immediately Certain brands have been determined to have an indefinite useful fe and are not amortised Such intangible assets are reassessed annually
ta reconfirm that an indefinite useful life remains appropnate In the event that an indefinite ife 1s inappropniate a firte Iife 1s determined and an )mpairmant
review 15 performed on the asset

d Revenue recogmition

Interest income and expense are recognised n the income statement for all interest-beanng financial Instruments, using the effective interest method, except for
those class/fied at fair value through profit or loss The effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amorhised cost of a financial asset or hability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the expected Iife of the financial instrument  The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash payments or receipts cver the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
of the financ:al asset or financial hability

The effective interest rate 1s calculated on nihial recognition of the financial asset or liability by estimating the future cash flows after considenng ali the
contractual terms of the instrument but not future credit losses The caleutation includes all amounts expected to be paid or received by the Group including
expected early redemption fees and related penalties and premiums and discounts that are an integral part of the overall return Direct incremental transaction
costs related to the acquisition, 1ssue or disposal of a financial instrument are also taken inte account in the calculation Once a financial asset or a group of
similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest iIncome 1s recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measunng the impairment loss {see h below)

Fees and commissions which are not an integral part of the effective interest rate are generally recogmsed when the service has been prowided Loan commitment
fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment 1o the effective interest rate on
the loan once drawn Where it 15 unfikely that loan commitments will be drawn, lean commitment fees are recognised over the life of the facility Loan syndication
fees are recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and the Group retains ne part of the loan package for itself or retains a part at the
same effective interest rate for ail interest-bearing financtal instruments, including loans and advances, as for the other participants

Dividend income 1s recogmised when the rnight to receive payment s established

Revenue recognition policies specific to hfe insurance and general surance business are detailed below {see o below), those relating to leases are set out in
k(2) below

e Financial assets and habilities

On inihial recognition, financial assets are classified mto fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets, hetd-to-maturnty investments or loans
and recewvables Financial habtlities are measured at amortised cost, except for trading liabilibes and other financial habilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss on intial recognition which are held at fair value The Group imitially recognises loans and receivables, deposits, debt secunties in 1ssue and
subordinated habilsties when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument  Regular way purchases and sales of secunties and other
financial assets and trading habilities are recognised on trade date, being the date that the Group 1s comrritted to purchase or sell an asset

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual night o receive cash flows from those assets has expired or when the Group has transferred its contractual
nght to receive the cash tlows from the assets and either

- substantially ali of the nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred, or
— the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the nsks and rewards, but has transferied control

Financial habihves are derecognised when they are extinguished (1 8 when the obhgation 1s discharged), cancelled or expire

(1) Financial mstruments at fair value through profit or joss
Financial instruments are classified at fair value through profit or loss where they are tracding secunities or where they are designated at fair value through profit
or loss by management Dernvatives are carried at fair value {see f below)

Trading secunties are debt secunties and equity shares acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or which are part of a portfolio which 1s
managed for short-term gains  Such secunities are classified as trading secunties and recogmised in the balance sheet at their fair value Gains and losses ansing
from changes in their fawr value together with interest coupons and dividend income are recognised in the income statement within net trading income in the
period 1n which they occur

Other financial assets and habihties at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such by management upon imitial recognition Such assets and habihties
are carned (n the balance sheet at their fair value and gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value together with interest coupons and dividend income
are recognised In the income statement within net trading income 1n the pencd 1n which they occur Financial assets and liatilities are designated at fair value
through profit or loss on acquisition in the following circumstances
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— 1t elminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treaiment that would otherwise anse from measuning the assets and habilities or recognising gains o
losses on different hases The main type of financial assets designated by the Group at fair value through profit or loss are assets backing surance contracts
and investment contracts 1ssued by the Group’s life insurance businesses Fair value designation allows changes in the fair value of these assets 10 be recorded
i the income statement along wath the changes in the value of the associated habifities, thereby significantly reducing the measurement inconsistency had
the assets been classified as availlable-for-sale financtal assets

-~ the assets and habilities are part of a group which 1s managed, and iis performance evaluated, on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented nsk
management or Investment strategy, with management information also prepared on this basis As noted in a(2) abaove, certain of the Group's investments
are managed as venture capital investments and evaluated on the basis of their fatr value and these assets are designated at farr value through profit or loss

— where the assets and liabiliies contain one or more embedded denvatives that significantly modify the cash flows ansing under the contract and would
otherwise need to be separately accounted for

The fair values of assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on current bid and offer prices respectively If the market 5 not active the Group
establishes a fair value by wsing valuation techmques These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other mstruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing medels and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants Refer to
note 3 (Cnittcal accounting estimates and judgements Fair value of financial instruments) and note 53(3) (Financial instruments Financial assets and liabilities
carned at fan value) for details of valuation techmques and significant Inputs to valuation medels

The Group Is permitted to reclassify, at fair value at the date of transfer, non-denvative financial assets (other than those designated at fair value through profit
or loss by the entity upon initial recognition} out of the trading category if they are no longer held for the purpose of being sold or repurchased in the near term,
as follows

—1f the financial assets would have met the definiion of loans and recevables (but for the fact that they had to be classified as held for trading at initial
recogmbion), they may be reclassified into loans and recevables where the Group has the intention and ability to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until matusity, or

- If the financial asseis would not have met the definition of loans and recervables, they may be reclassified out of the held for trading category into available-
for-sale financia! assets in rare circemstances’

(2} Available-for-sale financial assets

Debt secunties and equity shares that are not classified as trading securities, at fair value through profit or lass, held-to maturity investments or as loans and
recevables are classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are recognised in the balance sheet at their fair value, inclusive of transaction costs
Available-for-sale financial assets are those intended to be held for an indeterminate penod of time and may be sold In response to needs for iquidity or changes
n interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset 1s either sold, becomes impaired or matures, at which tme the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income Is recognised in the income statement Interest calculated using the effective interest method and
foreign exchange gamns and losses on debt secunties denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement

The Group Is permitted to transfer a financial asset from the available-for-sale category 10 the loans and recevables category where that asset would have met
the definition of loans and recervables at the time of reclassification (f the financial asset had not been designated as available-for-sale) and where there 1s both
the intention and abilty to hald that finanoal asset for the foreseeable future Reclassification of a financial asset from the available-for-sale category to the
held-to-matunty category 15 permitted when the Group has the ability and ntent to hold that financial asset to maturnty

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the rectassification date Fair value becomes the new cost or amorused cost as applicable Effective interest rates
for financial assets reclassified to the loans and recewvables and hetd-to-matunty categones are determined at the reclassification date Any previous gain or 10s$
on a transferred asset that has been recognised in equity 1s amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest method
or untll the asset becomes impaired Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows 1s also amortised over the remaining life of
the asset using the effective interest method

When an imparrment loss 1s recognised 1n respect of available-for-sale assets transferred, the unamortised balance of any available-for-sale reserve that remains
In equity 1s transferred to the income statement and recerded as part of the imparment loss

(3) Loans and recewables

Loans and recevables include toans and advances to banks and customers and eligible assets including those transferred into this category out of the fair value
through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets categories Loans and receivables are initially recogrised when cash 1s advanced to the borrowers at
farr value inclusive of transaction costs or, for eligible assets transferred into this category, their fair value at the date of transfer Financial assets classified as
loans and recevables are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method (see d above) less provision for impairment (see b below)

The Group has entered o securitisation and similar transactions to finance certain loans and advances to customers In cases where the secuntisation vehicles
are funded by the 1ssue of debt, on terms whereby the majonty of the nsks and rewards of the portiolio of secuntised lending are retained by the Group, these
loans and advances continue o be recognised by the Group, together with a corresponding liability for the funding

(4} Heid-to-maturity investments
Held-te-maturity investments are nen-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturibes that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and atility 1o hold to matunty other than

- those that the Group designates upon ital recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,
- those that the Group designates as avallable-for-sale, and
- those that meet the definition of loans and receivables

These are imitially recogmised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs and measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective
interest methed, less any provision for tmpairment

A sale of reclassification of a more than wsignificant amount of hetd-to-matunty investments would result in the reclassification of all held-to-matunty investments
to available-for-sale financial assets
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{5) Borrowmngs
Borrowings {which include deposits from banks, customer deposits, debt secunties in 1ssue and subordinated habilities) are recognised imitially at fair value,
heing their 1ssue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred These instruments aze subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effechve interest method

Preference shares and other instruments which carry a mandatory coupon or are redeemable on a specific date are classified as financial kabilities The coupon
on these struments 15 recognised In the Income statement as interest expense

An exchange of financial liabsliies on substantially different terms 1s accounted for as an extinguishment of the onginal financial hability and the recognition of
a new financial iabihty The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liakility extinguished and the new financial ability 1s recognised in profit or
loss together with any related costs or fees incurred

When a financial liability 1s exchanged for an equity instrument, the new equity instrument 1s recognised at fa value and any difference between the onginat
carrying value of the hability and the fair value of the new equity 15 recogmised in the profit or loss

(6) Sale and repurchase agreements

Securnties sold subject 1o repurchase agreements (repos) continue to be recognised on the balance sheet where substantially all of the nisks and rewards are
retained Funds received under these arrangements are included in deposits from banks, customer deposits, or trading hablities Conversely, secunties purchased
under agreements to resell (reverse repos}, where the Group does not acquire substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership, are recorded as loans and
recelvables or trading secunies The difference between sale and repurchase price 18 treated as interest and accrued over the hife of the agreements using the
effective interest method

Securities borrowing and lending transactions are typically secured, collateral takes the form of secunties or cash advanced or receved Secunties lent to
counterparties are retained on the balance sheet Securities borrowed are not recognised on the balance sheet, unless these are sold to third parties, in which
case the obligation to return them 15 recorded at fair value as a trading habiity Cash collateral given or received 1s treated as a lcan and recevable or customer
deposit

f Dervative financial instruments and hedge accounting

All denvatives are recognised at their fair vatue Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
using valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow and option pneing models, as appropnate Dernvatives are cained (in the balance sheet as assets
when their fair value 1s positive and as liabilsties when their fair value 1s negative Refer to note 3 {Cnitical accounting eshmates and judgements Fair value of
financial instruments) and ncte 53(3) (Financial instruments Financial assets and hiabilities carned at fair value) for details of valuation techniques and
significant inputs to valuation models

Changes in the far vatue of any denvative instrument that is not part of a hedging relationship are recogmised immediately in the income statement

Denvatives embedded 1n financial instruments and insurance contracts (unless the embedded denvative 1s itself an insurance contract) are treated as separate
denvatives when ther economic charactenstics and nsks are not closely refated to those of the host contract and the host contract 15 not camed at farr value
through profit or loss These embedded denvatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement In accordance with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, a policyholder's option to surrender an insurance contract for a fixeg amount 1s not treated as an embedded denvative

The methad of recognising the movements 1n the fair value of derivatives depends on whether they are designated as hedging instruments and, if so, the nature
of the item being hedged Hedge accounting allows one financial instrument, generally a dernvative such as a swap, t0 be designated as a hedge of another
financial instrument such as a loan or deposit or a porifolio of such instruments At the inception of the hedge relationship, formal documentation 1s drawn up
specifying the hedging strategy, the hedged item and the hedging instrument and the methodology that will be used 1o measure the effectiveness of the hedge
relationship in offsetting changes n the fair value or cash flow of the hedged nsk The effectiveness of the hedging relationship 1s tested both at inception and
throughout s Iife and «f at any point it 1s concluded that it 15 no longer hughly effective in achieving its documented objective, hedge accounting 1s discont:nued

The Group designates certain denvatives as either (1) hedges of the fair value of the particular nsks inherent in recognised assets or iabilities (fair value hedges),
(2) hedges of highly probable future cash fliows attributable 1o recognised assets or habihbies (cash flow hedges), or (3) hedges of net investments in foreign
operations {net investment hedges) These are accounted for as foliows

(1) Fair value hedges

Changes In the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with the changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or hability that are attnbulable to the hedged nsk, this also applies If the hedged asset 1s classified as an available-for-sale
financial asset If the hedge no fonger meets the cniteria for hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of the hedged item attnbutable to the hedged nisk are no
longer recogrised in the income statement The cumulative adjustment that has been made fo the carrysng amount of the hedged rtem 1s amortised to the iIncome
statement using the effective interest method over the penied to maturity

(2) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of dernvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges Is recognised in other comprehensive income
in the cash flow hedge reserve The gain o loss relating to the ineffective portion: s recogmised immediately in the income staterment Amounts accumulated in
equity are reclassified to the income statement in the periods In which the hedged rtem affects profit or loss When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or
when a hedge ne longer meets the cniteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing w1 equity at that tme remains in equity and 1s recognised
n the income statement when the forecast transaction 1s ulimately recognised 1n the income statement When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected lo
occur, the cumulative gatn of loss that was reported 1n equity 1s immediately transferred to the income statement

{3) Net investment hedges

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating 1o the
effective portion of the hedge Is recognised in other comprehensive sncome, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 15 recogmised immediately 1n the
Income statement Gains and losses accumutated In equity are incluged in the income statement when the foreign operation 1s disposed of The hedging
instruments used 1N net investment hedges may include non-denvative habilties as well as denvative financial instruments
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g Offset

Financal assets and hatilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there 1s a legally enforceable nght of set-off and there 1s an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the hiability simuitanecusly Cash collateral on exchange-traded derivative transactions s presented
gross unless the collateral cash flows are always settled net with the denvative cash fiows In certain situations, even though master netting agreements exist,
the fack of management intention to seftle on a net bass resulis 1n the financial assets and habilities being reported gross on the balance sheet

h Impairment of financial assets

{1) Assets accounted for at amortised cost

At each batance sheet date the Group assesses whether, as a result of one or more events occurnng after initial recognivion of the financial asset and prior to the
balance sheet date, there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has become impatred

Where such an event has had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets, an imparment allowance s
recognised The amount of impairment allewance 1s the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's anginal effective interest rate f the asset has a vanable rate of interest, the discount rate used for measuring the imparrment allowance
15 the current effective interest rate

Subsequent to the recognition of an iImpairment loss on a financial asset or a group of financial assets, interest Income continues to be recognised on an effective
interest rate basis, on the asset's carrying value net of impairment prowistons If, In a subsequent period, the amount of the iImpairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively 10 an event occurnng after the impairment was recognised, such as an improvement sn the borrower's credit rating, the
allowance 15 adjusted and the amount of the reversal 1s recognised in the income statement

Impairment atlowances are assessed individually for financial assets that are incividually significant Such individual assessment 1s used pnmanly for the Group's
commercial lending portfolios  Impairment allowances for portiohos of smaller balance homogenous loans such as most residential mortgages, personal loans
and credit card balances 1a the Group's retail portfolios 1n both the Retail and Consumer Finance divisions that are below the individual assessment thresholds,
and for loan losses that have been incurred but not separatety 1dentified at the balance sheet date, are determined on a collective basis

Indwidual assessment

In respect of ndividually significant financial assets in the Group's commercial lending portfolios, assets are reviewed on a regular basis and those showing
potential or actual vulnerability are placed on a watch list where greater momitoring 1s undertaken and any adverse or potentially adverse impact on ability to
repay 1s used in assessing whether an asset should be transferred to a dedicated Business Support Unit Specific examples of trigger events that would lead to
the initial recognition of impatrment allowances against lending {o corporate borrowers (o the recognition of additional impairment allowances) include {1)
trading losses, loss of business or major customer of a borrower, (1) matenial breaches of the terms and conditions of a loan facility, including non-payment of
interest or pnncipal, or a fall in the value of secunty such that i1 1s no longer considered adequate, {n) disappearance of an active market because of financial
difficulties, or (v} restructuning a facility with preferential terms to aid recovery of the lending {such as a debt for equity swap)

For such individually identified financial assets, a review 1s undertaken of the expected future cash flows which reguires significant management judgement as
to the amount and timing of such cash flows Where the debt 13 secured, the assessment reflects the expected cash flows from the realisation of the security, net
of costs 10 realise, whether or not foreclosure or reahsation of the cotlateral 1s probable

For imparred debt instruments which are held at amortised cost, impairment losses are recogrised in subsequent penods when it 1s determined that there has
been a further negative impact on expected future cash flows A reduction in fair value caused by general widening of credit spreads would not, of itself, resuit
In additional impawrment

Collective assessment
Impairment 1s assessed on a collective basis for (1) homogenous groups of foans that are not considered individually smpaired, and {2} to cover losses which
have been incurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject t¢ indradual iImpairment

Homogenous graups of loans

In respect of portfolios of smaller balance, homogenous Yoans, the asset 1S included n a group of financial assets with similar nsk charactenistics and collectively
assessed for impairment Segmentation takes inio account factors, such as the type of asset, industry sector, geographical location, collateral type, past-due
status and other relevant factors These characterisiics are relevant to the estmation of future cash flows for groups of such assets as they are indicative of the
borrower’s ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated

Generally the impaument trigger used within the impairment calculation for a loan, or group of loans, s when they reach a pre-defined level of delinguency or
where the customer 1s bankrupt Loans where the Group provides arrangements that forgive a portion of interest or pnncipal are also deemed to be impaired and
loans that are originated to refinance currently impaired assets are also define¢ as impaired

In respect of the Group's secured morigage portfolios, the impairment allowance 1s calculated based on a definition of impaired loans which are those six months
or more In arrears (or in certain cases where the boriawer 1s bankrupt or 1510 possession} The estimated cash flows are calculated based on histonical expenence
and are dependent on esitmates of the expected value of collateral which takes into account expected future movements in house pnces, tess costs to sell

For unsecured personal lending portfolios, the impairment trigger 1s generally when the balance 1s two or more instalments in arrears or where the customer has
exhibited one or mere of the impairment characteristics set out above While the tngger 1s based on the payment performance or circumstances of each indnvidual
asset, the assessment of future cash flows uses historical experience of cohorts of similar pertfolios such that the assessment 1s constdered to be collective Future
cash flows are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the cohort and histoncal loss expenence for similar assets Histonical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data about econemic and credit conditions (including unemgptoyment rates and botrowers” behaviour)
to reflect the effects of current condittons that did not affect the peniod on which the historical loss expenence 1s based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the hustoncal penod that do not exst currently The methodology and assumptions used for esumating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience

Incurred but not yet entified impatrment

The collective prowision also includes provision for inherent losses, that 1s losses that have been incurred but have not been separately identified at the balance
sheet date The loans that are not currently recognised as impaired are grouped into homogenous portfolios by key sk dovers Risk drivers for secured retait
tending include the curcent indexed loan-to-value, previous morigage arrears, internal ¢ross-product delinquency data and external credit bureau data, for
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unsecured retail lending they include whether the account s up-to-date and, if not, the number of payments that have been missed, and for commercial tending
they include factors such as observed default rates and loss given default An assessment 18 made of the hikelihood of each account becoming recognised as
impaired withen the loss emergence penod, with the economic oss that each portfolio i1 ikely to generate were it to become impaired The loss emergence period
1s determined by local management for each portfolio and the Greup has a range of loss emergence penods which are dependent upon the charactenstics of the
portfolios Loss emergence penods are reviewed regularly and updated when appropniate n general the penods used acress the Gioup vary between one month
and twelve months based on historical experience Unsecured portfolios tend to have shorier loss emergence penods than secured portfolios

Loan renegotiations and forbearance

In certain circumstances, the Group will renegotiate the orniginal terms of a customer’s loan, either as part of an ongoing customer relationship or in respense to
adverse changes 1n the circumstances of the borrower Where the renegotiated payments of interest and principal will niot recover the onginal carrying value of
the asset, the asset continues to be reporied as past due and 1s considered impaired Where the renegotiated payments of interest and principal wall recover the
onginal carrying value of the asset, the loan 15 no longer reported as past due or impaired provided that payments are made in accordance with the revised terms

Renegotiation may lead to the loan and associated provision being derecognised and a new loan being recognised initially at fair value

Write offs

A loan or advance 15 normally written off, erther partially or in full, against the related allowance when the proceeds from realising any available secunty have
been received or there 1s no realistic prospect of recovery and the amount of the loss has been determined Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously watten
off decrease the amount of impairment losses recorded n the income statement For both secured and unsecured retail balances, the wnte-off takes place onty
once an extensive set of collechons processes has been completed, or the staws of the account reaches a point where policy dictates that forbearance 15 no
longer appropnate For commerciat lending, a write-off occurs i the loan facility with the customer 15 restructured, the asset 1s under administration and the only
monies that can be received are the amounts eshimated by the admirstratos, the undeitying assets are disposed and a decision 1s made that no further settlement
monies will be received, or external evidence (for example, third party valuations) 1s available that there has been an irreversible decline in expected cash flows

Debt for equity exchanges

Equity secunties acquired in exchange for loans (n order to achieve an orderly realisatton are accounted for as a disposal of the loan and an acguisition of equity
secunties held as avallable-for-sale ‘Where control 1s obtained ove: an entity as a result of the tiansaction, the entity 1s consolidated, where the Group has
significant influence over an entity as a result of the transaction, the investment 1s accounted for by the equity method of accounting (see (a) above) Any
subsequent impairment of the assets or business acquired is treated as an impairment of the relevant asset or business and not as an impairment of the onginal
instrument

(2) Avaifable-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there 1s objective evidence that an available-for-sale financial asset 1s tmpaired In addition to the
crtena for financial assets accounted for at amortised cost set out above, this assessment involves reviewing the current financial circumstances (including
creditworthiness) and future prospects of the 1ssuer assessing the future cash flows expected to be realised and, n the case of equity shares, considering whether
there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the farr value of the asset below its cost 1 an impawment loss has been incurred, the cumulative l0ss
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation} and the current fair value, less any imparrment koss
on that asset previously recognised, 1s reclassified from eguity to the income statement For impaired debt instruments, impairment losses are recognised n
subsequent penods when it 1s determined that there has been a further negative impact on expected future cash fiows, a reduction in fair value caused by general
widening of credit spreads would not, of itself, result in additional impairment 1f, 1n a subsequent penod, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
avallable-for-sate increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurning after the impairment loss was recognised, an amount not greater
than the onginal iImpairment loss 15 credited to the income statement, any excess s taken to other comprehensive iIncome Impairment losses recognised in the
Income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement

1 Investrment property

Investment property compnses freehold and long leasehold land and buildings that are held either to earn rental income or {or capital appreciation or both The
Group's investment property primarily relates to property held for long-term rental yields and capital appreciation within the life insurance funds investment
property I1s carned 1n the balance sheet at fair value, beng the open market value as determined in accordance with the guidance published by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors If thus information 1s not available, the Group uses alternative vatuation methods such as discounted cash flow projections or
recent prices These valuations are reviewed at least annually by an independent valuation expert Investment property being redevetoped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at fair value Changes in fair value are recognised 1n the income
statement as net trading income

) Tangible fixed assets
Tangble fixed assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciation The value of land (in¢luded 1n premises) 1s not depreciated Depreciation on other assets
15 calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the difference between the cost and the residual value over they estimated useful lives, as follows

Prermses {excluding land)

- Freehold/long and short leasehold premises shorter of S50 years and the remaining penod of the lzase
- Leasehold improvements shorter of 10 years and, If lease renewal is not likely, the remaining penod of the lease

Equipment

- Fixtures and furmishungs 10-20 years
— Other equipment and motor vehicles 2-8 years

The assels’ residual values and useful bives are reviewed, and adjusted o appropriate, at each balance sheet date

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable In the event that
an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount it 1s wnitten down immediately The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's fair value ess costs to sell and its value in use
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k Leases

{1} As lessee

The leases entered into by the Group are pnmanly operating leases Operating lease rentals payable are charged 1o the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the penod of the lease

When an opetating lease 1s terminated before the end of the 1ease penod, any payment made to the lessor by way of penalty 1s recogmsed as an expense in the
penod of termination

{2) As lessor

Assets leased to customers are classified as finance leases If the lease agreerments transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lessee but
not necessarly legal title  All other leases are classified as operating leases When assets are subject to finance leases, the present value of the lease payments,
together with any unguaranteed residual value, 1s recogmised as a receivable, net of prowisions, within lpans and advances to banks and customers The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the recewvable 1s recogmsed as unearned finance lease income Finance lease income 15
recogmsed tn interest income over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax) so as to give a constant rate of return on the net nvestment
in the leases Unguaranteed residual values are reviewed regularly to identify any impairment

Operating lease assels are included within tangible fixed assets at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives, which equates to the lives of the leases,
after taking into account anticipated residual values Operating lease rental income 1s recogrused on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease

The Group evaluates non-lease arrangements such as outsourcing and simitar contracts to deterrmine if they contain a lease which 1s then accounted for
separately

| Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits, such as salares, paid absences, performance-based cash awards and social secunty costs are recognised over the penod in which
the employees provide the related services

The Group operates a number of post-retrement benefit schemes for its employees inctuding both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans A
defined benefit scheme 15 a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recerve on retirement, dependent on cne or more
factors such as age, years of service and salary A defined contnibution plan is a pension plan into which the Group pays fixed contnbutions, there 15 no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions

Full actuanal valuations of the Group'’s principal defined benefit schemes are carried out every three years with intenm reviews in the intervening years, these
valuations are updated to 31 December each year by qualified independent actuanes For the purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included at
their farr value and scheme habilities are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected umt credit method The defined benefit scheme labilties are
discounted using rates equivalent to the market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds that are denocminated n the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension hablity

The Group's income statement charge includes the curtent service cost of providing pension benefits, past service costs, net interest expense (income), and plan
administration costs that are not deducted from the return on plan assets Past service costs, which represenis the change in the present value of the defined
benefit obhigation resulting from a plan amendment or curtalment, are recognised when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs Net interest expense
(income) 1s calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginming of the pened to the net defined benefit habibty or asset

Remeasurements, compnsing actuanal gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense (income) and net of the
cost of managing the plan assets), and the effect of changes to the asset celing (if apphicable} are reflected immediately 1n the balance sheet with a charge or
credit recogrused in other comprehensive iIncome 1n the penod in which they occur Remeasurements recognised 1n other comprehensive income are reflected
immediately in retained profits and will not subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss

The Group's balance sheet includes the net surplus or deficit, being the difference between the fair value of scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme
labilities at the balance sheet date Surpluses are only recogmsed to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced contnibutions in the future or through
refunds from the schemes

The costs of the Group's defined contnbution plans are charged to the income statement 1n the pened n which they fall due
The accounting for share-based compensation 1s set out In (m) below

m Share-based compensation

Lloyds Banking Group operates a number of equity-setled, share-based compensation plans in respect of services received from certain of its employees The
value of the employee serwices receved in exchange for equity instruments granted under these plans 1s recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the
instruments with a corresponding increase in equity This expense s determined by reference to the fair vatue of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest The fair value of equity instruments granted 1s based on market prices, if available, at the date of grant In the absence of market prices, the
farr value of the tnstruments at the date of grant 15 estrmated using an appropnate valuation technique, such as a Black-Scholes option pricing model or a Monte
Carlo simulation The determination of fair values excludes the tmpact of any non-market vesting conditions, which are included n the assumptions used (o
estimate the number of options that are expected to vest At each balance sheet date, this estimate 15 reassessed and If necessary revised Any revision of the
onginal estimate s recognised in the income statement together with a corresponding adjustment to equity Cancellations by employees of contributions to the
Group's Save As You Earn plans are treated as non-vesting conditions and the Group recognises, in the year of cancellation, the amount of the expense that
would have otherwise been recognised over the remainder of the vesting period  Modifications are assessed at the date of modification and any incremental
charges are charged to the income statement

n Taxation
Current income 1ax which 1S payable on taxable profits Is recognised as an expense 1n the penod (n which the profits arise

For the Group's long-term insurance businesses, the tax charge 1s analysed between 1ax that 1s payable in respect of policyholders' returns and tax that 1s payable
on shareholders’ returns Thus allocation 1s based on an assessment of the rates of {ax which will be applied to the returns under current UK tax rules
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Deferred tax 1s prowided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and hatbilities and ther carying
amounts In the consolidated financial statements However, deferred tax 1s not accounted for f it anses from imtial recognition of an asset or hability in a
transact:on other than a business combxnation that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred tax 1s determined
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 15
realised or the deferred tax liability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised wherg it 1$ probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utiised Income
tax payable on profits 18 vecognised as an expense tn the penod tn which those profits anse  The tax effects of losses available for carry forward are recognised
as an asset when it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which these losses can be utilised Deferred and current tax related to gains
and losses on the far value re-measurement of available-for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, where these gains and losses are recogrised in ather
compsehensive Income, 1s also recognised In other comprehenstve Income  Such tax 1s subsequently transferred to the income statement together with the gain
of loss

Deferred and current tax assets and habilities are offset when they anse in the same tax reporting group and where there 1s both a tegat nght of offset and the
intention to settle ¢n a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultaneously

o Insurance

The Group undertakes both Iife insurance and general insurance business Insurance and participating investment contracts are accounted for under #FRS 4
insurance Contracts, which permits {with certain exceptrons) the continuation of accounting practices for measuning insurance and particepating invesiment
contracts that applied prior to the adoption of IFRS The Group, therefore, continues to account for these products using UK GAAP, including FRS 27 Uife
Assurance, and UK established practice

Products seld by the life iInsurance busingss are classified into three categories

- Insurance contracts — these contracts transfer significant insurance risk and may also transfer financial nsk The Group defines sigmificant insurance nisk as
the possibniity of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable if the insured event were
not to occur These contracts may or may not include discretionary participation features

- Investment contracts contairing a discretionary participation feature {participating investment contracts) - these contracts do not transfer significant insurance
nsk, but contain a contractual right which gives the holder the night to receive, 1n addition 1o the guaranteed benefits, further additional discretionary benefits
or bonuses that are likely to be a significant proportion of the total contractual benefits and the amount ang timing of which 1s at the discretion of the Group,
within the censtraints of the termis and conditions of the instrument and based upon the performance of specified assets

- Non-participating investment contracts — these contracts do net transfer significant insurance nisk or contain a discretionary participation feature

The general insurance business 1ssues only insurance contracts

(1) Lfe insurance business

(1} Accounting for insurance and participating investrnent contracts

Premiums and claims

Premiums received n respect of msurance and participating investment contracts are recognised as revenue when due except for unit-hnked contracts en which
premiums are recognised as revenue when received Claims are recorded as an expense on the earher of the maturity date or the date on which the claim 1s
notified

Liatwlities

— Insurance and participating investment contracts mn the Group’s with-profit funds

Liabitities of the Group's wath-profit funds, including guarantees and options embedded within products wntten by these funds, are stated at therr realishic values
N accordance with the Prudential Regulation Authority’s realistic capital regime, except that projected transfers out of the funds into other Group funds are
recorded 1n the unallocated surpfus (see below) Changes in the value of these habilities are recognised in the income statement through insurance claims

- Insurance and participating investment contracts which are not unit-tinked or in the Group s with-profit funds

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the premiums are recogrised The liability 1s calculated by
estimating the future cash flows over the durauon of in-force policies and discounting them back to the valuation date allowing for probabilities of occutrence
The lability will vary with movements 1n interest rates and with the cost of Iife insurance and annuity benefits where future mortality 1s uncertain

Assumptions are made n respect of all matenal factors affecting future cash flows, including future interest rates, mortality and costs
Changes n the value of these habilittes are recognised in the income statement through insurance claims

- Insurance and participating investrmert contracts which are unit-hinked
Liabilities for umit-inked insurance contracts and participating investment contracts are stated at the bid value of units plus an addiional atlowance where
appropnate (such as for any excess of future expenses over charges) The liatility 1s increased or reduced by the change tn the unit prces and 1s reduced by
policy administration fees, mortality and surrender charges and any withdrawals Changes in the value of the Liability are recognised in the income statement
through insurance claims Benefit claims in excess of the account balances incuried 1n the penod are also charged through insurance claims Revenue consists
of fees deducted for mortahty, pohcy administration and surrender charges

Unallocafed surplus
Any amounts in the with-profit funds not yet determined as being due to policyholders or shareholders are recognised as an unallocated surplus which 1s shown
separately from habilihies ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts

(1) Accounting for non-participating investment contracts

The Group's non-participating investraent contracts are prmanly unit-inked These contracts are accounted for as financial habilities whose value is contractually
linked to the fair values of financial assets within the Group’s untised investment funds The value of the unit-linked financial liabilities 1s determined using
current unit prices multiplied by the number of units atiributed to the contract holders at the balance sheet date Their value 18 never less than the amount
payable on surrender, discounted for the required notice penod where applicable Investment returns (including movements in fair value and investment income)
allocated to those contracts are recognised in insurance claims
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Deposits and withdrawals are not accounted for through the income statement but are accounted for directly in the balance sheet as adjustments to the
non-participating mvesiment contract lability

The Group receves investment management fees in the form of an il adjusiment or charge to the amount nvested These fees are in respect of services
rendered In conjunction with the 1ssue and management of investment contracts where the Group actively manages the consideration received from its
customers 1o fund a return that 1s based on the investment profile that the customer selected on onginavon of the contract These services compnse an
indeterminate number of acts over the lives of the individual contracts and, therefore, the Group defers these fees and recognises them over the estimated fives
of the contracts, 1n ing with the provision of investment management services

Costs which are diectly attributable and incremental 1o securing new non-particspating investment coniracts are deferred This asset 1s subsequently amortised
aver the penod of the provision of investment management services and 1$ reviewed for impairment In circumstances where its carrying amount may not be
recoverable If the asset I1s greater than its recoverable amount it 1s wntten down immediately through fee and commission expense In the income statement All
other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred

(m1) Value of in-force business

The Group recognises as an asset the value of in-force business in respect of Insurance contracts and participating investment contracts The asset represents
the present value of the shareholders' interest in the profits expected to emerge from those contracts wniten at the balance sheet date This is determined after
making appropnate assumptians about future economic and operating conditions such as future mortality and persistency rates and includes allowances for both
non-market nsk and far the realistic value of financial options and guarantees Each cash flow is valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied to
such a cash flow in the capital markets The asset in the consolidated balance sheet 1s presented gross of attnbutable tax and movements in the asset are
reflecied within other operating income in the income statement

The Group's contractual nights to benefits from prowding investment management services 1n relation 10 non-participating 1nvestment contracts acquired in
bustness combinations and portfolio transfers are measured at fair value at the date of acquisiion  The resulting asset 1s amortised over the esimated lives of
the contracts At each reporting date an assessment 15 made to determing If there 1s any indication of iImpairment Where impairment exists, the carrying value
of the asset 1s reduced to s recoverable amount and the impairment loss recognised 1n the income statement

(2) General insurance business

The Group both underwrites and acts as intermechary 1n the sale of general insurance products Underwiiting premiums are included i insurance premium
ncome, net of refunds, in the penad In which insurance cover 15 provided to the customer, premiums received relating to future penods are deferred in the
balance sheet within habiliies ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts and only credited to the income statement when earned
Broking cemmission 1s recognssed when the underwriter accepts the nsk of providing insurance cover to the custorer Where appropnate, prowsion 1s made for
the effect of future policy terminations based upon past expernence

The underwniting business makes prowvision for the estmated cost of claims notified but net settled and claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet
date The provision for the cost of ¢laims nolified but not settied 1s based upon a best esbmate of the cost of setting the outstanding claims after taking into
account all known facts In those cases where there 1s Insufficient information to determine the required provision, statistical techniques are used which take
into account the cost of claims that have recently been settled and make assumptions about the future development of the outstanding cases Simular statistical
techniques are used to determing the provision for claims ncurred but ot reported at the balance sheet date Claims habilties are not discounted

(3) Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date lability adeguacy tests are perfarmed to ensure the adequacy of insurance and participating investment contract hatilities net of
related deferred cost assets and value of in-force business In performing these tests current best estimates of discounted future contractual cash flows and ctaims
handfing and policy administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing such habikities, are used Any deficiency 1s mmediatety
charged to the meome statement, initially by writing off the relevant assets and subsequently by establishing a prowsion for losses anstng from liability
adequacy tesis

{4) Remsurance

Contracts entered into by the Group with remsurers under which the Group 1s compensated for benefits payable on one or more contracts 1ssued by the Group
are recognised as assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held Where the undeslying contracts issued by the Group are classified as insurance contracts and
the reinsurance contract transfers significant insurance nsk on those contracts {o the reinsurer, the assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held are classified
as insurance contracls Where the underlying contracts issued by the Group are classified as non-participating investment contracts and the reinsurance
contract transfers financial nsk on those contracts to the remnsurer, the assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held are classified as non-partictpating
Invesiment contracts

Assels anising from reinsurance contracts held — Classified as insurance contracts

Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers ate measured consistently with the amounts associated with the remnsured contracts and n accordance with the
terms of each resnsurance contract and are regularly reviewed for impaurment Premiums payable for resnsurance contracts are recognised as an expense when
due within insurance premium income  Changes in the reisurance recoverable assets are recogmised n the income statement through insurance claims

Assets ansing from remnsurance contracts held — Classified as non-participating nvestment contracts

These contracts are accounted for as financial assets whose value 1S contractually inked to the fau values of financial assets within the reinsurers’ investment
funds Investment returns (ncluding movements n fair value and investment income} allocated to these contracts are recognised in insurance clams Deposits
and withdrawals are not accounted for through the sncome statement but are accounted for directly in the balance sheet as adjustments to the assets ansing
from retnsurance contracts hetd

p Foreign currency translation

Iterns included In the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the pnimary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the ‘functional currency’) The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which 1s the Company's functional and presentation
currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the appropniate functional currency using the exchange rates prevailng at the dates of the transactions Fareign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habilhes denorminated in foreign currencies are recogmsed in the income statement, except when recognised in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
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flow or net investment hedges Non-monetary assets that are measured at farr value are translated using the exchange rate at the date thal the fair value was
determined Translation differences on equities and similar non-menetary Items held at fair value through profit and loss are recogrised in profit or 10ss as part
of the fair value gain or loss Translation differences on avallable-for-sale non-monetary financial assets, such as equity shares, are included n the fair value
reserve 1 equity unless the asset 1s 2 hedged item in a fair value hedge

The results and financial positon of all group entities that have a functional curiency different from the presentation currency are translated nto the preserdation
cuirency as follows

— The assets and labilities of foreign operatiens, including goodwill and far value adjustments anising on the acquisition of a foreign entity, are translated into
sterhing at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date

— The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated tnto sterling at average exchange rates unless these do not approximate to the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions

Foreign exchange differences ansing on the translation of a foreign operation are recogrised tn other comprehensive Income and accumulated 1n a separate
component of equity together with exchange differences ansing from the translation of borrowings and other currency instruments destgnated as hedges of such
investments {see {(3) above) On disposal of a foreign operaton, the cumnulative amount of exchange differences relateng to that foreign operation are reclassified
from equity and ncluded n deterrmiming the profit or loss ansing on disposal

g Provisions and contingent habilities
Provisions are recogrused in respect of present obligations ansing from past events where it ts probable that outflows of resources will be required to settle the
obligations and they can be reliably estimated

The Group recognises provisions In respect of vacant leasehold property where the unavoidable costs of the present obligations exceed anticipated rental income

Contingent liabiliies are possible ebhgations whose existence depends on the cutcome of uncertain future events or those present obligations where the outflows
of resources are uncertain or cannot be measured reliably Contingent hatalities are not recognrsed in the financial statements but are disclosed unless they are
remote

Provision 1s made for irrevocable undrawn lpan commitments if it 15 probable that the facility will be drawn and result in the recognition of an asset at an amount
less than the amount advanced

r Share capital

(1) Share ssue costs

Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new shares of options or to the acguisition of a business are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds

{2) Dividends
Dividends paid on the Group’s ordinary shares are recognised as a reduction in eguity 1n the penod in which they are paid

s Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse cash and non-mandatory balances with central banks and amounts due from
banks with a maturity of less than thvee months

t Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidianes are carried at historical cost, less any prowisions for imparrment

3 Cntceal accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in applying the
accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, habilities, income and expenses Due to the inherent uncertainty in making esumates, actual
results reported in future perods may be based upon amounts which differ from those estimates Estimates, judgements and assumptions are continually
evaluated and are based on histonical expernence and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances

The significant judgements made by management in applying accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty in these financial statements,
which together are deemed cntical to the results and financial position, are as follows

Allowance for impairment losses on loans and receivables

At 31 Decemnber 2014 gross loans and receivables of the Group totalled £528,094 million (2013 £547,216 million} against which impairment altowances of
£6,540 millron (2013 £12,091 million} had been made and of the Bank totalled £302,825 million (2013 £434,095 mullion) against which impairment
allowances of £1,631 miflion (2013 £2,299 mithon} had been made {see note 20) The Group's accounting pahicy for losses ansing on financial assets
classified as loans and recewvables 1s descnibed in note 2h, this note also provides an overview of the methodologles applied

The allowance for impairment losses on Ipans and receivables 15 management s best estimate of losses incurred i the portfolio at the balance sheet date
Impairment allowances are made up of two components, these determined indvidually and those determined collectively

Individual impairment allowances are generally established against commercial lending portfolios The determination of indimdual impairment allowances requires
the exercise of considerable judgement by management involving matters such as local economic conditions and the resulting trading performance of the customer,
and the vatue of the secunty held, for which there may not be a readily accessible market In particular, significant judgement 1s required by management in
assessing the borrower's cash flows and debt servicing capability together with the reafisable value of coltateral The actual amount of the future cash flows and
their tirming may differ significantly from the assumptions made for the purposes of determining the impairment allowances and consequently these allowances
can be subject 10 vanation as tiume progresses and the circumstances of the customer become clearer
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Collective iImpairment altowances are generally established for smaller balance hormogenous portfolios such as the retatl portfohos The coltective impairment
allowance 1s also subject to estimation uncertainty and in particular s sensiive to changes in economic and credit condiions, including the interdependency of
house prices, unemployment rates, interest rates, borrowers’ behaviour, and consumer bankruptcy trends 1t 15, however, inherently difficult 1o estimate how
changes in one or more of these factors might impact the collective impairment allowance

Given the relative size of the morigage portfolio, a key vanable is house prices which determine the collateral value supporting loans in such portfolios The value
of this collateral 15 estirnated by applying changes in house price indices to the oniginal assessed value of the property If average house prices were ten per cent
lower than those estimated at 31 December 2014, the impairment charge would increase by approximately £195 million for the Group and £17 million for the
Bank in respect of UK mortgages and a further £6 multion for the Group in respect of Insh morigages

In addibion, a collectve urimpaired provision 1s made for l0an losses that have been incumed but have not been separately identified at the balance sheet date
This prowision 1s sensitive to changes in the time between the loss event and the date the impairment 15 specifically identfied This period 1s known as the loss
emergence penod In the commercial busingss, an increase of one month 1n the loss emergence penod 1n respect of the loan portfolio assessed for collective
unimpaired provisions would result in an increase in the collective unimpatred provision of approxamately £53 milhen for the Group and £35 mullion for the Bank
(at 31 December 2013, a one month increase In the loss emergence penod would have increased the collective unimpaed provision by an estumated
£105 million for the Group and £48 million for the Bank)

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2014, the Group carned deferred tax assets on its balance sheet of £4,190 mullion (2013 £5,132 milign) and deferred tax habilities of
£54 million (2013 £3 mulkon), the Bank carned deferred tax assets of £3,596 million (2013 £4,165 milhon} and deferred tax habiities of £mi (2013 £nil)
This presentation takes into account the abality of the Group and the Bank to net deferred tax assets and habilities only where these is a legally enforceable nght
of offset Note 39 presents deferred tax assets and habiities by type The largest category of deferred tax assets relates 1o tax losses camed forward

The recoverability of the deferred 1ax assets in respect of carry forward losses 1s based on an assessment of future levels of taxable profit expected to anse that
can be offset against these losses The Group's and the Bank's expectations as 1o the level of future taxable profits take into acceunt long-term financial and
strategic plans, and anticipated future tax adjusting items

In making this assessment account Is taken of business plans, the five year board approved operating plan and the following future nsk factors

- The expected future economic outlook as set out in the Group Chief Executive's Review and Market Overview contained in the Annual Repaort of Lioyds
Banking Group,

- The retail banking business disposal as required by the European Commussion, and

- Future regulatory change

Total deferred tax assets include £5,759 mitlion (2013 £6,338 million} for the Group and £3,302 milhon (2013 £3,258 mullion) for the Bank in respect of
trading losses camed forward The tax losses have ansen in individual legal entities and will be used as future taxable profits anse i those legal entities, though
substantially all of the unused tax losses for which a deferred tax asset has been recogmised anise in Bank of Scotland pic and Eloyds Bank plc

The deferred tax asset 15 expected to be utilsed over different tme peniods in each of the entities in which the lesses anise  Under current UK tax aw there s no
exprry date for unused tax (osses The losses are still expected to be fully utihsed by 2019

In December 2014 Chancellor of the Excheguer announced proposals to restrict to 50 per cent the amount of banks' profits that can be offset by carmed forward
tax losses for the purpases of calculating corporation tax llabihties These proposals are expected to be included in the Finance Bill 2015 and, if passed into law,
will take effect in respect of profits ansing after 1 Apnl 2015 The Group estimates that these propesals will result In no change 10 the level of deferred tax
recogrition although it will increase the period over which it expects to fully utilise its tax losses from 2019 to 2025

As disclosed tn note 39, deferred tax assets totaling £821 mulion {2013 £803 mutlion) for the Group and £78 milhon (2013 £2 mllion} for the Bank have
not been recogrised 1n respect of certain capital losses carned forward, trading losses carned forward and unrelieved foreign tax credits as there are no predicted
future capital or taxable profits agamnst which these losses can be recognised

Retirement benefit obhigations

The net asset recognised in the Group's balance sheet at 31 December 2014 1n respect of retirement benefit obligations was £694 million (compnsing an asset
of £1,147 miltion and a liability of £453 milhon) (2013 a net hatulity of £998 million compnsing an asset of £98 million and a hability of £1,096 million),
related to post-retirement defined benefit schemes The net asset recogrised in the Bank's balance sheet at 31 December 2014 n respect of the retrement
benefit obligations was £161 mullion {2013 2 net iabilsty of £413 mullion), compnsing an asset of £351 million (2013 £n1) and a hability of £190 mullion
{2013 £413 million) related 1o post-retirement defined benefit schemes The defined benefit pension schemes’ net accounting surplus for the Group (otalled
£890 mulion (2013 a deficit of £787 milion), for the Bank there was a net accounting surplus of £268 milhion {2013 a deficit of £281 mullion), representing
the difference between the schemes’ liabihities and the fair value of the related assets at the balance sheet date

The value of the defined benefit pension schemes' liabilibes requires management to make a number of assumptions The key areas of estimation uncertainty
are the discount rate apphied to future cash flows and the expected Iifetsme of the schemes’ members The accounting surplus or deficit 1s sensitive to changes
in the discount rate, which 1s affected by market conditions and therefore potentially subject to significant vanation The cost of the benefits payable by the
schemes will also depend upon the longavity of the members Assumptions are made regarding the expected ifetime of scheme members based upon recent
expenence and extrapolate the improving trend, however given the rate of advance in medical science and increasing levels of ocbesity, 1t 15 uncertain whether
they will ultimately reflect actual expereence

The effect on the net accounting surplus or deficit and on the pension charge in the Group's income statement of changes to the principal actuaria!l assumptions
are set out In note 38
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3 Cntical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Valuation of assets and habihities ansing from hife insurance business

At 31 December 2014, the Group recogrised a value of in force business asset of £4,446 mullion (2013 £4,874 million) and an acquired value of in-force
business asset of £418 mullion (2013 £461 mithon) The value of in-force business asset represents the present value of future profits expected to anse from
the portfolio of in-force Ife insurance and participatung mvestment contracts The acquired value of in-force business asset represents the contractual nghts to
benefits from providing investment management services In relation to non-participating mvestment contracts acquired i business combinations and portfolio
transfers  The methodology used to value these assets Is set out in note 24 The valuation or recoverability of these assets requires assumptions 1o be made
about future economic and operating conditions which are inherently uncertain and changes could significantly affect the value attnibuted to these assets The
key assumptions that have been made in determining the carrying value of the vaiue of in-force business assets at 31 December 2014 are set out In note 24

At 31 December 2014, the Group camed habilibes ansing from insurance contracts and paricipating (mvestment contracts of £86.941 million {2013
£82,801 mill:on) The methodology used to value these hiabilities is described in note 33 Elements of the hability valuations require assumptions to be made
about future investment returns, future mortality rates and future policyhelder behaviour and are subject to significant management judgement and estimation
uncertainty The key assumptions that have been made in determining the carrying value of these liabilsties are set out 1n note 33

The effect on the Group's profit before tax and shareholders’” egusty of changes in key assumptions used in determining the life insurance assets and habilities 1S
set out In note 34

Payment protection insurance and other regufatory provisions

At 31 December 2014, the Group carried provisions of £3,378 million {2013 £3,815 million) against the cost of making redress payments to cuslomers and
the related administration costs in connection with histoncal regulatory breaches, prencipally the misselling of payment protection insurance Determining the
amount of the provisiens, which represent management's best estimate of the cost of settling these 1ssues, requires the exercise of significant judgement It will
often be necessary to form a view on matters which are inherently uncertain, such as the number of future complatnts, the extent to which they will be upheld
and the average cost of redress Consequently the continued approprateness of the underlying assumptions 15 reviewed on a regular basis against actual
expenience and other relevant evidence and adjustments made to the provisions where appropnate

Note 40 contains more detail on the nature of the assumptions that have been made and key sensitvities

Farr value of financial instruments

In accordance with IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement, the Group and the Bank categonse financial instruments carmed on the balance sheet at fair value using
a three level hierarchy Financial instruments categonsed as level 1 are valued using quoted market pnces and therefore there 1s mimimal judgement apphed in
determining fair value However, the fair value of financial instruments categonsed as level 2 and, in particular, level 3 s determined using valuation techniques
including discounted cash flow analysis and valuation models These vatuation techmiques involve management judgement and estimates, the extent of which
depends on the complexity of the instrument and the availability of market observable information

Valuation technigues for level 2 financial instruments use inputs that are largely based on observable market data Leved 3 financial instruments are those where
at least one input which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation 1s not based on chservable market data Determining the appropnate
assumptions to be used for level 3 financial instruments requires significant management judgement

At 21 December 2014, the Group classified £7,499 miflon of financial assets, including £2,125 million of denvatives, and £1,512 million of financial
habiliies, including £1,456 milhion of denvatives, as level 3 (the Bank, £1,705 mullion, incluging £1,604 million of denvatives, and £1,386 million, ncluding
£1,356 million of denvatives, respectively) Further details of the tevel 3 financial instruments and the sensitmty of their valuation including the effect of applying
reasonably possible alternative assumptions in determining thesr fair value are set out in note 50

4 Segmental analysis
The Lloyds Bank Group provides a wide range of banking and financial services in the UK and in certain locations overseas

The Group Executive Commuttee of the Lloyds Banking Group has been determined to be the chief operating decision maker for the Group The Group's operating
segments reflect its orgamisatonal and managernent structures The Group Executive Committes reviews the Group's internal reporting based around lhese
segments in order to assess performance and allocate respurces GEC considers interest income and expense on a net basis and conseguently the total interest
income and expense for all reportable segments 1s presented net The segments are differentiated by the type of products provided, by whether the customers
are indwiduals or corporate entities

Following the transfer of HBOS to the Group on 1 January 2010, all of the trading actiities of the Lioyds Banking Group are camed out within the Group and,
as a result, the chief operating decision maker reviews the Group's performance by considenng that of the Lioyds Banking Group The segmental results and
comparatives are presented on an underlying basis, the basis reviewed by the chief operating decision maker

The segmental results and comparatives are presented on an underlying basis, the basis reviewed by the chief operating decision maker The effects of asset
sales, volatile items, hability management, simphficabion costs, TSB build and dual running costs, regulatory provisions, certain past service pension credits or
charges, the amortisation of purchased intangible assets and the unwind of acquisition-related fair value adjustments are excluded in arnving at underlying profit

Following a reorgamisation effective from 1 January 2014, the Group's activities are now organised into five financial reporting segments Retail, Commercial
Banking, Consumer Finance, Insurance and TSB The most significant changes to the segmental structure are

- The Wealth business has been integrated into the Retail division,

- The Consumer Finance division now includes credit cards, asset finance and the European online deposits businesses, the Retall and Commercial Banking
credit cards businesses have transferred into Consumer Finance,

- TSB operates as a standalcne listed entity following the 1PQ,

— The remaining portfolio of assets which are outside of the Group's nisk appetite 1s managed within Other

In addition certain regulatory costs, such as UK bank levy and charges in relation to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme, which were previously
reported in Ceniral iems, are now attnbuted to the operating divisions Comparative figures have been restated for all of these changes The Group's underlying
prefit and statutery fesults are unchanged as a result of these restatements
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4 Segmental analysis (continued}

Retad offers a broad range of financial service products, including current accounts, savings, personal loans and mortgages, to UK retail customers, incorporating
wealth and small business customers 1t 1s also a distnibutor of insurance, protection and credit cards and a range of long-term savings and investment products

Commercial Banking 1s chient led, focusing on SME, Mid Markets, Global Corporates and Financia! institition chents prowding products across Lending, Global
Transaction Banking, Financial Markets and Debt Capital Markets and private equity financing through Lioyds Development Capital

Consumer Finance comprses the Group’s consumer and corporate Credit Card businesses, along with the Black Horse motor financing and Lex Autolease car
leasing businesses in Asset Finance The Group's Eurepean deposits and Dutch retail morigage businesses are managed within Asset Finance

insurance I1s a core part of Lloyds Banking Group and 15 focused on four key markets Corporate Pensions, Protection, Retirement and Home Insurance, to enable
customers to protect themselves today and prepare for a secure financial future

TSB 1s a separately hsted multi-channel retall banking business with branches in England, Wales and Scottand, 1t has a digital distnbution platform and four
telephony contact centres |t serves retail and small business customers, providing a fult range of retail banking products

Other includes certain assets previously reported as outside of the Group's nsk appetite and the results and gains on sale relating to businesses disposed in 2013
and 2014 Other also includes income and expenditure not recharged to divisions, including the costs of certain central and head office functions and the costs
of managing the Group's technology platforms, branch and head office property estate, operations (including payments, banking operations and collections} and
sourcing, the costs of which are predominantly rechasged to the other divisions 1t alse reflects other items not recharged 1o the divisions

Inter-segment services are generally recharged at cost, with the exception of the internal comnission arrangements between the UK branch and other distiibution
networks and the insurance product manufactunng businesses within the Group, where a profit margin s also charged Inter-segment lending and deposits are
generally entered into at market rates, except that non-interest beanng balances are pnced at a rate that reflects the external yield that could be earmed on
such funds

For the majonty of those denvative contracts entered into by business units for nsk management puiposes the business unit recognises the net interest income
or expense on an accrual accounting basis and transfers the remainder of the movement m the fair value of the derivative to the central group segment where
the resulting accounting volatility 1s managed whese possible through the establishment of hedge accounting relationships  Any change in fair value of the
hedged instrument atinbutable to the hedged nsk 1s also recorded within the central group segment This allocation of the fair value of the derivative and change
in fair value of the hedged instrument atinbutable to the hedged nsk avoids accounting asyrmmetry in segmental results and leads to accounting volatiity, which
1s managed centralty and reported within Other

Commercial Consumer Reported
Retall Banking Finance Insurance TSB Other basis total
Year ended 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 7,079 2,480 1,290 (131 786 257 11,761
Other income {net of insurance claims) 1,212 1,956 1,364 1,725 140 210 6,607
Total underlying income, net of insurance claims 8,291 4,436 2,654 1,594 926 467 18,368
Total costs - 4,464)  (2,147)  (1,429) 6720 370) 330)  (9,412)
imparment (599) (83) (215} - (98) (205)  (1,200)
Underlying profit (loss) 3,228 2,206 1,010 922 458 68} 7,756
External income 9,034 3,800 2,803 1,206 912 613 18,368
Inter-segment income (743) 636 (149) 388 14 (146) -
Segment income B,291 4,436 2,654 1,594 Q26 467 18,368
Segment external assets 317,246 241,754 25,646 150,615 27,006 92,629 854,856
Segment customer deposits 285,539 119,882 14,955 ~ 24,625 2,066 447,067
Segment external liabilities © 205880 231,400 18,581 144,921 25,085 89,126 804,993
Other segment items reflected 1n income statement above
Deprecration and amortisation I 353 153 Tyr3 127 7 172 1.5§5
Decrease in value of in-force business - - - {428) - - (428)
Defined benefit scheme charges 121 37 9 g 7 161 344
Other segment items
Additions to fixed assets 419 242 1,633 449 44 655 3,442
Investments in joint ventures and associates at end of year 12 - - - - 62 74
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4 Segmental analysis (continued)

Commercial Cansumer Underlying
Retanl Banking Finance Insurance TSB Other basis total
Year ended 31 December 2013! £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 6,500 2,113 1,333 (107) 6l5 431 10,885
Other income {net of msurance claims) T1,435° 2,259 1,359 1,864 163 840 7,920
Total underlying income, net of insurance claims 7,935 4,372 2,692 1,757 778 1,271 18,805
Total costs i o ) (4,160) ~ (2.084)  (1,384)  (669) (563} {775  (9.635)
Impament (760) (398) (343) - (109} (1,394) (3,004)
Underlying profit {loss) 3,015 1,860 965 1,088 106 (898) 6,166
External income 8,526 2,959 2772 2,439 863 1,246 18,805
Inter-segment ncome C 591 1413 (80)  (682)  (85) 25 .
Segment mcome 7,935 4,372 2,692 1,757 778 1,271 18,805
Segment external assets? 317,146 227,771 25025 155,378 24,084 92,976 842,380
Segment customer deposits? 283,189 111,654 18733 - 23,100 2791 439467
Segment external liabilities? T 300,412 206,729 21,868 149,445 23,289 101,301 803.044
Other segment tems reflected in income statement above
Depreciation and amortisatign ) 259 136 T7sa f36 i 33 187 1,645
(Decrease) increase in value of in-force business - - N A
Defined benefit Z;c_heme charges - 109 T 4 &5 2 _15_ T3 399
Other segment ems o
Additions to fixed assets 446 160 1,320 373 19 664 2,982
" nvestments 1n Jam_t v;rItures and_a_ss_ocm{es’a.t éngafy?aar T3 T T o - 77T 1

'Restated to reflect changes in Divisional structure - see page 32

?See note 1
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4 Segmental analysis (continued)

Reconciliation of underlying basis to statutory results

Removal of
impact of
ather entities Volatihty
Lloyds in the Lloyds  Acquisition ansing n
Bank Group Banking  related ang insurance Insurance  Regulatory Fanr vatue Reported
statutory Group®  other items?  businesses Bross up provisions® unwind basls
Year ended 31 December 2014 £m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 10,214 446 {7} - 482 - 626 11,761
Other iIncome, net of insutance claims 6,455 {716) 1,141 228 614) - 113 6,607
Total underlying income, net of insurance
claims 16,669 {270} 1,134 228 (132) - 739 18,368
Operating expenses . 13,628 (257}  1,175_ - 132 3125 41 (3.412)
Impairment (752) - (197} - - - (251) {1,200
Underlying profit {loss) 2,289 (527) 2.112 228 - 3,125 529 7,756

1This reflects the inclusion in the results reviewed by the chief operating decision maker of the Bank s feflow subsidiary undertakings and its parent undertaking Lloyds Banking Group plc

2Comprises the effects of asset sales (gam of £138 million) volatile tems {gain of £286 million), liab:ity management (loss of £1,386 millign), Simplification costs related to severance,
IT and business costs of implementation {£966 millwn}, TSB build and dual wamng costs (£558 million}, the past service pension credit of £710 million {which sepresents the
curtailment credit of £843 miliion following the Group's decision to reduce the cap on pensionable pay parily offset by the cost of ather changes to the pay, benefits and reward offered

to employees) and the amortisation of purchased intangibles (336 mullton)

3Compnses the payment protechion snsurance prowision (E2 200 million and other regulatory provisions (E925 mullion)

Removal of
Impact of
other entities Volatlity
Lloyds n the Lloyds  Acquisiion ansing In Legal and

Bank Group Banking  related and nsurance Insurance regulatory Fair value Reported

statutory Group®  other items?  businesses Bross up provisions? unwind basis

Year ended 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Net interest income 6,990 348 (14} - 2,930 - 631 10,885
Other iIncome, net of insurance claims 11,720 (580) 460 (668) (3.074) - 62 7.920
Total undertying income, net of insurance claims 18,710 {232) ] 446 (668) (144) - 693 18,805
Operating expenses (15,075) {247} 2,041 - 144 3 455 47 {9.635)
Impaiment (2,741} - 249 - - - (512) {3.004)
Underlying profit (loss} 894 (479) 2,736 (668} - 3,455 228 6,166

IThig reflects the inclusion in the results reviewed by the chief operating dec:sion maker of the Bank s fellew subsidiery undertakings and its parent undertaking  Lloyds Banlkng Group plc

Compnises the effects of asset sales (gan of £100 million), volatile iterns (loss of £678 millien) liability management (loss of £142 millicn) Simplification costs related to severance,
IT and business costs of implementation (£830 mihon) TSB costs (EE87 mullon), the amortisation of purchased intangbles (£395 million} and the past service pensions charge

(£104 million, see note 11)

3Comprises the payment protection insurance provision (£3,050 million) and other regulatory provisions (£405 rmiliion)

Following the continuing reduction i the Group's non-UK activities, an analysis between UK and non-UK actvities 1$ no longer provided
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5 Net interest income

Welghted average effective
interest rate
2014 2013 2014 2013
% % £m £m
Interest and similar iIncome
- Lo_ans énﬁ aa;tances to custometsf I T 3 4-5_-— T 4—03_ i _1_8566“_— _26,1é2
JLE;n-s and advances' to-b_anks I S T osz OTS_ T Taes 457
Debt securities held as loans and recewvables YY) 152 42 T 32
Interest recewvable on Joans and receivables 307 342 18,454 20,621
Available-for-sale financial assets 190 192 957 746
Totat interest and similar ncome 298 333 19,411 21,367
Interest and similar expense
Dep;o;t"s‘f-rc; banks, e;ccludlng Ilabllmés un—at:.r sale and repurchase agreements 074 o _0 &5 (EG) (129)
Customer deposits, excluding I|ab1||t|$‘l;n(1“é;sagand repurchase agreement—s 119 187 o ES_I_JEG) o (6,322)
Debt secunties in issue ' 058 187 (509} (2,293)
Subordinated liabilities - ’ 920 683 (2,879 (2,463)
[.Eblhtles under szﬂéa?d re}nhc?)}sé agieements T2 %1 121 (55) (79)
Interest payable on habilities hetd at amortised cost 154 215 (8,595) {11,286)
other T T B T 323 1208 N v(-ﬁ‘éi)rr - 23,07971)
Total interest and similar expense 159 262 (9,197) {14,377
Net interest tncome 10,214 6,990

ISee note 1

Included within interest and stmilar income 1s £407 mullion (2013 £301 million) in respect of impaired financial assets Net interest income also includes a
credit of £1,165 milion {2013 credit of £566 miliion) transferred from the cash flow hedging reserve (see note 44)

6 Net fee and commission income

2014 2013
£m fm

Fee and commussion income
Curent accounts T o o 918 973
Credit and debit card fees T 1,050 984
Other o 1,608 2,162
Totat fee and cormmission income 3,666 4,119
Fee and cormmission expense (1,402) (1,383}
Net fee and commission income 2,264 2,736

Fees and commussions which are an integral part of the effective interest rate form part of net interest income shown in note 5 Fees and commussions relating
1o Instruments that are held at fair value through profit or loss are included within net trading income shown in note 7
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7 Net trading income

Lloyds Bank pic

2014 2013
£Em £m
Fore|gn exchange franslation {losses) gans (153) 135
Galns on forelgh—e;(ch—;nge traalr;égnsactlo;s. T T T 344 o ES_
Total foreign exchange 181 377
Investment property gains (note 22} 513 156
Secunties and other gains {see below) 8,804 16,506
Net trading ncome 9,508 17,039
Securities and other gains comprise net gains ansing on assets and hatlities held at fair vatue through profit or loss and for trading as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Net income {expense) ansing on assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities, lcans and advances 4,817 70
Equity shares 3,815 15,684
Total net Income ansing on assets held at fan value through profit or loss 8,632 15 754
N‘e;?xpe_ns;;n—mi O-I'I.Hablhtles held at lau value lhroug_r'L—Er@:ﬁromss" debt secunties i |s;(; i (TI?) S (92)
Total net gains ansing on assets and liabihties held at fair value through profit or loss 8,557 15,662
Net gains on financial instruments held for trading - i 247 244
Secunities and other gains 8,804 16,506
8 Insurance premium income
2014 2013
£m £m
Lfe insurance
Gross premiums 6,397 7,382
Ceded reinsurance premiums {142) (182}
Net earned premiums 6,255 7,200
Non-tife insurance
Gross written premiums i i ) 7 869 972
Ceded reinsurance premiums a4 (18)
Net wnnen premiums i 855 954
Change In provision for unearned premiums (note 33(2)) o T -_18 4_9
Change 1n prowvision f for ceded unearned premums (note 33(2)) - 7 3) (6)
Net earned premiems T T 870 a 997
Total net earned premiums 7,125 8,197
Lide (nsurance gross premiums can be further analysed as foliows
2014 2013
£m £m
Life and pensions 6,070 6,823
Annuities 327 549
Other B T 10
Gross premiums 6,397 7.382
Non-life insurance gross written premiums can be further analysed as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Credit protection 93 141
Home 773 828
Health 3 3
Gross written premiums 869 972
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9 Other operating income

2014 2013

£m £m
Qperating lease rental income 1,126 1,120
Rental Income from mvestment p{o;raés_(r;i:e 52) T T 269 ) 308
Gains less losses onE]sT..séu of avalable-for-sale financial assets {note 44) T i ’ 131 629
Movement in value of in-force bustness (note 24) T o ) @28 416
L|ab|[ty management T T T T T o 24) B (1:2;
Share of result;ofjoatventuresandassoi:laté; S - o 43—54 777777;13
Other ncome i I T __E!'_;)——— ‘881
Total other eperating income 1,051 3,255

Liability management
Losses of £24 milfion (2013 losses of £142 million) arose on transactions undertaken as part of the Group's management of wholesale funding and capital

Other
On 31 March 2014 the Group completed the sale of Scottish Widows Investment Parinership, realising a gain of £128 mithon, offset by losses on other asset
disposals

Dunng 2013 the Group completed a number of disposals of assets and businesses, including

- The sale, in three franches, of the Group’s shareholding in St James's Place plc, generating a total profit of £540 mullion

~ On 31 May 2013, the Group sold a portfolio of US RMBS (residential mortgage backed secunities} for a cash consideratton of £3 3 hillion, realising a profit
of £538 millton

- On 30 June 2013 the Group disposed of its Spanish retait banking operations, including Lloyds Bank International $ A U and Lloyds Investment Espafa SGIIC
S A U, to Banco Sabadell, S A realising a loss of £256 million

— 0On 31 December 2013, the Group completed the sate of its Australian operations (which principalty compnse Capital Finance Australia Limited, a provider
of motor and equipment asset finance, and BOS International (Australia) Limited, a corporate lending business} generating a profit on sale of £49 million

- 0On 21 August 2013 the Group announced the sate of its German Ife insurance business, Heidelberger Lebensversicherung AG, which completed in the fiest
quarter of 2014, an impairment of £382 million was recognised n the year ended 31 December 2013

10 Insurance claims

Insurance claims comprise

2014 203
£m £m
Life insurance and participating investment contracts
Claims and surenders R o
Gross T T I {7,506) (8,495)
Relns;urers';hare_ T T R o T 69| 108
S o (7,437) (8,387)
Change v insurance and participating investment contracts {note 33(1)
Change In gross liabiities (4,392) {5,184)
Change In assets arising from reinsurance contiacts held 8 (48)
(4,384) (5,232)
Change in non-participating investment contracts
Change in gross labilities (1,448) {5,409
Change In assets ans_lng f;om reinsurance contracts held | _35 -
o ) (1,416} (5,409)
Change in unallocated sur[)lus (note 36) 74 (123)
Total hie insurance and participating investment centracts (13,163} (19,151)
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2014 2013
£m £m
Non-hfe insurance

Clalms-aind-clalms‘p:;d-_' T T T T o
Goss R h T T i o0| (388)
Remsurers’ share T ) I Y
I - o T T T T (400) o (388)
Change 1n habiliies (note 36(2)) o ‘ T T S o
Gross 70 33
Reinsurers' share - (1)
70 32
Tota!l non-life insurance (330) (356}
Total insurance claims expense (13,493) (19,507}

Life msurance and participating investment contracts gross claims can also be analysed as follows
Deaths (549) (611}
Matunties (1,656) (2,240}
Surrenders (4,102) (4,486}
Annuities (884) (860}
Other {315) (295)
Total life insurance gross claims {7,506} (8,492)

A non-hife insurance claims development table 1s inclugded in note 33
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11 Operating expenses

2014 2013
£m Em
Staff costs
" Salanes o o o o " 3178 3,331
};erformance-based-czx%?)e_ns;ﬂon - T B T T I 7390 T 4_73
Social secunty costs 398 385
Pensions and other post-retirement benefit schemes (note 38)
Past servtce (credit) charge (822) 104
Other 596 654
(226} 758
Restructunng costs 264 111
Other staff costs T T ) 7a1| | 783
o o o 4,745 5,841
Premises and equr%n{ T T T h T )
Rent and rates o 7 i o 424 467
Hlia of equipment ) o T i T 12 15
Ré[;a[rs and maintenance ) T i 221 | 178
Other . T T ST - 234 310
S - o T go1 970
Other ex-penses ) T - o -
ConFnTsm—canon;ar;d—da?a prc;céssmg o 7 S T T 1,118 1,169
Adverusing and promoton 77 T T Y  Tass | Tais
Professional fees - - T aso 424
Other 998 963
2,932 2,869
Depreciahon and amo;ilsalson
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (note 26) 1,391 1,374
Amortisatton of acquired value of in-force non-participating investment contracts {note 24) 43 54
;\r}l:)‘rtlsahon of oth-(-:_r_lntz;lélble assets (note 25) T T 0 501 ’ 51_2
T s T - 1,935 1,940
Total operating expenses, excluding payment protection insurance provision 10,503 11,620
Eééulato—ry prowsmn; ) T o N T ) o ) i
" Payment protection Insurance provision (note 40) ) T ) o 2,200 3,080
Bme; regulatory provisions (Eote 46) o T o S i 9‘25 I 405
N T o a o o 3125  3.455
Total operating expenses 13,628 15,075

10n 11 March 2014 the Group annpunced a change to its defined benefit pension sthemes, revising the existing cap on the increases in pensicnable pay used in calculating the
pension benefit from 2 per cent to nil with effect from 2 April 2014 The effect of this change was to reduce the Groups relirement bengfit abligations recognised on the balance
sheet by £843 million with a corresponding curtailment gain recognised in the income statement This has been partly offset by a charge of £21 mullion following changes 1o pension

arrangements for staff within the TSB business

In 2013 the Group agreed certain changes to early retirement and commutation factors in twe of s prncipal defined benefit pension schemes resulting in a curtallment cost of
£104 millien recogrsed in the Group s iIncome statement in the yea: ended 31 December 2013

The average number of persons on a headcount basis employed by the Group dunng the year was as follows

2014 2013
UK 94,241 96,001
Overseas 847 1,868
Tota! 95,088 97.869
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11 Operating expenses (continued}

Fees payable to the Bank's auditors
Dunng the year the auditors earned the following fees

2014 2013
£m £m

Fees payable for the audit of the Bank's current year annual report 28 25

Fees payable for other services ) T

Audit of the Bank's subsidianes pursuant io legislaticn T 119 123

Cther services supplied pursuant to legistation —l 6 27

Other services — audit-relaied fees i 03 09

Taxauon‘t-:o‘rn‘plr-an-c_e s;vEes_ T T T o ) _—0_1 T 02

All olherﬁ:&lan édvns&ry ser;m;esi N T T - T I _1_
S_eTv;cgs relating to cmpo;;ie finance transa;:tluns ) T i o T _
All other ser\_nc—a T T i o S T h h ___— T 0—4_
Total fees payable to the Bank's auditors 16 7 191

Ourning the year the auditors also earmed fees payable by entities outside the consolidated Lloyds Bank Group in respect of the following

2014 2013
£m £m
Audits of the Group pension schemes 03 03
Audits of urH)nsolldated Ope_n aie_d !nv;str—nem Companies m:;naged t;y-{hne E;Toﬂp T ‘0-4—— 05
Reviews of the financia! position of corporate and other borrowers 01 11
;{cq_wsmon due Jng;r;ce and other work performed in respécT b};otennal venture éapfal investments - o1
12 Impairment
2014 2013
£m £m
Impairment logses on keans and receivables
Loans and advances to cuétum;.r; T 735 2,725
Debt secunties classified as loans and recewvables i o 2 1
Total impairment losses on toans and recenvables {note 20) o 737 2,726
Impa1rmeﬁt of avallable-for-sale'fmancna! assets i - "5 A175
Other c}ealtjsk p;ov;slons S o T T T o 10 o -
Tota! impairment charged to the income statement 752 2,741
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13 Taxation

a Analysis of tax charge for the year

2014 2013
£m £m
UK corporation tax
Current tax on profit for the year {260) (280)
Adjusl-ments: |r_1 respect of pnor years i i i 125 (229)
o o ) - (135) (509)
Foreign tax ’ ’ B ’
Current tax on profit for the year 7 T o (39) (59)
Adjustments in respect of prior years ) 3 B 25
o (36) (34)
Current tax charge _ ~ (_171) {543)
Deferred tax (note 39) ST - o ) T
Ongnation and reversal of temporary differences 7 143) (428)
ngmal(_corpc;ratlon tax raIt;uj _related |mp-acts_ T - (26} i (602)
Raj_ustments m"n;,spect c;f p)?o?yeérs T I 6782} _713-
(251} (717}
Tax charge (422) (1,260}
The charge for tax on the profit for 2014 1s based on a UK corporation tax rate of 21 5 per cent {2013 23 25 per cent)
The above income tax charge 1s made up as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Tax charge attnbutable 1o policyholders (18} (328)
Shareholder tax charge T T Twom T w93
Tax charge (422) (1 260)
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13 Taxation (continued)

b Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

A reconcihation of the charge that would result from applying the standard UK corporation tax rate to the profit before tax to the actual tax charge for the year 1s
gven below

2014 2013
£m £m
Profit before tax 2,289 894
Tax charge thereon at UK corporation tax rate of 21 5 per cent (2013 23 25 per cent) (492) (208)
Factors affecing (charge) credit
UK corporation tax rate change and related impacts {26} (602)
Disallowed items {149) (207)
Non-taxable items 151 236
Overseas tax rate differences (24) (116)
Gains exempted or covered by capital losses T - lél- T 57
Policyholder tax (14) (251)
Defersed tax on -Iosses no lenger recognised following sa-Ie of Austrahan operations T - B (34é)
Deferred tax on Austrahan tax losses not previously récoéﬁlsé& i - 60
Adjustments In r&;pec-t E)f previous years - N (54) 1 0s
Effect of profit in jaint ventures and associates ) 7- 1]
Other wems T e
Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities (422) (1,260)

The Finance Act 2013 (the Act) was substantively enacted on 2 July 2013 The Act further reduced the main rate of corporation tax 1o 21 per cent with effect
from 1 Apnl 2014 and 20 per cent with effect from 1 Apny 2015
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14 Trading and other financizl assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Trading assets 48,504 37,480 59,580 35,580
bl_her financial assets;t-fau value through';;rgﬂt T - T T
of loss 104,016 105,727 6,741 4,587
Total 152,520 143,207 66,321 40,167
These assets are comprised as follows
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Other Other financial Other Other financial
financial assets at financial assets at
assets at fair fair value assets at fair fair value
Trading value through Trading through profit Trading value through Trading  through profit
assets  profit or loss assets or loss assets  profit or loss assets or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and advances 10 customers 28,513 - 21,083 27 39,802 - 23,898 6
Loans and advances o banks Ts212 - 8333 - 8o - 5778 -
Debt secunties
Government secunties 7.976 17,497 4,259 16,430 7,931 6,662 4,144 4,520
Other public sector securities - 2,170 14 2,183 - - - -
Bank and buikding society cervficates of deposit 554 - 1,421 - 554 - 32 -
Asset-backed securiies ’
Mortgage-backed secunties 187 847 5 793 187 - 7 -
Other asset-backed secunties T 129 721 171 756 129 R I VTN I
Corporate and other debt secunties 1,49 | | 20,605 1,999 | | 18717 | | 1529 79| | 1408 | | &1
i B ) 10,342 41,840 7,889 38,879 10,330 6,741 5,850 4,581
Equity shares T - 62,154 114 66767 - - 0T ~
Treasury bills and other bils 1,437 2 sl 54 1,437 - B4 -
Total 48,504 104,016 37,480 105,727 59,580 6,741 35,580 4,587

At 31 December 2014 £98,906 million (2013 £107,976 milion) of trading and other financial assets at far value through profit or loss of the Group and
£15,851 milion {2013 £10,000 milhon} of the Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent the following assets designated into that category

(1 financial assets backing insurance contracts and investment contracts of £94,857 milhon (2013 £101,211 rmihon) which are so designated because the
related liabilities either have cash flows that are contractually based on the performance of the assets or are contracts whose measurement takes account
of current market conditions and where significant measurement inconsistencies would otherwise anse Included within these assets are investments in
unconsoltdated structured entities of £27,590 milhon (2013 £24,452 mullion} see note 19,

(1} loans and advances to customers of £27 rmilhon at 31 December 2013 which were econgmecatly hedged by interest rate denvatives which werg not in
hedge accounting relaticnships and where significant measurement inconsistencies would otherwise have ansen If the related denvatives had not been

treated as trading hatwlsties and the lcans and advances had not been camed at amortised cost, and

() pnvate equity investments of £2,350 million (2013 £2,632 million) that are managed and evaluated, on a faw value basis in accordance with
a documented nisk management or investment strategy and reported to key management personnel on that basis

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 December 2013 of the loans and advances to banks and customers designated at fair value through profit or loss at
that date was £27 million, the Group did not hold any credit derivatives or other instruments (n mittgatron of this nsk There was no significant movement in the
fair value of these loans atinbutable to changes in credit nsk which was determined by reference to the publicly available credit ratings of the instruments

involved

For amounts included above which are subject to repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements see note 53
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15 Denivative financial instruments
The Group holds denvatives as part of the following strategies

— Customer dnven, where denvatives are held as part of the provision of nsk management products to Group cusiomers,

~ To manage and hedge the Group's interest rate and foreign exchange nsk ansing from normal banking bustness The hedge accounting strategy adopted by
the Group 1s to ubhse a comtunation of fair value and cash flow hedge approaches as described in note 53, and

— Denivatives held in policyholders funds as permitted by the investment strategies of those funds

Denvatives are classified as trading except those destgnated as effective hedging instruments which meet the criteria under IAS 39 Denvatives are held at farr
value on the Group's balance sheet A description of the methodology used to determine the fair value of denvative financial instruments and the effect of using
reasonably possible alternative assumptions for those derivatives valued using unobservable mputs 1s set out 1n note 50

The principal denvatives used by the Group are as follows

- Interest rate related contracts include interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and options An interest rate swap Is an agreement between two parties {o
exchange fixed and floating interest payments, based wpon nterest rates defined in the contract, without the exchange of the underlying principal
amounts Forward rate agreements are contracts for the payment of the difference between a specified rate of interest and a reference rate, applied to a notional
principal amount at a specific date in the future An interest rate option gives the buyer, on payment of a premeumn, the night, but not the obhgation, to fix the
rate of (nterest on a future loan or deposit, for a specified penod and caommencing on a specified future date

- Exchange rate related contracts include forward foreign exchange contracts, currency swaps and options A forward foreign exchange contract 1s an agreement
to buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified future date at an agreed rate Currency swaps generally snvolve the exchange of interest
payment obligations denominated in different currencies, the exchange of pnncipal can be notional or actual A currency option gives the buyer, on payment
of a premium, the nght, but not the obligation, to sell specified amounts of currency at agreed rates of exchange on or before a specified future date

- Credit denvatives, pnncipally credit default swaps, are used by the Group as part of ts trading activity and to manage s own exposure to credit nsk A
credit default swap 15 a swap in which one counterparty receves a premium at pre-set intervals in consideration for guaranteeing to make a speciiic payment
should a negative credit event take place The Group also uses credit default swaps to securifise, in combination with external funding, £611 million
{2013 £828 mullion) of corporate and commercial banking loans

— Equity denwvatives are also used by the Group as part of its equity-based retail product activity to eliminate the Group's exposure 10 fluctuations in vanous
international stock exchange indices Index-linked equity options are puichased which give the Group the nght, but not the obligation, to buy or sell a specified
amount of equibies, o1 basket of equities, in the form of published indices on or before a specified future date
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The fair values and notional amounts of dertvative instruments are set out in the following table

2014 2013
Contrac/ Contract/
netional Falr value Fair value noticnal Fair value Fair value
amount assets liabilities amount assels liabilities
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trading
Exchange_ra—te contracts o - 7 o
Spot, forwards and futures i 36,894 941 801 38,213 699 639
Currency swaps 301,451 4,849 4,706 291,667 3207 | 4,196
Options purchased | ae08s| | 124a| | - 361 | 70| | -
apllcnsi\.\;rEtéB* T 49,784 I 1,4435 - i 33‘:14‘:') - "836
T ) T T aaraie . 7,034 6950 396,386 4686 5671
Interest rate contracts S T i I -
Interest rate swaps S T 3999343]| | 1sesa| [ 16578| [1.802.322 14,789 12,582
Forward rate agreements R P E W C I “Tse| emsni| | w7 | 13
Options purchased 58,600 3,755 - 107,374 3,395 -
Options written 54,031 - 3,725 101,136 - 3,164
Futures 134,117 9 24 141,669 2 12
6,037,310 22,441 20,383 4,233,872 18,203 15,801
Credit derwatives i 18,063 279 1,066 6,507 208 190
Equdy and other contracts 14,842 1,430 1,181 18,780 1,753 1,478
Total denvative assets/l:abilities held for trading 6,507,429 31,184 29,580 4,655,545 24,850 23,140
Hedging B T i o 7 T
Denvatives Jes]gnated as fair value hedges-_ - T T T
Cross currency swaps T 7,281 113 131 | 35,651 83| 612
Interes_t rat_e ;waps (including swap opuBn-s)_ 115,905 o 72,;108 ) ‘92‘8 154,657 2,662 1,111
“Options purchased TTssa| | 7| I 522 wo| [ -
Denvatives designated as cash flow Hedge: I
" Cross curtency swaps TTinzz20| 0 15| | 13| | 1135 12 T4
‘Interest rate swaps 7| sis7as| | 1606| | 2538 ss9690| | 1670 | 3.031
Faures T1st,102 | 7] 7 s {7 eze02 5 -
Total denvative assetsfllal;ﬁles held for bedging T 805,307 4,299 - 3,713 844 347 4,742 o 4,758
Total recognised denvative assetsliabilities 7,312,736 35,483 33,293 5,499,892 29,592 27,898

'See note 1

The pnincipal amount of the contract does not represent the Group's real exposure to credit nsk which 1s imited to the current cost of replacing contracts with a
positive value to the Group should the counterparty default To reduce credit nsk the Group uses a vanety of credit enhancement techrmiques such as netting and
collateralisation, where secunty 1s provided against the exposure Further details are provided in note 53 Credit nisk
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15 Denvative financial instruments (continued)

Hedged cash flows
For designated cash flow hedges the follpwing 1able shows when the Group's hedged cash flows are expected 1o occur and when they will affect income

Q-1 years 1 2 years 2-3 years 3.4 years 4 5years  5-10 years 10 20 years Over 20 years Total
2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Hedged forecast cash flows
expected (o occur o S
Forecast receivable cash flows 250 458 680 845 745 1,928 112 111 5,129
Forecast payable cash flows (130) {136) (53} (58} (57} (346} {459) (104} (1,343)
Hedged forecast cash flows affect
profit or loss
Forecast recenvable cash flows 391 536 769 830 646 1,736 114 107 5,129
Forecast payable cash flows (174) (105) {54) {57 {63) (358) (433) (99) (1,343)
0-1 years 1 2 years 2 3 years 3-4 years 4.5years  5-10vears 10 20 years Qver 20 years Total
203 £m m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Hedged forecast cash flows
expectad to occur
Forecast receivable cash flows 316 724 1,247 1,356 1,418 5,443 3,097 424 14,025
Forecast payahle cash flows 34) {31) 57 (75) {75) (429) (503) (143) (1,347)
Hedged forecast cash flows affect
profit ar loss
Forecast receivable cash flows 537 961 1,275 1,382 1,429 5,143 2,894 404 14,025
Forecast payable cash flows {39) (38) {63} {70} (75} {432) (492) (138) {1,347)

There were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceased in 2014 or 2013 as a vesult of the highly probable cash flows no longer
being expected 1o occur

AL 31 December 2014 £29,935 mulion of total recognised denvative assets of the Group and £27,656 million of total recognised derivative lrabilities of the
Group (2013 £28,104 mulhon of assets and £25,811 millon of habiities) had a contractual residual maturity of greater than one year
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2014 2013
Contract/ Contract/
notronal Fair value Fair value notional Fair value Faur value
amount assets liabititles amount assets lhabilities
The Bank £m £m £m £m £m £Em
Trading
Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures 27,104 885 700 22,913 535 470
Cusrency swaps 316,921 4,972 5,174 279,345 3,129 4,102
Options purchased i 48,976 1.24{ N -1 35,581 7T -
Options wriien 49,613 - 1,440 35916 - 838
) 442,614 7,098 7,314 373,755 4,440 i 5,410
Inte-resiTate contracls B S i
Imerest rate swaps 4,834,436 27,713 25,588 | |2,489,568 18,736 16,636
For\;vard_ r_ate agreements 1,812,978 13 61 2,366,034 fé i 20
Options purchased T 7 | se678 21s| | o | Te72e1 2929 | -
Options written T T T ssas| | |7 sesi| | eazas| | 0 < | 2893
Fuares T Taser| V2l [ e| | ssaw| | 1|7 s
- T "7 6836122 30943 20306 5,083,051 21684 19,554
Credit denvatives T 17981 281 1079 6236 208 125
Equity and other contracts 7,917 809 785 10,515 825 811
Total denivative assets/iabilities held for trading 7,304,614 39,131 318,494 5 473,557 27,157 25,900
Hedging
Dernvatives designated as fair value hedges
C10ss currency swaps 6,406 61 123 23,509 266 475
Interest }aie swaps (including swap options} 119,951 843 2,630 152,177 638 1,933
Optlor;s El]rchased B | 553 17 N 543 T _I-(-J' -
Opnons—wnnen ) - - | - ) 43 S -
Denvat]v&s designated as cash flow hedges o7
Interest rate Swaps "55,396 - ﬁ ’ 69 - - I N -
Futures T 125,806 | al | - -
Total denvative assets/liabilities held for hedging 305,112 1,019 2,826 176,272 914 2,408
Total recognised derivative assetsMliabibties 7,609,726 40,150 41,320 5,649,829 28,071 28,308

'See note 1
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15 Denvative financial instruments (continued)

Hedged cash flows
For designated cash flow hedges the foltowing table shows when the Bank s hedged cash flows are expected to occur and when they will affect income

0-1 years 1 2 years 2 3 years 3-4 years 4-5years 5 10years 10 20 years Over 20 years Total
2014 Em £m Em £m £Em £m £m £m Em
Hedged forecast cash flows
expecied to occur
Forecast recevable cash flows 192 321 476 571 564 1,567 104 12 3,807
Forecast payable cash flows (119) (105) - - - - (67) (82) (373)
Hedged forecast cash flows affect
profit or loss
Forecast receivable cash flows 323 388 529 570 553 1,351 82 11 3,807
Forecast payable cash flows (152} (72) - - - - (68) (81) (373)
0-1 years i 2 years 2-3 vyears 3-4 years 4 5 years 510 years 10-20 years QOver 20 years Total
2013 £m £m £m Em £m £m £Em Em £m

Hedged forecast cash flows
expected to occur

Forecast receivable cash flows - - - - - - - _ -
Forecast payable cash flows - - - - - - - - _

Hedged forecast cash flows atfect
profit or loss

Forecast recervable cash flows - - - - - - - - _
Forecast payable cash flows - - - - - _ - _ -

Therte were no transactions for which cash flow hedge accounting had to be ceased in 2014 or 2013 as a result of the highly probable cash flows no longer
being expected to occur

At 31 December 2014 £36,643 million of total recogmsed dervative assets of the Bank and £35,338 rmullion of total recogntsed derivative habilities of the Bank
{2013 £26,500 million of assets and £26,389 mullion of liabikties} had a contractual ressdual matunty of greater than one year

16 Loans and advances to banks

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m Em £m

Lending to banks 2,902 2,168 2,745 1,271
Money market placements with banks ) T 23,253 23,197 T 1,846 1,824
Total toans and advances to banks before allowance for impairment losses 26,155 25,365 4,591 3,095
Allowance for impawrment losses {note 12} - - - -
Total loans and advances to banks 26,155 25,365 4,591 3,095

At 31 December 2014 £4,969 million (2013 £2,631 million) of loans and advances to banks of the Group and £1,935 mullion (2013 £191 million) of
the Bank had a contractual residual matunity of greater than one year

For amounts inctuded above which are subject to reverse repuichase agreements see note 53
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17 Loans and advances to customers

The Group The Bank
2014 2013! 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Agniculture, forestry and fishing 6,586 6,051 2,790 2,460
Energy and v\fa}ergu'pﬁgt“ T e e T 3,855 T 4?11 L3_,46‘5 S 4,057
Manufactung 6,000 7,650 5275 6261
Construction T 6,425 7,024 4,160 4,420
Transport, distibution and hotels 15112 22,294 10,226 12563
?P;S—tél a—n;j t%co;nmumcauons T - 2,624 2,364 2,184 2,200
Property companies 36,682 44,277 21,891 23,451
Financial, business and other services 44 979 42,478 32,742 25,735
Personal ’
Mortgages i 333,318 335,611 67,834 72,972
Cther ) 23,123 23,230 10,777 10,719
Lease financing ’ 3,013 4,435 215 311
Hire purchase R ¥ 1) 5090 6038 2704
Total loans and advances to customers befere allowance for impairment losses 489,118 504,918 167,598 167,873
Allowance for impairment losses {note 20) (6,414) (11,966) (1,631) (2,299)
Total loans and advances to customers 482,704 492,952 165,967 165,574

1See note 1

At 31 December 2014 £419,193 miion (2013 £421,442 millon} of loans and advances to customers of the Group and £126,653 million
(2013 £124,943 million) of the Bank had a contractual restdual maturity of greater than cne year

For amounts Included above which are subyect to reverse repurchase agreements see note 53

Inciuded in the amounts reported above are collateral balances n the form of cash provided nv respect of reverse repurchase agreements amounting o £rl

(2013 £49 million) for the Group and £mil {2013 £nil) for the Bank

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables, which may be analysed as follows

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Gross investment In finance jeases, receivable
Not later than 1 year © 7 573 557 33 9
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,214 1,736 116 235
—Later than & years - 3,136 4,542 161 - 68—
4,923 6,835 310 312
Unearned future finance income on finance leases 1,837 (2,330 en  Twm
Rentals (eée;vewd n advancev“ i T i o (73) T _m(;O) (8 -
Net investment 1n finance leases 3,013 4,435 215 311
The net investment In finance leases represents amounts recoverable as follows
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Not later than 1 year 339 277 28 9
Later tﬁl;ear and not later than 5 years T T o —763_ o —“1_,15_- 103 234
Later than 5 years o 1,971717‘“' T f‘%-,'O’léﬁﬁ 84 —Gmé—
Net investment in finance leases 3,013 4,435 215 311

Equipment leased to customers under finance leases prmanly relates to structured financing transactions to fund the purchase of aircraft, ships and other large
indwidual value iterms Dunng 2014 and 2013 no contingent rentals in respect of finance leases were recognised In the income statement The allowance for
uncollectable finance lease recewvables included in the allowance for impairment losses is £1 mullion for the Group (2013 £6 million)
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18 Securntisations and covered bonds

Securiisation programmes

Loans and advances to customers and debt secunties classified as loans and receivables include loans secunitised under the Group's SecufIlisation programmes,
the majonty of which have been sold by Group companies to bankruptcy remote structured enisties As the structured entiies are funded by the 1ssue of debt on
terms whereby the majonty of nsks and rewards of the portfolio are retained by the Group company, the structured entiies are consolidated fully and all of these
loans are retained on the Group's bafance sheet, with the related notes in 1ssue included within debt secunties in 1ssue

Covered bond programmes

Cettain loans and advances to customers have been assigned to bankruptcy remote imrted hability partnerships to provide secunty for 1ssues of covered bonds
by the Group The Group retains all of the nsks and rewards associated with these loans and the partnerships are consolidated fully with the loans retained on
the Group's balance sheet, and the related covered bonds (n 1ssue included within debt secuntigs in 1ssue

The Group's principal securitisation and covered bonds programmes, together with the batances of the advances subject to these arrangements and the carrying
value of the notes 1n I1ssue at 31 December, are histed below The noles in 15sue are reperted In note 32

2014 2013
Loans and Loans and
advances advances
securitised Notes in 1ssue securntised Notes in essue
£m £m £m £m
Secuntisation programmes?
UK residential mortgages 50,250 28,392 55,998 36,286
Commercial loans 13,372 12533 10,931 11,259
Credit card receivables 6,762 a278 6314 3,992
Dutch residential mortgages 3.866_ 4,064 B 4,381 4.568
Personal loans 1,318 750 2:7-29" ) 750
PPP/PFI and project finance loans 402 C 99 525 106
75,970 50,057 80,878 56,901
Less held by the Group (38,149} (38,288)
Yotal securitisation programmes {nole 32) 11,508 18,613
Covered bond Erog;amr;esi S T I
Residential mortgage-backed T T A 31,730 59576 36,473
S:Jéml hausmg_loan-backed T T T i ZSZ_G— i ﬁiﬁ T 2,5;36_ l,ﬁ
50,621 33,530 62,112 38,273
Less held by the Group (6,339) (7,606}
Total covered bond programmes (ncte 32) 27,191 30,667
Total securitisation and covered bond programmes 39,099 49,280

Includes secunitisations ubiising a combination of external funding and credit defau!t swaps

Cash deposits of £11,251 mulien {2013 £13,500 million) held by the Group are restncted 1n use to repayment of the debt secunties issued by the stiuctured
entities, the term advances relating to covered bonds and other legal obligations Additionally, the Group had certain contractuzl arrangements to provide hquedity
facilities to some of these stiuctured entities At 31 December 2014 these abligations had not been tnggered and the maximum exposure under these facilities
was £392 million {2013 £402 million)

The Group has a number of covered bond programmes, for which Limited Liability Partnerships have been established to nng-fence asset pools and guarantee
the covered bonds issued by the Group At the reporting date the Group had over-collateralised these programmes as set out in the table above to meet the tesms
of the programmes, 10 secure the rating of the covered bonds and to provide operational flexibdity From ume-to-time, the obligations of the Group te provide
collateral may increase due to the formal requirements of the programmes The Group may also voluntarily contribute collateral to support the ratings of the
covered bonds

The Group recognises the full habilities associated with its securnihisation and covered bond programmes within debt secunties inissue, although the obligations
of the Group are mited to the cashflows generated irom the underlying assets The Group could be required to provide additional support to a number of the
secuntisation programmes to support the credit raungs of the debt secunties issued, in the form of increased cash reserves and the holding of subordinated notes
Further, certain programmes contain contractual obligations that require the Group to repuichase assets should they become credit impaired

The Group has not voluntarly offered to repurchase assets from any of its public secuntisation programmes dunng 2014 (2013 none) Such repurchases are
made in order to ensure that the expected matunty dates of the notes 1ssued from these programmes are met
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19 Structured enbities

The Group's interests in structured entities are both consobdated and unconsolidated Detail of the Group's interests in consolidated structured entities are set
out in note 18 for secuntisations and covered bond vehucles, note 38 for structured entities associated with the Group's pension schemes, and below in part
{A) and (B} Detais of the Group's interests in unconschidated structured entities are included below in part (C)

(A) Asset-backed conduits

In addition to the structured entiies discussed in note 18, which are used for secuntisation and covered bond programmes, the Group sponsors an active
asset-backed conduit, Cancara, which invests in debt secunties and chient receivables The total consolidated exposure of Cancara at 31 December 2014 was
£5,245 millien (2013 £5,081 mulhon}, compnising £4,605 million of loans and advances (2013 £4,781 milion} and £640 million of asset-backed secunities
(2013 £300 million)

All debt secunities and lending assets held by the Group in Cancara are restricted in use, as they are held by the collateral agent for the benefit of the commercial
paper Investors and the liquidity prowiders only The Group provides liquidity facilities to Cancara under terms that are usual and customary for standard lending
activities 1n the normat course of the Group's banking activities The Gioup cou'd be asked to prowide support under the contractual terms of these arrangements
If Cancara expenenced a shortfall in external funding, which may occur 1n the event of market disruption As at 31 December 2014 and 2013 these obligations
had not been tnggered

In addition, the Group sponsors two further asset-backed conduits, which are being run down These asset-backed conduits have no commercial paper 1n 1ssue
and no external iquidity providers

The external assets 1n all of the Group's conduits are consolkdated mn the Group's financial statements

(B} Consolidated collective investment vehicles

The assets and liabihties of the Insurance busmess held 1n consolidated collective investment vehicles, such as Open Ended Investment Compantes (CEICs} and
fimited partnerships, are not directly available for use by the Group However, the Group's investment in the majonity of these collective investment vehicles 1s
readily realisable As at 31 December 2014, the total carrying value of these consolidated collective investment vehicle assets and habilities held by the Group
was £66,070 milhon (2013 £55,934 million)

The Group has no contractual arrangements {such as liquidity facilties) that would require 1t to provide financial or other support to the consolidated collective
investment vehicles, the Group has not prevtously provided such support and has no current intentions 1o provide such support

(C) Unconsolidated collective investment velicles and hmited partnerships

The Group's direct interests In unconsolidated structured entibies compnse investments in collective investment vehicles, such as Open-Ended Investment
Companses, and hmited partnersheps with a total carrying value of £27,255 million at 31 December 2014 (2013 £24,552 millian), included within financial
assels designated at far value through profit and loss (see note 15} These investments include both those entities managed by third parties and those managed
by the Group At 31 December 2014, the total asset value of these unconsohdated structured entities, including the portion in which the Group has no interest,
was £620 bilion {2013 £543 billion}

The Group’s maximum exposure to 0ss 1S equal to the caerying value of the investment However, the Group's investments in these entities are primarnly held
to match policyholder lhabilites in the [nsurance dmsion and the majonty of the rnsk from a change n the value of the Group's
investment 1s matched by a change in policyholder labiities The collective nvestment vehicles are prnimanly financed by investments from investors
In the vehicles

Dunng the vear the Group has not provided any non-contractual financial or other support to these entities and has no current intention of providing any financial
or gther support There were no transfers from/to these unconsolidated collective investment vehicles and Iwuted partnerships

The Group considers itself the sponsor of a structured entity where 1t 1S pnmanly involved 1n the design and establishment of the structured entity, and further
where the Group transfers assets to the structured entity, market products associated with the structured entity in sts own name and/or provide guaraniees
regardhng the structured entity’s performance

The Group sponsors a range of diverse investment funds and imited partnerships where 1t acts as the fund manager or equivalent decision maker and markets
the funds under one of the Group's brands

The Greup earns fees from managing the investments of these funds The investment management fees that the Group earned from these entities, including
those i which the Group held no ownership interest at 31 December 2014, are reported in note 48
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20 Allowance for impairment losses on loans and recevables

Loans and Loans and
acdvances 1o advances
customers to banks Debt securnties Total
The Group £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 15,250 3 206 15,459
Exchange and other adjustments 291 - - 291
Disposal of busmesses (176) - - (176}
Advances wetten off T T T ey @ B8 (6314
Recovenies of advances written off in previous years 456 - - 456
Unwinding of discount B (351) - o (351)
Charge to ae |ncomé-stateme-nl {note 12) oo T e 2—.7—25 ’ - T T T 2,726
At 31 December 2013 11,966 - 125 12,091
Exchange and other adustments (410) - 9 (401)
Disposal of businesses - - - -
Advances written off o {6,432) - T am (6.442)
Recovenes of advances written off in previous years ) 681 - - 681
Unwmdlng-of- discount ’ {126) - - {126)
Charge to the income statement (note 12) o 735 - 2 737
At 31 December 2014 6,414 - 126 6,540

Of the Group's total allowance in respect of loans and advances to customers, £5,551 milion {2013 £10,217 muillion) related to lending that had been
determined to be impaired (either individually or on a collective basis) at the reporting date

Of the Group's total allowance in respect of loans and advances to customers, £1,482 millieon (2013 £2,217 million) was assessed on a collective basis

No impairment allowances have been raised in respect of amounts due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings

Loans and Loans and
advances to advances
customers to banks Debt securities Total
The Bank £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 3,179 3 56 3,238
Exchange and other adjustments ’ Ty - — (31)
Advances witten off S o aesm @& 68 (1,748)
Recoveries of advances wntten off in previous years - 321 - - 321
Unwinding of discount ’ {130} - I (130)
Charge (release) to the income Statement 649 - o 649
At 31 December 2013 2,299 - - 2,299
Exchange and other adjustments (12) - - (12)
Advances written off {1,323) - - (1,323)
Recovenies of advances writien off in previous years 320 - - 320
Unwinding of discount (96) - - {96)
Charge to the income statement T 443 - - 443
At 31 December 2014 1,631 - - 1,631

Of the Bank's total allowance In respect of loans and advances to customers, £1,200 miflion (2013 £1,954 million) related to lending that had been
determined to be impaired {either individually or on a collective basis) at the reporting date

Of the Bank's iotat allowance in respect of loans and advances to customers, £690 million {2013 £690 million) was assessed on a collective hasis
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21 Availlable-for-sale financial assets

2014 2013
Conduits Other Total Conduits QOther Totat
The Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securtties
Government secuntes - [ 47402 47,402 - 38200 | | 38,290
ﬁ and building society certificates of d—e_pO—SI{__' h I _Eﬁ BN 742#9{ N R I WZi-(b)Sv 1 208
Asset-backed securities o R o o
Morigage-backed securities T 27| | T ea7i 674 1@a| | 1124 | 1263
Other asset-backed securiies T Teaa| T Tae2| 685 | 27| | ees| | 815
Corperate and other debt securities i - 5,529 5,529 ) - 1,855 1,855
250 54,338 54,588 356 42,175 42,531
Equity shares - 1,042 1,042 - 570 570
Treasury bills and similar secunties - 863 863 - 875 875
Total available-for-sale financial assets 250 56,243 56,493 356 43,620 43,876
2014 2013
The Bank £m Em
Debt secunties
Government secunties 46,911 o 38,159
Bank and bu:lding society certificates of deposit 186 196
Asset-backed secunu;as o
Mortgage-backed secunties B ’ i T 147 365
Cther asset-backed secunties 120 179
Corporate and other debt secunties a T 5.311 2,276
50,675 41,176
Equity shares i i 726 149
Treasury bils and similar securities 11 23
Total available-for-sale financial assets 51,412 41,348

Details of the Group's asset-backed conduits shown in the table above are included in note 19(A}

At 31 December 2014 £53,041 millien (2013 £42,637 million) of avatlable-for-sale financial assets of the Group and £47 688 milion (2013 £39,483 millon}
of the Bank had a contsactual residual matunty of greater than one year

For amounts included above which are subject to repurchase agreements see note 50

All assets have been individually assessed for impairment The critena used to determine whether an impairment loss has been incurred are disclosed in
note 2h(2)

At 31 December 2014, the Bank had sold £55 milhon (2013 £83 milhon) of debt securties to one of s subsidiary undertakings, however the related
agreement 1s such that the Bank has retained substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership and, as a consequence, the debt secunties continue to be
recogrised on the Bank’s balance sheet
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22 Investment properties of the Group

2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January 4,864 5,405
Ex_c-han‘gé and oitheriadjus;mer;t_s- T T - —(6) 24
Additions o 7 T I o T T
Acguisiions of ne‘»;‘p;rc-)pemes T o - T - T 293 ' 261
CEmsohdalﬂ)n of new s‘th;5|d|ary uncie?t;kmgs T - I - _—80-5
.@nnonal ex;;encﬂture on exlst;ng prop;.;tl—&—s_ e T/ I 83 _——148
Total additions - o T i 376 1,114
Disposals (1,255) (1,253}
Disposal of businesses - (682)
Changes  fair value {note 7) 513 156
At 31 December 4,492 4,864
tn addibion the following amounts have been recognised in the income statement
2014 2013
£m £m
Rental income 269 308
Direct operating expenses ansing from investment properties that generate rental income 37 59

Capital expenditure in respect of investment properties which had been contracted for but not recogmsed in the financial statements was £47 million
(2013 £2 mullion}

The investment properties are valued at least annually at open market value, by independent professionally qualified valuers, who have recent expenence in the
location and categones of the investment properties being valued

The farr value of investment properties 15 measured using the market approach and incorporates the income approach where appropnate The fair value of
investment property 15 generaily measured using observable inputs Whether investment properties are categonsed as level 2 or 3 (see note 53(4) for details of
levels In the fair value hierarchy) depends on the extent of the adjustments made to observable inputs and this depends on the investment property concerned
Investment property 15 compared to property for which these 1s observable market data about its realisable value on disposal Adjustments to this abservable
data are applied, if necessary, for specific charactenstics of the property, such as the nature, location or condition of the specific asset It such information 1s net
available, alternative valuatwon methods using unobservable inputs, such as discounted cash flow analysis or recent pnces in less active markets are used For
investment property under construction, the value on disposal 1s considered 1o be at the point at which the property 1S fully constructed Adjustments are made
for the costs and nsks associated with construction Investment property under construction for which fair value 1s not yet reliably measurable is valued at cost,
until the fair value can be reliably measured

The table above analyses movements in investment properties, all of which are categonsed as level 3
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23 Goodwill of the Group

2014 2013

Em £m

At 1 January and 31 December 2,016 2,016
Cost! 2,362 2,362
Accdr!;ulaled_lmpaumerﬁosgés ) ) S T ) (3u4é)__ (3465
At 31 December 2,016 2,016

VFor acquisibons made prior to 1 January 2004 the date of transition to IFRS cost 1s included net of amounts amortised up to 31 December 2003

The goodwill held in the Group's balance sheet 1s tested at teast annually for impairment For the purposes of impairment testing the goodwill 1s allocated to the
appropnate cash generating unit, of the total balance of £2,016 mullhon {2013 £2,016 milhon), £1,836 million (or 91 per cent of the total) has been allocated
o Scottish Widows and £170 mullion (or 8 per cent of the total) to Asset Finance

The recoverable amount of the goodwll relating to Scottish Widows has been based on a value-in-use calculation The calculation uses pre-tax projections of
future cash flows based upon budgets and plans approved by management covening a five-year period, and a discount rate of 10 per cent The budgets and
plans are based upen past expenence adjusted 1o take into account anticipated changes in sales volumes, product mix and margins having regard to expected
market condiions and competitor activity The discount rate 1s deterrmined with reference to internal measures and available industry information Cash flows
beyond the five-year peniod have been extrapolated using a steady 3 per cent growth rate which does not exceed the long-lerm average growth rate for the life
assurance market Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumplions would not cause the recoverable amount of Scettish
Widows 1o fafl below 113 balance sheet carrying value

The recoverable amount of the goodwill relating to Asset Finance has afs¢ been based on a value in use calculation using pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets and plans approved by management covering a five-year penod and a discount rate of 14 per cent The cash flows beyond the five-year
pericd are extrapolated using a growth rate of O 5 per cent which does not exceed the leng-term average growth rates for the markets in which Asset Finance
participates Management believes that any reasonably possible change (n the key assumptions above would not cause the recoverable amount of Asset Finance
to fall below its balance sheet carrying value

24 Value of in-force business

The gross value of in-force business asset in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows

2014 2013
£m £Em
Acquired value of in-force non-participating investment contracts 418 461
\_Ialt]e_of in-torce |rgurance‘a_nd_paraél_paﬁg tnvestment contracts T T - 4,446 T '_4,87-5
Total value of in-force business 4,864 5335
The movernent 1n the acquired value of in-force non-particpating investment contracts over the year 1s as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January 461 1,312
Amortisation taken 1o income saar;lenl (note 11) o (43) S _(5-4)
Disposal of businesses - (797)
At 31 December 418 461

The acquired value of in-force non-participating investment contracts includes £251 million (2013 £277 million) in relation 1o QEIC business
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24 Value of in-force business ¢f the Group (continued)

The movement n the value of In-force insurance and participating investment contiacts over the year s as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January 4,874 5,488
Exchange and other adjusiments 21
Movements tn the year
New business 425 595
Existing business
Expected return {441) (432)
Exp:arllence variances N {65) (246)
Aséumptlon changes i T (586) 37
Ec:mnmu: vanance 239 462
Movement in the value of in-force business taken 10 income statement {note 9) (428) 416
Disposal of businesses B ) , N - {1,051)
At 31 December 4,446 4,874

This breakdown shows the movement In the value of in-force business only, and does not represent the full contnbution that each item in the breakdown
contributes 1o profit before tax This will also contain changes in the other asseis and liabilities, including the effects of changes wn assumptions used to value
the liabilities, of the relevant businesses The presentation of economic vanance includes the impact of financial market conditions being different at the end of
the reporting penod from those included in assumptions used to calculate new and existing business returns

The principal features of the methodology and process used for determining key assumptions used n the calculation of the value of in-force business are set out
below

Economic assumplions

Each cash flow 15 valued using the discount rate consistent with that applied 1o such a cash fiow in the capital markets in practice, to achieve the same result,
where the cash flows are ether independent of or move linearly with market movements, a method has heen apphied known as the ‘certainty equivalent’
approach whereby 1t 1s assumed that all assets earn a nsk free rate and all cash flows are discounted at a rnisk-free rate The certainty equivalent approach covers
all investment assets relating to insurance and participating wvestment contracts, other than the annuity business (whese an iiquidity premium 1s included,
see below)

A market-consistent approach has been adopted for the valuation of financial options and guarantees, using a stochastic option pricing technique calbrated to
be consistent with the market price of relevant options at each valuation date

The habiliies in respect of the Group's UK annusty business are matched by a portfolio of fixed interest securhies, including a large proportion
of corporate bonds and, since late 2012, dliquid loan assets The value of the in-force business asset for UK annuity business has been calculated after taking
Inte account an esiimate of the market premum for ilhquidity 1n respect of corporate bond holdings and relevant dhguid loan assets The determination of the
market premum far ihquidity reflects actual asset allocation and refevant observable market data, and has been checked for consistency with the capial
markets The illquidity premum 15 eshimated to be 120 basis points at 31 December 2014 (2013 91 basis points)

The nsk-free rate 15 dernved from the relevant swap curve less a deduction for credit nsk

The table below shows the resulting range of yields and other key assumpiions at 31 December

2014 2013

% %

Risk-free rate (value of in-force non annuity business) 000to 327 000to 404
Risk-free rate (value of in-force annuity EU-SIIF;E—SE)' ______ _ T | 0210456 064105 046-'
Fi|5?—f;eé-raie (ﬁnanmaﬁ)_ptlons and gua-r_anteef.)‘- ) - o T - 029 tJZ—E—-()_-Zl to 3-4?
Retail price inflatton 326 359
Expense inflation 392 425

TAll nsk-free rates are quoted as the range of rates imphed by the relevant swap curve

Non-market risk

An allowance for nan-market risk 1s made through the choice of best estimate assumptions based upon expenence, which generally will give the mean expected
financial outcome for shareholders and hence no further allowance for non-market sk 1s required However, in the case of operational nsk, reinsurer default and
the with-profit funds these can be asymmetnic in the range of potential cutcomes for which an explicit allowance 15 made

Non-economic assumptions

Future mortality, morbicity, expenses, tapse and paid-up rate assumptions are reviewed each year and are based on an analysis of past experience and on
management's view of future experence

Mortalily and morbidity

The mortality and morbidity assumptions, including allowances for improvements 1n longevity, are set with regard to the Group’s actual expenence where this
provides a reliable basis and relevant mdustry data otherwise
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Lapse (persistency) and pad-up rates
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Lapse and paid up rates assumptions are reviewed each year The most recent expenience 15 considered along with the results of previous analyses and
management's views on future expenence In determining this best eshmate view, a number of factors are considered, including the credibility of the results
{which will be affected by the volume of data available}, any exceptional evenis that have cocusred during the penod under consideration and any known or

expected trends in underlying data

Marntenance expenses

Allowance I1s made for future policy costs explicitly Expenses are determined by reference to an internal analysis of current and expected future costs Explicit

allowance 1s made for future expense inflatson

These assumpticns are intended to represent a best estimate of future expenence, and further information about the effect of changes n key assumptions 1s

given in note 34

25 Other intangible assets

The Group The Bank
Purchased Capltalised Capitallsed
credit card Customer software software
Core deposit relation- related enhance enhance-
Brands  intangibles ships intangibles ments Total ments
£m £m £m £m Em £m Em

Cost
At 1 January 2013 o 596 2,770 300 881 1,133 5680 627
-E;change and other adjustments I - T T T T T T 22 T 7(14)
Additions ) - - 15 - 274 289 221
Disposals T ) - - - T @ e -
Disposal of businesses - - - (343) (a7 (360) -
At 31 December 2013 596 2,770 315 538 1,320 5,539 847
Additions - - - - 297 297 188
Disposals - - - - (108) (108 -
At 31 December 2014 596 2,770 315 538 1,509 5,728 1,035
Accumulated amorfisation
AL1 January 2013 - 86 1,560 238 526 478 2888 216
Exchange and olhzr-;d_;u—stﬁnts T - - - - - 5 _~§ s
Charge for the year (note 11) | 21 300 62 20 109 512 67
Disposals - - - - (48] (45 -
Dispesal of businesses - - - (104) - (104} -
At 31 December 2013 107 1,860 300 442 551 3.260 283
Charge for the year {note 11) 21 300 5 14 161 501 105
Disposals S o - - - S 1034 (103 -
At 31 December 2014 128 2,160 305 456 609 3,658 388
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2014 468 610 10 B2 200 2,070 647
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2013 489 §10 15 96 769 2,279 564

Included within brands above are assets of £380 mithon (2013 £380 mullion) that have been determined to have indefinite useful lives and are not amortised
These brands use the Bank of Scotland name which has been in existence for over 300 years These brands are well estabhshed financial services brands and
there are no indications that they should not have an indefinite useful Irfe

The core deposit intangible 1s the benefit denved from a large stable deposit base that has low interest rates, and the balance sheet amount at 31 December
2014 shown above wiil be amortised, in accordance with the Group's accounting policy, on a straight line basis over its remaining useful life of two years

The purchased credit card relationships represent the benefil of recurnng income generated from the portfolio of credit cards purchased

The customer-retated intangibles snctude customer Lists and the benefits of customer relationships that generate recurnng income

Capralised software enhancements of the Bank and the Group principally compnse identifiable and directly associated internal staff and other costs
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26 Tangble fixed assets

The Group The Bank
Operating Total Operating Total
lease tangible lease tanglble
Premises  Equipment assets  fixed assets Premises  Equlpment assets  fixed assets
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 2,616 3,753 4,899 11,268 1,435 3,190 160 4,785
Exchange and other adjustments - 83 (17 66 (1) 13 2 14
Addons B T 7300 0 758 1326 2384 232 640 - 872
Desposals (48) (406} (1,460) (1,914) (29) {291} - (320}
D;sposal of businesses (2) 94y (80 azey - - - -
At 31 December 2013 2,866 4,094 4,668 11,628 1,637 3,552 162 5,351
Exchange and other adjustments B __1 1 ) 2—4 —26 1 T -1 - 7 B i 9_
Additions 212 971 1,673 2,856 141 853 - 994
Disposals {186) (223) (1,759) (2,168) (87) {86) - (173)
At 31 December 2014 2,893 4,843 4,606 12,342 1,692 4,320 169 6,181
Accumulated depreciation and rmpairment
At 1 January 2013 1,191 1,710 1,025 3,926 902 1,695 2 2,599
Exchange ;ﬁd other adjustments T T T s -18 ) w--(ﬁlé) 77777 12 -7 56_ ’ 1 27
Depreciation charge for the year (note 11) 145 418 811 1,374 75 292 5 372
Disposals (41) (305) (808) {1,154} {21} (253) - (274)
Disposal of businesses - - (68) (32) (100) - - -
At 31 December 2013 1,299 1,773 986 4,058 856 1,760 8 2,724
Exchange and other adjustments - 1 7 8 {1) 1 - -
Depreciation charge for the year (note 11) 142 462 787 1,391 63 363 5 431
Disposals (67) (153) (947) (1,167) {41) (22) - (63)
At 31 December 2014 1,374 2,083 833 4,290 877 2,102 13 3,092
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2014 1,519 2,760 3,773 8,052 715 2,218 156 3,089
Balance sheet amount at 31 December 2013 1,667 2,321 3,682 7.570 681 1,792 154 2,627
At 31 December the future mimimum rentals recervable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows
2014 2013
£m £m

Recevabte within 1 year 965 1,053
1105 years T T T T T 1108 1165
Over 5 years - -
Total future rumimum rentals recervable 2,271 2,574

Equipment leased to customers under operating leases pnmanly refates to vehicle contract hire arrangements During 2014 and 2013 no contingent rentals in

respect of operating leases were recognised In the income statement

In addition, total future minkmum sub-lease income of £45 million for the Group and £12 nullion for the Bank at 31 December 2014 (£19 mifkion for the

Group and £17 mithon for the Bank at 31 December 2013) 1s expected to be recerved under nan-cancellable sub-leases of premises
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27 Investment in subsichary undertakings of the Bank
2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 lanuary 40,929 39,958
Exchange and other adjustments - T -
A&d?uona capital Injecuons and transfers T T ST T T T 1.553_“ o 1_,39—4—
Disposals a T T T sy @23
Eapnal rep;aymem o o o 71‘956)7 o
Impairment - T T Taey -
At 31 December 38,818 40,929

The principal group underakings, all of which have prepared accounts to 31 December and whose results are included in the consolidated accounts of

Lloyds Bank plc, are

Country of registration/ Percentage of equity share
Share class incorporation capital and voting nghts held Nature of business

TSB Bank plc Crdinary Scotland 50% Banking and financial services
Scottish Widows plc o oFd]EQrf " scatfand _-TO(S%:‘ T Life assurance

HBOS plc Crdinary Scotland 100% Holding company

Bank of Scotland ple T T _Ordlnary " Tscotland | 100%' ) Eanl:lr{g;rﬁ financial services
St Andrew's Insura‘n—(.:_é —(—)Tc Ordinary England 100%! - General insurance

Clenical Medical Investment Group Limited Ordinary England 100%:? Life ;s;urance

Clencal Medical Manaéed-Funds Linited i Ordinary England 100%? Life assurance

inchirect interest

The principal area of operation for each of the above group undertakings 1s the Uniled Kingdom

All regulated banking and insurance subsidiaries are required to maimntain capital at levels agreed with the regulators, this may impact those subsidiangs’ ability
to make distributions  Subject to the foregeing, there were no further significant restrictions on any of the Bank's subsidianes in paying dividends or repaying

loans and advances

A full st of subsidianes will be included in the Bank's next annual return, the Bank having made use of the exemption in Section 410 of the Companies Act

2006

28 Dther assets

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £m

Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held (notes 33 and 35} o 68& B 732 - -
Deferred acquisition and ongination costs (see below) B 114 130 . -
Settlema:nt E)alances T T T - f.GfS 7 2,904 h B 1,430_ o 3"61
Corporate pension asset ’ T T 9984 - -
Investments in jO!I’lt_ \—renu]res and asszoguat;es T B T L 74 101 B N 5 T '5_
Assets of disposal groups a T - 7,988 - 244
ah_er assets and prepayments 6,458 5,230 1,01‘6 807
Total other assets 21,745 27,069 2,451 1,857
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29 Depaosits from banks

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m Em £m £m
Liabihtses in respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements 1,075 1,874 480 1,251
Other deposits from banks 9,812 12,108 7,726 9,197
Total deposits from banks 10,887 13,982 8,206 10,448

At 31 December 2014 £3,597 milion {2013 £2,190 mltion) of deposits from banks of the Group and £1,8C8 million (2013 £1,009 million) of the Bank
had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

For amounts ncluded above which are subject to repurchase agreements see note 53

30 Customer deposits

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m Em Em

Non-interest beanng cusrent accounts 46,487 40,802 24,334 21,111
Interest beanng current accounts 86,131 77,789 53,975 46,881
Savings and investment accounts 256,701 265,422 73,821 77,011
Liabilities in respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements - 2,978 - 2,978
Other customer deposits 57,748 52,476 42,569 37 574
Total customer depaosits 447,067 439 467 194,699 185,555

1See note 1

At 31 December 2014 £31,126 million {2013 £44,702 million) of customer deposits of the Group and £4,904 million (2013 £7,941 million) of the Bank
had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

For amounts included above which are subject to repurchase agreements see note 53

Inctuded in the amaounts above for the Group are deposits of £260,129 mullion (2013 £258,384 million) which are protected under the UK Financial Services
Compensation Scheme
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31 Trading and other financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss {(debt secunties) 6,744 5,306 6,739 5,316

Trading liabiltes - o S o S
L]afaﬁut‘les In respect of sgc—umes—sola [mdér repur_cr;ase agreements o 50,007 28,902 - 60,424 32,255
Short positions In securities T C 3219 | 6890 | 372 1,867
oter o ] 2132 2527 | a28e2| | 3es8
T I T " 55358 38319 66488 37,790
Trading and other financial iabihties at fair value through profit or loss 62,102 43,625 73,227 43,106

At 31 December 2014, the Group had £8,865 million (2013 £8,990 mullion) and the Bank had £8,860 milion (2013 £9,860 milhion) of trading and other
habilities at fair value through profit or loss with a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

Liatnlities designated at fair value through profit or loss pnmanly represent debt securities i issue which either contain substantive embedded derivatives which
would otherwise need to be recogmised and measured at fair value separately from the related debt secunties, or which are accounted for at fair value to

significantly reduce an accounting mismatch

The amount contractually payable on matunty of the debt secunties held at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2014 was £13,112 million
(2013 £6 625 miltion}, which was £3,373 mullion tugher than the balance sheet carrying value (2013 £1,358 million higher) At 31 December 2014 there
was a cumulative £181 million «ncrease (2013 £214 million increase) in the fair value of these liabilittes attributable to changes in credit spread nisk, this is
determined by reference to the quoted credit spreads of the Bank Of the cumulative amount, a decrease of £33 mitlion arose in 2014 and a decrease of

£40 millson arose in 2013

For the fair value of collateral pledged i respect of repurchase agreements see note 53

32 Debt secunties in 1ssue

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

Em £m £m £m

Medium-term notes issued 22,167 23,385 20,397 20,746
Covered bonds (note 18) - 27,191 30,667 32,600 17,681
Certificates of deposit 1ssued 7,033 8,866 7,033 8,866
Secunitisation notes (note 18) ) 11,808 18,613 1,901 4,332
Commercial paper 7,373 5,035 4,131 1,570
Total debt securities in 1ssue 75,672 B6,566 66,062 53,195

At 31 Decernber 2014 £49,849 mflion (2013 £61,244 milhon} of debt secunties 1n 1ssue of the Group and £46,287 million (2013 £35,714 million) of the

Bank had a contractual residual matunty of greater than one year

33 Liabihties of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts

Insurance contract and partiopating investment contract habilives are compnsed as follows

2014 2013
Gross Relnsurance! Net Gross Reinsurance! Net
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Life insurance (see {1) below)

Insurance contracts 172,181 (636) 71,555 67,650 | (675) 66,975
Partcipating mv&tmemcontraﬁs ) 14,102 - 14,102 14,416 -l 14,416
i T 86,293 (636) 85,657 82,066 (675) 81,391

Fd—or;-—hamsuran_ce contra?:ts_(see (2) beEW - T T - T
Unearned premiums o 424 @ a17 | a2 | ol 432
Claims outstanding - To224| | - T 224 X R
- - T o 648 ) 541 735 (1o 725
Total 86,941 (643} 86,298 82 801 (685) 82,116

!Reinsurance balances are reported within other assets (note 28)
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33 Labibities of the Group anstng from insurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

{1} Life insurance
The movement in Iife insurance contract and participating investment contract labilties over the year can be analysed as follows

Participating

Insurance investment Gross Reinsurance’ Net

contracts contracts Em £m £m

At 1 January 2013 65,665 16,489 82,154 (2,257) 79,897
New business T ) 4008| 295 4,303 28| 4,275
Changes in existing business 3,230 {2,349 881 76 957
Change in labilities cﬁarged 1o the Incorme stateme_nt_(aoté 100 7,238 (2,054) 5,184 48 5,232
Exchange and other adjustments I T _T)‘r T 7(&) ) ) Z?i T El 1}
Disposal of businesses (5,260) (8} (5,268) 1,541 (3,727}
At 31 December 2013 67.650 14,416 82,065 (675) 81,391
New business T 3,123 28| 3,151 (20) 3,131
Changes n existing business i T 1,582 T (341 1,241 | 12 1,253
Change in habidities charged to the income statement (no_te 10} 4,705 (313} 4,392 (B) 4,384
Exchange and other adystments T ase W uss a7 T oale
At 31 December 2014 72,191 14,102 86,293 (636) 85,657

1Reinsurance balances are reported within other assats (note 28}

Liabilities for Iife insurance contracls and participating investment contracts can be sphit into with-profit fund labilities, accounted for using the PRA's reabistic
capital regime (realistic liabilities) and non-profit fund hatulities, accounted for using a prospective actuanal discounted cash flow methodology, as follows

2014 2013
With-profit fund Non profit fund Total With profit fund Non profit fund Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Insurance coniracts 12,334 59,857 72,191 11,739 55911 67,650
Participating investment contracts T 8957 5145 14102 9227 5189 T 14418
Total 21,291 65,002 86,293 20,966 61,100 B2,066

With-profit fund realistic iabthties

(1) Business description

The Group has with-profit funds within Scotush Widews plc and Clencal Medical Investment Group Limited contaning both insurance contracts and participating
nvestment contracts

The primary purpose of the conventional and unitised business written in the with-profit funds 1s to provide a smoothed investment vehicle to the policyholders,
protecting them against short-term market fluctuations Payouts may be subject 1o a guaranteed munsmum payout f certain policy condstions are met With-profit
policyholders are entitled to at least S0 per cent of the distnbuted profits, with the shareholders receving the batance The policyhotders are also usually insured
against death and the policy may carry a guaranteed annuity option at retirernent

(1) Method of calculation of frabilities
with-profit hiabiliies are stated at their reahstic value, the main components of which are

— With-profit benefit reserve, the totat asset shares for with-profit policies,
— Cost of options and guarantees (inciuding guaranteed annuity opuons},
— Deductions lewvied against asset shares,

- Planned enhancements to with-profits benefits reserve, and

- Impact of the smoothing policy

The realistic assessment 1s carned out using a stochastic simulation model which values labilities on a market-consistent basis The calculation of realistic
liabilties uses best estimate assumptions for mortality, persistency rates and expenses These are calculated in a similar mansaer to those used for the value of
in force business as discussed in note 24

i) Assumptions
Key assumptions used 1n the calculation of with-profit habilities, and the processes for determining these, are

Investment returns and discount rates

The realistic capital regime dictates that with-profit fund hiabilities are valued on a market-consistent basis This 15 achieved by the use of a valuation model
which values habilities on a basis calibrated to tradable market optton contracts and other observable market data The with-profit fund financial options and
guarantees are valued using a stochastic simulabon model whese all assels are assumed to eam, on average, the nsk-free yield and all cash flows are discounted
using the nsk-free yield The risk-free yield 1s defined as the spok yield denved from the refevant swap curve, adjusted for credit nsk

Guaranteed annwity option take up rates

Certain pension contracts contain guaranteed annuity options that allow the policyholder to take an annuity benefit on relirement at annuity rates that were
guaranteed at the outset of the contract For contracts that comain such options, key assumptions in determining the cost of options are economic conditions in
which the oplion has value, mortabty rates and take-up rates of other options The financial impact 1§ dependent on the value of corresponding investments,
interest rates and longewity at the tme of the claim
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33 Liabiities of the Group ansing from tnsurance contracts and participating investment contracts (continued)

Investment volatility
The calibration of the stochastic simulation model uses implied volatilities of derivatives whete possible, o7 histoncal volatifity where 1t is not possible to observe
meamngful prices

Mortality
The mortality assumptions, including allowances for improvements in longewity for annustants, are set with regard to the Group’s actual expenence where this
15 significant, and relevant industry data othenwise

Lapse rates {(persistency}
Lapse rates refer to the rate of policy termnation or the rate at which policyholders stop paying regular premiums due under the contract

Historical persistency expenence is analysed using statistical techniques As experience can vary constderably between different product types and for contracts
that have been in force for different penods, the data 1s broken down into broadly homogenous groups for the purposes of this analysis

The most recent expenence 1s considered along with the results of previous analyses and management's views on future experience, taking into consideration
potential changes in future expenence that may result from guarantees and options becoming more valuable under adverse markel condiions in order 1o
determine a 'best esimate’ view of what persistency will be In detesmining this best estimate view a number of factors are considered, including the credibility
of the results (which will be affected by the volume of data available), any exceptional events that have occurred dunng the penod under consideration, any
known or expected trends (in underlying data and relevant published market data

Non-profit fund liabilities

() Bustness description

The Group principally writes the following types of Ife insurance contracts within its non-profit funds Shareholder profits on these types of business anse from
management fees and other policy charges

Unit-hnked business — This includes unit-inked pensions and unit-linked bonds, the primary purpose of which 1s 1o prowede an investment vehicle where the
policyholder 1s alse insured against death

Life insurance — The poticyholder 1s insured against death or permanent disability, usually for predetermined amounts  Such business includes whole-of-life and
term assurance and long-term creditor policies

Annuities — The policyholder 1s entitled to payments for the duration of their Iife and 1s therefore insured against surviving longer than expected

(1) Method of calcuiation of habilitres

The non-profit fund habilities are determined on the basis of recognised actuanial methods and consistent with the approach required by regulatory rules The
methods used invotve estimating future pelicy cash flows over the duration of the in-force book of policies, and discounting the cash flows back to the valuation
date allowing for probabilities of occurrence

{11} Assumptions

Generally, assumptions used 10 value nen-profit fund liabtlities are prudent in nature and therefore contain a margin for adverse deviation This margin for adverse
deviation 1s based on management's judgement and reflects management's views on the inherent level of uncertainty The key assumptions used in the
measurement of non-profit fund liabilibes are

Interest rates
The rates used are derived in accordance with the guidelines set by local regulatory bodies These hmit the rates of interest that can be used by reference to a
number of factors including the redemption yields on fixed interest assets at the valuation date

Margins for nisk are allowed for in the assumed interest rates These are derived from the imiis in the guidelines set by local regulatory bodies, including
reductions made to the available yields 1o allow for default nsk based upon the credit rating of the secunities allocated to the insurance hability

Mortality and morbscity
The mortality and morbidity assumptions, including allowances for imprevements in longewity for annustants, are set with regard to the Group's actual expenence
where this provides a rehiable basis, and relevant industry data otherwise, and include a margin for adverse deviation

Lapse rates {persistency)
Lapse rales are allowed for on some non-profit fund contracts The process for setting these rates ts as described for with-profit iabilities, however a prudent
scenario 1s assumed by the inclusion of a margin for adverse deviation within the non-profit fund liabibties

Maintenance expenses
Allowance 1s made for future policy costs explicitly Expenses are determned by reference to an internal analysis of current and expected future costs plus a
margin for adverse dewviation Explicit allowance 1s made for future expense inflation
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33 Liabilities of the Group ansing from insurance contracis and participating investment contracts {continued)

Key changes 1n assumptions
A detailed review of the Group's assumptions in 2014 resuited in the following key impacts on profit before tax

- Change in persistency assumptions (€119 mullion decrease)

— Change 1n the assumption in respect of current and future mortality rates (£23 million increase)
- Change in expenses assumphons (£51 million ncrease)

- Change in credit default methodology (£36 million increase)

These amounts include the impacts of movements in habilites and the value of in-force business n respect of insurance contracts and participating invesiment
contracts

(2) Non-hife insurance
Gross non-hfe insurance contract habilities are analysed by hine of business as fellows

2014 2013

£m £m

Credit protection 45 60
Home - T h o T o -7 s00 673
H—eatth' B T T - o T T - - - T 3 o _2—
Total gross non-hfe insurance contract habihities 648 735

For non-life insurance contracts, the methodology and assumptions used in relation to deterriming the bases of the earned premium and claims provisioning
levels are denved for each individual underwntten product Assumptions are intended to be neutral estimates of the most likely or expected cutcome There has
been no significant change In the assumptions and methodologies used for setting reserves

The reserving methodology and associated assumptions are set out below

The unearned premium reserve 1S determined on a basis that reflects the length of time for which contracts have been in force and the projected incidence of
nisk ever the term of each contract

Claims outstanding comprise those claims that have been notified and those that have been incurred but not reported Claims incurred but not reported are
determined based on the historical emergence of claims and their average cost The notified claims element represents the best estimate of the cost of claims
reporied using projections and estimates based on tustorical experience

The movements in non-life insurance contract llabilites and reinsurance assets over the year have been as follows

Gross Reinsurance! Net
£m £m £m

Provisions for unearned premiums
At 1 January 2013 - ) 494 (16) 478
Increase in the year o T T T - o 972 as)| 954
Release nthe year ST T a2 | el | @an
Change «n prowision for unearned premiums charged to income statement (note 8) (49) 6 {43)
Exchange and other adjustments T B (3 - (3
At 31 Decernber 2013 442 (10} 432
Inceease n theyear T 870 | 13 857
Release in the year (8B8) 16 (872)
Change 1n provision for unearned piemiums charged to (ncome statement (note 8) {18) 3 (15)
Exchange and cther adjustments - - -
At 31 December 2014 424 (7) 417

'Reinsurance balances are reported within other assets (note 28)
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33 Liabilities of the Group ansing from insurance centracts and participating (nvestment contracts (continued)

These provisions represent the hability for short-term insurance contracts for which the Group's obligations are not expired at the year end

Gross Reinsurance Net
£m £m £m

Claims outstanding
Notified claims 280 - 280
Incured but not reported 40 )
At 1 January 2013 320 (1) 319
Cash pan_dE claims settied 1n the )Te;r—_- - B T (385) T - (385}
Increase (decrease) in habehities
Ansing from current year claims ) - - ’ arg| - 379
FTfl—Sl_ﬂg from pror yearan_s— R T T -7 Ten T )
aaﬁge- lanJ.EIIl{II;S-Cﬁafged to Income statement (note 10) ) T (33} 1 (32)
Ex-ch_aﬁg_e—and ove—r_aiustments_ o T é - o —6
AL 31 December 2013 293 - 293
Cash pad for claims settied in the year T T (398) - (398)
I_r1_creaslek(ﬁgezckrease)‘|rTI|a-bﬁ|{|es- T T o I N -
A;lsmg from cuirrentiy;eériﬁmsi T o o T 3%8 - o égg
Ansing from prior year clams - T 40) - ew
Change 1n labilties charged to \ncome statement (note 10) {70} - (70)
Exchange and other adjustments 1 - 1
At 31 December 2014 224 - 224
Notified claims 194 - 194
Incurred but not reported o 30 - 30
At 31 December 2014 224 - 224
Notified claims 263 - 263
Incurred but not reported o o ’ T ) 30 S - 36
At 31 December 2013 293 - 293
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33 Liabihties of the Group ansing from insurance contracts and parhicipating investment contracts (continued)

Non-hife insurance claims development table

The development of insurance habiliiies provides a measure of the Group's ability to estimate the ultsmate value of clams The top half of the table below
Illustrates how the Group’s estimate of total claims outstanding for each accident year shown has changed at successive year ends The bottorn half of the table
reconciles the cumulative claims 10 the amount appeanng in the balance sheet The accident year basis 1s considered the most appropriate for the business

wiritien by the Group

Non-life insurance all risks — gross

Accident year
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Estimate of ultimate clauns costs
At end of accident year 205 262 609 446 421 349 283 2,575
One year later 199 237 517 365 382 339
Two years later 195 216 497 353 393
Three years later 187 208 493 367
Four years later 186 276 506
Five years later 186 203
Six years later ’ 180 i
Current estimate tn respect of above claims 180 203 506 367 393 339 283 2,271
EGEm estimate of claims relating to HBOS
generat Insurance business transferred n 2010 257 276 - - - - - 533
Current estimate of cumulative ¢laims 437 479 506 367 393 339 283 2,804
Cumulative payments 1o date (434) (475) {494) (355) 377 (294) (173) (2,602)
Liability recognised in the
halance sheet 3 4 12 12 16 45 110 202
Liatnlity in respect of earlier years 8
Total iatibity included in the balance sheet 210

The hability of £210 mulhon shown in the above table excludes £10 mulion of unallocated claims handling expenses and £4 million of unexpired nsk reserve
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34 Life insurance sensitivity analysis of the Group

The following table demonstrates the effect of reasonably possible changes i key assumptions on profit before tax and equity disclosed in these financial
statements assuming that the other assumptions remain unchanged In practice this 1s unhkely to occur, and changes in some assumptions may be correfated
These amounts include movements 1n assets, habilities and the value of the in-force business In respect of insurance contracts and participating investment
contracts The mmpact 1s shown n one direction but can be assumed to be reasonably symmetncal

Increase Increase

(reduction) in ({reduction) in

profit before tax equity

31 December 2014 Change n vanable £m £m
Non-annuitant mortality! 5% reduction 37 30
Annuttant mortalty? ) o ’ " 5% reduction TTare e
[;bse raties; S ) T T ’ T 1—0% reduction T 105*7 i B4
Future maintenance and 1nvestment expenses; S T T 10%‘ré§1;c?|6n N 259 208
ng-k-free ates T S S 0 25% reduction 29 24
Guaranteed annutty option take-up® S 77777 s%redugion 11
E_quny]r;vestment Jolanl]ty’ - T T T 1% reduction S {3) 6)
Widening of credit default spreads on corporate bonds? 0 25% reduction (260) {208)
Increase 1n uhqumityipre;n?la9 B 0 10% recuction 101 81
Increase Increase

{reduction) {reduction) in

profit before tax equity

31 December 2013 Change n vanable £m £m
Non-annuiant mortality! 5% reduction 39 31
Annuitant mortality? 5% reduction (151) (121)
Lapse rates? o - T " 10% reduction T 132 T 106
Fu_tur;_m'amtenance and investment éxbe}nges‘ o i 1_5% reduction ) 192 155
Risk-free rate® T C T T o 0 25% reduction 50 40
Guaranteed annuity option take-up® ) 5% addition - S -
ablty investment volatity” B T B T o "1% addmon o (_8) i {6}
Wldemné_of credit default spreads on Eo:porale bonds® o ”6 275‘9‘6 addiion (238) (191}
Increas—e:n |Im:uﬁd|-ty prémla; T 0 10% addiion B2 66

Assumptions have been flexed on the basis used to calculate the value of in-force business and the realistic and statutory reserving bases
'Thes sensitvity shows the smpact of reducing morality and morbidity rates on non-annuity business to 9% per cent of the expected zate

#This sensitivity shows the impact on the annuity and deferred annuity business of reducing martahty rates to 95 per cent of the expected rate

3This sensitivity shows the iImpact of reducing lapse and surrender rates to 90 per cent of the expacted rate

This sensitivity shows the impact of reducing maintenance expenses and investment expenses to 90 per cent of the expected rate

*This sensitivity shows the impact on the value of in-force business financial opbions and guarantee costs statutory reserves and asset values of reducing the nsk-iree rate by
25 basis potnts

5This sensitivity shows the impact of a flat 5 per cent addition to the expected rate
This sensitvity shows the impact of a flat 1 per cent addition to the expected rate

2This sensitivity shows the impact of a 25 basis point increase 10 credit default spreads on corporate bonds and the corresponding reduction in market values Swap curves, the nsk free
rate and 1liquidity prerma are all assumed to be unchanged

*This sensitivity shows the impact of a 10 basis pont increase in the allowance for iliguidity premia It assumes the overall spreads on assets are unchanged and hence market values
are unchanged Swap curves and the non-annuity nisk-free rate are both assumed to be unchanged The increased ilhiquidity premium increases the annuity nisk free rate
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35 Labihties of the Group ansing from non-participating investment contracts

The movermnent In liabilities ansing from non-participating investment contracts may be analysed as follows

Gross Relnsurance' Net
£m £m
At 1 January 2013 54,372 (46) 54,326
New business T T T T 1.594_“ Y i _ﬂl‘.Z_E)—?:
Changes in existing business 1,899 - 1,899
Disposal of businesses (29,953) - {29,953)
Ex?:ﬁange and ather adjustments- T (22) - (22}
At 31 December 2013 27,590 47) 27,543
New business 257 (1) 256
Changes in existing bustness {583) 9 (574)
Disposal of businesses - - -
Exchange and other adjustments {16) - (16)
At 31 December 2014 27,248 (39) 27,209
Reinsurance balances are reported within other assets (note 28)
36 Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses for the Group
The movement in the unallocated surplus within long tesm insurance business over the year can be analysed as follows
2014 2013
£€m £m
At 1 January 391 267
Change n unalloaled surlus ecogrused m the imeome siatement (oote 1007 T Tga T g
i—)cchar;ég;nd other adjustments S - . : T 3 N 1
At 31 December 320 391
37 Other habilities
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m Em £m £m
Settlement balances 1,024 3,358 571 642
Uniatholders' interest in Open Ended nvestment Companies 19,525 22,219 - -
Liathties of disposal groups - 7,302 - -
Other creditors and accruals T - ’ o 8,234 8,090 - 3,787 3,698
28,783 40,969 4,358 4,340
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38 Retirement benefit obligations

2014 2013
£m £m

Charge to the Group income statement
I;ag_sav;:e {credits) charges! a - o 7 4-"(é22) EETYS
other o o N - DT Y SV
Defined benefit pension schemes (488) 496
Other post-retirement benefit schemes 10 7
Total defined benefit schemes (478) 503
Bef:ln;d coﬁlnbuﬁn-p&sgn_schemes T o 0 o 7252.7 T 555
Tota! (credit) charge to the income statement (note 11) (226) 758

10n 11 March 2014 the Group announced a change to its defined benefit pension schemes revising the existing ¢ap on the ncreases 10 pensionable pay used n calculating the

pension benefit from 2 per cent to nil with effect from 2 Apnl 2014 The effect of this change was to reduce the Group s retirement benefit obligations recognised on the balance
sheet by £843 mullion with a corresponding curtailment gan recognised in the income statement This has been partly offset by a charge of £21 mulhion following thanges to pension
arrangements for staff within the TSB business In 2013, the Group agreed certain changes to earty retirement and commutation factars n two of its principal defined benefit pension
schemes resulting in a cost of £104 rmiflion recogrised in the Group s income staterment in the year ended 31 December 2013

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Retirement benefit assets 1,147 938 351 -
Retuerent benefit obligations - (453) {1,096 e @13
Total amounts recagnised in the balance sheet 694 (998) 161 (413)
The total amount recognised 1n the balance sheet relates to
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m fm £m
Defined benefit pension schemes 8s0 (787) 268 (281}
Other post-retirement benefit schemes T 196y @iy aen | a3
Total amounts recogmsed i the balance sheet 694 (998) 161 (413}

Pension schemes

Defined benefit schemes

(1) Charactenstics of and risks associated with the Group's schemes

The Group has established a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK and overseas All significant schemes are based in the UK, with the three
most significant being the defined benefit sections of the Lioyds Bank Pension Schemes No's 1 and 2 and the HBOS Final Salary Pension Scheme These
schemes provide relirement benefits calculated as a percentage of final pensionable salary depending upon the length of service, the mimmum retirement age
under the rules of the schemes at 31 December 2014 15 generally 55 although certain categones of member are deemed to have a contractual nght to retire
at 50

The Group operates a number of funded and unfunded pension arrangements, the majonty, including the three most significant schemes, are funded schemes
in the UK All schemes are operated as separate legal entities under trust law by the trustees All UK schemes are funded in compliance with the Pensions Act
2004 A valuation exercise 15 carned out for each scheme at least every three years, whereby scheme assets are measured at market value and habilities
{'Technical Prowisions’} are measured using prudent assumptions, If a deficit 15 identified a recovery plan 1s agreed and sent to the Pensions Regulator for review
The outcome of this valuation process, iIncluding agreement of any recovery plans, 15 agreed between the Group and the scheme Trustee The Group's overseas
defined benefit pension schemes are subject to jocal regulatory arrangements

The latest full valuations of the three main schemes were carned out as at 30 June 2011, the results have been updated to 31 December 2014 by qualified
independent actuanies The last full valuations of other Group schemes were carned out on a number of different dates, these have been updated to 31 December
2014 by qualified independent actuaries

Dunng 2009, the Group made one-off contnbutions to the Lloyds Bank Pension Scheme No 1 and Lloyds Bank Penston Scheme No 2 of approximately
£1 billion In aggregate These contributions took the form of interests i limited hability partnerships for each of the two schemes which contained assets of
approximately £5 4 tillion in aggregate entithing the schemes to annual payments of approximately £215 million in aggregate until 31 December 2014 As all
scheduled distnbutions have now been made, the value of the partnership interests equates t0 a nominal amount and the imited hability partnerships wilt
continue to hold assets to provide secunty for the Group's obligations to the Lloyds Bank Pension Scheme Nol and Lloyds Bank Pension Scheme No 2 At
31 December 2014, the limited hability partnerships held assets of approximately £5 1 billion and cash payments of £215 mition were made to the pension
schemes dunng the year (2013 £215 million) The hmited hability partnerships are consolidated fully in the Group's balance sheet (see note 19}

The Group has also established two pnvate himited companies which hold assets to provide secunty for the Group's obhigations to the HBOS Final Salary Pension
Scheme and a section of the Lloyds Bank Pension Scheme No 1 At 31 December 2014 these held assets of approximately £2 8 billion in aggregate, they do
not make any distributions to the pension schemes The private hmited companies are consolidated fully in the Group's batance sheet The terms of these
arrangements require the Group to maintan assets in these vehicles ta agreed minmum values in order to secure obligations owed to the retevant Group pension
schemes The Group has satisfied this requirement dunng 2014
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The Group currently expecis 10 pay contabutions of approximately £425 mullion to its defined benefit schemes in 2015

The responsibility for the governance of the Group's funded defined benefit pension schemes lies with the Penston Trustees Each of the Group's funded UK
defined benefit pension schemes are managed by a Trustee Board (the Trustee) whose role 1s to ensure that their Scheme 15 administered in accordance with
the Scheme rules and relevant legislation, and to safeguard the assets in the best interests of all members and beneficiares The Trustee 15 solely responsible for
setting investment policy and for agreeing funding requirements with the employer through the triennial valuation process The Board of Trustees must be
composed of representatives of the Company and plan participants In accordance with the Scheme's regulations

(n) Amounts in the financial statements

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Amount included in the balance sheet
Present value of funded oblgations (37,243) (33,355) (19,742} (16,714)
farvalue of scheme assets 38,133 32,568 20,010 16,433
Net amount recogmised in the balance sheet 890 (787} 268 {281)
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m Em £m £m
Net amount recognised in the balance sheet
ALl Janvary o T T o 787 950 (281 (989
Net defined benefit pension credit (charge) C T Tass w@ee 121 (189
Actuanal losses on defined benefit obligation 7Y 2 R ) 2,574) (332
Return on plan assels T T aos 1,133 2,85% 736
Employt;ricgntnbutlor;s I T o o #?51 S 804‘ o 152 501
Exchaﬂg_e— and‘other ad|uszments T T T o 2 T (6 _ (12) ) _(9—)
At 31 December 890 {787) 268 (281)
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The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m

Movements in the defined benefit obligation
At1Janwvay i - T 33358  (31,324) (16714  (16,060)
Curent service cost - T e (351) Tai; (139
Interest expense o T T uary ey (769 (685)
Remeasurements B T - o -

Actuanal (losses) gains — expernence ’ 186 184 156 143

Actuanal (losses) gains - demographic assumptions {13) 15 14 3

Actuanal (losses) gans - finantial assumptions (4,445) (1,464) (2,744) (478)
Benefits paid 1,147 1,061 633 543
Past service cost (20) (5) (73) 5]
Employee contributions (2) (3) (1_) (2)
Curtailments o ’ o 822 (104 343 (86)
Settlements T 117 62 m 55
Exchange and other adjustments T 68 (12) (588) ——':ﬁi
At 31 December (37,243) {33,355) {19,742) (16,714)
The total defined benefit obligation comprises
~ Amounts owing to active members o 7.801)  (8647)  (3,678) (3,874)
TAmounts owing to deferred members T o (12,928) (9927 (6.874) © (5.047)
" Amounts owng to pensioness © T as139) (354D (83260 (7.069)

Amounts owing to dependents (1,375 (1,234) (864} (724)
Total defined benefit obhigation at 31 December (37,243) {33,355) {19,742) (16,714)

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m

Changes In the fair value of scheme assets
At 1 Januaty T ’ ’ 32,568 30367 16433 15071
Return onipila;;s;eis excludlr;g ;;nvounts included mﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ&?ﬂmﬁ T 4,928 T 1,133— i 2,856 - “E"S_EM
I—nte—rgst— income i T T T o 1.477- 1,392_-m 758 T 710
Employer contnbuu}ms o - 531__ o 201 132 5_03
Employee contnibutions o 2 3 1 2
Benefits pad {1,147} (1,058} (633) (542}
Setttements (124} (55} (115) {41)
Administrative costs paid (36} (21} (18) (8)
Exchange and other adjustments (66} 6 576 5
At 31 December 38,133 32,568 20,010 16,433
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Composition of scheme assets

2014 2013

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unguoted Total
The Group £m £m Em £m £m £m
Equity instruments 1,047 - 1,047 1,276 - 1,276
Debt ngtruments T 21,243 TU- T T 21243 0 12888 - 12845
Property T ST To T i._1§a_ 1,138 - T 1,()_6?_ 1:065
Pooled investment vehicles 3,603 10,555 14,158 4,684 10,671 15,365
Money market instruments, denvatives, cash
and other assets and liabilities 1,179 (632) 547 506 1,524 2,030
At 31 December 27,072 11,061 38,133 19,311 13,257 32,568

2014 2013

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total
The Bank Em £m £m £m £m £m
Equity instruments 311 - 311 530 - 530
Debt mstruments 10,400 - 10400 5740 - 5,740
Property ) - 730 730 - 612 612
Pooled investment vehicles 2,145 5,674 7,813 1,797 6,203 8,000
Mone; market |nstrumems_, denvatives, cash N o
and other assets and habililies 562 188 750 429 1,122 1,551
At 31 December 13,418 6,592 20,010 8,496 7,937 16,433

The assets of all the funded plans are held independently of the Group's assets in separate trustee administered funds

An analysts by credit rating of the pension schemes' debt secunties I1s provided below

Investment Sub investment

grade? grade Not rated Total
The Group £m Em Em £m
At 31 December 2014
Fixed interest government bonds ) 3,933 i 210_ - 7 4,150
Index linked government bonds ’ 10,396 - - 10,396
Eo}porate and other debt siecurltiesi T T 4.850 1.5?_ ) 2;08 6.623_
Assetbacked secuntes I o a0 1a
Total debt secunities 19,209 1,745 289 21,243
At 31 December 2013
Fixed interest g(;v.e_r;ment bonds T T 2,122 T T e ’ - o 526?
Index linked government bonds 6,955 - - 6,955
Corporate and other debt ;ec-unues h 3,0{3_0_ B 48?7 75 3._637_
Asset-backed securities o o ) i o - - T 51 _51-
Total debt secunties 12,157 562 126 12,845

ICredit ratings equal to or better than BBB'
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Investment!  Sub-investment
grade grade Mot rated Total
The Bank £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Fixed interest government bonds 815 19 7 841
Index linked government bonds 6,338 - - 6,338
Corporate and other debt securities 2,194 877 150 3,221
Total debt securities 9,347 B96 157 10,400
At 31 December 2013
Fixed interest government bonds T 366 T T 367
Index linked govemm-e;t_bonds - T T T 4-.165_- h . - ——4362.
Corporate and other debt secunties 1,034 1459 28 1,211
Total debt secunties 5,562 150 28 5,740
L Credst ratings equal to or better than ‘BBB’
The pension schemes' pocled investment vehicles comprise
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Equity funds 2,681 4,699 1,559 3162
Hedge and mutual funds ’ 2,170 2,382 838 785
Liquidity funds o T 2566 3,588 1424 1233
Bond and debt funds T S 2570 1996 1,699 1,083
Other S T am 2690 2,259 1737
At 31 December 14,158 15,355 7,819 8,000
The expense recogrused in the income statement for the year ended 31 December comprises
The Group
2014 2013
£m £m
Current service cost 277 351
Net nterest amount - S o o ;__(Si - 725
Past service credits and chta-ll—n—'lza'nt;_— T o T ’ T (822) R i04
Setlements T T 7 %)
;ast serwc; c-o;ti plan amendments T T T T T 20 N 5_-
ﬁa—dﬁr—us-t;a—tlon costs incurred during the year o T T 36 21
Total defined benefit pension expense (488) 496
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?Ssheupr;l?-lt?:.:‘l actuanal and financial assumptions used 1n valuations of the defined benefit penston schemes were as follows
2014 2013
% %
Discount rate 367 460
Rate of?nflauon S
Retal Prces Index T T D T T 2es 0 330
Consumer Price Index e T )
Rale-ofaary increases o o T T T Teee 0 200
Weighted -average rate of increase for pensions in payment 259 280
2014 2013
Years Years
Life expectancy for member aged 60, on the valuation date
Men 275 274
Women 298 297
Life expectancy for member aged 60, 15 yeérs after the valuation date i T
Men o o T 87 286
“Women T T T T 311 310

The mortalty assumptions used in the scheme valuations are based on standard tables published by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries which were adjusted
In line with the actual expenence of the relevant schemes The table shows that a member retring at age 60 at 31 December 2014 15 assumed to hve for, on
average, 27 5 years for a male and 29 8 years for a female In practice there will be much vanation between individual members but these assumptions are
expected to be appropnate across all members It s assumed that younger members will live jonger in retirement than those retinng now This reflects the
expectation that mortality rates will continue to fall over time as medical science and standards of ving mprove To illustrate the degree of improvement
assumed the table also shows the life expectancy for members aged 45 now, when they retire in 15 years time at age 60

(i} Amount trming and uncertainty of future cash flows

Risk exposure of the defined benefi schemes
Whlst the Group 15 not exposed to any unusual, entity specific or scheme specific nsks n its defined benefit pension schemes, it 1s exposed to a number of
significant nisks, detailed below

Inflation rate nsk the majonty of the plans’ benefit obligations are hnked to inftation both in deferment and ence in payment Higher inflation will tead to higher
habilities although this will be partially offset by hedings of inflation-linked gilis and, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are In place o
protect against extreme inflation

Interest rate nsk The defined benefit chligation 1 determined ustng a discount rate denved from yields on AA-rated corporate bonds A decrease In corporate
bond yields will increase plan habilities although this will be partially offset by an tncrease i1n the value of bond holdings

Longevity nsk The majonty of the schemes obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the members so increases in hfe expectancy will resultin an increase
n the plans’ habilities

Investment sk Scheme assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of debt secunties, equities and other return-seeking assets If the assets underperform the
discount rate used to calculate the defined benefit obligation, it will reduce the surplus or increase the deficit Volatility 1n asset values and the discount rate will
lead 1o volatility in the net pension Liability on the Group's balance sheet and in other comprehensive income o a lesser extent this will also lead to volatiity in
the pension expense in the Group’s income statement

The ulbmate cost of the defined benefit obligations to the Group wilt depend upon actual future events rather than the assumptions made The assumptions
made are unlikely 1o be borne out 1n practice and as such the cost may be higher or lower than expected
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Sensttivity analysis

The effect of reasonably possible changes in key assumptions on the value of scheme labilities and the resulting pension charge in the Group's income statement
and on the net defined benefit pension scheme liability, for the Group's three most significant schemes 1s set out below The sensitivities provided assume that
all other assumptions and the value of the schemes' assets remain unchanged and are not intended to represent changes that are at the extremnes of possibility
The calculations are approximate in natuze and full detaled calculations could lead to a different result It 1S unlikely that isolated changes to ndividual
assumptions will be expenenced in practice Due 10 the correlation of assumptions, aggregating the effects of these isolated changes may not be a reasonable
estimate of the actual effect of ssmultanecus changes in multiple assumptions

Effect of reasonably possible alternative assumptions

Increase (decrease) tncrease {decrease) in the
in the income net defined benefit pension
statement charge schema hability
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Inflation (including pension increases)
Increase of O 1 per cent 18 24 383 414
Decrease of O 1 per cent {16} iB) (362) {122)
Discount rate 2
Increase of O 1 per cent ' o ) (30) @ (611} (542)
Decrease of O 1 per cent 29 33 623 550
Expected hie expectancy of mem-bers B o T ’ )
lnérgagz)f one year a i T ) 34 T 38- 775(-1 ) 685
Decrease of one year _ ) T @8 738 (678)

At 31 December 2014, the assumed rale of RPI inflation 15 2 95 per cert and CPlLinflation 1 95 per cent (2013 RPI 3 3 per cent and CP) 2 3 per cent)
?A1 31 December 2014 the assumed discount rate 1s 3 67 per cent (2013 4 60 per cent)

Sensitmty analysis method and assumptions

The sensitivity analysts above reflects the impact on the Group's three most significant schemes which account for over 90 per cent of the Group's defined benefit
obhigations Whilst differences in the underlying hability profiles for the remainder of the Group's pension arrangements mean they may exhibit shghtly different
sensitivities to vanations (n these assumptions, the sensitivities provided above are indicative of the impact across the Group as a whole

The inflation assumption sensitivity applies to both the assumed rate of increase in the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) and the Retai Prices Index (RPI), and
include the impact on the rate of increases to pensions, both before and after retirement These pension increases are linked to inflaion {either CPI or RPI)
subject 1o certain mimimum and maximum hmils

The sensitivity analysis (including the inflation sensitivity) does not include the impact of any change in the rate of salary tncreases as pensionable salanies have
been frozen since 2 April 2014

The life expectancy assumption has been applied by allowing for an increase/decrease in life expectation from age 60 of one year, based upon the approximate
weighted average age for each scheme Whilst this 15 an approximate approach and will not give the same result as a one year increase in life expectancy at
every age, It provides an appropriate indication of the potential impact on the schemes from changes in tife expectancy

There was no change In the methods and assumptions used i prepaning the sensitivity analysis from the prior year

Asset-lability matching strategies

The main schemes’ assets are invested 1n a diversified portfolio, consisting pnmarily of debt securities The investment strategy 1s not static and will evolve to
reflect the structure of liabiies within the schemes Specific asset-lability maiching steategies for each pension plan are independently determined by the
responsible governance body for each scheme and in consultation with the employer

A significant goal of the asset-hability matching strategies adopted by Group schemes 1s to reduce volatility caused by changes 1n market expectations of interest
rates and inflation In the main, this i1s achieved by investing scheme assets in bonds, pnmanly fixed interest gilts and index inked gilts, and by entenng into
interest rate and inflation swap arrangements These investments are structured to take into account the profile of scheme habilities, and actively managed to
reflect both changing market condilions and changes to the latility profile

The asset-hability matching strategy currently mitigates approximately 89 per cent (2013 54 per cent) of the interest rate volatility and 94 per cent (2013
71 per cent) of the inflation rate volatility of the habilites
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Maturity profile of defined benefit abligation
The following table prowides information on the weighted average duration of the defined benefit pension obhgations and the distibution and timing of benefit
payments

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

Years Years Years Years
Duration of the defined benefit obligation 19 18 17 19

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m Em £m

Matunty analysis of benefits expected to be paid
Benefits expected to be paid within 12 months 1,179 1,067 652 532
Benefits expected to be paid between 1 and 2 years 1,059 1,609 i 610 540
Benefits expected to be paid between 2 and 5 years - T 3,538 3420 2,038 1822
Benefits expected to be paid between & and 10 years T T 7338 7207 4145 3761
Benefits expected to be paid between 10 and 15 years " 8831 8945 4797 4,459
Benetits expected to be paid between 15 and 25 years o 77 20011 21,002 10,26 9,791
Benefits expected to be paid between 25 and 35 years T 18995 20851 9,174 9011
Benefits expe_cu_et_i to Be paid bet_wée-n 35 anf!vtlﬁfa_ygars S o 14,43277 o 1%,3?4 o _6,_524 6,?5_81
Benefits expeciea to bé palci n mt;e than 45 ye;rs B ) o o _9.-617— 1—1 ,505— o 3._5_5_5 T —3.955

Maturity analysis method and assumplions
The projected benefit payments are based on the assumptions underlying the assessment of the obligations, including allowance for expected future inflation
They are shown n their undiscounted form and therefore appear large relative to the discounted assessment of defined benefit obligations recognised in the
Group's balance sheet They are in respect of benefits that have been accrued pricr 1o the respective year-end date only and make no allowance for any benefits
that may have been accrued subsequently

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contnbution pension schemes in the UK and overseas, principally Your Tomortow and the defined contnbution sections
of the Lloyds Bank Pension Scheme No 1

Duning the year ended 31 December 2014 the charge to the iIncome statement in respect of defined contnbution schemes was £252 million (2013 £255 million),
representing the contnbutions payable by the employer in accordance with each scheme’s rules

Other post-retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a number of schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits and concessionary mortgages to certain employees, retired
employees and their dependants The principal scheme relates to former Liayds Bank staff and under this scheme the Group has undertaken to meet the cost
of post-retirement healthcare for all eligible former employees (and their dependants) who retired pnor to 1 January 1996 The Group has entered Into an
insurance contract to provide these benefits and a provision has been made for the estimated cost of future insurance premiums payable

For the principal post-retirement healthcare scheme, the latest actuanal valuation of the hability was carned out at 31 December 2014 by qualified independent
actuanes The pnncipal assumptions used were as set out above, except that the rate of increase in healthcare premiums has been assumed at 6 55 per cent
(2013 6 90 per cent)

Movements n the other post-retirement benefits abligation

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £m

At 1 January {211) (207 (132) (129)
Exchange aggther adjustmérgsu_ o ) i - T ) 1_3—_ ) _(4_) T2 i (3_)
-Insuranée—p;m]ums pald— T T Ty . ﬁ?ﬂ o 5
Charge for the year {10} 7 (6} (5
At 31 December (196} (2tt) (107} (132}
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The movement 1n the net deferred tax balance 1s as foflows

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Asset at 1 January 5,129 4,602 4,165 4,188
Exchange and other aajtﬁtmenis o T 10 6- 6 {11
Disposals ) (60} 558 - a»

I—rTgo_me statemen—i (c_har_g;)_credll {note 137 - T/ o S T T T 7
ﬁtioic;hange in l:lRchJert;rialiionitax raleﬁd?eléted |mp;:ts—_—_- S {26) (602) a (9) {5507
Other o - - ST @ | mm| | am| 269
o o ) T T ) (251) (717) asa) (281)
;\—rert credited (chargea)“to-ec;mty 7 T T 7 T o T T
I;’(;!;t?rAetuén;entid_eaned bene_ﬂt scr;em;;easurements o {135) 28 o (62) o (80)
Available-for-sale financial assets (note 44) (10) 274 (14) 366
Cash flow hedges (note 44) (547} 378 (315) (3)
(692) 680 (391) 281
Asset at 31 December 4,126 5,129 3,596 4,165

The statutory position reflects the deferred tax assets and liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet and takes account of the inability to offset
assets and habilities where there 15 no legally enforceable night of offset The tax disclosure of deferred tax assets and habidies ties to the amounts outlined n

the table below which splits the deferred tax assets and liabilities by type

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Statutory posibon
Deferred tax assets - o T 190 5,132 '3,596 4,165
Deferred ta; liabities T o o (34)_ - (3) - -
Net deferred tax asset 4,136 5,128 3,596 4,165
Tax disclosure
Deferred tax assets 7,016 8,082 4,037 4,280
Deferred tax habiliies (2,880) (2,953) (441) (115}
Net deferred tax asset 4,136 5,129 3,596 4,165
The deferred tax charge in the consolidated income statement compnses the following temporary differences
2014 2013
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 34 482
Pensions and othexipost-iretlremeri benéﬁw_ o T T - (243) o {14)
L;n:g»term assurance business T T 312 86
Allow_ances for |mpa|‘rrr;e;1t lgsses - T T T (24) ) {86}
Trading losses ) i . ) (565) (1,061)
Tax on farr value c;f;q-u_lre—d assets T T - B 158 322
Other temporary differences T T T e (466)
Deferred tax charge in the iIncome statement (251) 717
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are compnised as follows

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £€m £m
Deferred tax assets
Pensions and other post retirement benefits ) - 288 - 160
Altowances for impatrment Yosses i 5_ - 22 10 20
Other prowisions i 15 33 20 28
Dervatwes I )
A;';slablf.:»fo}~saTé a?set revaluilgn B T ST - - 7 - I .
Tax losses carne‘(ffémara T, o o 755.'5“_ i __653_8 T —3._362 7 57258
Ac;:elerated capital a!lowancesi ) i T T *Eaz S —649 436 o W:’-}BC}
Other temporary differences T T T T T ess 782 264 436
Total deferred tax assets 7,016 8,082 4,037 4,280
Deferred tax habilities
Pensions and other post retirement benefits -(87) - (11} -
Loné-terrr] assurance business {944) (1,195) - -
Tax on fair value of acquired as;ets (1.072_) (1,236) - -
Available for sale asset revaluation ) {12) (30} - -
Denvatives ) @in (208 (318) -
Effective interest ate T S T (10) o as ) (1) W
Other temporary differences T (338) @65  mn Q14
Total deferred tax habilities (2,880) (2,953) (441) (115}

The Finance Act 2013 (the Act) was substantively enacted on 2 July 2013 The Act further reduced the main rate of corporation tax to 21 per cent with effect
from 1 Apnl 2014 and 20 per cent with effect from 1 Apnl 2015

Deferred tax asseis

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses camed forward 1o the extent that the realsation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits 1s probable
Group companies have recognised a deferred tax asset of £5,759 millien and £3,302 million for the Bank (2013 £6,338 million for the Group and
£3,258 million for the Bank) in relation to trading losses carned forward After reviews of medium-term profit forecasts, the Group censiders that there will be
sufficient profits in the future against which these trading losses will be offset

Deferred tax assets of £614 mullion for the Group (2013 £593 million) and £l for the Bank (2013 £mil) have not been recognised 1n respect of trading losses
carmned forward, mainly in certain averseas companies and in respect of cther temporary differences i the insurance business Trading losses ¢an be camed
forward indefinitely, except for losses (in the USA which expire after 20 years

Deferred tax assets of £190 million for the Group (2013 £169 million) and £l for the Bank (2013 £mil) have not been recognised in respect of capital losses
carned forward as there are no predicted future camtal profits Capital losses can be camed forward indefinitely

In addition, deferred tax assets have not been recegmsed In respect of unrelieved foreign tax carmed forward as at 31 December 2014 of £117 mullion for the
Group (2013 E£41 milion) and £78 million (2013 £2 mullion) for the Bank, as there are no predicled future taxable profits against which the unrelieved
foreign tax credits can be utihsed These tax credits can be camed forward indefinitely
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Payment
Provisions for protection  Other regulatory  Vacant leasehald
commitments tnsurance provisiens property Other Total
The Group Em £m £m Em £m Em
At 1 January 2014 177 2,807 1,008 69 427 4,488
Exchange and other adjustments (86} - - 15 (5) (76}
Provisions applied - (2,458) {1,104} (19) {184) (3,765}
Charge (retease) for the year 10 2,200 925 5 413 3,553
At 31 December 2014 101 2,549 829 70 651 4,200
Payment
Provisions for protection  Other regulatory  Vacant leasehold
commltments Insurance provislons praperty Other Total
The Bank £m £Em £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2014 66 1,739 415 31 300 2,551
Exchange and other adjustments {31} - - 15 11} 2n
Provisicns applied - (1,650} (667) - {140} {2,457)
Charge (release) for the year (7} 1,394 561 (18) 798 2,728
At 31 December 2014 28 1,483 309 28 947 2,795

Provisions for commitments
Provisions are held (n cases where the Group 1s trrevocably committed to advance additional funds, but where there 1s doubt as to the customer's ability to meet
its repayment obligations

Payment protection msurance

Following the unsuccessful legal challenge by the Bntish Bankers' Association against the Financial Services Authonty (FSAY (now known as the Financial
Conduct Authonty (FCA)) and the Financtal Ombudsman Service (FOS), the Group made provisions totalling £8,825 mullion to 21 December 2013 against the
costs of paying redress Lo customers in 1espect of past sales of PPI policies, including the related administrative expenses

Durning 2014 customer sitiated complaints have continued to fall, albeit slower than expected The proactive maibings have been substantially completed and
remediation of previously defended cases commenced A further £2,200 millon has been added to the provision in 2014, which brings the total amount
provided to £12,025 mithon, of which approximately £2,520 mulhon relates to anticipated administrative expenses

As at 31 December 2014, £2,549 million of the provision remained unutilised (21 per cent of total provision) relative to an average monthly spend including
adrmimistiation costs 1n 2014 of approximately of £205 mullion The main dnivers of the provision are as follows

Volumes of customer initiated complatnts (after excluding compiaints from customers where no PP pohcy was held)

At 31 December 2013, the provision assumed a total of 3 0 milhon complatnts would be received During 2014, complaint volumes were 22 per cent lower
than 2013, but continue to be higher than expected As a result, the Group is forecasting a slower decline in future volumes than previously expected, largely
due to more sustained Claims Management Company {CMC) actiwity, nen-CMC complaints have dechned sharply This has resulted in a further provision of
approximately £1,080 million At 31 December 2014, approxtmately 3 million complaints have been received, with the provision assuming approximately a
further O 6 millign complaints will be recerved in the future

Average monthly reactive Quarter on
Quarter complaint volume Quarter %
Qi 2012 109,893 o
Qz 2012 130,752 19%
Q3 2012 110,807 15)%
Q4 2012 84,751 (24)%
Ql 2013 61,253 (8%
Q22013 54,086 (2%
Q32013 49,555 @ (8%
Q42013 37,457 (24)%
Q1 2014 42,259 13%
Q2 2014 39,426 (7)%
Q3 2014__ _— - 40,624 3% Dunng the fourth quarter the Group has seen a fall of approximately 12 per cent in complaint
Q4 2014 35,910 {12)% levels However, the provision femains sensitive io future trends
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Proactve maiing resulting from Past Business Reviews (PBR)

The Group Js proactively mailing customers where 1L has been dentified that there was a nisk of potential mis-sale At 31 December 2014 mailing of the onginal
scope has been completed Dunng 2014, as a result of ongoing monitoning, some hinmited additional maihings have been added to the PBR scope In addition,
PBR responses to maiings have been tigher than expected resulting in a further provision for PBR of approximately £300 million added dunng 2014

Uiphold rates

Uphold rates have increased following changes to the complaint handling policy The impact to date and going forward resulted 1n a £110 milhen increase 1o
the prowision

Average regress
Average redress per policy has increased, reversing the trend seen in the first three quarters of 2014 This higher level 1s expected to continue going forward and
has resutted in an additional prowision for the year of £40 milion

Re-review of previously handied cases

Approximately O 6 mullion cases were included within the scope of remediation at 31 December 2013 These largely related to previously defended complaints
which are being reviewed again to ensure consistency with the current complaint handling policy, now n operation This exercise has commenced and 15
expected to be substantially complete by the end of June 2015, albeit with payments made in the second half of 2015 for some cases The Group expects o
uphold more of these cases due to the recent sncrease in uphold rates Further cases have also been added to the remediation scope and relate to previously
upheld cases These cases have previously recewved redress and may receive a top-up payment Given the increase in uphold rates and additional volumes to
the scope, this has resulted in a further prowvision for the year of £250 miilion

Expenses

The Group expects to maintain the PPI operation on its current scale for fonger than previously expected given the update to volume related assumptions and
the re-review of previousty handled cases continuing nto 2015 The estimate for administrative expenses, which comprise hitigation and complaint handling
costs as well as costs ansing from cases subsequently referred to the FOS, has increased by approximately £420 millon in 2014

An Enforcement team of the FCA 1 investigating the Group’s gavernance of third party suppliers and potential faiings in the PP1 complaint handling process
This investigation 1S ongoing and 1t 15 not passible al this stage to make any assessment of what, 1f any, additional ability may result from the investigation,
although the administration costs of supporting the investigation have been provided for previously

The Group estimates that it has sold approximately 16 million pohicies since 2000 These include policies that were not mis-sold as they were suitable for, and
appropnately disclosed to, the customer Since the commencement of the PP redress programme 0 2011 the Group estimates that it has contacted, settled or
provided for approxsmately 45 per cent of the policies sold since 2000, covenng both customer-tnitiated complaints and actual and expected proactive mailings
undertaken by the Group

The total amount provided for PPI represents the Group's best estimate of the hikely future costs, albert a number of nsks and uncertainties reman, including
complaint volumes, uphold rates, average redress paid, the scope and cost of proactive mailings and remediation, litigation costs and the outcome of the FCA

Enforcement investigation The cost of these factors could differ matenally from the Group’s estimates and the assumptions underpinning them and could result
i a further provision being required

Key metnics and sensitivities are highlighted n the table below

Sensitivitias! To date untess noted Future Sensitivity
Customer iniiated complaints since ongination (m)? 30 06 01 =4£230m
Proacnve_ylalllrlg__—_number of policies (m)? o 27 01 01 =£45m

- response rate* 34% 30% 1% = £3m
Average uphold rate per policy® 85% 80% 1% = £12m
Average redress per upheld policys J N W 1, £1790  £100 = £90m
Remediation Cas_es‘(m)7 o 02 10 1 case = £600
Administrative expenses (Em} i 2,035 485 1 case = £500
FOS Referal Ratet ‘ o T T a0% a0%  1%=£3m
FOS Chanée-li;eg' ) T o T o 5-8% ) _——3:0;; i 1;/.. = E:Zm

1Al sensitivities exciude claims where no PPI policy was held
*Sensitvty includes complaint handling costs and has increased as a result of higher uphold rates and a shift fowards older policies
3Tp date volume includes customer imbiated complaints

+Metric has been adjusted to include mature maings only Future response rates are expected to be lower than expenenced to date 25 mailings to higher risk customers have besn
priontised The sensitvity has reduced from the half year as the higher nsk population continues 1o decrease

5The percentage of complaints where the Group finds in favour of the customer This 15 a blend of proactive and customer imitated complaints The BS per cent upheld rate 15 based on
S1x months to Decermnber 2014 The lower uphold rate in the future reflects a lower proportion of PBR refated cases which typically have a higher uphold rate, reflecting the higher nsk
nature of those policy sales

6The amount that 15 paid i redress In relation to a poticy found to have been mis sold, compnsing where apphicable, the refund of premium compaund interest charged and :nterest
a3t 8 per cent per annumn Actuals are based on the six months to December 2014 The increase in future average redress 1s influenced by fewer PER policies due to the matunity of the
PBR mailing The increase 15 also due to a shift in the reactive complawnt m:x towards older and therefore mare expensive, policies

7Remediation to date 1s based on cases reviewed as at 31 Decernber 2014, but not necessanly seitled and alse includes a small portion relating 1o previously upheld complaints The
average cost included in the sensitivity 1s based on all cases included within the remediation scope and 15 therefore a weighted average of full payments, tog-up payments on previously
upheld cases and nil payouts where the onginal decision 15 eetained

aThe percentage of cases reviewed by the Group that are subsequently referred to the FOS by the custamer A complaint is considered mature when $ix months have elapsed since inital
decision Actuals are based on decisions made by the Group during January 2014 to June 2014 and subsequently referred to the FOS

9The percentage of complants referred where the FOS amve at a different decision to the Group Actuals are based on the six months to December 2014 The overturn rate to <ate 15
high as 1t cantinugs 1o include a significant number of cases assessed pnor to the implernentation of changes to the case review process dunng 2013
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The provision remains sensitive to future trends, as an example, were reactive complamt levels n the first two quarters of 2015 to remain broadly in ine with
the fourth quarter of 2014 then the rewsed modelled total complaints and associated adrmnistration costs would increase the prowision by approximately
£700 million

Other regulatory provistans

Lrtigation in relation to msurance branch business in Germany

Clencal Medical Investment Group Lumited (CMIG) has received a number of claims in the German courts relating te policies 1ssued by CMIG but sold
by independent intermedianes in Germany, principally duning the late 1990s and early 2000s Following decisions in July 2012 from the Federal
Court of Justice in Germany the Group recognised provisions totalling £400 milhon it 2012 and 2013 Volumes of claims have not decreased as
quickly as expected and as a result the Group has recognised a further £120 millen during 2014 brnging the total provision to £520 million The
remaining unutihsed provision as at 31 December 2014 15 £199 million

The validity of the claims facing CMIG depends upon the facts and circumstances in respect of each claim As a result the ulemate financial effect, which could
be significantly different from the current provision, will only be known once all relevant clarms have been resolved

LIBOR and other trading rates

Durntng 2014 the Group charged £225 million to the iIncome statement in respect of this matter In July, the Lloyds Banking Group announced that it
had reached settlements totalling £217 million {at 30 June 2014 exchange rates) to resolve with UK and US federal authonities legacy 1ssues regarding
the manipulatton saveral years ago of Group companies’ submissions to the Bntish Bankers’ Association {BBA} London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
and Sterhing Repo Rate

On LIBOR, the Lloyds Banking Group has reached setllements with the FCA in the United Kingdom, the United States Commodity Futures Trading
Commussion (CFTC) and the United States Department of Justice (D0OJ) i relation to investigations into submissions between May 2006 and 2009
and related systems and controls failings

The settlements in relation to LIBOR are part of an industry-wide investigation into the setting of interbank offered rates acress a range of currencies
Under the settlement, the Lloyds Banking Group has paid £35 milhion, £62 million and £50 milhon to the FCA, CFTC and DOJ respectively As part
of the settlement with the DOJ, the Lioyds Banking Group has 2(so entered into a two-year Deferred Prosecution Agreement in relation ta one count of
wire fraud relating to the setting of LIBCR

In relation to the BBA Sterling Repo Rate, the Lloyds Banking Group has reached a settlement with the FCA regarding submissions made between
Apnl 2008 and September 2009 This 1ssue involved four individuals who the FCA has concluded manipulated BBA Repo Rate subrmissions to reduce
fees payable under the Special Liquidity Scheme (SLS} The 1ssue was proactively brought to the FCA's attention when 1t was identified by the Lloyds
Banking Group as part of its internal investigation into the LIBOR 1ssues

The Lloyds Banking Group has paid £70 million to the FCA in connection with the resolution of the BBA Repo Rate 1ssue and related systems and
controls falings Both the CFTC and DOJ settlements are in respect of LIBOR only and neither agency has taken action regarding the BBA Repo Rate

The BBA Repo Rate was used by the Bank of England (BoE) to calculate the fees for the SLS Dunng the period that Lloyds TSB and HBOS used the SLS they
paid £1 278 mullion in fees, just under half of all the fees payable by the industry under the Scheme As a result of the actrons of the four individuals involved,
the Group has paid nearly £8 mllton to compensate the BoE for amounts underpaid {by Lloyds TSB and HBOS and the other banks that used the SLS)

Interest rate hedging products

In June 2012, a number of banks, including the Lloyds Banking Group, reached agreement with the FSA (now FCA) to carry out a review of sales made since
1 December 2001 of interest rate hedging products (IRHP) to certain small and medium-sized businesses As at 31 December 2014 the Lloyds Banking Group
had identified 1,676 sales of IRHPs to customers within scope of the agreement with the FCA which have opled in and are being reviewed and, where
appropriate, redressed The Lloyds Banking Group agreed that en conclusion of this review it would provide redress to any in-scope customers where appropnate
The Lloyds Banking Group continues to review the remaining cases within the scope of the agreement with the FCA but has met all of the regulator's
requirements 1o daie

During 2014, the Group has charged a further £150 mullion in respect of estimated redress costs, increasing the total amount prowided for redress and related
administration costs for in-scope customers to £680 million (31 December 2013 £530 milhon) This increase relates 10 an extension m the timetable for
custoners being able to opt-in to the review and the volume and complexity of clams As at 31 December 2014, the Group has utihsed £571 milion
{31 December 2013 £162 mullion), with £109 million (31 December 2013 £368 million) of the provision remaining

Other iegal actions and regulatory matters

In the course of its business, the Group I1s engaged 1n discussions with the PRA, FCA and other UK and overseas regulators and other governmental authorties
on a range of matters The Group also receives complaints and claims frem custarners in connection with 1ts past conduct and, where significant, prowisions are
held against the costs expected 1o be incurred as a result of the conclusions reached In 2014 the provision was increased by a further £430 mullion, in respect
of a number of matters affecting the Retail, Commercial Banking and Consumer Finance dwvisions, including potential claims and remediation in respect of
products sold through the branch network and continuing investigation of matters highhighted through indusiry-wide regulatory reviews, as well as legacy product
sales and histoncal systems and controls such as those governing legacy incentive schemes This brings the total amount charged to £730 milon of which
£209 miillion had been utiised at 31 December 2014 This increase reflected the Group’s assessment of a hmited number of matters under discussien, none
of which currently 15 individually considered finangially matenal in the context of the Group
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Vacant leasehold property

Vacant leasehald property provisions are made by reference 1o a prudent estimate of expected sub-let income, compared to the head rent, and the possibility of
disposing of the Group’s interest in the lease, taking into account conditions in the property market These provisions are reassessed on a biannual basis and
will normally run off over the period of under-recovery of the leases concerned, currently averaging four years, where a property s disposed of earlier than
anucipated, any remaining balance 1n the provision relating to that property 15 released

Other

Prowisions are made for staff and other costs related to Group restructunng initiatives at the point at which the Group becomes irrevocably committed to the
expenditure

Other provisions mclude those ansing out of the insolvency of a third party insurer, which remains exposed to asbestos and pollution claims in the US The
ultimate cost and timing of payments are uncertain The prowision held of £28 milhon at 31 December 2014 represents management’s current best estmate of
the cost after having regard to actuanal estimates of future losses

41 Suborchnated abilities

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m Em £m £m

Preferred secunbies 6,265 6,687 4,575 4,835

Undated suberdinated habilities 2,486 2,552 807 774

Dated subordinated habilities 23,222 24,295 16,208 16,991

Total subordinated habihties 31,973 33,534 21,590 22,600
The mavement in subordinated liabilities duning the year was as follows

The Group The Bank

£m £m

At 1 January 2013 37,590 26,249

Issued during the year ’ 1,500 -

Repurchases and redemptions dunng the year ) ) - - (5,048) {3,539)

Fareign exchange and other movements (508) (110)

At 31 December 2013 33,534 22,600

I-ssueddunnglheya_—- - o T T o T - R

Repurchases and redemptions durng the year T T (2,369) (1,380)

Forelggexc}ﬁ;g;;d other movgm;t's T T T N 808 N 370

At 31 December 2014 31,973 21,590

These securties will, in the event of the winding-up of the issuer, be subordinated 1o the claims of the depositors and all other creditors of the 1ssuer, other than
creditors whose claims rank equally with, or are junsor to, the claims of the holders of the subordinated habilities The subordination of the specific subordinated
labthities 15 determined In respect of the i1ssuer and any guarantors of that habiity The claims of holders of preference shares and preferred secunties are
generally junior 1o those of the holders of undated subordinated habilities, which in turn are Junior to the claims of the holders of the dated subordinated liabilities
Neither the Group nor the Bank has had any defaults of pnncipal, interest or ather breaches with respect to its subordinated habwlives dunng the year
(2013 none) No repayment or purchase by the issuer of the subordinated liabiities may be made pnior to thew stated matunity without the consent of the
Prudential Regulation Authonty
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2014 20:3
The Group Note £m tm
Preferred securrlles
6 90% Perpetual Capiial Secunties (US$1,000 million) ) - ’ T e - 209
Floatrng Rate Non- Cumu1atrve Callable Preference SI‘ETE? ;Ila_ble_EOI 5 (8600 mrlhon) T _a ’ 601— 6_01 ’
Floetrn_g?ate_ I;lon Cumula_tr‘ve_ (_Ze_llable Preference Shar% callable 2016 (US$1_OT)O_nt|o_n)_ o i Ta 642 Eoé
6% Non-cumulz;‘irv:a Redeemable Preferen—ce Sihﬁavreisf T T T *‘1;"# L .
'f'uS;S% Non- cu~rrTu|-at|ve Preferenc_e— Shares callable 26-1—3-5_560 mullion) i T o : T 3_93_“ B 213
7 875% Non-cumulative Preference Shares callable 2013 {US$1,250 million) c 808 761
6 35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2013 (€500 million) c, k - 212
7 834% Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumutative Preferred Secunities callable 2015 (£250 milion} T 5 5
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2017 (€750 million) 77 89
13% Step-up Perpetuat Capital Securiies callable 2019 {(£785 million) 10 8
13% Euso Step-up Perpetual Capral Secunties callable 2019 {€532 million} 47 50
12% Fixed to Floating Rate Perpew_al Tier 1 Capital Secunties callable 2024 (US$2, 000 miltion) T 1,326 1,211
13% Step-up Perpetuat Capital Securities callable 2029 (£700 million) i o 662 660
&6 071% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Secunties {USS750 milton) - T - 423
6-é5;’; ?wlon-cumularrve Perpetual Preferred Securities (ngl O—OO milhon) T c 259 ‘1‘21A
6 461% Guaranteed Non-votrrrg_Nrﬁ-cumulatrve Perpeurawl l;referred Securities (£'660-rrrrlﬂon3 o T 381 o 455
& 117% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securmes (Class A) (£2504rr_1rlA!|e;)m c.d o252 256
7 754% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Secunties (Class B) (£150 milhon) T T T 1os 101
_7@7% _(;‘.Ir_aran:eed Non :rozurg Non—cumulatrve Preferred Securrtres (£245 mrlllon) n T o ‘2_38_ 187
7 627% Fixed to Floatlng Rate Guarantesd Non voling Non-cumuTa{u; Preferied Securities o - T
(€415 million} c, f 77 66
4 939% MNon-voting Non- cumulatrve Perpetual Preferred Securmes {€750 mrllron) ’ T ’ 27 ) 26
7 286% Perpetual Regulator_y-'_l'l_er One Securrtres (Series A)_(.E150 milhen) T ’ N o i ’ 138 132
7 28717%; Eerpetual Regulaiery}rersne Securrtres (Series B) (£15[} million) ST T 117 90
Total preferred securnties 6,265 6,687
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2014 2013
Note £m £m

Undated subord:nated labilities
Primary Capuai Undated Floatlng Rate Notes S T T o T
Series 1 {US$750 million) T T T 172 162
Series 2 (US$500 million) o ) ) T T T s 189
Series 3 (US$600 millon) 7 ¢ 231 as
11 75% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (€100 millon) T T 102 102
6 625% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes {£410 rmillion) c e 5 6
5 125% Step-up Perpetual Subordinated Notes callable 2015 (£560 million) (Scotish Widows plc) 546 533
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 (£500 miliion) 2 2
6 5% Undated Subordinaied Step-up Notes callable 2019 (£270 rilion) 1 1
8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 rmillion} - -
6 5% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (£450 milhon) - -
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds callable 2032 (£500 million) o 114 114
5 626% Cumulative Callale Fixed to Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes callable 2019 T
(£500 mullion} - 5
4 875% Undated Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Instruments (€750 mibon) o o - 7
Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes (€500 million) S T T T 43
5 375% Undated Fixed to Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (US$1,000 million} - -
5 125% Undated Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes (€750 million) 50 49
5 75% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (£600 milhon} 2 3
6 05% Fixed to Floating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes (€500 milion) c g 10 B
7 5% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (£300 million) 4 5
8 625% Perpetual Subordinated Notes (£200 million) T o - -
7 375% Undated Subordlnaled Guaranteed Bonds (£200 millon} (Clencal Medlcal Finance pic) 41 - 44
Floating Rate Undated Subordmated Step-up Notes (€300 million} ' e 19 16
Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes (US$250 million) o T T e 116 109
10 25% Subordinated Undated Instruments (£100 million) - ‘ 1 1
12% Perpetual Subordmated Bonds (EIOD mllllon} ’ ) 20 . 20
8 75% Perpelua[éJbbrdmated Bonds (£100 mllllaF“ ) o T - 5 S ‘5A
13 625% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds (€75 mibon} o T 19
9 375% Perpetual Suberdinated Bonds (£50 millon) i T FTE T4
5 75% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (£500 milion) T T 6 4
4 25% Perpetual Fixed to Floating Rate Reset Subordinated Guaranteed Notes (€750 million) (Clencal o T T
Medical Ftnance pic) 295 283
7 375% Subordinated Undated Instruments (£150 million) - 7 - -
4 25% Subordlnated Undated Instruments (’Fl?: o—oﬁ m|II|on) - T -
Fioating Rate Undated Subordinated Notes {£524 million} (Scotish W|dows-Gr0|:|p Limited) 532 532
Total undated subordinated habilities 2,486 2552
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2013
£m

Daled subordmated habibties

Subordmated Floatlng Rate Motes 2014 (2464 m||||0n)

5875% Subordlnated Notes 2014 (5150 mllllon)

6 625% Subordmated Notes 2015 (€350 mllllon)

Subordlnaled Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 (E300 m:lhon)

Subordinated Step-up Floaung Rate Notes 2016 (€500 milon)

6 9625% Callable Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes 2020 callable 2015 (£750 million)
Subcrdinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 million)

5 75% Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes 2025 callable 2020 (£350 mullion}

9 625% Subordinated Bends 2023 (£300 milhon)

Subordinated Non-Interest Bearing Loan on rolling 6 year notice (£150 mullion)

11% Subordinated Bonds 2014 (£250 mllllon)

4 875% Subordinated Notes 2015 (€1 000 million}

Callable Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2016 (€500 million)

Caliable Floating Rate Subordinated Motes 2016 (€500 miliion)

Subordinated Callable Notes 2016 (US$750 million) )

Subordmated Callable Noles 2017 (€1,600 rilhon)
Subordinated Catlable Noles 2017 (US%$1,000 mllllon)

Subordinated Cafable Ftoatlng Rate Instruments 2017r {Aus$400 mllllun)

6 75% Subordinated Callable leed to Floatmg Rate Instruments 2017 (Aus$200 m||1|on)

5 109% Caltable Fixed to Float!ng Rale Notes 2017 (Can$500 million)

6 305% Subordmated Callab1e Fixed to Floating Rate Notes 2017 (£500 mullion)

465
155

701

10 5% Subordinated Bonds 2018 (£150 million) o
6 75% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2018 (US$2,000 million)

10 375% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2024 callable 2019 (€154 milhon)

6 375% Subordinated Instruments 2019 (£250 million)

4 375% Callable Fixed to Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2019 (€750 millicn)

6 5% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020 (€1,500 milhon)

7 375% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020

65% Sub"or-d_mf;ed Fixed Rate Notes 2020?053;2 000 million)
9 375% Subordinated Bonds 2021 (£500 million}

5 374% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2021 (€160 million) S ’
7 D7% Suhordinated Fixed Rate Notes 2023 (€175 million}

7 625% Dated Subordinated Notes 2025 (£750 millign)

86

1,433

1,231
617
147
175
822




Lloyds Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

41 Subordinated habilities {continued)

2014 2013
Note £m £m
Dated subordinated habtlities {continued)
4'50% Fixed Rate Step-up Subordinated Notes due 2030 (€750 milton) T 506| 445
6% Subordiated Notes 2033 (US$750 miliion) T T T a3l | 313
11 875% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 callable 2016 (€1,147 million) T 923 | 975
10 75% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 callable 2016 (£466 mitlion) o as5| | as8
9 875% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 caliable 2016 (US$568 million) 369 349
10 125% Subord:nated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 callable 2016 (Can$387 million) 217 223
13% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 callable 2016 (Aus$417 million) 228 234
5 50% Subordinated Notes 2023 (EB50 mullion) (Scothish Widows plc) ’ 930 794
7 00% Subordinated Notes 2043 (£650 mulion) (Scottish Widows plc} 708 593
11 77% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€115 milhon) a5 99
10 81% Suborcinated Notes 2020 (€78 mllllon) 66 68
10 65% Subordinated Notes 2019 (£1,005 million) ’ 958 C 977
10 17% Subordinated Notes 2020 (US$361 million) S ’ . 2a2| | 225
11 84% Subordmated Notes 2020 (€496 million) T i 427 441
11 84% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€532 million). » - D - N 459 a73
10 21% Subordinated Notes 2020 (US$1,095 millon) R =7 B Tt
11 88% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€176 million) 148 | 154
10 24% Subordinated Notes 2020 (US$854 mllion) 572 | 532
10 61% Subordinated Notes 2020 (£773 million) o N 772 774
10 33% Subordinated Notes 2021 (US$243 million). 161 150
10 67% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€614 milony 650 | 637
10 69% Subordinated Notes 2020 (£517 milon) T o 543 534
10 75% Subordinated Notes 2022 (£101 milhon) i 97 95
10 85% Subordinated Notes 2019 (£91 million) 94 93
10 86% Subordinated Notes 2019 (£292 million) o ' 309 303
10 89% Subordinated Notes 2020 (£207 mullion) 213 211
10 88% Subordinated Netes 2019 (£4 million) 3 4
10 90% Subordinated Netes 2020 (£65 million) 65 65
10 90% Subordinated Notes 2019 (£126 million) - i S T | 131
10 91% Subordinated Notes 2023 (£100 mibor wi| | 101
11 02% Subordinated Notes 2024 (£83 millon} i 81| 82
10 94% Subordmated Notes 262_0_651_36_;1““%) o /T, e | T T1a3) 142
10 95% Subordinated Notes 2024 (€39 milhory T T T T Y T s T 39
10 97% Subordinated Notes 2020 <€39 million) T T T T T 1T 39| 40
10 92% Subordinated Notes 2024 (E83 mlony T 1 gg| | 8
11 07% SUmrdlnateE-N&es 2029 (€92 mtion) e | e
11 18% Submdmaled Notes 2023 (£57 milhion) 58 58
11 21% Subordinated Notes 2023 (€67 mio) T e8| | es
11 46% Subordinated Notes 2029 (€92 miliord T T T Tes| | 93
11 52% Subordinated Nates 2032 (£84 million) 87 86
11 35%-Subord|nated Notes 2019 (€603 million) 454 492
11 42% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€30 msllion) 27 T 28
Total dated subordinated iabilities 23,222 24,295
Total subordinated habihties 31,973 33,534

At 31 December 2014 £27,532 million (2013 £32,639 mullien} of subordinated hatilities had a contractuai residual matunty of greater than one year
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2014 2013
The Bank Note £m £Em
Preferred secunties
6 90% Perpetual Capital Secunties (US$1,000 milhon) e -1 209
Floanng Rate Non Cumulatweaagle—l‘r;;rence éh;:e; E:;ﬁa;t;l; §Of5 (5660 m||I|Aon‘)#_” T T T a 601 e 601_
Floatlng Rate Non-Cumulative Callable Preference Shares callable 2016 (U (US$1_OT)6 million) a 642 - 605
6% N;mm;ERedeemable Preference Shares T b - -
7 875% Non-cumulative Preference shares callable 2013 (€500 milom c 393 419
7 875% Non-cumulative Preference shares callable 2013 (US$1,250 million) c “Tgos| 761
6 35% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2013 (€500 millien) ¢ k - 212
7 834‘—% Sterling Step-up Non-Voting Non-Cumulative Preferred Secunties catlable 2015 (£250 million) ) 5 7 5
4 385% Step-up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2017 (€750 million} 77 89
13% Step-up Perpetual Capital Securities callable 2019 (£785 million) 12 11
13% Step—up Perpetual Capital Secunties callable 2019 (€532 million) a7 50
13% Step-up Perpetual Capnal SeCL;rm;s::;IIabTe ZME)EMQH (_£7'-OO- rr;iIIEu:l—)w T T o ’ 1 EGZI T _6é2
12% Fixed to Floating Rate Perpetual Tier 1 Caprlal Securtes callable 2024 (US$2,000 miloy | 1326 | 1211
o T T o T T 4,575 o 4,835
Undated subordmated labites e I
P_nmary Capital Undated FiéaF;gRate Notes S T e o T T ) o
Sertes 1 (US$750 million) o c 172 162
Series 2 (US$500 million) c 180 169
Series 3 (US$600 millon) T c 231 218
11 75% Perpelual Subordinated Bonds (£100 million) T 102 102
6 625% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes (£410 mllllon) ce 5 o g
5 125% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2016 (£2500 million) 2 T 2
6 5% Undated Subcrdinated Step-up Notes callable 2019 (£270 million) T 1 1
8% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2023 (£200 mutlion) - -
6 5% Undated Subordinated Step-up Notes callable 2029 (£450 mllllon) ) - -
6% Undated Subordinated Step-up Guaranteed Bonds cailable 2032 (£500 milhion) 114 114
i ) 807 774
Da’ted subardlnated I|ab|||t|es ‘
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2014 (£464 million) _ T T T oo T oy 465
5 875% Subordinated Notes 2014 (€150 mibor) b | 155
6 625% Subordinated Notes 2015 (€350 million) o 369 V!
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 (£300 mslhon) c - 183
Subordinated Step-up Floating Rate Notes 2016 (€500 millon) c - 172
6 9625% Callable Subordinated Fixed to Floatmg Rate Notes due 2020 callable 2015 (£750 million) 754 749
Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020 (€100 m||||on) 78 85
5 75% Subordinated Fixed to Floating Rate Notes 2025 callable 2020 (£350 millon) T | 3ss 374
9 625% Subordinated Bonds 2023 (£300 millon) o T T T | 341
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41 Subordinated lizbihties {continued)

2014 2013
The Bank (continued} Note £m £m
Dated subordinated habilibies {continued)
Subordinated Non-Interest Bearmg Loan on rofling 6 year notice (£150 million) 150 150
10 375% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2024 callable 2019 (€154 mion) T a0l | a7
6 5% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020 (€1,500 millian) T i T | | 1,433
7 375% Dated Subordinated Notes 2020 3 3
65% Subordmated leed Rate Notes 2020 (US$$2,000 millign) ) i 1,338 1,231
7 625% Dated Subordinated Notes 2025 (€750 million) 911 828
11 875% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 callable 2016 (€1,147 milon) | 923 975
10 75% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 callable 2016 (£466 milkon) ST T an 466
9 875% Subordmated Fixed to Fixed Rate Motes 2021 callable 2016 (US$568 million} 369 349
10 125% Subordmated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 2021 callable 2016 (Can$387 million} 217 223
13% Subordinated Fixed to Fixed Rate Notes 202t callable 2016 {Aus$417 milkon) S 228 234
11 77% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€115 milior) T T BT
11 81% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€78 million) 66 68
10 55% Subordinated Notes 2019 {£1,005 milhion} ’ 958 977
10 17% Subordinated Notes 2020 (US$361 million) T 242 225
Qa%'s'uﬁaﬁa@ I‘To_tes 2020 (€496 million) 7 _;4___ T _7_7 S :,i ) 427 T o441
11 84% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€532 milion) 459 473
10 21% Subordinated Notes 2020 (US$1,095 mitlion) 732 681
11 88% Subordmated Notes 2020 (€176 million) 148 154
10 24% Subordinated Notes 2020 (US$854 million} i ’ 572 532
10 61% Subordinated Notes 2020 (6773 millon) o T 772 774
10 33% Subordmated Notes 2021 (US$243 miflon} - i T e 150
10 67% Subordinated Notes 2020 (£614 milion} 650 637
10 69% Subordinated Notes 2020 (£517 million) T i 543 534
10 75% Subordinated Notes 2022 (E101 million) ] 97 99
10 85% Subordinated Notes 2019 (£91 mibon) - 9 I o3
10 86% Subordinated Notes 2019 (£292 millony ST T 309 T am
10 89% Subordinated MNotes 2020 (£207 milhon) 213 211
10 88% Subordinated Notes 2019 (€4 millon) T T 3 4
10 90% Subordinated Notes 2020 (£65 mllion) T 65 65
10 90% Subordinated Notes 2018 (€126 mtlion) T T T T e 131
10 91% Subordinated Notes 2023 (£100 million) 101 101
11 02% Subordinated Notes 2024 {£83 million) 81 az
10 94% Subordinated Notes 2020 {£139 mllllon) 143 142
10 95% Subordinated Notes 2024 (£39 mullon) - N 39
10 96% Subordinated Notes 2020 (£39 milkon) T i T 39 T 40
10 92% Subordinated Notes 2024 (£83 millipn) 86 a5
11 07% Subordinated Notes 2029 (£92 milhon) 91 92
11 18% Subardinated Notes 2023 (£57 million) . i 58 58
11 21% Subordinated Notes 2023 (€67 milion) T T T T T Tee| 68
11 46% Subordnated Notes 2029 (£92 mion) . R Y B
11 52% Subordinated Notes 2032 (£84 million) 87 86
11 35% Subordinated Notes 2019 (€603 nullion} . 454 492
11 42% Subordinated Notes 2020 (€30 million) T 27 28
Total dated subordinated I|ab1||l|es_ - T T T 16,208 - 16,991
Total subordinated habilittes 21,590 22,600

At 31 Decemnber 2014 £18,654 million {2013 £21,980 million) of subardinated habthties had a contractual residual matunity of greater than one year
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41 Subordinated habihties (contsinued)

a) In certain circumstances these preference shares may be mandatonly exchanged for qualifying non-innovative tier 1 securiies The Bank may declare no dividend or a partial
dividend on these preference shares Dwvidends may be reduced if the distributable profits of the Bank are insufficient to cover the payment in full of the dividends and also the
payment in full of all other dividends on shares issued by the Bank

b) Since 2004 the Bank has had in ssue 400 6 per cent non cumulative receemable preference shares of 25p each The shares, which are redeemable at the option of the Bank at
any time, carry the nghts to a fixed rate non-cumulative preferential dividend at a rate of 6 per cent per annum, ng dividend shall be payable in the event that the directors determine
that prudent capital ratios would not be maintained if the dividend were paid Upon winding up the shares rank equally with any cther preference shares 1ssued by the Bank

¢) These secunties have passed their first call dates, and are callable at specific dates as per the terms of the secunties at the option of the 1ssuer and with the approval of the PRA
d} The fixed rate on this secunty was reset from 8 117 per cent to 6 059 per cent with effect from 31 May 2010

e) The fixed rate payable on this secunty was reset from 6 625 per cent to 4 64821 per cent with effect from 15 July 2010

) The fixed rate on this secunty was reset from 7 627 per cent to 3 months Eunbor plus 2 875 per cent with effect from 9 December 2011

g) The fixed rate on this secunty was reset from 6 05 per cent to 3 month Eunibor plus 2 25 per cent with effect from 23 November 2011

h} The (nterest rata payable on this security was reset from 6 75 per cent fixed to Bank Bill Swap Rate plus O 76 per cent with effect from 1 May 2012

1} The interest rate payable on this secunty was reset from 5 109 per cent fixed to Canadian Dealer Cffered Rate plus O 65 per cent with effect from 21 June 2012

1} The interest rate payable on this security was reset from 6 305 per cent fixed to 3 month Libor plus 1 2 per cent with effect from 18 Oclober 2012

K) The fixed rate on this secunty was reset frem 6 35 per cent to 3-month Eutibor plus 2 50 per cent wath effect from 25 February 2013

42 Share capital
{1) Authonsed share capital

Group and Bank

2014 2013
£m £m
Sterling
1,650 m||.I|0n t;rd|nary shares c;f £1 each 1,650 ’ 1,650
1 cumulative floating rate Preference share of £1 - -
100 6 per cent Non-Cumulaiive Redeemable Pr;afere;lce shares-of £1 each T ’ i o LT T
175 millon Preference shares of 26p each 7 - 4 4
1,694 1,694
US dollars ussm ussm
160 million Preference shares of 25 cenls each 40 40
Eure €m €m
160 million Preference shares of 25 cents each o 40 40
Japanese yen ¥m ¥m
50 milhon Preference shares of ¥25 each 1,250 1,250
{2) Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
2014 2013 2014 2013
Number of shares  Number of shares £m £m
Sterfing
Ordinary shares of £1 each } ] T
At 1 January and 31 December 1,574,285,751 1,574,285,751 1,574 1,574

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares, who held 100 per cent of the total ordinary share capital at 31 December 2014, are entitled 1o receive the Bank's report and
accounts, attend, speak and vote at general meetings and appoint proxies to exercise voting nights Holders of ordinary shares may also receive a dividend
(subject to the provisions of the Bank's articles of assocration} and on a winding up may share in the assets of the Bank

Issued and fully paid preference shares
The Bank has 1n 1ssue vanous classes of preference shares which are all classified as babihties under IFRS and details of which are shown in note 41

43 Share premium account

Group and Bank

2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 January and 31 December 35,533 35,533
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44 (Other reserves

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Other reserves comprise
Merger reserve 6,348 6,348 - -
Revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale financial assets (736) (1,273) (211} {573}
Cash flow hedging reserve 1,357 827 1,257 -
Foreign currency translation reserve {127) {125} 75 72
At 31 December 6,842 4,123 1,121 (501
Movements in other reserves were as follows
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £Em £m
Merger reserve
At 1 January and 31 December 6,348 6,348 - -
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Revaluation reserve in respect of available-for-sale financial assets
AL fanoay T qaemy (@59 573y 792
Ad;us“tment on traﬁs?er f;o—m held-to-matum); pgrktfoilm) B i -1 -1 -] -
bﬁ@ﬁ tar value of available-for-sate financial assets S T ers —TgQO) B 364 (?3?35;
Deferred tax N ST T T _(Ei) T ) az| | 12¢
Cuventtax I T ) - R .
o T ST T 614 (585) 352 (760}
Income statement transfers
Disposals (see note 9) {131) (629 11 (842}
Deferred tax i 52 185 @ 237
(79) (444) 9 (605)
Impairment 2 18 1 -
Deferred tax - (3) - -
) CT o 2 15 1 -
At 31 December (736) (1,273) {211) (573)
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Cash flow hedging reserve
At 1 January . ) (827) 500 - (16)
Change In fatr value of h;dg]né dervatives ) o 3,896 {1,229} 1,799 21
Deferred tax ) o " (765) 259 (360) ®)
) 3,131 (970) 1,439 16
Income statement transfers_ (1,165) (566) (227} -
Defered tax T S 28| | ue| |7 as| -
T (947) @a7) (1821 -
At 31 December 1,357 (827) 1,257 -
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44 Other reserves (continued)

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Foreign currency translation reserve
ALl Ja;ﬁary - o T - T {12%) ’ —_—(-10_(_5)—- 72 "9_8-
Eu_r;aacﬂy}anslatloz d?fe?e_ncggnsﬁg El the_year T T o --(-24) - _-(r68) o “?_““ (26)
Foreign currency gains (losses) on net investment hedges (tax £nil) - 22 w9 - TS
At 31 December (127) (125} 75 72
45 Retained profits
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2,509 2,618 4,532 1,184
Profit (toss) for the year! 1,780 (402) 2,501 2,772
Adjustment on sale of non-controlling interest in TSB (note 56) (171} - - -
Post-retizement defined benefit scheme remeasurements 539 ) {108} 247 320
Capntal contnbuton receved T - 367 B ———40—1 515 25_6
Value —ofe_rnployee SErvices ’ ’ T 2 - . -
Return of capital contribution ) - - (198) - (i98) I
At 31 December 4,828 2,509 7,592 4532

INo income statement has Deen shown for the Bank, as permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

46 Ordinary dividends

No dividends were paid on the Bank's ordinary shares in 2013 or 2014 The board have recommended a dividend of £540 millien which subject to approval
by shareholders, will be paid in May 2015 and has not been reflected in these financial statements

47 Share-based payments

Share-based payment scheme details

Dunng the year ended 31December 2014 Lloyds Banking Group pic operated a number of share-based payment schemes for which employees of the Lloyds
Bank Group were elygible and all of which are equity settled Details of all schemes operated by Lloyits Banking Group are set out befow, these are managed
and operated on a Lloyds Banking Group-wide basis The amount charged to the Group's income statement 1n respect of Lloyds Banking Group share-based
payment schemes, and which 1s included within stafi costs {note 1 1), was £340 million {2013 £399 mitlion)

Deferred bonus plans
The Lioyds Banking Group operates a number of deferred bonus plans that are equity settled Bonuses in respect of employee performance tn 2014 have been
recognised 1n the charge in hne with the proportion of the deferral penod completed

Lloyds Banking Group executive share option schemes

The executive share option schemes were long-term incentive schemes available to certain senior executives of the Lloyds Banking Group, with grants usually
made annually Qptions were granted within limits set by the rules of the schemes ielating to the number of shares under option and the pnce payable cn the
exercise of options The last grant of executive options was made in August 2005 These options were granted without a performance multiphier and the
maximum limit for the grant of options 1n ngrmal ¢ircumstances was three times annual salary Between March 2004 and August 2004, the aggregate value of
the award based upon the market price at the date of grani could not exceed four imes the executive’s annual remuneration and, normially, the hrmt for the grant
of options to an executive In any one year would be equal to 1 5 times annual salary with a maximum performance multipher of 3 5

Performance conditions for executive options

For options granted 1in 2004
The performance condition was linked to the performance of Lioyds Banking Group plc's total shareholder return {calculated by reference to both dividends and
growth in share price) against a comparator group of 17 companies including Lioyds Banking Group plc

The performance conditton was measured over a three year pencd which commenced at the end of the financial year preceding the grant of the option and
continued until the end of the third subsequent year If the performance condition was not then met, 1t was measured at the end of the fourth financial year I
the condition was not then met, the options would lapse
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To meet the performance condiions, the Lloyds Banking Group's ranking against the comparator group was required to be at least minth The full grant of options
only became exercisable If the Lloyds Banking Group was ranked first A performance multipher {of between nil and 100 per cent) was applied below this level
to calculate the number of shares in respect of which options granted 10 Executive Directors would become exercisable, and were calculated on a shiding scale
If Loyds Banking Groug plc was ranked below median the options would not be exercisable

Options granted to senior executives cther than Executive Direclors were not so highly levesaged and, as a result, different performance multipliers were appled
{o their options  For the majonty of executives, options were granted with the performance condition but with no performance multipher

Options granted in 2004 became exercizable as the performance condition was met on the re-test The performance condition vested at 14 per cent for Executive
Directers, 24 per cent for Managing Directors, and 10Q per cent for all other executrves

All options granted 1in 2004 lapsed on 18 March 2014 and 12 August 2014

For options granted 0 2005
The same conditions applied as for grants made in 2004, except that

- the performance condition was linked to the performance of Lloyds Banking Group plc's total shareholder return (calculated by reference to both dwvidends
and growth in share pnce) against a8 comparator group of 15 companies including Lloyds Banking Group plc,

- if the performance condition was not met at the end of the third subsequent year, the options would lapse, and

- the full grant of options became exercisable only If the Lloyds Banking Group was ranked in the top four places of the comparator group A shiding scale applied
between fourth and eighth posittons If Lloyds Banking Group was ranked below the median (ruinth or below) the options would lapse

Options grantes 1n 2005 became exercisable as the performance condition was met when tested The performance condition vested at 82 5 per cent for all
options granted

Movements in the number of share options outstanding under the executive share option schemes dunng 2014 and 2013 are set out below

2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
average average
Nurnber of exercise price Number of BXEICISE price
options {pence) options (pence)
Outstanding at 1 lanuary 6,052,593 224 04 8,044,896 224 95
Forfeited - - (1,992,303) 22770
Lapsed {3,417,306) 21539 - -
Outstanding at 31 December 2,635,287 235 26 6,052,593 224 04
Exercisable at 31 December 2,635,287 23526 5,052,593 22403

No oplions were exercised dunng 2014 or 2013 The weighted average remaining contractual ife of options outstanding at the end of the year was 0 2 years
(2013 0 8 years) The fair values of the executive share options have been determined ustng a standard Black-Scholes model

Save-As-You-Earn schemes

Elgible employees may enter into contracts through the Save-As-You-Earn schemes to save up to £500 per month and, at the expiry of a fixed term of three or
five years, have the option to use these savings within six months of the expiry of the fixed term to acquire shares in the Lioyds Banking Group at a discounted
price of no less than 80O per cent of the market price at the start of the invitation

Movements In the number of share opbions outstanding under the SAYE schemes are set out below

2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of  exercise price Number of eXercise price
options {pence) options {pence)
Outstanding at 1 January 500,969,617 4116 314,572,023 48 01
Granted 326,565,564 6002 510,414,399 4062
Exercised (7,287,899) 41 29 (294,905,606} 46 78
Forfeited {18,949,167) 4168 (7,715,717 4308
Cancelled (15,561,144) 54 04 (10,761,588) 45 61
Expired (2,110,588) 4815 (10,633,894) 56 28
Qutstanding at 31 December 783,626,383 48 73 500,969,617 41 16
Exercisable at 31 December 1,852 180 66 2,255,239 12076

The weighted average share price at the time that the options were exercised during 2014 was £0 77 (2013 £065) The weighted average remaining
contractual life of ophions outstanding at the end of the year was 2 6 years (2013 2 9 years)

The weighted average fair value of SAYE options granted dunng 2014 was £0 22 (2013 £0 24) The fair values of the SAYE options have been determined
using a standard Black-Schotes model
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For the HBOS sharesave plan, no options were exercised dunng 2014 or 2013 The ophions outstanding at 31 December 2014 had an exercise price of
£1 8066 (2013 £1 8066) and a weighted average remaiming contractual life of 1 4 years (2013 1 1 years)

Other share optron plans

Uoyds Banking Group Executive Share Plan 2003

The Plan was adopted in December 2003 and under the Plan share ophions may be granted to senior employees Options under this plan have been granted
specifically to faciltate recruitment and as such were not subject to any performance conditions The Plan is used not only to compensate new recruits for any
lost share awards but also to make grants to key individuals for retention purposes with, in some instances, the grant being made subject to individual
performance conditions

For options granted on 27 March 2014 under the Commercial Banking Transformation Plan {CBTP}, the number of options that may be delivered in March
2017 may vary by a factor of O-4 from the onginal ‘on-target’ award, depending on the degree to which the performance conditions have been met An ‘on-target’
vesting 1$ contingent upon Commercial Banking achieving £2 5 billion Underlying Profit and 2 per cent Return on Risk Weighled Assets ('RORWA'} on
31 December 2016 The Plan will pay out at between £1 9 billion and £3 billion undetlying peofit, and between 1 6 per cent and 2 5 per cent RORWA

Participants are not entitled to any dividends paid dunng the vesttng period

2014 2013
Weighted

average Weighted average
Number of exerclse price Number of exercise price
optlons {pance} options (pence)
Qutstanding at 1 January 37,354,979 Nl 45,614,150 Nil
Granted 225,424,109 Wil 9,284,956 Nl
Exercised ) )  (21,870,649) NIl (16,079,222) NIl
Forfeited (7,114,199) Nil (1,290,720} Nil
Lapsed (405,156) Nil (174,185} Nl
Qutstanding at 31 December 233,389,084 NIl 37,354,979 Nil
Exercisable at 31 December 9,068,802 Nil 4,275,432 Nib

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the year was £0 72 (2013 £0 56) The fair values of options granted have been determined using a
standard Black-Scholes model The weighted average share price at the time that the options were exercised dunng 2014 was £0 75 (2013 £055) The
weighted average remaning contractual hfe of options outstanding at the end of the year was 7 0 years (2013 3 6 years)

toyds Banking Group Share Buy Out Awards
As part of arrangements to facilitate the receuitment of certain Executives, options have been granted by individual deed and, where appropnate, in accordance
with the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority

The awards were granted 1n recogmition that the Executives’ outstanding awards over shares tn their previous employmng company lapsed on accepting
employment with the Lloyds Banking Group

Movements in the number of options outstanding are set out below

2014 2013
Weighted

average Weighted average
Number of  exercise price Number of exercise prce
options {pence} options {pence)
Qutstanding at 1 January 11,172,600 NIl 21,321,237 Nil
Exercised (5,173,429} NIl (5,953,810} Nil
Forferted - Nil (4,194,827) Nl
Outstanding at 31 December 5,999,171 Nil 11,172,600 Nil
Exerctsable at 31 December 5,999,171 Nil 11,083,749 Nl

No options were granted in 2014 or 2013 The weighted average rematning contractual Iife of options gutstanding at the end of the year was 6 7 years {2013
7 5 years}

The weighted average share price at the time the options were exercised dunng 2014 was £0 70 (2013 £075)

Participants are entitled to any didends paid during the vesting perniod Thus amount will be paid in cash unless the Remuneration Commitiee decides it will be
paid in shares

The farr vatues of the majonty of options granted have been determined using a standard Black-Scholes mogel The farr values of the remaining options have
been determined by Monte Carlo simulation
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HBOS share option plans

The table below details the outstanding options for the HBOS Share Option Plan and the St James's Place Share Qption Plan The final award under the HBOS
Share Option Plan was made wn 2004 Under this plan, options over shares, at market value with a face value equal to 20 per cent of salary, were granted to
employees with the exception of certain senior executives A separate option plan exists for some partners of St James's Place, which granted options in respect
of Lloyds Banking Group plc shares The final award under the St James's Place Share Option Plan was made in 2009 Movements in the number of share
options outstanding under these schemes are set out below

Dunng 2013 the Lloyds Banking Group completed the sale of all of its holding in St James’s Place plc The participants of the St James's Place Share Option
Plan remain entitled to the Lioyds Banking Group plc shares awarded under the terms of this Plan and these options are included in the table below

Participarts are not entitled to any dividends paid dunng the vesting perod

2014 2013
Weighted

average Weighted average
Number of exercise price Number of exercise prce
optlions {pence) options (pence)
Quistanding at 1 January 13,119,584 36976 19,857,692 36376
Exercised ) (5,222,260) 51 83 (2,609,272) 5183
Forfeited o (103,007) 580 (24(?,349) 568 80
Lapsed (321,138) 580 (2,144,026) 546 43
Cancelled (7,473,179) 580 (1,744,461) 532 39
Qutstanding at 31 December - - 13,119,584 369 76
Exercisable at 31 December - - 13,119,584 36976

The werghted average share pnce at the time the options were exercised duning 2014 was £0 77 (2013 £072)
The aptions under the HBOS Share Option Plan and St James's Place Share Option Plan lapsed on 15 March 2014 and 20 Apnl 2014 respectively

Other share plans

tloyds Banking Group Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) mtroduced in 2006 1s aimed at delivenng shareholder value by linking the receipt of shares to an improvement in the
performance of the Lloyds Banking Group over a three year period Awards are made withwn irmits set by the rules of the Plan, with the imits determining the

maximum number of shares that can be awarded equating 10 three times annual salary In exceptional circumstances this may increase 1o four times annual
salary

Participants may be entitled 1o any dividends paid during the vesting penod «f the performance condiions are met An amount equal in value to any dwvidends
paid between the award date and the date the Remuneration Committee determine that the perfermance conditions were met may be paid, based on the number
of shares that vest The Remuneration Committee will determine if any dividends are to be paid in cash or in shares

The performance conditions for awards made in March and September 2011 are as follows

{) EPS relevant to 50 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based on 2013 adjusted EPS outcome
If the adjusted EPS reaches 6 4p, 25 per cent of this ¢lement of the award, being the threshold, will vest
If adjusted EPS reaches 7 8p, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting hetween threshold and maxtmum will be on a straight line basts

{n) EP relevant to 50 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based on 2013 adjusted EP outcome

if the adjusted EP reaches £567 millian, 25 per cent of this element of the award, bemg the threshold, will vest If the adjusted EP reaches £1,534 milhon,
100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight hine basis

For awards made to Executive Directors, a third performance condition was set, relating to Absolute Total Sharehaider Return, relevant to one thud of the award
Performance will be measured based on the annualised Absolute Total Shareholder Return over the three year performance penod I the annualised Absolute
Total Shareholdes Return at the end of the performance penad 1s less than 8 per cent, none of this element of the award will vest If the Absolute Total Shareholder
Retumn 1s 8 per cent, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest If the Abselute Total Shareholder Return s 14 per cent or higher,
100 per cent of this element will vest Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis The EPS and EP performance conditions wil)
each relate to 33 3 per cent of the tolal award

At the end of the performance period for the EPS and EP measures, the targets had not been fully met and therefore these awards vested in 2014 at a rate of
68 per cent {54 per cent for members of the Group Executive Commuttee, mcluding Executive Directors)

The performance condtions for awards made n March and September 2012 are as follows

(1) EP relevant to 30 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based on 2014 ad)usted EP outcome
If the adjusted EP reaches £225 mullion, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, wilk vest
If the adjusted EP reaches £2,330 mullion, 100 per cent of this element wall vest

Vesung between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis
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Share-based payments {continued)

Absolute Total Shareholder Return (ATSR) relevant to 30 per cent of the award Performance will be measured against the annualised return over the
three year peniod ending 31 December 2014

If the ATSR reaches 12 per cent per annum, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest

If the ATSR reaches 30 per cent per annum, 100 per ¢ent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight ine basis

Short-term funding as a percentage of total funding relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured refative to 2014 targets
If the average percentage reaches 20 per cent, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest

If the average percentage reaches 15 per cent, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum wilt be on a straight ine basis

Non-core assets at the end of 2014 relevant 1o 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured by reference to balance sheet non-core assets at
31 December 2014

If non-core assets amount to £95 bilhon or less, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest

if non-core assets amount to £80 billion or less, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight tne basis

Net Simplification benefits refevant to 10 per cent of the award  Performance will be measured by reference 1o the run rate achieved by the end of 2014
If a run rate of net Simplification benefits of £1 5 billion 1s achieved, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, wiil vest

If a run rate of net Simplification benefits of £1 8 hon 1s achieved, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis

FCA reportable complaints relevant o 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured by reference to the total number of FSA reportable
complaints per 1,000 customers (excluding PPl comptaints) over the three year penod to 31 December 2014

If complaints per 1,000 customers average 1 5 per annum or [8ss over three years, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest
If complaints per 1,000 customers average 1 3 per annum or less over three years, 130 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basts

Al the end of the performance period, 1t has been assessed that rewards will vest at 97 per cent of maxmum

performance conditions for awards made in March and Octeber 2013 are as follows

EP relevant 1o 35 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based on 2015 adjusted EP cutcome

If the adjusted EP reaches £1,254 million, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, wll vest

If the adjusted EP reaches £1,881 million, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between thieshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis

Absolute Total Shareholder Return (ATSR) relevant to 30 per cent of the award Perfermance will be measured against the annuahsed return over the
three year period ending 31 December 2015

if the ATSR reaches 8 per cent per annum, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest

if the ATSR reaches 16 per cent per annum, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum wall be on a straight line basis

Adjusted totat costs relevant to 10 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based cn 2015 adjusted total costs
If adjusted total costs are £9,323 milhon or less, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest
If adjusted total costs are £8,973 mullion or less, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight ine basis

Non-core assets excluding UK Retall at the end of 2015 relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured by reference to balance
sheet non-core assets at 31 December 2015

If non-core assets amount to £37 bithon or less, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest
If non-care assets amount to £28 tithon or fess, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between threshotd and maximum will be on a straight line basis

FCA reportable complaints relevant {0 10 per cent of the award Perfermance will be measured by reference to the total number of FCA reportable
complaints per 1,000 customers over the three year penod to 31 December 2015
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If complaints per 1,000 customers average 1 05 per annum or less over three years, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will
vest

If complamts per 1,000 customers average O 95 per annum or less over three years, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on 3 straight line basis

{vi) SME lending relevant to 5 per cent of the award Performance wall be measured by reference to the movement in lending to SMEs relative to the market
as reported by the Bank of England over the three year penod ending 31 December 2015

If the moverment in SME lending equates to this market movement, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshoid, will vest
If the movement in SME lending 1s 4 per cent or more greater than the market movemnent, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between threshold and maxumum wall be on a straight ine basis
In addition, short-term funding must iemarn within that stated in the Lloyds Banking Group's Risk Appetite throughout the three year penod ta 31 December 2015

The weighted average fair value of the share awards granted in 2014 was £0 62 (2013 £0 34} The fair values of the majonty of share awards granted have been
determined using a standard Black-Scholes model The fair values of the remaining share awards have been determined by Monte Carlo simulation
The perfarmance conditions for awards made in March and August 2014 are as follows
{) EP relevant 1o 30 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based on 2016 adjusted EP outcome
If the adjusted EP reaches £2,154 million, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold will vest
It the adjusted EP reaches £3,231 millicn, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight hne basis

(1) Absolute Tota! Shareholder Return (ATSR) relevant to 30 per cent of the award Performance will be measured against the annualised return over the
three year penod ending 31 December 2016

If the ATSR reaches 8 per cent per annum, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest
If the ATSR reaches 16 per cent per annum, 100 per cent of this elerment will vest
Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis

(m) Cost income ratio relevant to 10 per cent of the award

Performance will be measured against the adjusted total costs {total costs excluding FSCS costs and Bank Levy on underlying basis) as a percentage of total
underlying income net of insurance claims based on full year 2016 figures

If the adjusted total costs reaches

- 48 9 per cent, 25 per cent of this element will vest

- 46 5 per cent, 100 per cent of this element will vest

Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight hne basis

(iv} FCA reportable complaints relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured by reference to the total number of FCA reportable
complants per 1,000 accounts (excluding PPl complaints) over the three year penod to 31 December 2016 If complaints per 1,000 accounts average
1 15 per annum or tess, 25 per cent of this element of the award, being the threshold, will vest

If comnplaints per 1,000 accounts average 1 05 per annum or less, 100 per cent of this element wilt vest
Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight ine basis

{v) Net Promoter Score relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured against the Major Group Ranking pesition of Lloyds Banking
Group, the position averaged over the final twelve months of the performance period

If the final averaged ranking position of Lloyds Banking Group 15 third, 25 per cent of this element will vest
If the final averaged ranking position of Lloyds Banking Group 1s first, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis

(v} SME lending relevant to 5 per cent of the award Performance will be measured by reference to the percentage increase in net lending to SMEs over the
three year period ending 31 December 2016

If there 1s a 14 per cent increase 10 net lencing, 25 per cent of this element will vest
If there 1 an 18 per cent increase in net lending, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between thresheld and maximum will be on a straight ine basis

(vn} First Time Buyer Lending relevant to 5 per cent of the award Performance will be measured against percentage market shares based on Council of
Mortgage Lenders Volurnes data Calculated as three point average of year-end positions over the three year penod ending 31 December 2016

If the percentage market share reaches 20 per ¢ent, 25 per cent of this element will vest
If the percentage market share reaches 25 per cent, 100 per cent of this element will vest
Vesting between threshold and maximum will be on a straight line basis
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2014 2013

Number of Number of

shares shares

Outstanding at 1 Jancary N o - . o ~ ~ _§48,885.895‘ ?15,95! 517
Granted ) i ~ N _ 120,952,253 7186.3}?0.995
Vested {73,516,122) -
Forfeited (73,485,915){153,426,617)
Outstanding at 31 December 522,836,111 548 885,895

Scottish Widows Investment Partnerstup Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Scotish Widows Investment Partnership (SWIP) Long-Term Incentive Plan applicable to semor executives and employees of SWIP, which had previously
been a cash-only scheme, was amended 1n May 2012 for awards granted on or after that date The amendment introduced the receipt of shares n Lloyds
Banking Group plc as an element of the total award For awards made in June 2012, the other element continued to be cash-based, with the split between
cash-based and share-based determined by the Remuneration Committee Awards made in June 2013 were fully share-based The amendment was aimed at
delivening shareholder vatue by linking the receipt of shares to an improvement v the performance of SWIP over a three year penod Awards were made within
limits set by the sules of the Plan, with the maximum hmits for combined cash and shares awarded equating to 3 5 times annual salary In exceptonal
circumstances this could increase to four times annual salary

The 2012 and 2013 performance conditions were evaluated upon completion of the sale of SWIP to Aberdeen Asset Management PLC, and the awards were
pro rated as appropnate The 2012 award will vest at 155 per cent and 165 6 per ceni for Code Staff in March 2015 and the 2013 award will vest at 165 7
per cent in March 2016

The ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average remaining contractual Iife and number of options outstanding for the option
schemes were as follows

Executive schemes SAYE schemes Other share aption plans
Weighted Woeighted Welghted Welghted Weighted Welghted
average average average average average average
exercise price remaining life Number of exerclse price remaining life Number of exerclse price remalning Iife Number of
{pence) {years}) options {pence) {years) options {pence) (years) options
At 31 December 2014
Exercise price range - i i
£010 £1 - - - 4? G.'-{ 2 ?7 783,025,625 - s -
£1lto£2 - - - 180 66 141 600,758 - - -
£2t0 £3 23526 Q2 2'6351287 = - = - - -
£3t0 £4 - - - - - - - - -
£5t0 £6 - - - - - - - - -

At 31 December 2013
Exercise price range

£010 £1 - - - 4083 291 499,088,383 525 41 51,528,728
£lt0£2 19991 06 196,201 18064 109 1,881,234 - - -

£210£3 22485 08 5856392 - - - - - -

£510 £6 - - - - - - 58000 02 7897324
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The fair value calculations at 31 December 2014 for grants made 1n the year, using Black-Scholes models and Monte Carle simulation, are based on the
following assumptions

Commercial

Executive Banking

Save-As-You- Share Plan Transformation

Earn 2003 LTiP Program

Weighted average nsk-free interest rate 130% 0 58% 1 03% 1 03%
Weighted average expected life 3 3 years 1 2 years 30 years 3 O years
Weighted average expected volatibty 35% 23% a41% 41%
Weighted average expected dvidend yield 2 5% B 25% 2 5% 2 5%
Weighted average share price £075 £076 £079 £078
Wesghted average exercise price £0 60 Nil Nil Nil

Expected volatility 1s a measure of the amount by which the Lloyds Banking Group's shares are expected to fluctuate dunng the e of an option The expected
votatility ts estimated based on the histonical volatility of the closing daly share price over the most recent penod that 1s commensurate with the expected life of
the option The historical volatiity s compared to the implied volatility generated from market traded options in the Lloyds Banking Group's shares to assess the
reasonableness of the tistoncal volatility and adyustments made where appropriate

Matching shares

The Lloyds Banking Group undertakes to match shares purchased by employees up to the value of £30 per month, these matching shares are held in trust for
a mandatory peniod of three years on the employee's behalf, duning which penod the employee 1s entitled to any dividends paid on such shares The award 1s
subject 1o a non-market based condition if an employee leaves within this three year penod for other than a 'good’ reason, 100 per cent of the matching shares
are forfeited  Simitarly if the employees sell their purchased shares within three years, thewr matching shares are forfeited

The number of shares awarded retating to matching shares in 2014 was 16,248,562 {2013 19,870,495), with an average fair value of £0 78 (2013 £0 63),
based on market prices at the date of award

Fixed Share Awards

Fixed share awards were introduced in 2014 i order 1o ensure that total fixed remuneration 1s commensurate with role and to provide a competitive reward
package for cenain Lloyds Banking Group employees, with an approprate balance of fixed and vanable remuneration, in line with regulatory requirements The
Fixed Share Awards are delivered in Lioyds Banking Group shares, released over five years with 20 per cent being released each year following the year of award
The number of shares purchased in 2014 was 7,761,624

The Fixed Share Award 15 not subject 1o any performance conditions, performance adjustment or clawback On an employee leaving the Lloyds Banking Group,
these 15 no change to the timehne for which shares will become unrestrcted
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Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authonty and responssbslity for planning, directing and controlling the activities of an entity, the Group's
key management personnel are the members of the Lloyds Banking Group pic Group Executive Committee together with its Non-Executive Directors

The table below details, on an aggregated basis, key management personnel compensation

2014 2013
£m Em

Compensation
S-alarTes and other short-term beneflts- i ’ o T ) T 15 ) 15
Post-employmem-bénems ) T o T ’ r -
Share-based payments N o 17 T
Total compensation 32 35

The aggregate of the emoluments of the directors was £12 3 miltion {2013 £14 9 million)
Aggregate company contnibutions 1n respect of key management persennel to defined contnbution pensien schemes were £0 1 milltion (2013 £0 2 mullion}

The total for the highest paid director (Antémio Horta-Osong) was £4,782,000 (2013 (Anténio Horta-Osorie) £6,542,000), this did not include any gain on
exercse of Lloyds Banking Group ple shares in either year

2014 2013
million million
Share options over Lloyds Banking Group ple shares
AL 1 January ) 14 25
Granted, including certain adjustments (includes entitlements of appointed key management personnel) - 5
Exercisedflapsed (includes enbllements of former key management personnel) (1) A (16}
At 31 December 13 14
2014 2013
million mllion
Share plans settled in Lloyds Banking Group plc shares
mﬁgw*ii S o o T o 105 70
Granted, mcIudmgicenam adjustments (mcludesfenmlemems of appomted key management personnel} ) S 19 -_:‘24
Exercised/lapsed (includes entillements of former key management personnel) o (225 )
At 31 December 102 105

The tables below detail, on an aggregated basis, balances outstanding at the year end and refated income and expense, together with information relating to
other transactions between the Group and its key management personnel

2014 2013
£m £m

Loans
At 1 January o ) - S 7 o 2 2
.{d;z;nced (uncluﬁ% |oans: t;f ;bpomted key mainaig-e}nﬁpe:sbr;r;el) i - o 2 2
-R_ép;y_rﬁen{s (&:l_uaes loans of form-e_l k-e;r_ma_r;a_gement pe;sonnel) T T T B 7ﬁ_?1) o 7?2)
At 31 December 3 2

The loans are on both a secured and unsecured basis and are expected to be settled in cash The loans attracted interest rates of between 0 5 per cent and
23 95 per centin 2014 (2013 2 5 per cent and 23 9 per cent)

No provisions have been recogmised m respect of loans given to key management personnel (2013 £ntl)
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2014 2013
£m £m

Deposits
A_tlJanuzF———__ﬂ—- T T N 13 0
Placed (includes deposits of appointed key management personnel) R
V_\’ith_di_awn (]ﬁcludés@p&ﬁs of fb:i'n?k& m%a?e?nénl peTs_(J;aJ T o N (éQT a 74(56)
At 31 December 16 13

Deposits ptaced by key management personnel attracted interest jates of up to 4 7 per cent (2013 2 9 per cent}
At 31 December 2014, the Group did not provide any guarantees in respect of key management personnel (2013 none)

At 31 December 2014, transactions, arrangements and agreements entered into by the Group and its banking subsidianes with direciors and connected persons
included amounts outstanding 1n respect of loans and credit card transactions of £1 million with six directors and six connected persons (2013 £1 million with
six directors and five connected persons)

Balances and transactions with fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings

Balances and transactions between members of the Lioyds Bank Group

In accordance with IFRS1Q Consoldated financial statements, transactions and balances between the Bank and its subsidiary undertakings, and between those
subsidiary undertakings, have all been elminated on consolidation and thus are not reported as related party transactions of the Group

The Bank, as a result of 1s posstion as parent of a banking group, has a large number of transactions with vanous of its subsidiary undertakings, these are
included on the balance sheet of the Bank as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
Assets, included within

Derlv'atlve ﬁn}anﬁlal m;a.lmems T T B B T T T 1.‘;._;6_4—- 10351_
Trad'm‘g;\d cther assetsidgs*gnated;tgn value throu_gh pmﬁt_or loss T - _12.288_ —l_d,TS4
" loans and recewables 7 110689 25099
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 2,052 1,876
149,493 273,777

Liabslities, included within
Deposits from banks and customers 89,383 239,595
Trading and other financial hatihties at fair value through profit or loss 13,296 25,759
benvatwe financial |r_1$ta_m_enls T T o o o o 15,359 13,169
Debt secunties in 1ssue h o o o o 17.14d 3,028
Subordinated liabilities o o 81 115
135,259 278,666

Due to the size and volume of transactions passing through these accounts, 1t is nesther practical nor meaningful 1o disclose information on gross inflows
and outflows Dunng 2014 the Bank earned interest income on the above asset balances of £2,545 milion (2013 £2,732 mullion) and incurred interest
expense on the above llability balances of £1,481 mullion (2013 £2,073 million)

In addiion, the Bank raised recharges of £803 million (2013 £819 mullion) on s subsidianes n respect of costs ncurred and also recewved fees of
£179 milhon {2013 £262 milhon}, and paid fees of £143 rillion (2013 £131 million), for vanous services provided between the Bank and its subsidianes

Details of contingent habiliies and commitments entered into on behalf of fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings are given (n note 43
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Balances and transactions with Lloyds Banking Group pic and fellow subsidranes of the Bank
The Bank and its subsidianes have balances due to and from the Bank’s parent company, Lloyds Banking Group pic and fellow subsidianes of the Bank These
are included on the balance sheet as follows

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m

Assets, included within
Loans and recevables ) ) 11,482 15,453 10,947 11,981
Oither”*- o T T T o o 10 - 22

11,482 15,453 10,957 12,003
Liabuibes, included within
Customer deposs 5288 8797 2499 4,430
Dervatwe financeal wstuments " 16 239 108 T 239
Subordinated habiites o o 1,34 11705 10813 11173

16,758 20,741 13,418 15,842

These balances include Lloyds Banking Group plc's banking arrangements and, due to the size and volume of transactions passing through these accounts, 1t
15 neither prachical nor meaningful to dhsclose information on gross inflows and outflows Dunng 2014 the Group earned £163 milhion and the Bank eamed
£132 million interest income on the above asset balances (2013 Group £202 mulion, Bank £169 mithon), the Group incurred £1,143 mullion and the Bank
meurred £1,031 million interest expense on the above liability balances {2013 Group £1,510 milson, Bank £1,374 million)

UK Government

tn January 2009, the UK Government through HM Treasury became a related party of Lioyds Banking Group plc, the Bank’s ultimate parent company, following
its subscnption for ordinary shares 1ssued under a placing and open offer At 31 December 2014, HM Treasury held more than 20 per cent of Lloyds Banking
Group plc’s ardinary share capital and consequenily HM Treasury remained a related party of the Bank dunng the year ended 31 December 2014

In accordance with 1AS 24, UK Government-controlled entities became refated parties of the Group The Group regards the Bank of England and entiies
controlled by the UK Government, including The Royal Bank of Scotland Group ple, Northern Rock (Asset Management) plc and Bradford & Bingley plc, as
related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Lloyds Banking Group participated in a number of schemes operated by the UK Government and central banks
and made avallable to ehgible banks and building societies

National Loan Guarantee Scheme

The Lloyds Banking Group has participated 1n the UK government's National Loan Guarantee Scheme, which was faunched on 20 March 2012 Through the
scheme, the Lloyds Banking Group 1s providing eligible UK businesses with discounted funding, subject to continuation of the scheme and its financial benefits,
and based on the Lioyds Banking Group's existing lending critena Eligible businesses who have taken up the funding benefit from a 1 per cent discount on their
funding rate for a pre-agreed penod of time

Business Growth Fund

In May 2011 the Lioyds Banking Group agreed, together with The Royal Bank of Scotland plc {(and three other non-related parbies), to commit up to £300 mullion
of equity investment by subscnbing for shares in the Business Growth Fund pl¢ which 1s the company created to fulfil the role of the Business Growth Fund as
set out In the Briish Bankers' Association’s Business Taskforce Report of October 2010 At 31 Decemnber 2014, the Lloyds Banking Group had invested
£118 mullion {31 December 2013 £64 million) In the Business Growth Fund and camed the investment at a fair value of £105 mullion (31 December 2013
£52 millton)

Big Society Capital

In January 2012 the Lioyds Banking Group agreed, together with The Royal Bank of Scotland pic {and two other non-related parties}, to commit up to
£50 million each of equity investment into the Big Society Capital Fund The Fund, which was created as part of the Project Merlin aniangements, 1s a UK social
nvestment fund The Fund was officially faunched on 3 Apnl 2012 and the Lioyds Banking Group had invested £23 mullion in the Fund by 31 December 2013
and invested a further £8 million during the year ended 31 December 2014

Funding for Lending

In August 2012, the Lloyds Banking Group announced its support for the UK government’s Funding for Lending Scheme and confirmed s intention to
participate inthe scheme The Funding for Lending Scheme represents a further scurce of cost effective secured term funding available to the Lioyds Bantang Group
The mitiattve supported a broad range of UK based customers, providing householders with more affordable housing finance and businesses with cheaper
finance to invest and grow In November 2013, the Lioyds Banking Group entered into extension letters with the Bank of England 10 take part in the extension
of the Funding for Lending Scheme until the end of January 2015 The extension of the Funding for Lending Scheme focuses on providing businesses with
cheaper finance to invest and grow E£10 billien has been drawn down under this extension In December 2014, the Bank of England announced a further
extension to the end of January 2016 with an increased focus on supporting small businesses At 31 December 2014, the Lloyds Banking Group had drawn
down £20 billion under the Funding for Lending Scheme
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Enterpnse Finance Guarantee Scheme

The Lloyds Banking Group participates in the Enterprise Finance Guarantee Scheme which was launched n January 2009 as a replacement for the Smalt Firms
Loan Guarantee Scheme The scheme I1s a UK government-backed loan guarantee, which supports viable businesses with access to lending where they woutd
otherwise be refused a loan due to a lack of lending secunty The Department for Business, Innovation and Skills (formerly the Depariment for Business,
Enterprise and Regulatory Reform) provides the lender with a guarantee of up to 75 per cent of the capital of each loan subject to the eligibility of the customer
within the rules of the scheme As at 31 December 2014, the Lloyds Banking Group had offered 6,250 loans to custamers, worth over £500 millien The
Lloyds Banking Group entiyies, Lioyds Bank plc, TSB Bank plc, Lioyds Commercial Finance Lumited and Bank of Scotland pic contracted with The Secretary of
State for Business, Inngvation and Skills

Help to Buy

On 7 October 2013, Bank of Scotland plc entered 1nto an agreement with The Commussioneds of Her Majesty's Treasury by which it agreed that the Halifax
Division of Bank of Scetland ple would participate in the Help to Buy Scheme with effect from 11 October 2013 and that Lloyds Bank plc would participate
from 3 January 2014 The Help to Buy Scheme 1s a scheme promoted by the UK government and s aimed 10 encourage participating lenders to make mortgage
loans available to customers who require higher loan-to-value mortgages Halifax and Lioyds are currently participating tn the Scheme whereby customers
botraw between 80 per cent and 95 per cent of the purchase price

In return for the payment of a commercial fee, HM Treasury has agreed to provide a guarantee 1o the lender to cover a proportton of any loss made by the lendes
ansing from a higher loan-to-value loan being made £1,950 mihon of outstanding loans at 31 December 2014 had been advanced under this scheme

Central bank facilities
In the ordinary course of business, the Lloyds Banking Group may from time to time access market-wide facihties provided by centsal banks

Other governmeni-related entitres
Other than the transactions referred to above, there were no other significant transactions with the UK Government and UK Gavernment-controlled entities {including
UK Government-controlled banks} dunng the penod that were not made in the ordinary course of business or that were unusual 1n their nature or conditions

Other related party transactions

Pension funds

The Group provides banking and some investment management services to certan of its pension funds At 31 December 2013, customer deposits of £129 million
(2013 £145 milkon) and investment and insurance contract habilities of £3,278 million (2013 £4,728 mullion) related 1o the Group's pension funds

Colfective mvestment vehicles

The Group manages 132 (2013 210) collective investment vehicles, such as Open Ended Investment Companies {OEICs), and of these 80 (2013 145} are
consohdated The Group invested £811 million {2013 £2 472 million) and receemed £984 million (2013 £2 189 million} in the unconsolidated collective
investment vehicles dunng Lhe year and had investments, at fair value, of £2,243 mullion {2013 £3,291 million) at 31 December The Group earned fees of
£201 milion from the unconsolidated collective investment vehicles dunng 2014 (2013 £277 million)

Jaint ventures and assocrates

The Group provided both administration and processing services to Sainsbury’s Bank ple, which was its principal joint venture up until the completion of the
sale of the Group's investment in that company on 31 January 2014 The amounts recevable by the Group duning January 2014 were £3 million {year ended
31 December 2013 £35 mithon, of which £10 milhon was outstanding at 31 December 2013) At 31 December 2013, Sainsbury's Bank plc had also had
balances with the Group that were included in loans and advances to banks of £806 milhion and deposits by banks of £927 million

At 31 Decemnber 2014 there were loans and advances to cusiomers of £1,901 mullion (2013 £4,4438 million) outstanding and balances within customer
deposits of £24 million (2013 £70 mullion} relating to other joini ventures and associates

In addition to the above balances, the Group has a number of other associates held by 11s venture capital business that it accounts for at fair value through profit
or loss At 31 December 2014, these comparies had total assets of approximately £5,553 mullion (2013 £6,913 millon), total liabilities of approximately
£6,312 mitlion (2013 £7,084 mullion) and for the year ended 31 December 2014 had turngver of approximately £5,634 mullion (2013 £6,989 million) and
made a net loss of approximately £272 mulhon (2013 net loss of £16 millien) in addition, the Group has prowvided £2,364 mitlion (2013 £3,355 mithen) of
financing o these companies on which it receved £149 milion (2013 £170 milien) of interest income in the year

On 25 June 2014, the Bank entered into an agreement for the exclusive provision of conveyancing panel services with United Legal Services Limited {ULS),
which 1s a related party of the Bank by virtue of ULS Technology plc, ULS's parent, being an investee company of Lloyds Development Capital, the UK regional
equity provider which is part of the Group
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Interchange fees

On 11 September 2014, the European Court of Justice (the ECJ) upheld the European Commission’'s 2007 decision that an (nfringement of EU competition law
had ansen from arrangements whereby MasterCard 1ssuers charged a uniform faliback multilateral interchange fee (MIF) in respect of cross-border transactions
In relation to the use of a MasterCard or Maestro branded payment card

In parallel

- the European Commission has proposed legislation 10 regulate interchange fees which continues through the EU legislative process A political agreement has
been reached between the European Pariament and the Counci) and the legislation 15 expected to be adopted and come into force in the secend quarter of
2015 with certain artictes applying six months or a year after that (the adoption and entry into force dates remain subject te change),

— the European Commission has adopted commiiments pioposed by VISA 1o settle an investigation into VISA's cross-border interchange arrangements and
aspects of ts scheme rules  VISA has, amongst other things, agreed to reduce the level of interchange fees for cross-border card transactions to 30 basis
points (for credit} and 20 basis points (for debit) VISA has also changed a number of its rules in relation to cross-border acquinng MasterCard unitaterally
undertook, amongst other things, to reduce the level of cross border interchange fees 1o the same levels as agreed between the Commission and Visa,

— the Commission also continues to pursue other compebition investigations into MasterCard and Visa probing, amongst other things, interchange paid 1n respect
of cards 1ssued outside the EEA,

- htigation continues in the Enghsh High Court against both Visa and MasterCard This sigation has been brought by several retailers who are seeking damages
tor allegedly ‘overpaid’ MIFs,

— the new UK payments regulator may exercise its powers, when these come in to force (tn Apnl 2015), to regulate domestic interchange fees In November
2014, the Competition and Markets Authonty {the CMA) announced that it would not reopen the investgation into domestic interchange levels at this time
following MasterCard's agreement to introduce a phased reduction of domestic interchange rates commencing in April 2015 1n addition, the FCA has started
a market study 1n relation to the UK credit cards market

The ulimate impact on the Group of the above investigations, regulatory or legislative developments and the Iitigation against VISA and MasterCard can only be
known at the conclusion of these matters

LIBOR and other trading rates

On 28 July 2014, the Ltoyds Banking Group announced that it had reached settlements totalling £217 million (at 30 June 2014 exchange rates) to resolve
with UK and US federal authonities legacy 1ssues regarding the manipulation several years ago of Lioyds Banking Group companies’ submissions to the Brtish
Bankers' Association (BBA} London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and Sterling Repo Rate The settlements in relation to LiBOR are part of an industry-wide
invesugation into the setting of interbank offered rates across a range of currencies

The Lloyds Banking Group continues 1o cooperate with vanous other government and regulatory authorties, ncluding the Sencus Fraud Office, the European
and Swiss Competition Commissions, and a number of US State Attorneys General, in conjunclion with thew investigations inte submissions made by panel
members 1o the bodies that set LIBOR and vanous other interbank offered rates

Certain Lloyds Banking Group companies, together with other panel banks, have also been named as defendants in private lawsuits, including purporied class
action suits, in the US in connection with their roles as panel banks contnbuting to the setting of US Dollar and Japanese Yen LIBCR The claims have been
asserted by ptaintiffs claiming to have had an interest in vanous types of financal instruments linked to US Dollar and Japanese Yen LIBOR The altegations in
these cases, the majonty of which have been coordinated for pre-tnal purposes in multi-district isgation proceedings (MDL} in the US Federal Court for the
Southern District of New York (the ‘Distnct Court'), are substantially similar to each other The lawsuits allege viglations of the Sherman Antitrust Act, the
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Qrganizations Act (RICQ) and the Commodity Exchange Act (CEA), as well as vanous state statutes and common law doctrines
Certain of the plaintiffs’ claims have been dismissed by the District Court

The Lloyds Banking Group 1s also reviewing ifs activities 1n relation to the setting of certain foreign exchange dasly benchmark rates and related matters, following
the FCA's publicised 1ntiation of an investigation into other financial institutions in refation to this actwily The Lloyds Bankmng Group 1s co-operating with the
FCA and other regulators and 1s providing information about the Lioyds Banking Group's review to those regulators In addition, the Lloyds Banking Group,
together with a number of other banks, was named as a defendant in several actions filed in the Distnct Court hetween late 2013 and February 2014, inwhich
the plaintiffs alleged that the defendants manipulated WM/Reuters foreign exchange rates 1n viclation of US antifrust laws On 31 March 2014, plaintifis
effectively withdrew their ctaims against the Lloyds Banksng Group (but not against ail defendants} by filing a superseding consohdated and amended pleading
against a number of other defendants without nameng any Lioyds Banking Group entity as a defendant

It 15 currently not possible to predict the scope and ultimate gutcome on the Lloyds Banking Group of the vanous outstanding regulatory investigations not
encompassed by the settlements, any private lawsiits or any related challenges to the interpretation or vahidity of any of the Llioyds Banking Group's contractual
arrangements, including ther iming and scale

Financial Services Compensation Scheme

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) 15 the UK's independent statutory compensation fund of last resort for customers of authonised financial
services firms and pays compensation if a firm 1s unable or likely 10 be unable to pay claims against it The FSCS is funded by levies on the authonsed financial
services industry Each deposit-laking institution contributes towards the FSCS levies in proportion to thesr share of total protected deposits on 31 December of
the year preceding the scheme year, which runs from 1 Apnl to 31 March

Following the default of a number of deposit takers in 2008, the FSCS borrowed funds from HM Treasury to meet the compensation costs for customers of those
firms At the end of the latest FSCS scheme year (31 March 2014), the principal balance outstanding on these loans was £16,591 million (31 March 2013
£17,246 million) Akhough the substantial majonty of this loan wtil be repaid from funds the FSCS receives from asset sales, surplus cash flow or other
recoveries In relaton to the assets of the firms that defaulted, any shortfall will be funded by deposit-taking participants of the FSCS The amount of future levies
payable by the Group depends on a number of factors including the amounts recovered by the FSCS from asset sales, the Group's participation in the deposit-
taking market at 31 December, the leve! of protected depasits and the population of deposit-taking participants

Investigation into Bank of Scotland and report on HBOS

The FSAs enforcement investigation into Bank of Scotland plc's Corporate division between 2006 and 2008 concluded wath the publication of a Final Notice
on 9 March 2012 No financial penalty was imposed on the Group or Bank of Scotland plc On 12 September 2012 the FSA confirmed it was starting work on
a pubhc interest report on HBOS That report 1s now being produced as a joint PRA/ FCA report Although the Tesms of Reference for the HBOS review (issued
on 11 July 2014} stated an aim {o publish the final report by the end of 2014, the report has not yet been published
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US-Swiss tax programme

The US Department of Justice (the DOJ) and the Swiss Federal Department of Finance announced on 29 August 2013 a programme {the Programme) for Swiss
banks {o obtain resolution concerning their status in connection with on-gaing investigations by the DOJ into individuals and entities that use foreign (e non-
US} bank accounts to evade US taxes and reporting requirements, and indiwiduals and entities that facililale or have faciiated the evasion of such taxes and
reporting requirements  Swiss banks that chose to participate notified the DOJ of thewr election to categorise thetr relevant banking operations according {0 one
of a number of defined categones under the Programme

The Group carried out private banking operations in Switzerland with assets under management of approximately £7 billion Those operatrons were sold 1in
November 2013 Therefore, as a protective measure, 1n December 2013 the Group notified the DOJ of its intent to parhitipate 1n the Programme Hawving
completed due diligence under the terms of the Programme, the Group has concluded that its further partictpation 1n the Programme 1S not warranted and it has
communicated to the DOJ its decision to withdraw from the Programme

Tax authorities

The Group provides for potential tax habilies that may anise on the basss of the amounts expected to be paid to tax authorties Thas includes open matters where
Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (HMRC) adopt a different interpretation and apphication of tax law which might lead to additional tax The Lioyds Banking
Group has an open matter tn relfation 1o a claim for group relief of losses incurred in its former Inish banking subsidiary, which ceased trading on 31 December
2010 Inthe second half of 2013 HMRC informed the Lioyds Banking Group that thesr interpretation of the UK rules, permitting the offset of such losses, demes
the claim, If HMRC's position ts found to be correct management estimate that this would result tn an ncrease in current tax liabibties of approximately
£600 milion and a reduction in the Lloyds Banking Group's deferred tax asset of approximately £400 million (overall impact on the Group of approxsmately
£950 milion) The Lloyds Banking Group does not agree with HMRC's posion and, having taken approprate advice, does not consider that this 1s a case where
addiignal tax will ultimately fall due

Residential mortgage repossessions

In August 2014, the Northermn Ireland High Court handed down judgment in favour of the borrowers in relation to three residential morigage test cases,
concermning certain aspects of the Lipyds Banking Group's practice with respect to the recalculation of contractual monthly instalments of customers in arrears
The Lloyds Banking Group 1s reviewing the 1ssues raised by the judgment and will respond as appropnate to any investigations or proceedings that may in due
course be instigated as a result of these 1ssues

Other lega! actions and regulatory matters

In addiion, dunng the ordinary course of business the Group 15 subyect to other complaints and threatened or actual legal proceedings (ncluding class or group
action claims) brought by or on behalf of employees, custcmers, investors or other third parties, as well as regulatory reviews, challenges, investigations and
enforcement actions, both in the UK and overseas All such matenal matters are penodically reassessed, with the assisiance of external professional adwisers
where appropnate, 1o determine the tkelihood of the Group incurnng a habibty [n those instances where it 1s concluded that it 1s mose likely than not that a
payment will be made, a provision 1s established to management’s best estimate of the amount required at the relevant balance sheet date In some cases 1t will
not be possible to form a view, for example because the facts are unclear or because further time I1s needed properly to assess the mernts of the case, and no
provisions are held in relation to such matters However the Group does not currently expect the final outcome of any such case to have a matenal adverse effect
onits financial posibion, operations or cash flows

Contingent Labilities and commitments ansing from the banking business
Acceptances and endorsements anse where the Group or the Bank agrees to guarantee payment on a negotiable instrument drawn up by a customer

Other items serving as direct credit substiiutes include standby letters of credit, or other rrevocable obligations, where the Group or the Bank has an irrevocable
oblrgation to pay a third party beneficiary 1f the customer fails to repay an outstanding commitment, they alse include acceptances drawn under letters of credit
or ssmular facilities where the acceptor does not have specific title to an identifiable underlying shipment of goods

Performance bonds and other transaction related contingencies (which include bid or tender bonds, advance payment guarantees, VAT Customs & Excise bonds
and standby letters of credit relating to a particular centract or non-financial transaction} are undertakings where the requirement to make payment under the
guarantee depends on the outcome of a future event
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The Group's and the Bank’s maximum exposure to loss 1s represented by the contractual nominal amount detatled in the table below Consideration has not
been taken of any possible recovenes from customers for payments made in respect of such guarantees under recourse provistons or from collateral held

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m

Contingent llabihties

Accepfancé_ar;d_engorsgm;n;s‘ S - /0T o o _59 T _—‘_204 __5_8 T ]247
ower -/ - 0 7= D
Other 1tems serving as direct credit substitutes T 330 710 322 686
i’erf&nrimanceit;orgs énagtg(er lFan;actlon:}éIat;d aﬂn—ge_nc?és_A T 2,593 ) 1,966 B 2,015' e 1,647
I o o ) 2,623 2,676 2337 2333
Total contingent liabilities 2,682 2,880 2,395 2,457

The Bank
2014 2013
£m £m
Incurred on behalf of fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 7 -

The contingent ltabilities of the Group and the Bank anse in the normal course of banking business and it 1s not practicable to quantify their future financial effect

The Group The Sank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m Em
Commitments
ac;cge‘mary credits and other short-term trade-related transactions o T -101 54 100 T gl
Forward asset purchases and forward deposis placed 162 440 162 440
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit ines and other commitments to lend
Less than 1 year onginal maturity
Morigage offers made 8,809 9,559 859 1112
QOther commitments 64,015 55,002 37,892 30,404
72,824 64 561 38,751 31,516
1 year or over onginal matunty T o 34,455 _:‘»—6.—61—6_ T “2;.}-.474 35912
Total commitments 107,542 105,671 68,487 67,919
The Bank
2014 2013
£m Em
Incurred on behalf of fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings 6,231 4718

Of the amounts shown above In respect of undrawn formal standby facilities, credit ines and other commutments to lend £55,029 million (2013 £56,292
melhon) for the Group and £39,755 milhon (2013 £40,341 rmillon) for the Bank were irrevocable

Operating lease commitments
Where a Group company 1s the lessee, the future mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable premises operating leases are as follows

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Not later than 1 year 301 292 154 148
L}m; than 1 ye:;)r and not Iate;}haTS—)Tf:a_rsm_u T i T 9‘475 S 77928 T :;2;7 T jSA2
I:ateritr;avn%;a—rs T o T T 1..14417 T ‘-1.,1-66—;*480 . 500
Total operating lease commitments 2,387 2,386 1,107 1,100

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain of s properties Some of these operating lease arrangements have renewal options
and rent escalation clauses, although the effect of these 1s not matenal No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

Capital commitments

Excluding commitments of the Group in respect of investment property (note 22), capital expenditure contracted but not prowvided for at 31 December 2014
amounted to £373 milion (2013 £345 million} for the Group and £3 million (2013 £1 mullion) for the Bank Of this amount for the Group, £368 million
{2013 £344 mulon) relates 1o assets to be leased to customers under operating leases The Gioup's management is confident that future net revenues and
funding will be sufficrent to cover these commitments
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(1) Measurement basis of financial assets and habilities

The accounting pohcies in note 2 describe how different classes of financial instiuments are measured, and how income and expenses, including farr value gans
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and losses, are recognised The following tables analyse the carrying amounts of the financial assets and habilities by category and by balance sheet heading

At fair value through

Derivatives prafit or loss
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon inltial Availzble- Loans and amortised Insurance
Instruments trading  recognition for-sale  recelvables cost contracts Total
The Group Em £m Em £m £m £m Em £m
At 31 December 2014
Financial assets i - i T
Cash and balances at central banks i - . - T - 5_0,6:92 - 50,492
Items in the course of collection from banks - - - - - l_.i73 - 1,173
Trading and other financial assets at fair value -
through profit or loss - 48,504 104,016 - - - - 152,520
Denvative financial instruments 4,299 31,184 - ~ - - - 35,483
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 26,155 - - 26,155
Loans and advances to customers - - - - 482,704 - - 482,704
Debt secunties - - - - 1,213 - - 1,213
Due from fellow Lloyds Banking Group
undertakings - - - - 11,482 - - 11,482
- - - - 521,554 - ~ 521,554
Available-for-sale financial assets - - - 56,493 - - - 56,493
Total financial assets 4,299 79,688 104,016 56,493 521,554 51,665 - 817,715
Financial habhhhes
Deposits from banks - - - - - 10_.887 - 10,887
Customer deposits - - - - - 447,067 - 447,067
Due to fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings - Z - - - :'),288 - ‘5:,288
Items In cousse of transmission to banks 7 - . - . - 579 - i 979
Trading and other financial habilities at fair value )
through profit or loss - 55,358 6,744 - - - - 62,102
Dernrvative financial instruments 3,713 29,580 - - - - - 33,293
Notes :n crrculation - - - - - 1,129 - 1,129
Debt secunties in 1ssue - - - - - 75,672 - 75,672
Liabthties ansing from insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts - - - - - - 86,941 86,941
aabllllles aﬁ;;l-g‘i;{;nAnoril-paItlc;pallnigi T T T S T
Investment contracts - - - - - - 27,248 27,248
Unallocated surplus within insurance businesses - - - - - - 320 320
Financial guarantees - - 51 - - - - 51
Subordinated liabilibes ’ - - - - - 31973 - 31973
Total financial Labilittes 3,713 84,938 6,795 - - 572,995 114,509 782,950
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At fair value through

Derwatives profit or loss
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon initial Availabte- Loans and amaortised Insurance
instruments trading recognition for sale recevables cost contracts Totat
The Group £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
At 31 December 201 3!
Financial assets ) i
Cash and balances at central banks I - - - - 49 915 - 49915
ltems in the course of col‘lectlon frothQr‘lks - T S 17,607 - ﬁl,OO?
Tradmg-a?\a‘c;ihve‘r financial assels at far value T i T ) T N
through profit or loss - 37,480 105,727 - - - - 143,207
Dervative financial instruments 4,74_2' —24,850 - - - T _29,592
Loans and recenvables - - T -
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 25,365 - - 25,365
Loans and advances to customers - - - - 492,952 - - 492952
Debt securties - - - 72 1385 = - 1,355
" Due from fellow LloydsiBainluéngigr&up R T S o
undertakings - - - - 15,453 - - 15,453
T - - - - 535125 - - 535125
Avalable-for-sale financial assets - - - 43976 - - o 43976
Total financial assets 4,742 62,330 105,727 43,976 535,125 50,922 - 802,822
Financial habihities
Deposits from banks - - - - - 13882 - 13982
Customer deposits - T T T o o a39487 - 439,467
Due to fellow Lloyds Banking group undertakings - - - - - 8,797 - 8,797
ltems 1n course of tra-n;;m'ssnon to banks - - - - - 7—74__ T 774
TFaam-g_ar;d other financial hatilities at farr value T - T T T
through profit or loss - 38,319 5,306 - - - - 43,625
Denvative financial instruments 4,758 23,140 - - - - - 27,898
Notes n circulation ’ . T T LT - L —“1.176 - 1,17é
Debt secunties in 1ssue T T T - - o - _8_6_,563 - 86,566
Liabilities ansing from insurance contracts and o
participating investment contracts - - - - - - 82,801 82,801
Liabbities ansing from ﬁon-pamctpatmg T | T -
investment contracts - - - - - - 27,590 27,590
Unallocated surplus within msurance businesses - - - - - - 391 391
Financial guarantees - - 50 - - - ~ 50
Subordinated habilities - - - = - 33534 - 33534
Total financial habilities 4,758 61,459 5,356 - - 584,296 110,782 766,651

'See note 1
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At fair vatue through

Derivatives profit or loss
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for  upon intial Available- Loans and amortised
instruments trading  recogniion forsale  recetvables cost Total
The Bank £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
i’manca;ssets T o T T
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 40,965 40,965
ltems n the course of collection from banks - - - - - 802 802
Trading and othes financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 59,580 6,741 - - - 66,321
Denvative financial istruments ’ i.019 39,131 - - 7 - - 40,150
Loans and recevables o T o T T T T
Loans and advances to banks N o - - - — 4591 - as91
Loans and advances 1o customers | - T . T 165,967 - 165,967
" Duefrom feliow Lioyds Banking Group I T
undertakings - - - - 130,636 - 130,636
T T - - - - 301,194 - 301,194
Avallable-for-sale financial assets T - - T . Si,iﬁzﬁ* - - “?1.74712
Total financial assets 1,019 98,711 6,741 51412 301,194 41,767 500,844
Financial habibties
Deposts from banks * - - - - - 8206 8206
Customer deposits - - - - ~ 1945899 194,699
Due to fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings - - - - - 91,979 91,979
Items 1n course of transmissian to banks - - - - - 560 560
Trading and other financial iabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - 66,488 6,739 - - - 73,227
Denvative financial instruments . 2826 38494 - - - C - a1320
Debtsecunties inissue T - - 65965 65965
Financugl_gu:;ramees o T T T T30 o T T2 T T3
Subordinated liabilities o o o - - - - - 21590 21,590
Total financial habilities 2,826 104,982 6,769 - - 382,999 497,576

109




Lloyds Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

50 Financial instruments {contnued)

At fair value through
Dervatives __DM.;“—
designated Designated Held at
as hedging Held for ~ upon imitial Available- Loans and amortised
instruments trading 1ecognition for-sale tecevables cost Tatal
The Bank £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 31 December 2013?
Financial assets T T o T T -
Cash and balances at central banks - - - - - 42,283 42,283
Items n the course of collection from banks - - - - - 663 663
Trading and other financial assets at farr value through profit T o
or loss - 35,580 4,587 - - - 40,167
Dervative financial mstruments 914 27,157 - - - - 28,071
Loans and recevables ) C i B
Loans and advances to banks - - - - 3,095 - 3,095
To:aF; and- adva-nf-:es to custo}n;r; T i T - -7 - 1-65,574 - 165,574
Debt secunties - - - - 150 - 150
@mm fellow Lloyds B;nkmg Group unaert-a_lil_ngs i - - - - 262,97-7 - 262577
o S ) - - - - 431,796 - 431,79
Avallable-for-sale financial assets - o T s’ - T T a8
Total financial assets 914 62,737 4,587 41,348 431,796 42,946 584,328
Financial habihties
Deposits from banks ) - - - - - 10,448 10448
Customer deposits ) ’ - T - - - 185555 185555
Due to fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings - - - T T 7T T aa025 244,025
Items In course of transmisston to banks - - - - - 432 432
Trading and cther ﬂnanmal_l_lablh_ues at fz;r‘v;ue_ T ST o B ) i
through profit or loss - 37,790 5316 - - - 43,106
@E\Efﬁéﬁaé instruments T 2,408A 25,900 - - o - 2§3ﬁ
Debt secunities in issue - - - - - - 53195 53195
financial guarantees o T T - - 33 T. - - 33
Subordinated habiites B - . e 7 T22600 22600
Total financial liabilities 2,408 63,690 5,349 - - 51,255 587,702

'See note 1

(2) Fair value measurement

Fair value 15 the price that would be receved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date It 1s a measure at a specific date and may be significantly different from the amount which will actually be paid or recesved on matunty or
settlement date

Wherever possible, fair values have been calculated using unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for wentical instrurments held by the Group Where
quoted market prices are not available, or are unreliable because of poor liquidity, fair values have been determined using valuation techniques which, to the
extent possible, use market observable inputs, but In some cases use non-market observable mnputs Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flow
analysis and pncing models and, where appropriate, comparison to instruments with characteristics similar to those of the instruments held by the Group

The Group manages valuation adjustments for «ts denvative exposures on a net basis, the Group determines therr fair values on the basis of therr net exposures
In all other cases, fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value are determined on 1he basis of thexr gross exposures

Because a vanety of estimation techmiques are employed and significant estimates made, compansons of fair values between financial institutions may not be
meaningful Readers of these financial statements are thus advised to use caution when using this data to evaluate the Group's financial position

Fair value information 1s not provided for items that are not financial instrtuments or for other assets and habilities which are not carned at fair value in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet These items include intangsble assets, such as the value of the Group's branch network, the long-term relationships with depositors
and credit card relationships, premises and equipment, and shareholders’ equity These items are material and accordingly the Group believes that the fair value
information presented does not represent the underlying value of the Group
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Valuation control framework
The key elements of the control framewerk for the valuatien of financial instruments include model validation, product implementation review and independent
price venfication These functions are carned cut by appropnately skilled nsk and finance teams, independent of the business area responsible for the products

Model vahdation covers both qualitative and quantitative elements relating to new models (n respect of new products, a product implementation review 15
conducted pre- and posttrading Pre-trade testing ensures that the new model 15 integrated into the Group's systems and that the profit and loss and nsk
reporting are consistent throughout the trade life cycle Post-trade testing examines the explanatory power of the implemented mode, actively monitoring model
parameters and comparing in-house pricing to external sources Independent price vernfication procedures cover financial instruments carried at fair value The
frequency of the review 1s maiched to the availability of independent data, monthly being the mimmum Valuation differences tn breach of established thresholds
are escalated to semior management The results from independent preing and valuation reserves are reviewed manthly by senior management

Formal committees, consisting of senior nisk, finance and business management, meet at least quarterly {0 discuss and approve valuations in more judgemental
areas, In particular for unquoted equities, structured credit, over-the-counter options and the Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) reserve

Valuation of financial assels and habilities
Assets and habilies carned at fawr value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three levels according to the quality and relability of
nformation used 1o deterrmine the fair values

Level 1
Level 1 fair value measurements are those denved from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or lrabites Products classified as level
1 predominantly compnse equity shares, treasury bulls and other government securities

Level 2

Leve! 2 valuations are those where quoted market prices are not available, for example where the instrument 1s traded in a market that 1s not considered to be
active or valuation techniques are used to determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data
Examples of such financial instruments include most over-the-counter denvatives, financial inststution 1ssued secunties, certficates of deposit and certain
asset-backed secunties

Level 3

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input which could have a significant effect on the mnstrument's valuation 1s not based on observable market data
Such instruments would include the Group's venture capital and unlisted equity investments which are valued using vancus valuation technigues that require
significant management judgement in determining appropriate assumpttons, including earnings multiples and estimated future cash flows Certain of the Group's
asset-backed secunties and dervatives, pnincipally where there i1s no trading activity in such secunties, are also classified as level 3
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
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The following table summanses the carrying values of financ:al assets and lrabilities presented on the Group's and Bank’s balance sheets The fair values
presented in the table are at a specific date and may be significantly different from the amount which will actually be paid on the matunty or settlernent date

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Carrying Carnying Carrylng Carrying
valug Fair value value Far value value Fair value value Farr value
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Trading and other financial assets at farr value
through profit or loss 152,520 152,520 143,207 143,207 66,321 66,321 40 167 40,167
Dervative financial nstruments "~ " T35483 35483 29592 29592 40,150 40,150 28,071 28071
Loans and receivables T R S T
Tloansand advances tobanks | 26,155 | [ 26,031 | [ 25.365 | [ 25,296 | [ a,591] [ 4,533 | [ 3005|[ 3073
“loans and advances to customers | 482,704 | 480,631 | | 492.952 | | 484,166 | [ 165,967 { | 163,950 | | 165,574 | | 162.673

Debt secunties 1,213 1,100 1356 || 1,251 - - 150 150
" Due from fellow LIByds Banking Group B T T

undertakings 11,482 11,482 15,453 15,453 | | 130,636 | | 130,636 | | 262,977 | | 262,977
B S 521,554 519,244 535125 526,166 301,194 299,119 431,796 428,873
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 56,493_ 56,493 43,976 43,976 51,412 51,412 41,348 41,348
Reverse repurchase agreements included in
above amounts

Loans and advances to customers 5,148 5,148 120 120 5,148 5,148 120 120

Loans and advances to banks 1,899 1,8%9 183 183 - 1,899 1,899 183 183
Financial habilihes
Deposits from banks 10,887 10,902 13,982 14,101 8,206 8,213 10,448 10,536
Customer deposits 447,067 450,038 439,467 440,011 194,699 196,958 185555 185,890
Due to fellow Lloyds Banking Group underakings 5,288 5,288 8,797 8,797 91,979 91,979 244,025 244,025
T;adlng and otl:ler ffmar-lc;al Ilabﬁmg—atmf—alr-value T T T B ’ i o T
theough profit or loss 62,102 62,102 43,625 43,625 73,227 73,227 43,106 43,106
Dervatwe financial mstruments ﬁv—*ﬁ.'29'3 . '33;293 7277,8987 h 5;,898 7 47172;-22)-*?471,526 77278,308 'ﬁ?
Debt securties in ssue T T 75672 79664 86566 90268 65965 71,617 53,195 52666
Liabilities ;4§|Efrom non-participsting T - o
investment contracls 27,248 27,248 27,590 27,590 - - - -
Financial guarantees T T m 51 50 50 30 0 a3 a3
Subordinated liabilities 31,573 34780 33,534 33976 21,580 23,314 22600 24,442
Repurchase agreements included in the above
amounts

Deposits from banks _1.075 1,075 1,874 i 1,874 480 480 1,251 1,251

Customer deposiis - - 2,978 2,978 - - 2,978 2,978

‘See note 1

The carrying amount of the following financial instruments 1s a reasonable approximation of fair value cash and balances at central banks, items in the course
of collection from banks, items tn course of transrmssion to banks and notes in circulation
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{3) Financial assets and habilities carned at fair value
{A) Financial assets, excluding derivatives
Veluation hierarchy

At 31 Decemnber 201 4, the Group's financial assets camed at fair value, excluding denvatives, totalled £209,013 million (31 December 2013 £187,183 mithon)
The table betow analyses these financial assets by balance sheel classification, asset type and valuation methodology (level 1, 2 or 3, as described on
page 111} The fair value measurement approach is recurnng i nature There were ne significant transfers between level  and 2 duning the year

Valuation hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The Group £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Trading and other financial assets at farr value through profit or loss
Loans and advances to —cuslomers - 28,513 - 28,513
Loans and advances to banks . T o T 8.2_12— - _S.élz
Ee_btsecunués - o T T T o T
Government securities o - 23,950 1523 -] [ 25473
Other public sector securties o - T T il 138 2,170
Bank‘e:;l_d Bwldmgﬁsome:y certl?lca}go}dépos;tbm' I EsZ o I a %gi
* Asset-backed securiies o I N N
Mortgage-backed secunties 24 963 47 1,034
Other asset backed secunties 1 849 - 850
Corporate and other debt secunties 255 19,825 2,021 22,101
24,230 24,495 3,457 52,182
Equity shares 60,164 343 1,647 62,154
Treasury and other bills ) i - i 1,459 T - - 1,459
Total trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 85,853 61,563 5,104 152,520
Available-for-sate financial assets
Debt secunties o o i N - T N T
Government securities ) o o ) ) 47,402 ) - - 47,402
Bank and building society certlﬁcate_s of deposit ) - 298 - ’ 298
" Asset-backed secunties ) I Y A I
B MOrlgage—Eleéd secunties . o T ST 674 B T2 | era
© Other asset-backed securbes I S “ess| | - e85
Corporate and other deot securies | ss| | saea| | -| | 5529
T - 47,437 7151 - 54,588
EEqL;ny-' shares o i T 45 727 270 —1.0:12_
Treasury and other bills 852 11 - 863
Total available for-sale financial assets 48,334 7,889 270 56,493
Total financial assets carned at fair value, excluding denvatives 134,187 69,452 5,374 209,013
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The Group £m £m £m Em
At 31 December 2013
ﬁga;cl- {;therﬁ_ma'nz:lra‘lia;sélg at faw vélue through broﬂt or loss - T ST
[oans and ad\fance;Yo customers 7 - o - 721,1 10 . ﬁo
Loans and advances to banks - 8,333 - 8,333
Debt secunties i - T
“Government secunties T T 20,191 408 -1 20,689
WOther puhllt:;ct_or_secuntles T T o T - T l.iZ T E§5 o 2,T97
Bank and building society certificaies of deposit - 1,491 - 1,491
Asset-backed secunities i . - o
" Morgage-backed secunties I - T e8| T 7es
Other asset-backed securnties 171 756 - g27
Cosporate and other debt securies 244 18,735 1,687 20,666
i T S 20,636 23 560 2,572 46,768
Equity shares T es211 10 © 1860 66,881
Treasury and other bills 7 108 - 115
Total trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 85,854 53,121 4,232 143,207
Avallable-for-sale tfinancial assets
Debt secunties ) o T T o
Government securities 38,262 28 - 38,290
Bank and building society ce}tlf]c;tés of deposit o ~- o208 T 208
 Asset-backed secuntes ) A o
Morigage-backed securnties - 1 263 - 1,263
Other asset-backed securities - 841 74 915
Corpora_te and other debt secunties ) | B 56 —I'/'QQ- - | —1:8_55
- N T 38,318 4139 74 42531
Equity shares 48 147 375 570
Treasury and other bills ) ’ ) - 852 23 - 875
Total available-for-sale financial assets 39,218 4,309 449 43,976
Total financial assets carried at fair value, excluding denvatives 125,072 57,430 4,681 187,183

There were no significant transfers between level 1 and level 2 duning the year
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Valuation erarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The Bank Em Em £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
LBé@ advances Iozustomer; T T ST T B ‘3:;.802 o - B_QTBEJZ-
Loans jcm‘d advance;to Banksﬁ . o D ——6.011 T B,01 1—
Debt secuniies
Government secunties 14,587 -1 - 14,593
Bank and building society certificates of depesit P - 554 - 254
Assel-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed securities - 187 - 187
Other asset-backed secunties - 129 - 129
Corporate and other debt securtias 79 1,428 ’ 101 1,608
) ' T 14,666 2300 101 17,071
Equity shares T B - - o - -
Treasury and other bills ) 1,437 - - 1,437
Total trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 16,103 50,117 101 66,321
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt secunties T T S T o i
Gove;nn}ent ;&:LJ}&IES T T T 46,911 - - 46,911
Bank and bu||dm-g society certﬁcal-es of_cgos_n T T Tl T _155 - - 188
Asset-hacked secunties T T T T T T
—M'c;ngage-bacl«eEeaerés T N _i4::' N I Tﬁ;
Other asset-bagk_ed set:untlesm 7 o . - T oae| | S| 120
Corporate and other debt securties 31 3,280 - 3,311
46,942 3,733 - 50,675
Equity shares 39 687 - 726
Treasury and other bills - 11 - 11
Total available-for-sate financial assets 46,981 4,431 - 51,412
Total financial assets carried at fair value, excluding denvatives 63,084 54,548 101 117,733
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Valuation hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The Bank £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2013
T;dmg aaé othgl_ffnaﬁma! asse{s;fa‘u value_tr;:}m_ro_fn or Ios-s T T T T 7
Loans and advances to customers - 23,904 - 23,804
Loans and advances to banks i - ’ 5778 | _ 5,778
Debt securities ) o T S ST T T T
__E;overnl:rl‘eqseaﬁllés T o T T - 8,567 B 97 - -1 8,664
Bank and building society certificates of deposit - 32 - 32
Assel-backed secunties 7 T T i
" Mortgage-backed secunties T | - | 2 N I N
Other asset-backed secunties 171 - - 171
Corporate and cther debt secunties 6 1,533 18 1,557
T ) i 8744 1,669 18 10,431
E&uﬂyshar&s S T - - - To-
Treasury and other bills - 54 - 54
Total trading and other financial assets at fatr value through profit or loss 8,744 31,405 18 40,167
Available-for-sale financial assets
Debt secunties o o o -
Government securities 38,159 - - 38,159
Bank and butldlné society certificates of deposit T ) U 196 h -1 196
" Asset-backed secunties h A I N N N R
Mortgage-backed securities - 366 - 366
Other asset-backed secunties - 171 8 179
Corporate and other debt secuml%_ T i T 32 2,244 - - 2,276
T T o 38,191 2977 P 41,176
Equity shares 41 108 - 1439
Treasury and other bills T T T o - 23 ’ - 23
Total availabte-for-sale financial assets 38,232 3,108 g 41,348
Total financial assets carred at fair vatue, excluding derivatives 46,976 34,513 26 81,515
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Movements in level 3 portfolio

The table below analyses movements in level 3 finangial assets, excluding denvatives, carned at fair value {recurnng measurement}

Trading and other Total financial

financial assets at assels,

fair value through Available- excluding

profit or loss for sale denvatives

The Group £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 3,306 567 3,873
Exchange and other adjustments 21 15 36
Gains recogrused 1n the income statement within other income 296 - 296
Gains recognised In other comprehensive income withun the revaluation reserve in respect of avalable-
for-sale financial assets - 10 40
Purchases 582 43 625
Sales (631 (224) (855)
Transfers into the ievel 3 portfolio 995 12 1,007
Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio (337 (4) (341)
At 31 December 2013 4,232 449 4,681
Exchange and other adjustments 5 N (2)
Gains recognised in the income statement within other income 579 - 579
Gains recognised In othes comprehensive Income within the revaluation reserve in respect of available-
for-sale financial assets - (61) (61)
Purchases 552 229 781
Sales (587) (266) {853)
Transfers (into the level ;‘l po[tfollo 708 - 708
Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio (385) {74} {459)
At 31 December 2014 5,104 270 5,374
Gans recogmised in the income statement, within other income, relating to the change in fair vatue of
those assets held at 31 December 2014 547 - 547
Gains recognised In the income statement, within ather income, relating to the change in fair value of
those assets held at 31 December 2013 70 - 70
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Trading and other Total financial
financial assets at assets
fair value through Avallable excluding
profit or loss for-sale denvatves
The Bank £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 - i 85 85
Purchases - 8 8
Sales (295) (85} {380)
Transfers into the level 3 portfolio 313 - 313
Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio - - -
Al 31 December 2013 18 8 26
Gains recognised in the Income statement within other income 1 - 1
Purchases - - -
Sales ) ~ i o i (3L ) 8) (n
Transfers into the level 3 portfolio 85 - 85
Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio - - -
At 31 December 2014 101 - 101
Gains recognised in the income statement, within other income, refating to the change in fair value of
those assets held at 31 December 2014 1 - 1

Losses le;:ognlsed In the incorne statement, within other income, relating 1o the change n fair value of
those assets held at 31 December 2013 - - -

Valuation methodotogy for financial assets, excluding denvatives

Loans and advances and debt securities

Loans and advances and debt secunties measured at fair value and classified as level 2 are valued by discounting expected cash flows using an observable crecht
spread applicable to the particular instrument

Where there 1s imited trading activity in debt secunbies, the Group uses valuation models, consensus precing information from third party pneing services and
broker or lead manager quotes to determine an appropriate valuation Debt securities are classified as level 3 if there 1s a significant valuation input that cannot
be corroborated through market sources or where there are matenally inconsistent values for an input Asset classes classified as level 3 mainly comprise certain
collateralised lpan obligations and collateralised debt cbligations

Equily mnvestments
Unhsted equity and fund investments are valued using different techniques in accordance with the Group's valuation policy and international Private Equity and
Venture Capital Guidelines

Depending on the business sector and the circumstances of the investment, unhisted equity valuations are based on earnings multples, net asset values or
discounted cash flows

- A number of earmngs multiples are used In valuing the partfolo including price earmings, earmngs before interest and tax and earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation The particular multiple selected being appropnate for the type of business being vatued and i1s denved by reference to the
current market-based multiple Consideration 1s gven to the nsk attnbutes, growth prospects and financial geanng of comparable businesses when selecting
an approprate multiple

— Discounted cash flow valuations use estimated future cash flows, usually based on management forecasts, with the apphication of appropnate exit yields or terminal
multiples and discounted using rates appropnate to the specific Investment, business sector or recent economic rates of return Recent transactions invelving the sale of
simitar businesses may sometimes be used as a frame of reference In denving an appropriate mutiple

— For fund mvestments the mest recent capital account value calculated by the fund manager 1s used as the basis for the valuation and adjusted, If necessary,
to ahgn valuation techngues with the Group's valuation policy

Unlisted equity investments and investments in property partnerships held in the life assurance funds are valued using third party valuations Management take
account of any pertinent mformation, such as recent transactions and information received on particular investments, to adjust the third party vatuations where
necessary
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(B} Financial habilities, excluding denvatives

Valuation herarchy

At 31 December 2014, the Group's financial habiliies carced at farr value, excluding denivatives, tolalled £62,153 million (31 December 2013 £43,675 milhon)
The table below analyses these financial lablities by balance sheet classification and valuatron methodology (level 1, 2 or 3, as described on page 111) The
fair value measurernent approach 1s recurnng in nature There were no significant transfers between fevel 1 and 2 during the year

Level 1 Leve!l 2 Level 3 Total
The Group £m £Em £m £m

At 31 December 2014
Trading and other financial hatihities at fair value through profit or loss
Liailities held at fair value through profit of loss - 6,739 5 6,744

Trading habihities

Liabilities in respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements - 50,007 - 50,007
Short positions in securities 2,700 519 - 3,219
Other i - o - 2,132 | -l T 282

) 2,700 52,658 - 55,358
Total trading and other financtal habilities at fair value thiough profit or loss 2,700 59,397 5 62,102
Financial guarantees - - 51 51
Total financial hiabilities carried at fair value, excluding denvatives 2,700 59,397 56 62,153

There were no significant transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The Group £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2013
Trading and other financial habslities at fair value through profit or loss 7 i
Liabihties held at fair value through profit or loss o o - - 5.26_7‘ ) 39 - 5.3-06
Trading hiabiliies ’ S T T o o B
Liabilities in respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements - 28,902 - 28,902
Short sznﬂons In securities T 6,473 a7 - 6,890
O'the; T S T T T B o 1 _235 e - 75?572?
o o - ’ 6,473 31,846 - 38,319
Total trading and other financtal liabilbies at fair value through profit or loss 6,473 37,113 39 43,625
Financial guarantees - - 50 50
Total financial habilties carned at fair value, excluding dernvatives 6,473 37,113 B9 43,675
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
The Bank £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Trading and other financial iabilies at fair value through proft or Ioss i ) i
Liabilities held at fair value through profit o loss ) Y - R £
Trading iabhities T T e o ST . o o
L|ab|l|l|es |n_re'e_pect of sec—u;n%_ ;ola t_mder repur&as;-agge-m_ents——_ T -1 60,424 - 60,424
Short positions In secunties 2,654 518 - 3,172
Other - 2,892 - 2,892
2,654 63,834 - 66,488
Total trading and other financial habilities at fair vatue through profit or loss 2,654 70,573 - 73,227
Financial guarantees - - 30 30
Total financial kabilities carned at fair value, excluding dervatves 2,654 70,573 30 73,257
Level 1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total
The Bank £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2013
Tradmg and olher fl;gr;(;alllli_ibllliles at fair value through proﬂ or loss ’ T o
Llabllltles held at falr value through proflt or Iosé T o T T 75;316 T - 5756
Trading labdibes T 7
Liabilities in respect of secunties sold under repurchase agreements - 32,255 - 32,255
Short positions in securities T 1,450 0y TV iser
Toer A 3668 | N Y
1,450 36,340 - 37,790
Total traghng and other financial habalities at fair value through profit or loss 1,450 41,656 - 43,106
Financial guarantees - - 33 33
Total financtal hatilities carried at fair value, excluding denvatives 1,450 41,656 33 43,139
The table below analyses movements i level 3 financial liabihties excluding dervatives
Total level 3
Trading and other financial habnhities
financial habilives carned at far
at fair value through Financial  valug excluding
profit of loss guarantees denvatives
The Group £m £m £m
At E .Ianuary 2013 - 48 48
Losses recognlsed In the 1ncome ¢ slatemeax_'thother ncome 7 77 1w 3 13
Additions 29 - 29
Re&emptlons ST - {1 T ﬁ(T)
A1 31 December 2013 39 50 89
(Gains) losses recognised in the income statement within other income (5) 1 (4
Addtions - - -
Redemptions o T (29) . (29)
At 31 December 2014 5 51 56
Losses recognised 1n the income statement, withun other income, retating to the change n fair value of
those habilties held at 31 December 2014 - 1 1
Losses recogmsed n the income staternent, within other |_n_cB—m-e relating to the change In fair value of T
those liabilities held at 31 December 2013 10 3 13
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Total level 3
finangial iabilities
carmned at fair
Financial value excluding
guarantees denvatives
The Bank £m £m
At 1 January 2013 34 34
Gains recognised 1n the income statement withen other inceme (1} (1}
At 31 December 2013 33 33
Gains recogmsed in the income staterment wathin other income (3} (3)
At 31 December 2014 30 ki)
Gains recognised 1n the Income statement, within other income, relating to the
change 1n fair value of those liabihties held at 31 December 2014 3) (3)
Gains recognised in the income statement, within other Income, relating to the
change 1n fair value of those liabihties held at 31 December 2013 1} n

Transfers out of the tevel 3 portfolio anse when inputs that could have a significant ympact on the instrument’s valuation become market observable after
previously having been non-market observable In the case of asset-backed secunities this can anse If more than one conststent independent source of data
becomes available Conversely transfers into the portfolio anse when consistent sources of data cease to be available

Valuation methodology for financial habilities, excluding derivatives
Liabihiies held at fair value through profit or loss
These principally compnse debt securnbes in1ssue which are classified as level 2 and their fair value 1s determined using techniques whose inputs are based on

observable market data The carrying amount of the secunties (s adjusted to reflect the effect of changes 1n own credit spreads The resulting gain or loss 15
recognised in the income statement

At 31 December 2014, the own credit adjustment ansing from the fair valuation of £6,739 million (2103 £5,267 mithon) of the Group s debt secunties in
1ssue designated at fair value through profit or loss resulted in a gain of £33 million (2013 gain of £40 million)

{C) Dervatives

All of the Gioup's dervative assets and habilities are camed at fair value At 31 December 2014, such assets totalled £35,483 milhon for the Group and
£40,150 mullion for the Bank {31 December 2013 £31,913 mullion for the Group and £30,392 miflion for the Bank) and habilitres totalted £33,293 million
for the Group and £41,320 milhon for the Bank (31 December 2013 £30,704 milhon for the Group and £31,114 miton for the Bank) The table below
analyses these derwative balances by valuation methodology (level 1, 2 or 3, as described on page 111) The fair value measurement approach 1s eecurring in
nature There were no significant transfers between fevel 1 and level 2 during the year

Level 1 Level 2 Levet 3 Total
The Group £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Denwatwe assets - 94 33,264 2,125 35,483
Dernwative liabilities . - T " (68} (3i.769) 7?174;6)‘7 77637.2793)
At 31 December 2013!
Dernvative assets 235 27,550 1,807 29,592
Dervatve labities . T (119) (26,793) (986) (27.898)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

The Bank £m £€m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Derwative assets - 38,546 1,604 40,150
Dervative liabilities - {39,964) (1,356} {41,320}
At 31 December 2013!
Dervative assets - 26,704 1,3;67 28,071
Denvative habiles T T - (27,368) (940) (28,308}
'See note 1
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Where the Group's derivative assets and liabilities are not traded on an exchange, they are valued using valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
and options pricing models, as appropriate The types of denvatives classified as level 2 and the valuation techmques used include

- Interest rate swaps which are valued ustng discounted cash flow madels, the most significant inputs into those models are interest rate yield curves which are
developed from publicly quoted rates

- Foreign exchange derivatives that do not contain options which are priced using rates available from publicly quoted sources

- Credit denvatives which are valued using standard models with observable inputs, except for the items classified as level 3, which are valued using publicly
available yield and credit default swap (CDS) curves

- Less complex interest rate and foreign exchange option preducts which are valued using volatility surfaces developed from publicly available interest rate cap,
interest rate swaption and other option volatiities, option volatiity skew information 1s derived from a market standard consensus pricing service For more
complex option products, the Group calibrates its models using abservable at-the-money data, whete necessary, the Group adjusts for out-of-the-money
positions using a market standard consensus prncing service

Complex interest rate and foreign exchange products where there 15 sigmificant dispersion of consensus pnicing or where imphed funding costs are matenal and
unobservable are classified as level 3

Where credit protection, usually in the form of credit default swaps, has been purchased or written on asset-backed securities, the security 1s referred to as a
negative basis asset-backed secunty and the resulting derivative assets or habthties have been classified as either level 2 or level 3 according to the classification
of the underlying asset-backed secunity

The table below analyses movements 1n level 3 denvative assets and liabilities carned at fair value

Dervative Dervative
assets habilities

The Group £m £m
mjaﬁary 2013 B ) T T T 937 (543
_Exchange and otﬁ?adjdstments o o ST o T 2 (é)
Gains (losses) recognsed in the Income statement within other Income T h T T 383 T30
Purchases (addwons) ) T i ’ T ’ 731 (262)
(Sales) redemptions (102) 29
Transfers into the level 3 portfolo 354 (233)
Transfers out of the level 3 pomo o T 8) 1
At 31 December 2013 1,807 (986)
—E;E_héﬁgé;nd other adjustments - T (IT)___ 4
Gains recognised n thé ncome stale—ment within c;thém(;me T T T o 554 - (5775)
Purchases (additions) 68 (59)
(Sales} rede;npnons ) o o 7 - (153) o 66
Transfers 1nto the tevel 3 pbrtfo]lo o T T I o ST 114 i w(wll.(ﬁ
Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio (53) 4
At 31 Decemnber 2014 2,126 (1,456)
Gains {losses) recognised n the income statement, within other tncome, relating to the change in fair value of those
assets or habiities held at 31 December 2014 354 (376)
Gans recognised in the Income statement, within other income, relating to the change in fair value of those assets or
habilities held at 31 December 2013 376 (200
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Denvative Dernvative
assels tiabilihies

The Bank £m £m
A1 Jansary 2013 T o T 765 (488)
Exéhange and other adjusiments T T T T @ 1
Gains {losses) re?:o@@d n the income sitatement within other income I ¥ ' T2
Purchases {additions) 270 (262)
(Sales) redemptions ) (10} -
Transfers into the level 3 portfolio ’ T i T 192 (194)
Transfers out of the level 3 portf_ollo T - T @ 1
At 31 December 2013 1,367 (940)
Exchange and other adjustments (2) 3
Gans regaérﬁégd in the ncome stateme;n within olﬁe‘rjl;mome T N h T 196 T (317
Purchases (additions} o ’ T 68 (59}
(Sales) redemptions {139) 63
Transfers into the fevel 3 portfollo T T T - S T _‘__.114_ T (110}
Transfers out of the level 3 portfolio - T _ T s
At 31 December 2014 1,604 (1,356)
Gains {losses) recogmised 1n the income statement, within other income, relating to the change i fair value of those
assets or liabifiies held at 31 December 2014 196 (317)
Gains recognised n the income statement, within other income, refating 1o the change in fair value of those assets or
liabahties held at 31 December 2013 178 -

Denvative valuation adjustments

Denvative financial instruments which are carned n the balance sheet at far vatue are adjusted where appropriate 1o reflect credit nsk, market iqusdity and
other nsks

(1) Uncollateralised derivative valuation agjustments, excluding monoline counterparties
The following table summanses the movement on this valuation adjustment account for the Group duning 2014 and 2013

2014 2013

£m £m

At 1 January 498 897

Income statement {credit} charge h T 95 (241)

Transfers o o i a o 15 T —flsé)

At 31 December 608 498
Represented by

2014 2013

£m £m

Credit Valuation Adjustment 568 485

Debit Valuation Ad]l;stment i - S (85) (122)

Funding Valuat-lca ;\d_Justment o - 125 7 _-155

608 498

Credit and Debit Valuation Adjustments (CVA and DVA) are applied to the Group's over-the-counter derivative exposures with counterparties that are not subject
to standard interbank collateral arrangements These expesures largely relale to the provision of nsk management selutions for corperate customers within the
Commercial Banlung division

A CVA 15 taken where the Group has a positive future uncollateralised exposure {asset) A DVA 1s taken where the Group has a negative future uncollaterahised
exposure (hatility) These adjustments reflect interest rales and expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group's own credit spread respectively

The CVA s sensitive to

- the cument size of the mark-to-market pasition on the uncollaterabsed asset,
- expectations of future market volatility of the underlying asset, and
~ expectations of counterparty creditworthiness

In circumstances where exposures to a counterparty become impatred, any associated dervative valuation adjustment is transferred and assessed for specific
loss alongside other non-denvative assets and habilities that the counterparty may have with the Group
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Market Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads are used 1o develop the probability of default for quoted counterparties For unguoted counterpartes, internal credi
ratings and market sector CDS curves and recovery rates are used The Loss Given Default (LGD) 15 based on market recovery rates and internal credit assessments

The combination of a one notch detenoration 1n the credit rating of dernvative counferparties and a ten per cent increase i LGD mncreases the CVA by
£105 milion Current market value 15 used to estimate the projected exposure for products not supported by the model, which are prncipally complex interest
rate opuions that are traded in very low volumes For these, the CVA 1s calculated on an add-on basis (in total contributing £2 milhion of the overall CVA balance
at 31 December 2014}

The DVA 1s sensitive to

- the current size of the mark-to-market position on the uncollateralised liability,
— expectations of future market volatility of the underlying hiability, and
— the Group's own CDS spread

A one per cent nise In the COS spread would lead to an increase in the DVA of £122 million to £207 million

The risk exposures that are used for the CVA and DVA calculations are strongly influenced by interest rates Due to the nature of the Group's business the
CVA/DVA exposures tend o be on average the same way around such that the valuation adjustmenis fall when interest rates nse A one per cent nse in interest
rates would lead to a £183 mullion fall in the overa!l valuation adjustment to £300 mikon The CVA model used by the Group does not assume any correlation
hetween the level of interest rates and default rates

The Group has also recogrised a Funding Valuation Adjustment to adjust for the net cost of funding certain uncollaterahised denvative posittons where the Group
considers that this cost 1s included 1in market pricing  This adjustment s calculated on the expected future exposure discounted at a suitable cost of funds Aten
basis points increase in the cost of funds wilt increase the funding valuation adjusiment by approximately £7 milhon

(1} Market quidity

The Group includes mid to bid-offer valuation adjustments against the expected cost of closing out the net market nsk in the Group's trading positions within a
nmeframe that 1s consistent with historical trading activity and spreads that the trading desks have accessed historically during the ordinary course of business
in normal market conditions

At 31 December 2014, the Group's derivative trading business held mid to bid-cffer valuation adjustments of £74 million (2013 £70 milhion)
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{D) Sensitivity of level 3 valuations

At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

Effect of reasonably
possible allernative
assumptlons?

Carrylng  Favourable Unfavourable

Effect of reasonably
possible ahtermnative
assumptions

Carrying Favourable Unfavourable

Valuation Significant value changes changes value changes changes
baslg/technique unobservable inputs! E£m £m £m £m £m £m
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt secunties Drscounted Credit spreads (bps) 35 5 (5) 18 5 ()
cash flows n/a® )
Asset-backed secunties  Lead manager or n/a 65 - (2) - - -
broker quote
Equ:t)f and venture Market approach Eammg; multiple 2,214 75 (75) 2,132 70 70
capital Investments (4/14)
Underlyngassety  na 173 26 T3 130 17 e
net asset value (ingk
property prices)*
Unlisted equites and ~ Underlyngasset  nfa 2,617 T a 2 1,952 -
debt secunities, property  net asset value (incl
partnerships 1n the ife  property pnces)*
funds
5,104 4,232
Available-for-sale financial assets
Asset-backed Lead manager or broker
secunties quqtea’coniensusipngng n/a L - - - 74 - L
Equity and venture Underlying asset/ nia 270 10 (18) 375 28 (19)
capial investments net asset value {incl
property prices)*
270 449
Denvative financial assets
Interest rate Discounted Inflation swap rate — 1,382 17 (16} 1,461 66 (39
denvatives cash flow funding component
. (3 bps/167 bps) -
Option pricing Interest rate volatility 743 6 (6} 346 6 (7
model (4%/120%)
2,125 1,807
Level 3 financial assets carned at fair value 7,499 6,488
Trading and other financial habilities at fair value
through profit or loss 5 - - 39 1 (1)
Dervative financial abilities
Interest rate Discounted Inflation swap rate — BO7 - - 754 - -
dernvatives cash flow funding component
I L Qbeste?bpsy .
Option pncing Interest rate volatity 649 - - 232 - -
model {4%/120%)
1,456 986
Financial guarantees 51 50
Level 3 financial habihties carned at fair value 1,512 1,075

1Ranges are shown where appropriate and represent the highest and lowest inputs used in the level 3 valuations

2Where the exposure to an unobservable input 15 managed on a net basis only the net impact 1s shown in the table

A sIngle pricing source 15 used

4Underying asset/net asset values represent fair value
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Unobservable inputs
Significant unobservable inputs affecting the valuation of debt secunties, unlisted equity investments and denvatives are as follows

— Interest rates and inflation rates are referenced 1n some denvatives where the payoff that the holder of the denvative receives depends on the behaviour of
those underlying references through time

~ Credit spreads represent the premium above the benchmark reference instrument requtred to compensale for lower credit quality, tigher spreads lead 10 3
lower fair value

— Volatihty parameters represent key attnbutes of option behaviour, higher volatihittes typically dencte a wider range of possible outcomes

— Earmings mulitples are used to value certain unhisted equity investments, a higher earnings multrple will result in a higher fair value

Reasonably possible alternative assumptions
Valuation techniques applied to many of the Group’s level 3 instruments often involve the use of two or more inputs whose relationship 15 interdependent The
calculation of the effect of reasonably possible alternative assumptions included in the table above reflects such relationships

Debt securities
Reasonably possible alternative assumptions have been determined in respect of the Group's structured credit investment by flexing credit spreads

Dervatives
Reasonably possible alternative assumptions have been determined in respect of the Group’s dernivative portfolios as follows

— Uncollaterahised inflation swaps are valued using appropnate discount spreads for such transactions These spreads are not generally observable for longer
maturities The reasonably possible alternative valuations reflect flexing of the spreads for the diffeing maturities to alternative values of between 3 bps and
167 bps (2013 62 bps and 192 bps)

- Swaptions are pnced using industry standard option prnicing models Such models require interest rate volatilities which may be unobservable at longer
matunties To denve reasonably possible alternative valuations these volatilities have been flexed wethin a range of 4 per cent 1o 120 per cent (2013 3 per cent
and 112 per cent)

Uniisted equity, venture capital investments and invesiments i property partnersfips

The valuation techniques used for unlisted equity and venture capital investments vary depending on the nature of the investment Reasonably possible
alternative valuations for these investments have been calculated by reference to the approach taken, as appropnate 10 the business sector and investment
circumstances and as such the following inputs have been considered

- for valuations dernived from earnings mulliples, consideration 1s given to the nisk attnbutes, growth prospecis and financial geanng of comparable businesses
when selecting an appropnate mulliple,

— the discount rates used in discounted cash flow valuations, and

- 1n hne with International Private Equity and Venture Capital Guidelines, the values of undeslying investments in fund investments portfolios

126



Lloyds Bank plc
Notes to the accounts

50 Financial instruments (continued}

{4) Financial assets and habihties carnied at amortised cost
(A) Financial assets

Valuation hierarchy

The table below analyses the fair values of the financial assets of the Group which are carned at amortised cost by vatuation methodology (leve! 1, 2 or 3, as
descnbed on page 111) Loans and receivables are manly classified as level 3 due to significant unobservable inputs used in the valvation models Where inputs

are observable, debt securities are classified as level 1 or 2

Valuation hierarchy

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

The Group £m £m Em £m
At 31 December 2014 ~

Loans and advances to customers ) ST T asos3 - - a80831
Loans and advances o banks T 2801 - o 2s031
Debisecurtes T T o 100 7 1,050 43

Due from fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings T 11482 - - 11,482
Reverse repos included 1in above amounts L _ B L o

Loans and advances to customers - ) - s,iZE L - i"s, 148
" Loans and advances to banks - 1,859 o - 1,899
At 31 December 2013!

Loans and advances to customers 484,166 - - ) 484,166

Loans and advances to banks T i T 25& TS T . -'25.295

Debt securities 1,251 157 42 1,052

Oue from fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings - 15453 - - 15,453
Reverse repos included 1n above amounts

Loans and advances to customers ’ 120 - - o 120

Lw7n§§@ advances toubanks T i T T 18 - - 183

1See note 1
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Valuation herarchy

Falr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
The Bank £m Em £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Loans and advances to customers 163,950 - - 163,950
" Loans and advances 1o banks o a © a5 - T - Tas3s
Debt securivies - - - -
—I?)Tx; ljr;;n fellow Lloyds_Banklng Group unaékmgs T 130.63-6_ T T - 130,636
Reverse repos included yn above amounts
Loans and advances to customers o 5,148 o - - i 5,148
Loans and advances to banks 1,899 - - 1,899
At 31 December 2013!
Loans and advances to customers 162,673 - - 162,673
“Loans and advances to banks o 3,073 - - -1-’,.073
Debt secunties o 150 15(7)7 - - -
Cue from fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 262,977 - - 262,977
Reverse repos included in above amounts
Loans and advances to customers ) 120 - - 120
"Loans and advances to banks T - ) 183 - i - ) 183

See note 1

Valuatron methodology

Loans and advances to custorners
The Group provides loans and advances to commercial, corporate and personal customers at both fixed and vanable rates due to their short term nature The
carrying value of the vanable rate loans and those relating to lease financing 1s assumed to be their fair value

To determine the fair value of loans and advances to customers, loans are segregated (nto portfolios of similar charactenstics A number of technigues are used
o estimate the fair value of fixed rate lending, these take acceunt of expected credit losses based on histonc trends, prevailing market interest rates and expected
future cash flows For retall exposures, fair value 15 usually estimated by discounting anticipated cash flows (ncluding interest at contractual rates} at market
rates for similar loans offered by the Group and other financial institutions Certain loans secured on residential properties are made at a fixed rate for a hmited
penod, typically two to five years, after which the loans revert to the relevant vanable rate The fair value of such 1oans 1s estimated by reference to the market
rates for siemlar loans of matunty equal to the remaining fixed interest rate penod The fair value of commercial loans 1s estimated by discounting anticipated
cash flows at a rate which reflects the effects of interest rate changes, adjusted for changes in cretit nsk  No adjustment 1s made to put ¢ in place by the Group
to manage its interest rate exposure

Loans and advances to banks

The carrying value of short dated toans and agvances 1o banks I1s assumed to be their far value The fair vatue of loans and advances to banks 1s estimated by
discounting the anticipated cash flows at a market discount rate adjusted for the credit spread of the obligor or, where not observable, the ¢credit spread of
borrowers of similar credit quality

Debt securities

The{air values of debt securities, which were previously within assets held for trading and were reclassified to foans and receivables, are determined predominantly
{from lead manager quaotes and, where these are not avallable, by alternative techniques including reference to credit spreads on similar assets with the same
obligor, market standard consensus pricing services, broker quotes and other reseaich data

Reverse repurchase agreements
The carrying amcunt 1s deemed a reasonable approximation of {am value given the short-lerm nature of these instruments
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(B) Financial lLiabtlities

Valuation hierarchy

The table below analyses the fair values of the financial habulities of the Group whech are carned at amortised cost by valuation methodology (level 1, 2 or 3, as

descnbed on page 111)

Valuation hierarchy

Falr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
The Group £m £m Em £m
At 31 December 2014
Deposits from banks ) i B 10,902 - 10,502 -
Customer deposits 450,038 - 435,073 14,965
Due to feﬁovw [ByEE Banking Group un&en;kggfs T - 5,288 T - ’ 5,288 - -
Debt secunties In 1ssue ) i 79,664 - 79‘6_64 -
Subordinated habilies 34,780 - 34,780 -
Repos included 1n above amounts
Depasits from banks S R 1,075 ¢ S
Customer deposis - - - -
At 31 December 2013!
Deposits from banks 14,101 - 13,957 144
Customer deposits - i " 440,011 oz 421,278 18,733
Due to fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 8,797 - 8,797 -
Debt securnties 1n 1ssue - T 90,268 o 90,693 i 175
Subordinated liabilities ) - 33,976 - 33976 -
Repos included in above amounts
Deposits from banks 2,112 - 2,112 -
Customer deposits ) ) 3,114 - 3,114 -
Valuation hierarchy
Falr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
The Bank £m Em £m £m
At 31 December 2014
ligao;ts from banks o a T 8,213 T T 8.313 T .
Customer deposits 196,958 - 196,958 -
Due to fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 91,979 - 91,979 -
Debt securities In issue 71,617 - 71,617 -
Subordinated liabilities - o 23,314 o 23314 -
Repos included in above amounts
Deposits from banks . 480 - 480 -
Customer_deposns - T - - T -
At 31 Decembes 20131
Deposits from banks T T 1053 0 - 10392 144
Customer deposits T - T 77 185890 T 185880 -
Cue to fellow Lloyds Banking Group undertakings 244,025 - 244,025 -
Debt secunities 10 1ssue 52,666 - 52,666 -
Subordinated habildies S 24,442 T T 2ama2 -
Repos included 1n above amounts
Deposits from banks 1,261 - 1,251 -
Customer deposits T ) 3,114 - 3,114 -
'See note !

Valuation methodology
Depostts from banks and customer deposits

The fair value of bank and customer deposits repayable on demand 1s assumed to be equal to thew carrying value
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The fair value for all other deposits 1s estimaied using discounted cash flows applying either market rates, where apphicable, or cursent rates for deposits of simular
remaining maturities

Debt securnies 1n issue

The fair value of short-term debt secunities inissue is approximately equal to thewr carrying value Fair value for other debt secunties 1s calculated based on quoted
market prices where avallable Where quoted market prices are not avalable, fair value 1s estimated using discounted cash flow techniques at a rate which
reflects market rates of interest and the Group's own credit spread

Subordinated habiities
The fanr vatue of subordinated liabilities 1s determined by reference to quoted market prices where available or by reference to quoted market prices of similar
mstruments  Subordinated atihihies are classified as level 2, since the inputs used to determine thewr fair value are largely observable

Repurchase agreements
The carmying amount 1s deemed a reasonable approximation of fair value given the shert term nature of these instruments

{5) Reclassification of financial assets
No financial assets have been reclassified in 2013 or 2014

During 2012 the Group and the Bank reviewed the holding of government secunties classified as held-to-maturity and, in view of the fact that it was no longer
the intention to hold these to matunty, secunities with a carrying amount of £10,811 million and a far value of £11,979 millron were reclassified as avalable-
for-sale financal assets in Decernber 2012 At 31 December 2014, the secunties reclassified that were still retained by the Group were carried at their fair value
of £1,284 milhon (2013 £1,117 mulon)
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(1) Transferred financial assets that continue to be recogmised in full

The Group and the Bank enter into repurchase and secunties lending transactions in the normal course of business that do not result 1n derecognition of the
financial assets covered as substantally all of the nsks and rewards, including credit, interest rate, prepayment and other price nsks are retained by the Group
In all cases, the transferee has the night to sel! or repledge the assets concerned

As set out In note 18, (ncluded within loans and receivables are loans transferred under the Group's securniisation and covered bond programmes  As the Group
retains alt of a majonty of the nsks and rewards associated with these loans, including credit, interest rate, prepayment and liquidity rnisk, they remain on the
Group's balance sheet Assets transferred into the Group's secuntisation and covered bond programmes are not avaitable to be used by the Group whilst the
assets are within the programmes However, the Group retains the right to remove lcans from the covered bond programmes where they are in excess of the
programme’s requirements  In additron, where the Group has retained some of the notes tssued by securitisation and covered bond programmes, the Group has

the ability 10 seli or pledge these retained notes

The table below sets out the carrying values of the transferred assets and the associated liabilities For repurchase and securities lending transactions, the
associated habilities represent the Group's obligaticn to repurchase the transferred assets For secuntisation programmes, the associated liabilities represent the
external notes 1n 1ssue (note 35) Except as otherwise noted below, none of the kabilitres shown i the table below have recourse only to the transferred assets

The Group The Bank
Carrying Carrying Carrylng Carrying
value of value of valye of value of
transferred assoclated transferred assocrated
assets liabilities assats liabilitles
£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Repurchase and securibies lending transactions
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 16,803 6,673 9,076 6,625
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 18,835 10,301 17,916 10,287
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to customers 2,353 908 1,683 324
Debt securities classified as loans and receivables B8 - 88 -
Secuntisation programmes
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to customers 75,970 11,908 13,048 12,209
The Group The Bank
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
value of value of value of value of
transferred associated transferred assoclated
assels lhabilities assets liabihties
£m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2013
Repurchase and secuntes lending transactions
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10,832 927 6,922 6,664
Available-for-sale financial assets 6,093 3,726 18,001 8,733
Loans and receivables
Loans and advances to customers 19,074 3,936 826 789
Debt securnties classified as loans and receivables 88 - 78 -
Secunitisation programmes
Loans and recevables
Loans and advances to customers 80,878 18,613! 10,407 10,735

Excludes secuntisation notes held by the Group (£38,149 million, 31 December 2013 £38 288 mullion)

(2) Transferred financial assets derecogrised n ther entirety with ongoing exposure
Transferred financial assets which were derecogrised in their entirety, but with ongoing exposure, consisted of £33 million of debt secunties (2013 £78 million)
with a fair vatue of £33 milhon {2013 £76 mullion) and a maximum exposure 1o loss of £33 mullion (2013 £78 mullen)
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The following information relates tc financial assets and liabifities which have been offset in the balance sheet and those which have not been offset but for
which the Group has enforceable master netting agreerments i place with counterparties

Related amounts where set off In

the balance sheet not permitted? Po;::.::ﬂ.:;e,:
Amounts offsel Net amounts Non-cash oftset
Gross amounts In presented in  Cash collateral collateral of related
of assets and the balance the balance recetved/ recelved/ amounts
habilities! sheet? sheet pledged pledged permitted
At 31 December 2014 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Trading and other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Excluding revesse repos T 115,795 2] his.79s - 6,670) [109,125
" Reverse repos T T T Tazeao| [ es| [36725| | -| |@e728| | -
- 7 158435  (5915) 152,520 — (43,395} 109,125
Dervative financial instruments T 71733 (36,250) 35483 (3,651} (22,336} 9,496
Loans and advances fo banks T S B - -
TExcludingreverseiepos [ =2a288| - 24256 | | (2,133) -1 [22123
" Reverse repos T T T T T asee | | - [Twess| | - Tasem| | -
26,155 - 26,155 {2,133) (1,899) 22,123
Loans and 7adVanCeS to customers
Excluding reverse repos 80,376 (2,820 [177.556 (1,254) @967 71,335
Reverse repas 5,148 - r 5,148 - (5,148} -
485,524 (2,820) 482,704 (1,254)  (10,115) 471,335
Debt securities - - 1,213 N S W3 -
Avallablefor-sale financial assets ’ 56,493 - 56,493 - (10,299) 46,194
F_|r;anCIa.I |I;bl|ltles o T i ) T
Deposuts: f‘raa banks B ) o o o
Excluding repos ) 9,812 -1 [ es12] [ 1w - 6,693
“Repos - o . 1075 | | | wers| | -| [aor®) -
) T " 10,887 - 10887 (3,119 (1,075 6,693
Customer deposits T o T T o
" Excluding repos } T hassel| [ (2.294) hareer} | s3] [ woea] hazaal
Repos o T N - I N -
S o T T 449,361 (2,294) 447,067  (532)  (4,093) 442,441
?r_a—d_lng and other-ﬁa;cwlllabthﬁuﬁa at far value - -
through profit or 1oss
Excluding repos o i 12,095 - 12,095 _ N 12,095
Repos ’ o o 55,922 (5,915 |s0007| |  -| |s000m| -
i 68,017 (5.915) 62,102 - (50,007 12,095
Denvative financial instruments 70,069 (36,776} 33,293 (3,387 {25559 4,347
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Related amounts where set
off in the balance sheet not

permitted* Pme:;.:z:_;:;
Gross Ameunts Net amounts Cash Non-ash if offset
amounts of offset in presented collateral collateral oif related
assets and the balance n the recerved/ receved/ amounts
labikves! sheet? balance sheet pledged pledged permitted
At 31 December 2013 Em £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Trading and other financial assets at fair value T o o ) - o T i
through profit or loss
Excluding reverse repos 113,919 - 113,919 - (503) 113,016
Reverse repos ’ 33,725 (4,437) 29288 | - (29,288) -
T T T 147 644 @4,437) 143,207 - (30191} 113,016
Denvatwe financial instruments 49,073 {19,481) 29,592 (2,702) (19,703} 7,187
Loans and advances to banks h o
TExcluding reverserepes | 2582 -1 [ 25182 2180 -1 [ 23,002
Reverse repos T I R Y+ I S B R F'T o s | -
25,365 - 25,365 (2,180 (183) 23,002
Loans and advances to customers -
“Excuding reverse repos I FETRTY 2.329) |ozs32]| | sm| [aoe98)]  [481,352
Reverse repos 120 - 120 - (120} -
495,281 (2,329) 492,952 (782)  (10,818) 481,352
Debt securities T 1,355 - 1,355 - - 1,355
Avallable-for-sale financial assels o 43976 - 43976 - (3.725) 40,251
Financiai habihities
Deposits from banks
Excluding repos T 12,108 - 12,108 (2,280) - 9,828
Repos - T T T Taera| | - e | = Tasm -
13,982 - 13,982 (2,280 {1,874) 9,828
Customer deposits
Exclucing repos i - 438,333 | | (1.844)] [a3sass| | we2 ©.811)] [a29,256
“Repos o | 2978l | 2| | 2978 - (2,978) -
441,311 (1,844) 439 467 (422 (9,780) 429,256
Trading and other financial liabilies at-?a-ﬁ value ) o . -
through profit or loss
Excluding repos 7 s N EVETI -1 -1 14723
Repos 33,339 (4,437 28,902 - (28,902) -
7 i h 48,062 (4,437 43625 - (28,902) 14,723
Dervative financial instruments o 47.864 (19,966) 27,898  (2962)  (21,159) 3,777

‘Alter impairment allowance

2The amounts set off In the balance sheet as shown above represent denvatives and repurchase agreements with central cleanng houses which meet the crtena for offsetting under

1AS 32

*The Group enters into dervatives and repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements wath vanous counterparties which are govemed by industry standard master nething agreements
The Group holds and provides cash and secunties collateral in respectrve of derrvative transactions covered by these agreements The right to set off balances under these master netting
agreements or 1o set off cash and securities collateral only arises i the event of non-payment or default and, as a result, these arrangerments do not gualify for offsetting under 1AS 32

The effects of over collateralisabion have not been taken into account tn the above table
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Financial insiruments are fundamental to the Group's activities and, as a consequence, the risks associated with financial instruments epresent a significant
component of the nsks faced by the Group

The primary nsks affecting the Group through its use of financial instruments are credit nsk, market risk, which includes interest rate nsk and currency nsk,
liquihty nsk and insurance nsk Information about the Group's management of these fisks 15 given below

(1) Credit nisk

The Group's credit nsk exposure anses in respect of the instruments below and predominantly in the United Kingdom Credit nsk appetite 1s set at Board level
and 15 descnbed and reported through a suite of metncs devised from a combination of accounting and credit pertfolio periormance measures, which include
the use of vanous credit nsk rating systems as inputs and measure the credit risk of loans and advances to customners and banks at a counterparty level using
three components (1) the probability of default by the counterparty on its contractual obligations, (1} the current exposures to the counterparty and ther likely
future development, frem which the Group denves the expesure at default, and (n} the likely loss ratio on the defaulted obligations, the loss given defaull The
Group uses a range of approaches to mitigate credit nsk, including internal control policies, obtaiming collateral, using master netiing agreements and other credit
nsk transfers, such as asset sales and credit denvative based transactions

A Maxmum credit exposure

The maximum credit nsk expasure of the Group and the Bank n the event of other parties failing to perform their obligations s detalled below No account 1s
taken of any collateral held and the maximum exposure to loss, which includes amounts held to cover unit-inked and With-Profit funds habilities, 1s considered
to be the balance sheet carrying amount or, for non-denvative off-balance sheet transactions and financial guarantees, therr contractual nominal amounts

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
Maximum Maximum
exposure Oftset? Net exposure exposure Qffset? Net exposure
The Group £m Em £m £m £m £m
Loans and recervables
Loans and advances to banks, net! 26,155 - 26,155 25,365 - 25,365
" Loans and advances o customers, net! 482,704 T @oom| | a7ssi0| | ageesz| | wsin| | assa41
" Debt secunties, net! Tl 1,213 - 1,213 1,355 ) - 1,355
) T 510072 {4,004) 505,978 519,672 6,811 512,861
Rv:arllable-for-sale financial asset-sri i o 55.'451 ) - 55,451 43,406 - i 43,406
fradlng and other financial assets at farr value - i ’ ’ ’ i
through profit o loss®4
“Loans and advances T 3e725 - 36,725 | 29,443 - 29,443
Debt secunities, treasury and other bills Tszear| [ o [ saear] | aessa| -7 46883
- T 90,366 — 90366 7632 - 76.326
Dervative assets 35483 (21,929) 13,554 29,592 (19,479) 10,113
Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held 682 - 682 732 - 732
Financial guarantees 7,161 - 7.161 8,691 - ’ 8,591
Off-balance sheet items -
Acceptances and endorsements 59 - 59 204 - 204
Other items serving as direct credit substitutes 330 - 330 710 - 710
" Performance bonds and other transaction- | N
related contingencies 2,293 - 2,293 1,966 - 1,966
Irrevocable commiments 55,029 - 55,029 56,292 - 56,292
57,711 - 57,711 59,172 - 59,172
756,926 (26,023} 730,903 737,491 (26,290} 711,201
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At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

Maximum Maximum
exposure Offset? Net exposure exposure Qffset? Net exposure
£€m £m £m £m £m £m
The Bank
foans an& ;eéelvables‘__ o T ) ) o T T T
Loans and advances 1o banks, net! 4,591 - 4,591 3,095 - 3,095
L.oans and advances to customers, net! 165,967 (2,932) 163,035 165,574 (4,959) 160,615
Debt securiies, net! - - - 150 - 150
170,558 (2,932) 167,626 168,819 (4,959) 163,860
Available-for-sate financial assets? 50,686 - 50,686 41,999 - 41,999
Trading and other financial assets at fair value B i )
through profit or loss?
Loans and advances 47,813 - 47,813 29,682 - 29,682
Debt secunities, treasury and other bills ) 18,508 - 18,508 10,485 - 16,485
-7 - esaz - e6321 40,167 ~ T a0167
Dervatwe assels S 40,150 (16,999) 23,151 28071 12192) 15879
Financial guara_n-tees T T ‘6._568 T - 6:5;8 ?’,790737 T ?353
Off-balance sheet items ST N R ) ) N
" Acceptances and endorsements T 58| -1 58 124 - 124
Other items serving as direct credit substitutes 322 - 322 686 - 686
Performance bonds and other transaction-
related contingencies 2,015 - 2,015 1,647 - 1,647
lmevocable commitments | 39785 |  -| | 39,755 Ca03a| | - 20,341
42,150 - 42,150 42,798 - 42798
376,463 (19,931) 356,532 329,757 {17,151) 312,606

!Amounts shown net of related wnpairment allowances

20ffset items comprise deposit amounts available for offset and amounts available for offset under master netting arrangements that do not meet the cntania under 1AS 32 to enable loans
and advances and dervative assats respectively to be presented net of these balances in the financial statements

3Excluding equity shares

*Includes assets within the Group's urit-inked funds for which credit sk 15 borne by the policyholders and assets within the Group s with profits funds for which credit risk 15 largely
borne by the policyholders Conseguentty the Group has no significant exposure to credit nsk for such assets which back related contract habihities

B Concentrations of exposure

The Group's management of concentration nsk tncludes single name, industry sector and country hmits as well as controls over the Group's overall exposure (o
certain products  Further information on the Group's management of this nisk 1s included wathin Credit sk on page 5

At 31 December 2014 the most significant concentrations of exposure were \n mortgages {comprising 68 per cent of total loans and advances to customers) and
to financial, business and other services (compnsing 9 per cent of the total) For further information on ¢concentrations of the Group's loans, refer to note 17

Following the continuing reduction 1n the Group's non-UK actiities, an analysis of credit nsk exposures by geographical region has not been provided
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C Credit quality of assets
Loans and recewvables

Lioyds Bank ple
Notes to the accounts

The disclosures n the table below are produced under the underlying basis used for the Lioyds Banking Group's segmental reporting The Group befieves that,
for reporting penods immediately foltowing a significant business combination such as the transfer of HBOS in 2010, this underlying basis, which includes the
allowance for loan losses 1n place at the date of the acquisition of HBOS by the Lloyds Banking Group on a gross basis, more fairly reflects the underlying
provisioning status of the loans The remaining acquisiion-related fair value adjustments in respect of this lending are therefore identified separately in this table

The analysis of kending between retail and commercial has been prepared based upon the type of exposure and not the business segment in which the exposure
15 recorded  Included within retail are exposures to personal customers and small businesses, whilst included wiathin commercial are exposures to corporate

customers and other large institutions

Loans and advances — The Group

Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and advances to customers atfalr value
Loans and through
advances Retail ~ Retail - profit or
to banks mortgages other Commercial Total loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m

31 December 2014
Neither past due nor impaired ) 26,003 ) 320,324 i 37,886 106,768 ] 464,978 36,725
Past due but not impatred 152 10,311 674 488 11,473 -
Impaired — no provision required - 578 938 847 2,363 -
— provision held - 3,766 1,109 7,070 11,945 -
Gross 26,155 334,979 40,607 115,173 490,759 36,725
Allowance for impairment losses - (1,702} {(577) (5,373) (7,652) -
Fair value adjustments - (403) -
Net balance sheet carrying value 26,155 482,704 36,725
Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and advances to customers at farr value
Loans and through
advances Retail - Retail — profit or
to banks mortgages ather Commercial Total loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m

31 December 20137
Neither past due nor impaired 25,219 318,668 36,789 107,764 463,221 29,443
Past due but not impaired 146 12,329 580 786 13,695 -
Impared — no provision required - 637 1,284 1,824 3,745 -
- provision held - 6,229 1,456 20,829 28,514 -
Gross 25,365 337,863 40,109 131,203 509,175 29,443
Allewance for impawrment losses - (2,194) (1,044) ) (12,4§9) (15,707} -
fFair value ad)ustments - (516} -
Net balance sheet carrying value 25,365 492,952 29,443

'See note 1

The entena that the Group uses to deterrmne that there 1s objective ewidence of an impairment loss are disclosed in note 2(h) All impaired loans which exceed
certain thresholds, pnncepally within the Group's commercial business, are individually assessed for impairment by reviewing expected future cash flows
nctuding those that could anse from the reahsation of secunty Included in ioans and recervables are advances indnidually determined to be impaned with a
gross amount before impairment allowances of £8,522 million (2013 £22,390 millhon}
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Leans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired - The Group

Loans and
advances
designated
Loans and Loans and advances to customers at falr value
advances Retail - Retall - through
to banks mortgages other Commercial Total profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2014 o
Good quality 25,654 318,967 30,993 65,106 36,482
Satisfactory quality 263 1,159 5,675 28,800 238
Lower quality 49 72 623 11,204 5
Below standard, but not impaired 37 126 595 1,658 -
Total loans and advances which are neither
past due nor smpaired 26,003 320,324 37,886 106,768 464,978 36,725
31 Decenber 2013‘747 o . . o - o - B
Good qualty 25,044 314,749 29129 66,345 29,432
Satisfactory quahty 171 2,948 6,414 29,038 7
Lower quakity 2 308 501 9,991 3
Betow standard, but not impaired 2 663 745 2,390 1
Total loans and advances which are neither past
due nor impaied 25,219 318,668 36,789 107,764 463,221 29,443

1See note 1

The defimtions of good quality, satisfactory quality, lower qualty and below standard, but not impaired applying to retail and commercial are not the same,
reflecting the different charactenstics of these exposures and the way they are managed internally, and consequently totals are not provided Commercial lending
has been classified using wnternal probability of default rating models mapped so that they are comparable to external credit ratings Good quality lending
compnses the lower assessed default probabilities, with other classifications reflecting progressively higher default sk Classifications of retail lending incorporate

expected recovery levels for morigages, as well as probabilities of default assessed using internal rating models

Leans and advances which are past due but not impawed - The Group

Loans and
advances
Loans and Loans and advances to customers af:::f::llﬁ:
advances Retail - Retail - thraugh
to banks mortgages other Commercial Total profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2014
0-30 days ~ 152 4,854 453 198 5,505 -
30-60 days - o 2,309 ) }}L, o 51 . 21470 -
60-90 days - 1,427 90 139 1,656 -
90-180 days - 1,721 5 38 1,764 -
Over 180 days - - 16 62 78 -
Total loans and advances which are past due
but not impaired 152 10,311 674 488 11,473 -
SDecember2013 _ o L
0-30 days 146 5,596 489 347 6,432 -
30-60 days - 2,639 87 102 2,828 -
60-90 days - 1,734 4 57 1,785 -
90-180 days - 2,360 - 41 2,401 -
Over 180 days - - - 239 239 -
Total leans and advances which are past dug
but not iImpaired 146 12,329 580 786 13,695 -

A financial asset 1s 'past due' f a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due
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Loans and advances -~ The Bank
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Loans and

advances

Loans and advances to customers deslgnated

Loans and at fair vaiue

advances Retall - Retail - through
to banks mortgages other Commercial Total profit or loss?

£m £m £m £m £Em £m

31 December 2014

Neither past due nor impaired 4,591 65,827 24,523 71,214 161,564 35,586
Past qiu‘e butinci)t impasred - 1.{187 o 455 o 29L47 o 72,256” B . -
Impaired — no provision regquired - 232 646 4938 1,376 -
- provision heild - 288 709 1,425 2,422 -

Gross 4,591 67,834 26,333 73,431 167,598 35,586
Allowance for impairment losses {note 20) - {185) (205} {1,241) {1,631) -
Net balance sheet carrying vatue 4,591 67,649 26,128 72,190 165,967 35,586
Loans and

advances

Loans and advances 1o customers designated

Lpans and at farr value

advances Retail - Retait - through

10 banks mortgages other Commercial Total profit or loss!

£m £m £m £m £m £m

31 December 20132

Nesther past due nor impaired 3,092 70,200 23,173 65,879 159,252 19,685
Past due but not impaired 3 1,987 267 109 2,363 -
Impaired = no provision required - 246 846 708 1,800 -
— provision held - 539 770 3,149 4,458 -

Gross 3,085 72,972 25,056 69,845 167,873 19,685
Allowance for impairment losses {(note 20) - {171) {454) (1,674) (2,299) -
Net balance sheet carrying value 3,095 72,801 24,602 68,171 165,574 19,685

! Excludes amounts due {rom fellow Lioyds Banking Group undertakings

2See note 1

Included n loans and recewvables are advances individually determined to be impaired with a gross amount before impairment atlowances of £2,415 milion

{2013 £4,814 million}
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Loans and advances which are neither past due nor impaired — The Bank

Loans and
advances
Loans and advances to customers designated
Loans and at falr value
advances Retaid - Retail - through
to banks mortgages other Whalesale Total profit or loss
£m £m Em £m £m £m
31 December 2014
Good quality 4,363 65,770 20,339 46,030 35,343
Sausfactory quanty } 210 53 3,405 20,693 238
Lower quality 1 1 394 4,148 5
Below standard, but not impaired 17 3 385 343 -
Total loans and advances which are neither
past due nor impatred 4,591 65,827 24,523 71,214 161,564 35,586
31 December 20137 i
Good quality 2,936 69,939 19,590 41,823 19,680
Satisfactory quabty 151 251 3,089 20,344 2
Lower quality 2 6 172 2,769 2
Below standard, but not impaired 3 4 322 943 1
Total loans and advances which are neither
past due nor impaired 3,082 70,200 23173 65,879 159,252 19,685
'See note 1
Loans and advances which are past due but not impaired - The Bank
Loans and
advances
Loans and advances to customers designated
Loans and at falr value
advances Retall - Retail - through
to banks mortgages other Wholesale Total profit or loss
£m £m £m £m £m £m
31 December 2014
0-30 days - 738 301 79 1,118 -
30-60 days B - 331 58 32 421 -
60-90 days - i 193 B3 98 374 -
90-180 days - 225 2 31 258 -
Qver 180 days - - 11 54 65 -
Total loans and advances which are past due
but not impaired - 1,487 455 294 2,236 -
31 December 2013
0-30 days 3_ 877 215 54 1,146 -
30-60 days - 390 51 39 480 -
60-90 days - 242 1 10 253 -
90-180 days - 478 - 1 479 -
Over 180 days - - - 5 5 -
Total loans and advances which are past due
but not tmpaired 3 1,987 267 109 2,363 -

A financial asset 1s “past due’ If a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due
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Debt secunitres classified as loans and recetvables

An analysis by credit rating of debt secunties classified as loans and recervables 15 provided below

Sub
Investment  investment
grade! grade Not rated Total
£m £m £m £m
The Group
At 31 December 2014 S T T
AE;eAt-ba::ked securities - S T/ 0 T o T T )
" Mortgage-backed secunties T 190 - - 190
Other asset-backed securtes | " 780 1.8 7 985
970 198 7 1,175
Corporate and other debt secunties - - 164 164
Total debt securities classified as loans and receivables 970 198 171 1,339
At 31 December 2013
A.%ét—backed secunuies 7 T ’ B T
_Mortgage-backed secunties ) T ) 333 - - 333
Other asset—back_ed securmé;— - T 7 T . Te05 117 *‘ﬁléi 740
i T T ) - 938 117 18 1,073
Corporate and other debt secunities 175 - 232 407
Total debt secunties classified as loans and recervables 1,113 117 250 1,480
The Bank T T T T T T
At 31 De::er;Ber 2014 T T T -
Asset-backe—c—i securties T T - B
‘Morigage-backed secuntes ) - - - -
Other asset-backed secunties - - - -
Corporate and other debt securities - - - -
Total debt secunities classified as loans and recervables - - - -
At31 December 2013 T o T - T
Asset-backed securiiies ) T ) o T o
Mongage-back-ed—sécumles _______ - - - -
Other asset-backed secunties - - - -
Corporate;ml_other debt secunties T o 150 - - 150
Total debt secunties classified as loans and recevables 150 - - 150

1Credit ratings equal to or better than ‘BBB
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Available-for-sale financial assets {excluding equity shares}

An analysis of available-for-sale financial assets s included in note 21 The credit quality of avalable-for-sale financial assets (excluding equity shares) 1s set

out below
Sub-
Investment  Investment
grade’ grade Not rated Total
£m £m £m £m
The Group
At 31 December 2014 T
Debt-secuntﬁ_t; i T
Government ;ecurmes ’ ’ 47,402 - - 47;,462
Bank and buiding soctety certificates of deposi 298 - - 298
Asse!-bat?ked securities
 Mortgage-backed securites ) o S 674 - - 674
Other asset-backed secunties T T o 681 T4 - ess
i o T N T ST o o 1,355 4 - 1,359
Corporate and other debt securties 5,490 16 23 5,529
Total debt secunties 54,545 20 23 54,588
Treasury bils and other bils - 863 - - 863
Total held as available for-sale financial assets 55,408 20 23 55,451
At 31 December 2013 S o R B
Debt securmés ) i
Government secuntes T Y -
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 208 - - 208
Asset-backed securtties o
Mb@éeﬁ&ed_sec-urmes - o T o 1,181 82 - 1,263
Other asset-backed secunties 890 25 - 915
2,071 107 - 2,178
Corporate and other debt securties o 1,799 37 19 1,855
Total debt secunties 42,368 144 19 42,531
Treasury bills and other bills 875 - - 875
Total held as available-for-sale financial assets 43,243 144 19 43,406

ICrednt ratings equal to or better than BEB
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Sub
Investment  investment
grade! grade Not rated Total
£m £m £m £m
The Bank
At 31 December 2014
Debt securnities
Government securities 46,911 - - 46,911
Bank and building society certificates of deposit 186 - - 186
Asset—backed_secuniles ’ - T
Mortgage-baéke& securties S 147 - - 147
Other asset-backed securties o 116 ) - 120
T T 263 4 - 267
Corporate and other debt secunties T N 1,220 16 23 1,259
Total debt securites 48,580 20 23 48,623
Tleasuryznlls—and other bl||5__ o T 11 o - T ——1T
48,591 20 23 48,634
Due from feflow Group undertakings
CD[DO[BlE—aﬂd_OEEI_d_Ebi securties - ) - - 2.052—
Total held as available-for-sale financial assets 50,686
At 31 December 2013 ’ ’
Debt securities - o - - o
Govesnment securities T T 38.f59 - - _38,159
Bank and bwlanﬁg society certificates of deposut_ h T T - 196 - T 196
Asset-backed secunves ) T -
Mortgage-backed secunties ) 315 51 - 366
Other asset-backed securnities T T o ) 154 25 V)
T T T B 469 76 - 545
C;ogo;ate and other debt secunties 400 - 1 401
Total debt securities 39,224 76 1 39,301
Tieasury bills and other bills S S 23 - - 23
39,247 76 1 30,324
Due from fellow Group undertakings -
Corporate and other debt securties 1,875
Total held as availlable-for-sale financial assets 41,199

1Credit ratings equal to or better than 'BBB
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Debt securities, treasury and other bills held at fair value through profit or loss
An analysis of trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1s included in note 14 The credit quality of debt secunties, treasury and other
bills held at fair value through profit or loss 1S set out below

Sub
Investment  investment
grade! grade  Not rated Total
The Group £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014
Trading assets L L _ o _ _
Government secunties 7,976 - - 7,976
Bank and bulding society certificates of depost =~~~ } 554 - - 554
Asset-backed securities
Mortgage-backed securities o o 8 - - 187
Cther asset-backed secunties i} 117 3 9 129
L L N . __ o _ ____ 304 3 _ 9  31s
Corporate and other debt secunties 1,288 43 155 1,486
Total debt securities held as trading assets 10,122 46 164 10,332
Treasury bills and other bills 1,437 - - 1,437
Total held as trading assels 11,559 46 164 11,769
Other assets held at fan_value through profit or Joss _ e L .
Governmentsecuntes _ o 17,496 1 - _ 17,497
Other public sector securibes_ L 2,170 - - 2,170
Bank and building society certificates of deposit - - - -
Asset-backed secunties
Mortgage-backed secunties . B 845 - 2 847
Other asset-backed securiies o 699 3 19 721
) _ - 1,544 3 21 1,568
Corporate and oiher debt secuniies 18,119 579 1,906 20,604
Total debt secunties held at fair vatue through profit or loss . 39329 583 1,927 41,839
Treasury bills and other bills 22 - - 22
Total other assels held at fair valug through profit or loss 39,351 583 1,927 41,861
50,910 629 2,091 53,630
Due from teliow Group undertakings . - o L o - o
Corporate and other debt secunties 11
Total held at fair value through profil or loss 53, 641
At 31 December 2013
Trading assels ___ I ——— - ,
Government secursties L _ 4,259 - - 4,259
Other public sector securities 14 - - 14
Bank and bullding society certificates of deposit ___Lagr - - 1,491
Asset backed secunties o
Mortgage-backed securities - 5 - 5
Other asset-backed secunties . _ 158 13 - 171
i . —_158 15_ —____1758
Corporate and other debt securities 1,885 29 14 1,928
Total debt secunties held as trading assets o 7,807 47 14 7,868
Treasury bills and other bills 61 - - 61
Total held as trading assets 7,868 a7 14 7,929
Other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Government secunties - o 16,415 1 14 16,430
Other public sector secunties o . _ . 2183 - - 2,183
Bank and bullding society certficates of deposit - - - -
Asset-backed secunties . o
Mortgage-backed secunties o B I, 793 - - 793
_Other asset-backed secuntes o 756 1 = 756
. W o 1,548 1 - 1,549
Corporate and cther debt securities 16,351 617 1,724 18,692
Total debt secunties held at fair value through profit or foss o _ 3497 619 1,738 38,854
Treasury bills and other bills 54 - - 54
Total other assets held at fair vatue through profit or loss 36,551 619 1,738 38.908
44 419 666 1752 46,837
Due from fellow Group undertakings B S N _ o A
Corporate and other debt secunties 46
Total held at fair value through profit or loss 46,883

'Credit ratings equal to or better than BBE'
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Credit nsk in respect of trading and other financial assets at far value through profit or loss here within the Group's unit-linked funds 1s borne by the policyholders
and credit nsk in respect of with-profits funds 1s largely borne by the policyholders Consequently, the Group has no significant exposure to credit nsk for such

assets which back those contract hatulities

Sub
Investment  investment
gradet grade Not rated Total
£m Em Em £m

The Bank
At3i December 2014 S T T e e e
Trading assets
Government secunties B 7 B ?9317 - - 7,931
Ea_rTI(;nd bundlng;méty certificate of deposits 554 - - _5l5747
Asset-backed secunties o

Mortgage backed secuniies 187 - - 187

)bzliar‘a;étiﬁa;ked'secu;twle_s N B T 2 3 ' 129
304 9 316
Corporate and other debt secunties 1,259 43 155 1.457
Total debt secunties 10,048 46 164 10,258
Treasury hills and other bills 1,437 - ’ - 1,437
Total held as trading assets 11,485 46 164 11,685
Other assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Govérnment securities T B o T T o T 6,662— . T T 3.65?
Corporate and other debt securties - - 79 79
Total cther assets held at fair value through profit or loss 6,662 - 79 6,741
18,147 46 243 18,436
Cue from fellow Group undertakings
Corporate and other debt securies o 7]
Total held at fair value through profit or loss 18,508
At 31 December 2013 : )
T?adm_gassets - T T T - T
Government secunties ’ B i i ) T 4,144 - - 4,144
Bank and bullding society certficate of deposts 32 I 32
Asset-backed secunties -

Mortgage backed secunties - - - -
"Other asset backed secunties I R - 171
B ) - N 158 13 - 171

Caorporate and other debt securrties 1,368 29 14 1,411
Jotat debt secunties 5,702 42 14 5,758
Treasury bills and other bills 54 - - 54
Total held as trading assets 5756 42 14 5,812
Other assets held at fair value through profit or foss
Government secuntes B ) | i o 4,520 - - 4,520
Corporate and other debt securities 52 9 - 61
Total other assets held at fair value through picfit or loss 4,572 9 - 4,581

10,328 51 14 10,393
Due from fellow Group undertakings
Mortgage-backed securities 7
Corporate and other debt securities o T S e D
Total held at fair value through profit or loss 10,485

'Cradit ratings equal 1o or better than BBB'
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Denvative assets

An analysis of denvative assets 1s given in note 15 The Group reduces exposure to credit nsk by using master neting agreements and by obtaining collateral in
the form of cash or highly hquid secunibies In respect of the Group's maximum credit nisk relating 1o denvative assets of £13,554 mullion for the Group and
£23,151 million for the Bank (2013 £10,113 mullion for the Group and £15,879 million for the Bank), cash collateral of £3,651 mullion for the Gioup and
£1,938 miltion for the Bank (2013 £2,702 multion for the Group and £1,378 million for the Bank) was held and a further £2,043 mithon for the Group and
£282 million for the Bank {2013 £2,372 millhion for the Group and £2,111 million for the Bank} was due from OECD banks

Sub-
Investment  investment
grade! grade Not rated Total
£m £m Em £m
The Group
At 31 December 2014
Trading and other 26,509 1,849 2,826 31,184
Hedging ) 4,251 a7 1 4,299
Total derivative financial instruments 30,760 1,896 2,827 35,483
At 31 December 2013 “
Trading and ather T . 22250 2,554 46 24850
Hedgng o o T 4,705 32 5 4742
Total dervative financial instruments 26,955 2,586 51 29,592
The Bank B ST i B
At 31 December 2014 ’ o T
Trading and other o ’ 19,718 935 3,109 23,762
Hedging S 918 6 - " 924
20,636 941 3,109 24,686
Due frem fellow Group undertakings 15,464
Total derivative financtal instruments 40,150
At 31 December 20132
Trading and other 15,551 848 32 16,431
Hedging i ’ - i T S 864 24 - 888
16,415 872 32 17,319
Due from fellow Group undertakings _16.55_2
Total desivative financial instruments 28.071

ICrednt ratings equal to or better than 'BB8

?See note 1

Assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held
Of the assets ansing from reinsurance contracts held at 31 December 2014 of £682 milion (2013 £732 million), £363 million {2013 £383 million} were
due from insurers with a credd rating of AA or above

Financial guarantees and wrevocable loan commitments

Financial guarantees represent undertakings that the Group will meet a customer's obligation to thard parties if the customer fails to do so Commitments to
extend credit represent unused portions of authonsations to extend credit 1n the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit The Group 15 theoretically exposed
1o loss in an amount equal to the total guarantees or unused commutments, however, the likely amount of loss 15 expected to be significantly fess, most
commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers mantaining specific credit standards
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D Callateral held as security for financial assets

The Group holds collateral against loans and receivables and irrevocable loan commitments, qualitative and, where appropnate, quantitative information 1s
prowided 1n respect of this collateral below Coltateral held as secunty for tracing and other financial assets at far value through profit or loss and for denvative
assets 1s also shown below

Loans and recevables
The Group holds collateral in respect of loans and advances to banks and customers as set out below The Group does not hold collateral aganst debt secunties,
compnsing asset-backed secunties and corporate and other debt securities, which are classified as loans and recervables

Loans and advances to banks

The Group may requnre collateral before entering into a credit commitment wath another bank, depending en the type of financial product and the counterparty
involved, and netting arrangements are obtained whenever possible and to the extent that such agreements are legally enforceable Collateral s held as part of
reverse repurchase or secunties borroweng transactions

There were reverse repurchase agreements which are accounted for as collateralised loans within toans and advances to banks with a carnrying value of
£1,889 mullion for the Group and £1,899 million for the Bank (2013 £183 mullion for the Group and Bank), against which the Group held collateral with a
farr value of £1,886 million for the Group and £1,886 million for the Bank (2013 £183 mutlion for the Group and Bank), all of which the Group 15 able to
repledge

These transactions were generally conducted under terms that are usual and customary for standard secured lending activities

Loans and advances to customers

The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgages over residential and commerceal real estate, charges over business
assets such as premises, inventery and accounts recewable, charges over financial instruments such as debt securities and equities, and guarantees receved
from third parties

Retail lending

Mortgages

An analysis by loan-to-value ratio of the Group’s residential mortgage lending is provided below The value of collateral used in determuning the loan-to-value
ratios has been estimated based upon the last actual valuation, adjusted to take into account subsequent movements in house prices, after making allowance
for indexation error and dilapidations

The Group
Nelther past duve  Past due but not
nor impalred impaired Impaired Gross
£m Em £m £m

31 December 2014
Less than 70 per cent 202789 4895 1,601 209,285
70 per cent to 80 per cent 58,837 1.9-98 726 61,561
80 per cent to 90 per cent 32,771 1,526 702 34,999
90 per cent to 100 per cent 15,858 1,005 486 17,349
Greater than 100 per cent 10,069 887 829 11,785
Total 320,324 10,311 4,344 334,979

Neither past due

Past due but not

nor impaireq impaired Impaired Gross
£m £m £m £m

31 December 2013
Less than 70 per cent 161,105 4,294 1,743 167,142
70 per cent to 80 per cent 64,954 -2,296 970 68,220
80 per cent to 90 per cent o 46,581 ’ 5,224 1,080 B 119:885
_90 p_er_cent to lOfJ_per c‘ent T T T o é4,59§ 7 vi}éo | ,057_ 27,339
Greater than 100 per cent 21,436 1,795 2,046 25,277
Total 318,668 12,329 6,866 337,863
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The Bank
Neither past due  Past due but not
nor smpalred impalred impawed Gross
£m £m £m £m
31 December 2014
Less than 70 per CEI:II_ B T - T _4_6,2—58 T 783 215 47,256
70 per cent to 80 per cent T T T T T oo 266 86 10,378
80 percentto 90 percent ’ T T T T T sses 214 81 5899
90 per cent to 100 per cent B - T T2808 138 58 3,004
Greater than 100 per cent 1,137 86 74 1,297
Total 65,827 1,487 520 67,834
Neither past due Past due but
nor impaired not impaired Impaired Gross
£m £m £m Em
31 December 2013
Less than 70 per cent S ST T Tavasa 893 243 42570
70 per cent to 80 per cent 11,857 309 112 12,378
80 per cent to 90 per cent T 8,872 T -33:0_— T S 9.32—3
90 per cent to 100 per cent N Y < v A 257 133 5427
Greater than 100 per cent 2,900 198 176 3,274
Total 70,200 1,987 785 72,972

Other
No collateral 1s held 1n respect of retail credit cards, or overdrafts, or unsecured personal loans For non-morigage retail iending to simall businesses, collateral
will often include second charges over residential property and the assignment of ife cover

The majonty of non-morigage retail lending 1s unsecured At 31 December 2014, wmpared non-mortgage lending amounted to £1,470 mullion, net of an
impaxrment allowance of £5677 millien {2013 £1,696 million, net of an impairment allowance of £1,044 mulion} The farr value of the collateral held in respect
of this tending was £110 milion (2013 £144 million) In deterrmming the fair value of collateral, no specific amounts have been attnbuted to the costs of
realisation and the value of collatesal for each loan has been imited to the principal amount of the outstanding advance in order to eliminate the effects of any
over-collateralisation and to prowide a clearer representation of the Group's exposure

Unimpased non-mortgage retail lending amounted 1o £38,560 milion (2013 £36,081 million) Lending decisions are predominantly based on an obligor's
ability to repay from normal business operations rather than reliance on the disposal of any secunty provided Collateral values are figorously assessed at the
time of loan ongination and are thereafter menitored in accordance with business unit credit palicy

The Group credit nsk disclosures for ummparred non maortgage retail lending report assets gross of collateral and therefore disclose the maximum loss exposure
The Group believes that this approach 1s appropnate The value of collateral 1s reassessed If there 1s ohservable evidence of distress of the boriower Unimpaired
non-mortgage retall lending, including any associated collateral, 1s managed on a customer-by-customer basis rather than a portfolio basis No aggregated
collateral nformation for the entire unimpaired nen-mortgage retail lending portfolio 1s provided to key management personnel

Commercial lending

Reverse repurchase transactions

There were reverse repurchase agreements which are accounted for as collateralised loans with a carrying value of £5,148 miition for the Group and
£5,148 million for the Bank (2013 £120 muthon for the Group and the Bank), against which the Group held collateral with a fair value of £5,155 midlion for
the Group and £5,185 miltion for the Bank (2013 £112 million for the Group and the Bank), all of which the Group 1$ able 1o repledge Included in these
amounts are collateral balances in the form of cash provided in respect of reverse repurchase agreements amounting to £35 mutlion for the Group and £nil for
the Bank (2013 £49 mullion for the Group and £nil for the Bank) These transactions were generally conducted under terms that are usual and customary for
standard secured lenging activities

Impaired secured lending
The value of collateral 1s re-evaluated and Its iegal soundness re-assessed if there 15 observable evidence of distress of the borrower, this evaluation 15 used to
determine potential loss allowances and management's strategy o try to either repair the business or recover the debt
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At 31 December 2014, impared secured commercial lending amounted to £2,613 milien, net of an impairment allowance of £3,724 million
{2013 £9,845 million, net of an impairment allowance of £11,063 milbon} The fair value of the collateral held in respect of imparred secured commercial
lencing was £2,517 milion (2013 £6,915 mullion) for the Group In determining the fair value of collateral no specific amounts have been attnbuted to the
costs of reahsatton For the purposes of determining the total collateral held by the Group in respect of ympared secured commercial lending, the value of
collateral for each loan has been limited to the pnncipal amount of the outstanding advance in order to eliminate the effects of any over-coltateralisation and to
provide a clearer representation of the Group's exposure

Imparred secured commercial lending and assoctated collateral relates to lending to property comparues and to customers in the financial, business and other
services, transport, distnbution and hotels, and construction industries

Unimpaired secured lending

Unimpaired secured commercial lending amounted to £57,647 million (2013 £69,108 millon} Commercial lending decisions are predominantly based on
an obligor's ability to repay from normal business operations rather than reliance on the disposal of any secunty provided Collateral values are rnigorously
assessed at the time of loan ongination The types of collateral 1aken and the frequency with which collateral 1s required at ongination i1s dependent upon the
size and structure of the borrower For exposures to corporate customers and other large institutions, the Group will often require the collateral to include a first
charge over land and buildings owned and occupied by the business, a martgage debenture over the company's undertaking and one or more of its assets, and
keyman insurance The Group maintains policies setting out acceptable collateral, maximum loan-to-value ratios and other cntena to be considered when
reviewing 2 loan application The decision as to whether or not collateral 1s required will be based upon the nature of the transaction and the credit worthiness
of the customer Other than for project finance, object finance and income producing real estate where charges over the subject assets are a basic regquirement,
the provision of collateral will not determine the outcome of a credit application  The fundamental business proposition must evidence the ability of the business
1o generate funds from normal business soutces to repay debt

The extent to which collateral values are actively managed will depend on the credit quality and other circumstances of the obligor Although lending decisions
are predemunantly based on expected cash flows, any collateral provided may impact the pricing and other terms of a loan or facibty granted, this will have a
financial empact on the amount of net interest income recognised and on internal loss-given-default estimates that contribute to the determination of asset quality

For umimpaired secured commercial lending, the Group reports assets gross of collateral and therefore discloses the maximum loss expasure The Group believes
that this approach 1s apprognate as collateral values at ongination and dunng a penod of gaod performance may not be representative of the value of collateral
if the obligor enters a distressed state

Umimpaired secured commercial lending 1s predominantly managed on a cash flow basis On occasien, it may include an assessment of undeslying coliateral,
although, for impaired lending, this will not atways involve assessing it on a fair value basis No aggregated coliateral information for the entire unimpaired
secured commercial lending portfolio 1s prowided to key management personnel

Trading and other financial assets at farr value through profit or loss (excluding equity shares)

Included in trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are reputchase agreements treated as collateralised loans with a carrying value
of £36,725 milien for the Group and £47,726 mullion for the Bank (2013 £29,288 milhon for the Group and £29,588 million for the Bank) Collateral 1s
held with a fair value of £42,858 mullion for the Group and £53,221 mullion for the Bank {2013 £32,434 mllion for the Group and £28,509 million for the
Bank), all of which the Group 1s able to repledge At 31 December 2014, £10,319 mullion for the Group and £22 872 milhon for the Bank had been repledged
{2013 £8,195 million for the Group and £17,030 million for the Bank}

In addilron, securities held as collateral in the fosm of stock borrowed amounted to £33,721 millien for the Group and £44,318 million for the Bank
{2013 £46,552 million for the Group and £29,853 mulon for the Bank} Of this amount, £32,686 million for the Group and £43,338 mullon for the Bank
{2013 £45,277 million for the Group and £1,325 million for the Bank) had been resold or repledged as collateral for the Group's own transacttons

These transactions were generally conducted under terms that are usual and customary for standard secured lending activities

Derivative assets, after offsetting of amounts under master netting arrangements

The Group reduces exposure to credit nisk by using master nethng agreements and by obtaining collateral in the form of cash or tughly hquid securities In respect
of the net denvative assets after offseting of amounts under master netting arrangements of £13,554 mulhon for the Group and £23,151 million for the Bank
(2013 £10,113 mullion for the Group and £15,879 mullion for the Bank}, cash collateral of £3,651 millien for the Group and £1,938 mullion for the Bank
(2013 £2,702 eulion for the Group and £1,378 mulon for the Bank} was held

Irrevocable loan commitments and other credit-related contingencies

At 31 December 2014, there were imevocable loan commitments and other credit-related contingencies of £57,711 mullion for the Group and £42,150 muillion
for the Bank (2013 £59,172 mullion for the Group and £42,798 mullion for the Bank} Collateral 1s held as secunty, in the event that lending 1s drawn down,
on £8,673 million for the Group and £247 millon for the Bank (2013 £19,123 mdhon for the Group and £16,229 mullion for the Bank) of these balances

Lending decisions in respect of irrevocable loan commitments are based on the obligor's ability to repay from normal business operations rather than reliance
on the disposal of any security prowided For commercial comnutments, 1t s the Group’s practice to request collateral whose vatue 1s commensurate with the
nature of the commitments For retail morigage commitments, the majonty are for morigages with a loan-io-value ratw of less than 100 per cent Aggregated
collateral information covening the entire balance of irrevocable loan commitments over which security will be taken 15 not provided to key management
personnel

Collateral repossessed

During the year, £828& million of collateral was repossessed (2013 £902 milhion}, consisting primarily of ressdential property |n respect of retail portfolios, the
Group does not take physical possession of properties or other assets hetd as collateral and uses external agents to realise the value as soon as practicable,
generally at auction, to settle indebtedness Any surplus funds are returned to the borrower or are otherwise dealt with in accordance with appropnate insolvency
regulations In certain circumstances the Group takes physical possession of assets held as collaterat against commercial lending In such cases, the assets are
carned on the Group's balance sheet and are classified according to the Group's accourting pohcies
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E Collateral pledged as secunty

The Group pledges assets pnmanby for repurchase agreements and secuniies lending transactions which are generally conducted under terms that are usual and
customary for standard securntised borrowing contracts

Repurchase transactions

Deposits from bariks

Included in deposits from banks are deposits held as collateral for facilities granted, with a carrying value of £1,075 mullien for the Group and £480 milkon for
the Bank (2013 £1,874 mullron fer the Group and £1,251 mullion for the Bank) and a fair value of £1,075 millien for the Group and £480 mullion for the Bank
(2013 £1,874 milhon for the Group and £1,251 million for the Bank)

Customer deposits

Included 1n customer deposits in 2013 were deposiis held as collateral for facilities granted, with a carrying value of £2,978 million for the Group and
£2.978 million for the Bank and a fair value of £2,978 midlion for the Group and £2,978 million for the Bank In additien, collateral batances in the form of
cash prowided i respect of repurchase agreements amounted 10 £6 million for the Group and £nil for the Bank (2013 £416 mullion for the Group and £mil for
the Bank)

Trading and other financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss

The faur value of collateral pledged n respect of repurchase transactions, accounted for as secure borrowing, where the secured party 1s permitted by contract
or custom to repledge was £57,844 mullion for the Group and £67,016 million for the Bank (2013 £37,99% muilion for the Group and £35,907 mullion for
the Bank)

Secunities fending transactions
The following financtal assets on the balance sheet have been pledged as collateral as part of secunties lending transactions

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
Em £m £m £m
Trading and other financial assets at fair value theough profit or loss 9,955 10,388 2,040 665
Loans and advances 1o cusiomers ) 1,393 I4_,927 ) - -
Oebt secunties classified as loans and recevables o B 88 8% a8 T 78
Avatiable-for-sale financial assets - " 8363 2311 7,706 9564
19,799 27,715 9,834 10,307

Secunitisations and covered bonds
In addition {0 the assets detailled above, the Group also holds assets that are encumbered through the Group's asset-backed conduits and its secuntisation and
covered bond programmes Furiher details of these assets are provided in notes 18 and 19

(2) Market nsk

Interest rate nisk

In the Group's retail banking business interest rate nisk anses from the different repnicing charactenstics of the assets and habibties Liabnlities are either
insensitive to tnterest rate movements, for examp'e interest free or very low interest customer deposits, or are sensitive 10 interest rate changes but bear sates
which may be vaned at the Group's discretion and that for competitive reasons generally reflect changes in the Bank of England's base rate There 1S a relatively
small volume of deposits whose rate ts contractually fixed for thewr term 10 matunty

Many banking assets are sensitive to interest rale movements, there 1s a large volume of managed rate assets such as vanable rate mortgages which may be
considered as a natural offset to the interest rate nsk ansing from the managed rate liabiliies However a significant proportion of the Group's lending assets, for
example many personal loans and morigages, bear nterest rates which are contractually fixed for penods of up to five years or longer

The Group and the Bank establish two types of hedge accounting relationships for interest rate nsk fair vatue hedges and cash flow hedges The Group and the
Bank are exposed to fair value interest rate risk on its fixed rate customer loans, its fixed rate customer deposits and the majonty of its subordinated debt, and
to cash flow interest rate nsk on sts vanabie rate loans and deposits together with its floating rate subordinated debt

At 31 December 2014 the aggregate nottonal prnincipal of interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges was £115,905 mithien (2013 £154,657 million)
for the Group and £119,951 milien (2013 £152,177 miltion) for the Bank with a net fair value asset of £1,481 milon {2013 asset of £1,551 million) for
the Group and a net fair value hability of £1,787 miltion {2013 habihity of £1,295 million) for the Bank (note 15) The losses recognised on the hedging
instruments were £2,761 million (2013 £933 mullion} for the Group and £3,669 midhon (2013 gan of £625 milhon) for the Bank The gains on the hedged
items attributable to the hedged nsk were £2,652 millon (2013 £872 mulbon) for the Group and gan of £3,596 million (2013 losses of £647 muthon)} for
the Bank

In addition the Group has cash flow hedges which are pnmarily used to hedge the vanability in the cost of funding within the commercial business Note 15
shows when the hedged cash flows are expected 1o occur and when they will affect income for the designated cash flow hedges The notional principal of the
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges at 31 December 2014 was £518,746 milon {2013 £559,690 milion) for the Group and
£62,396 million (2013 £ml) for the Bank with a net fair value hability of £931 miflion (2013 labiity of £1,361 millien) for the Group and a net fair value
lability of £29 milion {2013 £nil) for the Bank (note 15} In 2014, neffectiveness recognised in the income statement that arises from cash flow hedges was
agan of £56 mullion (2013 loss of £83 million) for the Group and a gain of £26 million {2013 gain of £nl) for the Bank
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Currency nisk
Foreign exchange exposures compnse those onginating in treasury trading activities and structural foreign exchange exposures, which anse from investment in
the Group’s overseas operations

The cosporate and retail businesses incur foreign exchange risk in the course of providing services to their customers All non structural foreign exchange
exposures In the non-trading book are transferred to the trading area where they are monitored and controlted These nisks teside in the authonised trading centres
who are alloccated exposure imits  The hmits are monitored daly by the local centres and reported to the central market and liquidity nisk function in London

Risk anses from the Group's investments in its overseas operations The Group's structural foreign currency exposure is represented by the net asset value of the
foreign currency equity and subordinated debt investments in its subsidianes and branches Gains or losses on structural foreign currency exposures are taken
to reserves

The Group hedges part of the currency translation nsk of the net investment in certain foreign operations using currency borrowings The Bank does not hedge
its exposure At 31 December 2014 the aggregate pnncipal of the Group's currency borrowings was £587 million (2013 £1,695 million) In 2014, an
ineffectiveness loss of £1 million before and after tax (2013 ineffectiveness gain of £16 millien before tax and £12 million after tax} was recognised in the
income statement arising from net investment hedges

The Group's mam overseas operations are in the Amencas and Europe Details of the Group's structural foreign currency exposures, after net investment hedges,
are as follows

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Functional currency of Group operations
Euro N T T T ’ N
Gross exposure 7 286 567 7 7
Net investment hedge (218) {464) - -
638 103 7 7
US dollar
Gross exposure ) h 392 379 43 41
Net investment hedge ) i T (aa2 aay| || T - T
T . 50 38 a3 a1
Swiss franc T h T ’ T T T )
Gross exposure T i T {17} N 1an o ¥3)
Net investment hédg-é T I - IR S
) o T an 7 an 7
Austrahan dollar T o T T T
Gross exposure -1 853 - (42)
Net investment hedge T T - N I (866) T - -
T o S - 13 - 42)
Japanese yen T T T B
Gross exposure T T -1 %) - (1)
Net investment hedge - - {1} - -
- (2) - (1)
Other non-stering © 90 106 111 118
Total structural foreign currency exposures, after net investment hedges 191 225 144 116
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{3) Liquidity nisk

Liguidity nsk 1s defined as the nsk that the Group has insufficient financial resources to meet its commitments as they fall due, or can only secure them at
excessive cost Liquidity nsk 1s managed through a senes of measures, tests and reports that are pnmanly based on contractual matunty The Group carnes out
monthly stress testing of its hquidity posiion against a range of scenanos, including those prescribed by the PRA The Group's liguidity nsk appetite 1s also
calibrated against a number of stressed hquidity metncs

The tables below analyse financial instrument liabiliies of the Group and the Bank, excluding those ansing from insurance and participating nvestment
contracts, on an undiscounted future cash flow basis according to contractual matunty, into refevant maturty groupings based on the remaining penod at the
balance sheet date, balances with no fixed matunty are included in the over 5 years category Certain balances, included in the table below on the basis of their
residual matunty, are repayable on demand upon payment of a penalty

Upto 13 312 1-5 Over 5
1 month months manths years years Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m

The Group
At 31 December 2014 T ’ o
Deposiis from banks 4,238 1,734 1,427 2,895 1,003 11,297
Customer deposits 365,331 14,003 38,521 31,614 470 449,93%
Trading and other finanoal habikties at fair value through profit or loss 32,209 15,145 1,316 3,657 7,508 59,835
Debt secunties in issue 11,059 6,163 15,155 33,864 29,306 95,547
Liatulities ansing from non-pariicipating investment contracts 5 10 140 241 16,741 17,137
Subordinated liabilities 670 1,386 2,358 9,820 12,940 27,174
Total non-derivative financial habilities 413,512 38,441 58,917 82,091 67,968 660,929
Dernvative financial habiities )
Gross settled derwatives — outflows 39,616 32,166 34932 42,415 41,128 190,257
Gross setlled dervatves —mflows — (37,928) (30,408) (32999) (39,883) (35858) (177,076)
Gross settled denvatives — net flows 1,688 1,758 1,933 2,532 5,270 13,181
Net seﬁd derlva}lngatslllﬂgs o ) T ﬁs?i 74?1;“- ) 3-40 l_.150 5.650 _2_7.215
Total denivative financial habilihies 23,647 1,872 2,273 3,682 8,920 40,354
At 31 December 2013 T T
Deposts from banks 9,944 636 1,254 1,710 3371 16915
Customer deposits 323,338 15,576 38,689 42,611 34,510 454,724
Trading and other financial liabilities at fair value 1hroIJgh profit or loss i B _lg,él_l _9,906‘ _&.416- 7,382 3616 1!4:{31
Debt secunties 0 1ssue 7417 5069 15775 40366 24514 93,141
Eb]ltleé ansing from n‘c;r_m-;arﬂap_an;ﬁve;lmént contracts T 25,870 - o T T 25,870
Subordinated labilities T IRTST 200 3441 12,307 19539 36,195
Tota!l non-denvative financial habihties 385,998 31477 63,575 104,376 855650 670,976

Dervative ﬁnanmﬂai)llﬁm

Gross settled dervatives - outflows 4,880 81,612 35,369 56,857 33,767 212,485
Gross settled dervatives - mflows (4115 (79.256) (34,321) (55396) (32,625) (205,713)
Gross settled denvatives — net flows 765 2,356 1,048 1,461 1,142 6,772
Net seitled denvative habilities 27_7_3_0_ i 179__ 438 1 ,2027 541 édTOQE
Total denivative financral liabilities 22,495 2,535 1,486 2,663 1,683 30,862

The Group s finanoial guarantee contracts are accounted for as financial instruments and measured at fair value on the balance sheet The majonty of the Group's
financial guarantee contracts are callable on demand, were the guaranteed party to fail to meet iis obligations It1s, however, expected that most guarantees will
expire unused The contractual nominal amounts of these guarantees totalled £7,161 mullion at 31 December 2014 (2013 £8,591 million) with £4,133 millicn
expinng withtn one year, £1,823 milkion between one and three years, £674 million between three and five years, and £531 million over five years
{2013 £4,233 mullton expinng within one year, £837 million between one and three years, £2,039 million between three and five years, and £1,482 million
over five years)

The majonty of the Group's non-participating investment contract habilities are unii-inked These unit-inked products are invested in accordance with unit fund
mandates Clauses are included n policyholder contracts to permit the deferral of sales, where necessary, so that linked assets can be realised without being a
forced seller
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The principal amount for undated subordinated habilities with no redemption option 1$ included within the over 5 years column, interest of approximately
£79 million (2013 £85 multion) per annum for the Group and £22 million (2013 £22 million) for the Bank which s payable in respect of those instruments

for as long as they remain in issue 1s not included beyond 5 years

Up to 1-3 312 1.5 Cver 5
1 month months months years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
The Bank
At 31 December 2014 T ) o T o T -
Deposits from banks ’ T a173 1,13 1,169 1,561 288 8327
Customer deposts 7777 7175031 8223 7,065 4,511 T348 195,178
Trading a;d—(_)_the_r flna_nc_lal habilities at fair V;Iu;'tﬁagh pE)flt or foss T 31.0—5(—5 i Iﬂ.]"é-l““~ i,H ’ _?.35:1 ——_?504 58‘,096
Debt securties nissue 7,547 4614 9255 19,715 22,541 63,672
Subordinated habilities 371 509 1,386 4,801 9,492 16,5?!-")_
Total non-dernvative financial iabilities 218,178 29,213 20,326 33,942 40,173 341,832
Cenvative financial habiliies B a
Gross settled derivatives - outflows 36,964 28,245 31,639 34,609 23,375 154,832
Gross settled derivatives — inflows T (35481) (26665) (29,881) (32,716) (21.481) (146,224)
Gross settled dervatives — net flows 1,483 1,580 1,758 1,893 1,894 8,608
Net settled derivative habiities T 18253 27 88 303 516 19,187
Total derivative financial iabilities 19,736 1,607 1,846 2,196 2,410 27,795
Up to 1-3 3-12 15 Over 5
1 month months months vears years Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m
At 31 December 2013
Deposits from banks 7,732 612 1,121 783 399 10647
Customer deposts s 7.944 9,896 7608 495 197,663
Tradfng and other financial labilities at fiz;|rwv;;lue'twhra.:g‘hlac;ﬁt—orglc;s;- T A718,0776 ) 3,967‘ N W8,'6w1-2ﬂ “87,?'761; i 37747V - *3,-37 106
Debt secunties in issue 1,883 2,808 9,362 23,243 16,818 54,124
Subordinated batiities 43 163 2,474 7,803 19,909 30,392
Total non-denvative financial habilities 199,463 15,434 31,465 48,202 41,368 335,932
Denwvative financial labilities ) o
Gross settled dernvatives — outflows 1,234 80,5’725 26,239 40,169 19,236 167,203
Gross settled denvatives — inflows (835) (78,238) (25,161) (38,974) (18,884) (162,092)
Gross seftled denvatives — net flows 399 2,087 1,078 1,195 352 5111
Net settled dervative labilities 15,133 90 147 511 321 16,202
Total denvative financ:al latulties 15,532 2,177 1,225 1,706 673 21,313

Liabilities of the Group ansing from insurance and participating investment contracts are analysed on a behavioural basis, as permitied by IFRS 4, as follows

Up to 1-2 3-12 15 Over §
1 month months months years years Total
. £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2014 1,037 1,276 5,101 20,514 58,916 87,244
At 31 December 2013 1,088 1,381 5,231 21,468 53,623 82,801

For insurance and participating investment contracts which are neither unit-inked ner in the Group's with-profit funds, in particular annuity habihties, the aim

1s to invest In assets such that the cash flows on iINvestments match those on the projected future liabilties
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The following tables set out the amounts and residual maturities of off balance sheet contingent habibties and comrmutrments

Within 13 35 Over 5
1 year years years years Total
£m £m £m £m £m

The Group
31 December 2014 ’ ST - ’
Acceptances and endossements 58 - - 1 59
Other contingent habihties 1,306 504 130 683 ’ 2.523-
Total contingent liabilities - - 1,364 504 130 684 2,682
lending commitments [ 72,693 13,750 15,733 5,103 107,279
Other commutmerts Tt 1.2 - - 263
Total commitments 72,794 13,912 15,733 5,103 107,542
Total contingents and commitments 74,158 14,416 15,863 5,787 110,224
31 December 2013
Acceptances and endorsements 134 15 13 42 204
Other contingent habulities 1,573 377 s 608 2,676
Total contingent lsabdities S 1,707 392 131 650 2,880
Lending commitments 70,378 14,886 17,064 2,849 105,177
Other commitments ) T T 494 - T/ T "7 ags
Tota! commitments ] 70,872 14,886 17,064 2,849 105,671
Total contingents and commaiments 72,579 15,278 17,195 3,499 108,551

Within 1-3 3-5 Over 5

1 year years years years Total

£m £m £m £m £m

The Bank
3—1 Det_.'ember 2014 S T T B T
Aécepg;c% and enarsem;ns_ T o 58 - - - 58
ather contingent habilities T T T 1,083 B 502 124 65 2,337
Total contingent hiabiliues 1,147 502 124 622 2,395
Lending commitments 38,751 11,710 15,194 2,570 68,225
Other commitments 100 162 - - 262
Total commitments 38,851 11,872 15,194 2,570 68,487
Total contingents and commutiments 39,998 12,374 15,318 3,192 70,882
31 December 2013 ) T T ’
Acceptanzesf;nd endorsements - o 124 - - - 124
Other _contlngém Nabiles T T T T 1,278 7 362 S0 603 o ?Zgi
Tota! contengent liabilies 1,402 362 o0 603 2,457
Lending commitments 37,014 13,553 15,553 1,308 67,428
Other commitments T T T4 T - - - 491
Total commitments 37,505 13,553 15,553 1,308 67,919
Total contingents and commitments 38,807 13,915 15,643 1,911 70,376

(4) Insurance nsk

Insurance nsk 15 the nsk of reductions in earnings capital and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, due to fluctuations in the tming, frequency and
seventy of insuredfunderwnitten events and to fluctuations in the timing and amount of claim settlements  This includes fluctuatrons in profits due 1o customer

hehaviour

The Group’s appetite for solvency and earmings in insurance entities 1s reviewed and approved annually by the Board Insurance nisks are measured using a
variety of techmques including stress and scenarnio testing, and where appropriate, stochastic modelling Ongoing monitoring 15 ta place 1o track the progression
of insurance nisks This normally involves monitoring relevant expenences against expectations, as well as evaluating the effectiveness of controls put in place

10 manage insurance sk
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54 Captal

Capital Management

Within the Group, capital within each regulated entity 1S actively managed at an appropriate level of frequency and regulatory ratios are a key factor in budgeting
and planming processes with updates of expected ratios reviewed regularly during the year by the Lloyds Banking Group Asset and Liability Committee Capital
raised takes account of expected growth and currency of nsk assets Capital policies and procedures are subject to independent oversight

The Group measures the amount of capital it holds using the regulatory framework defined by the Capita) Requirements Directive and Regulation (CRD 1V) as
tmplemented 1n the UK by the Prudential Regulation Authornty {PRA) policy statement PS7/13 Application of CRD IV requirements s subject to transitional
phasing permitied by PS7/13

The minimum amount of total capnal, under Pillar t of the regulatory framewcrk, 1s determined as 8 per cent of the aggregate nsk-weighted assets calculated
n respect of credit risk, counterparty credit risk, operational nsk and market risk At least 4 per cent of nsk-weighted assets were required to be covered by
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital in 2014, increasing to 4 5 per cent from 1 January 2015

The minimum requirement for capnal 1s supplemented by Pillar 2 of the framework Under Pillar 2A, additional requirements are set through the 1ssuance of
bank specific Individual Capital Guidance {ICG), which adjusts the Pillar 1 minimum for those nsks not covered or not fully covered under Pillas 1 A key input
into the PRA's ICG process 1$ a bank’s own assessment of the amount of capital 1t needs, a process known as the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAP}

A range of additionat bank specific regulatory caprtal buffers apply under CRD IV, though these do not currently apply to the Group as they are either subject to
phase in pencds (commencing 2016), are time-varying in nature or are applied at the discretion of the regulator

During the year, the individual regulated entiies within the Group and the Group iself complied with all of the externally imposed capital requirements to which
they are subject

Regulatory capital developmenit

The regulatory framework within which the Group operates continues to be developed at a global level through the Financial Stability Boardt (FSB) and Basel
Committee, at a European level mainly threugh the issuance of CRD IV technical standards and guidelines ang within the UK by the PRA and through directions
from the Financial Policy Commuttee (FPC) The Group continues to monitor these developments very closely, analysing potential capital impacts to ensure the
Group and indivitual regulated entities continue o maintain a strong capital position that exceeds the muimnimum reguiatory requirements and the Group's nsk
appetite and 1§ consistent with market expectations

Capital resources
Regulatory capital 1s divided snto tiers depending on the degree of permanency and ability to absorl: losses

~ Common equity tier 1 capital represents the strongest form of capital consisting of shareholders’ equity after a number of regulatory adjustments and
deductions are applied These include deductions for the Group's investment in its snsurance business and deferred tax assets, subject to threshold requirements
under CRD IV, and the elimination of the cash flow hedging reserve, goodwill, other intangible assets and defined benefit pension surpluses

- Fully qualfying additional tier 1 (AT1) capital compnses non-cumulative perpetual secunties contaning specific provisions to wite down the secunty or
convert It to equity should the CET1 ratio fall to a defined tngger m#t Under transitional rules, securities that do not qualify in their own right but were 1ssued
and eligible as tier 1 capitat prior to CRD IV ¢an be parbally inctuded within AT1, until they are phased out altogether in 2022 To the extent these secunties
do not qualify as AT1 they may nevertheless still qualify as tier 2 capital A portion of the subordinated debt issued by the Group's insurance business and
held by the Group 1s deducted from AT1 capital The remaining portion 1s deducted from tier 2 capital

— Tier 2 {T2) capital comprises certain other subordinated debt securties that do not qualify as AT1 They must have an onginal term of at least 10 years, cannot
normally be redeemed within their first 5 years and are phased out as T2 regulatory capital in the final 5 years before matunty Transitional rules under CRD
IV allow securities that de net qualify in their own nght as T2 capital, but which were issued and eligible as T2 capital prior to CRD IV, to be partially included
as T2 capital untl they are phased out altogether in 2022 A deduction from T2 capital 1s made for the portien of the Group’s insurance business that is not
deducted from AT1 capital

The Group’s CRD IV transitional capttal resources are summarised as follows

2014 2013

£m £m

Common equity tier 1/core tier 1 capital 36,464 42,171
Addmonal ter 1 captal T - T 4583 2608
Tier 2 capitat T S 7 o T _—"15.201_ ) _17—,1_5_6—
gub«;rclsory deductions T T S T T e o -(_3_275—)
Total capital 56,248 58,660
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55 Cash flow statements

a Change 1n operating assets

The Graup The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013!
£m £m £m £m
Change In loans and recevables 12,846 29,909 {1,365} 16,625
Changes 1n amounts due from fellow Llégds Banking Group undertakings ’ ’ i 3,204 3,429 o 132,3—41 (18,358)
Change 1n derivative financial instruments, tracing and other financial assets at fair N )
value through profit or loss (11,446} (5,457) (41,022) (29,190)
Change ;n other operating a;set_s_ T T (li,géSA)____Tfl_,d_?T)- (737) - A‘/’B
Change n operating assets 2,639 23,404 89,217 (30,843)
b Change in operating habihities
The Group The Bank
2014 203 2014 2013!
£m £m £m £m

Change 1n deposits from banks (3,029) (25,529} (2,176} (20,275)
Change in customer deposits T T T T8 15,699 9,422 511
Cr{z;ng_&s ;n_amounts due to fellow Ll&dgéamnéﬁp aﬁaériakmg_s T (3.629)A o (1,i5_3)'— - (ESE.DT%G) 14.872?
Change in debt securties nssee - o (I1.1‘14) . (29,016)_——' 1—2._894 _____ (-7'75§37)
Change 1n denvative financial instruments, trading and other financial labilities at fair
value through profit or loss 23,886 (8,408) 43,134 30,728
Change tn investment contract labilities - - {342) 73, 147T_—" I T
Change in other operating habilities (5,148) (3,664) 147 (_48'2)
Change in operating habilities 8,369 (49,000} (88,625) 17,781

!See note 1
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55 Cash flow statements (conbinued)

¢ Non-cash and cther items

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £m

Deprec:atlon and amortisation 1,935 1,940 538 439
Provisions fo?lrﬁf)gl;m;nt_ofhlsposal groups 7 i - 38.‘2 - -
Permanent diminution in value of investment (n subsidiaries - - 149 -
Ec;,—v_aluatlon of investment properties {513) (143) - T
Allowance for loan losses - 737 2,726 o 443 B 51.9-
Write-off of allowance for loan losses - (5,761) (5,858) (1,003) (1,427)
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 2 18 - -
Change in mstrr;nce contract habilities RGB 5,309 - -
Payment protection insurance provision 2,200 3,050 1,394 2,169
Other regulato-ry provisions ’ ’ 925 405 56i ) >2';"0
Other provision movements 222 153 633 18
Net (C-ﬂ-?dll) charge In respect of defined benefit schemes ) i 478) 503 ; (182) i 197
Impact of consolldatlon and deconsolldatlon of OEICs! ’ (5,277) 6,303 - -
f_lmlr;dvof d|scoum on |mpa|rment allowances - T {126) (351) (éﬁ) _(-133)
Foreign exchange element on balance sheet? 1057 61 (5420 440
[la’bnﬁy- Réﬁaﬁément (galn;i];);sés;‘m;lthlmﬁgr income? I 8o - - T
Interest expense on subordlnated I|ab|I|t|es 2,752 o 2,463 1,848 E’G
(P;gf“n;-lo;sﬂé;l dlsposal of busmesses 7 - T {208) (269)_ T _—"("2—1“0) o 774256‘
Other non-cash items - T T T T e aese | @12 (553
Total non-cash items 1,439 15,729 3,319 3744
Contributions to defined benefit schemes (538) (811) (157 (505)
Payments In respect of payment protection insurance provision (2,45§'~_ (2,674) (1,650) (2,037)
Payments In sespect of other regulatory provisions (1,104) (360) (667) (174)
Other ] 29 26 - -
Total other items 4,071) (3,819) (2,474) (2,7186)
Non-cash and other items (2,632) 11,910 845 1,028

! These OEICs (Open-ended investment companes) are mutual funds which are consolidated if the Group manages the funds and also has a majonty beneficial interest The population of
OEICs to be consoldated vanes at each reporting date as external investors acquire and divest holdings in the vanous funds The consolidation of these funds is effected by the inclusion
of the fund investments and a matching liakality 1o the unit holders, and changes in funds consolidated represent a non-cash movement on the balanca sheet

ZWhen considenng the movement on each line of the balance sheet the impact of foreign exchange rate movements 1s removed 1n order to show the underlying cash impact

3A number of capital transactions entered into by the Group in 2014 and 2013 nvelved the exchange of existing securnilies for new 1ssues and as a result there was no related cash flow

d Analysis of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the balance sheet

The Group The Bank

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m £m £Em

Cash and balances with central banks 50,492 49,915 40,965 42,283
Less mandatory reserve deposits! {980) (937) (478) T 77255
- o - 49,512 48978 40,487 41,785

Loans and advances to banks 26,155 o 25,365 4,591 - 3,085
Less amounts with a maturty of three months or more ) _(15.520) U -(7,546) (2,106} {389)
15,635 17,819 2,485 2,706

Total cash and cash equivalents 65,147 66,797 42,972 44,491

'Mandatory reserve deposits are held with local central banks in accordance with statutory requirements these deposits are not available to finance the Group s day to day operations

Included within cash and cash equivalents of the Group at 31 December 201415 £12,855 million (2013 £14,058 mullion) hetd within the Group's life funds,

whtch s not immediately available for use 1n the business
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55 Cash flow statements {continued)

e Acquisition of group undertakings and businesses

The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Additional capital injections to subsidiaries - - (750) (621}
;CCIIJISIIIOI'I of subsrd;wfes:_ T ST T = T T o (773}
Acquision of and additional snvestment in associates and joint ventures {1 {6) - -
Net cash outflow (1) 6) (750) (1,394)
f Disposal of group undertakings and businesses
The Group The Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m £m £m £m
Trading and other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11 35,159 - -
Loans and advances to banks 55 1,701 - 926
Loans and advances to customers 256 2,612 256 434
Investment properties - 582 - -
Value of in-force business - 831 - -
Other intangible assets - 251 - -
Tangble fixed assets i - 67 T T,
322 41,203 256 1,360
Customer deposits (266} (1,923 {266) (1,443)
Debt secunties in 1ssue - (264) - -
Labulities ansing from insurance centracts and participating investment contracts - {451) - -
Liabalities ansing from non-participating investment contracts - (29,953} - .
Moty nterests 7 N -
Otner net assets (habiites) T 802 (6,160) - 52
536 (39,108) (266) (1,381}
Net assets {habilities) disposed of 858 2,095 (10) (31
Investment in subsidiary disposed of T T T e () 423
Non-cash consideration receved o 18 (59) (518) 59
Profit {loss) on sale of businesses 208 62 351 (296}
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (5) (1,702} ({5} (46)
Net cash inflow from disposals 543 696 728 (9

56 Disposal of a non-controlling interest in TSB Banking Group plc

Duning the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed of three tranches of TSB Banking Group plc (TSB) shares

() 1n June 2014, the Group disposed of a 35 per cent interest in TSB for a consideration of £430 mullion, after direclly attnbutable costs of £25 million,

through an sutial public offenng (1IPO},

{(n) i July 2014, the Group sold 3 5 per cent of TSB for £44 mullion, after directly attnbutable costs of £1 million, through an over-alloiment opuon which was

exercised by the underwnters of the IPO, and

() 1n September 2014, the Group disposed of a further 11 5 per cent for a consideration of £160 mullion, after directly attnbutable costs of £1 milhion

Al 31 December 2014, the Group retained an interest of approxsmately 50 per cent in TSB, which continues to be consolidated by the Group

As none of these Uransactions resulted in the Group ceding control of TSB, no gan or loss has been recognised in the Group's income statement The shortfall
of £171 million between the net proceeds of the three sales and the share of TSB's net assets {at book value) disposed of has been deducied from the Group's

retained earnings
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57 Future accounting developments

The following pronouncements may have a significant effect on the Group's financial statements but are not applicable for the year encing 31 December 2014
and have not been appled in preparing these financiat statements Save as disclosed below, the full impact of these accounting changes 15 being assessed by
the Group

Pronguncement Nature of change |ASB effective date

IFRS 9 Financral Instruments? Replaces IAS 39 Fnancial Instruments Recognition and Measurement IFRS 9 Annual periods beginmng on or
requires financial assets to be classified into one of three measurement categones,  afler 1 January 2018
faur value through peofit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and
amorbised cost, on the basis of the objectives of the entity’s business mode! for
managing s financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instruments  The requirements for derecognition are broadly unchanged from IAS
39 The standard retains most of the existing requirements for financial habiities
except for those designated at fair vatue through profit or loss whereby that part of
the fair value change attnbutable 1o the entity’s own ¢redit nisk 15 recorded 1n other
comprehensive income These changes are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group

IFRS @ also replaces the existing ‘incurred loss' imparment appreach with an
expected credit loss approach This change 1s kely to result in an increase tn the
Group's balance sheet prowvisions for credit losses although the extent of any
increase will depend upon, amongst other things, the composition of the Group's
lending portfolios and prevailing and forecast economic condittons at the date
of implementation

The hedge accounting reguirements of IFRS 9 are more closely aligned with n1sk
management practices and follow a more principle-based appreach than 1AS 39

} The revised requirements are not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts Replaces |1AS 18 Revenue angd IAS 11 Construction Contracts IFRS 15 Annual penods begmning on or
with Customners! establishes pninciples for reporting usefut information about the nature, amount, after 1 January 2017

timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows ansing from an entity's contracts
with customers Revenue 1S recognised at an amount that reflects the considesation
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods and services
Financial instruments, leases and insurance contracts are out of scope and so
this standard 1s not expected to have a sigmificant ympact on the Group

'As at 11 March 2015 these pronouncements are awaitng EU endorsement

58 Other information

Lloyds Bank plc and its subsicaries form a leading UK-based financial services group, whose businesses provide a wide range of banking and financial services
in the UK and in certain locations overseas

Lloyds Bank plc’s immediate parent undertaking and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Lloyds Banking Group ple which 1s incorporated in
Scotland Copies of the consohdated annual report and accounts of Lloyds Banking Group plc may be obtained from Lloyds Banking Group's head office at 25
. Gresham Street, London EC2V 7HN or downloaded via www lloydsbankinggroup com
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